Erste Group Bank AG

(Incorporated as a stock corporation in the Republic of Austria under registered number FN 33209 m)

Certificates Programme

Under this programme (the "Programme"), Erste Group Bank AG (the "Issuer” or "Erste Group Bank"), subject to
compliance with all relevant laws, regulations and directives, may from time to time issue certificates as further
specified in the relevant final terms (the "Final Terms") on indices, ETFs, shares, baskets of shares, currency
exchange rates, interest rates, commodities and future contracts available in the German or English language
under Austrian law (the "Certificates" or the "Securities").

This prospectus (the "Prospectus") has been drawn up in accordance with Annexes Xl, XIlI, XXI, XXIlI and XXX of
Commission Regulation (EC) No 809/2004, as amended (the "Prospectus Regulation") and has been approved
by the Austrian Financial Market Authority (Finanzmarktaufsichtsbehérde, the "FMA") in its capacity as competent
authority under the Austrian Capital Market Act (Kapitalmarktgesetz), as amended (the "KMG") for the approval of
this Prospectus. The accuracy of the information contained in this Prospectus does not fall within the scope
of examination by the FMA under the KMG and the Directive 2003/71/EC, as amended (the "Prospectus
Directive"). The FMA has examined this Prospectus only in respect of its completeness, coherence and
comprehensibility pursuant to § 8a KMG.

Application may be made for the Programme and/or the Certificates to be admitted to the "Amtlicher Handel"
(Official Market) (the "Austrian Market") of the Wiener Borse (the "Vienna Stock Exchange"). Application may
also be made to admit to trading such Certificates on the regulated and/or unregulated markets of the Stuttgart
Stock Exchange (Borse Stuttgart) (EUWAX) and/or the Budapest Stock Exchange and/or the Bucharest Stock
Exchange and/or the Prague Stock Exchange (together with the Austrian Market, the "Markets"). References in
this Prospectus to Certificates being listed (and all related references) shall mean that such Certificates have been
admitted to trading on one or more of the Markets. Each of the regulated Markets is a regulated market for the
purposes of Directive 2014/65/EU, as amended (Markets in Financial Instruments Directive 1l — "MiFID 1I"). Unlisted
Certificates may also be issued pursuant to this Programme. The relevant Final Terms in respect of the issue of
any Certificates will specify whether or not such Certificates will be admitted to trading on one or more of the
Markets.

The Issuer has requested the FMA to provide the competent authorities of the Czech Republic, Germany, Hungary,
Romania and the Slovak Republic with a certificate of approval attesting that this Prospectus has been drawn up in
accordance with Article 5(4) of the Prospectus Directive and the KMG (regarding each host Member State a
"Notification™). The Issuer may from time to time request the FMA to provide to competent authorities of Member
States of the European Economic Area ("EEA") further notifications concerning the approval of this Prospectus.

Each tranche (a "Tranche") of Certificates will be represented by a permanent global note in bearer form (each a
"Global Note"). Global Notes may (or in the case of Certificates listed on the Vienna Stock Exchange will) be
deposited on the issue date with a common depository with or on behalf of OeKB CSD GmbH ("OeKB CSD")
and/or the Issuer and/or any other agreed depository for any other clearing system, if any, all as specified in the
Final Terms.

Prospective investors should have regard to the factors described under the section headed "2. Risk Factors" in
this Prospectus. This Prospectus does not describe all of the risks of an investment in the Certificates, but the
Issuer believes that all material risks relating to an investment in the Certificates have been described.
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This Prospectus comprises a base prospectus for the purposes of Article 5(4) of the
Prospectus Directive and the KMG, and for the purpose of giving information with regard to
the Issuer and its subsidiaries and affiliates taken as a whole (the "Erste Group") and the
Certificates which, according to the particular nature of the Issuer and the Certificates, is
necessary to enable investors to make an informed assessment of the assets and liabilities,
financial position, profit and losses and prospects of the Issuer.

This document is a base prospectus relating to non-equity securities according to
Article 22(6)(4) of the Prospectus Regulation. The competent authority for the approval of the
Prospectus pursuant to 8 8a KMG that implements the Prospectus Directive into Austrian law
is the FMA. In respect of each individual series of Certificates Final Terms will be filed with the
FMA. Any decision to purchase the Certificates should be made on a consideration of the
Prospectus as a whole including the respective Final Terms.

This Prospectus is to be read in conjunction with any supplement hereto and all documents
which are incorporated herein by reference (see "Documents Incorporated by Reference"
below). Such documents shall be incorporated in, and form part of this Prospectus, save that
any statement contained in a document which is incorporated by reference herein shall be
deemed to be modified or superseded for the purpose of this Prospectus to the extent that a
statement contained herein modifies or supersedes such earlier statement (whether
expressly, by implication or otherwise). Any statement so modified or superseded shall,
except as so modified or superseded, not constitute a part of this Prospectus. Full information
on the Issuer and any Tranches of Certificates is only available on the basis of the
combination of this Prospectus, as supplemented, and the relevant Final Terms.

No person has been authorised to give any information or to make any representation other
than those contained in this Prospectus in connection with the issue or sale of the Certificates
and, if given or made, such information or representation must not be relied upon as having
been authorised by the Issuer. Neither the delivery of this Prospectus nor any sale made in
connection herewith shall, under any circumstances, create any implication that there has
been no change in the affairs of the Issuer or Erste Group since the date hereof or the date
upon which this Prospectus has been most recently amended or supplemented or that there
has been no adverse change in the financial position of the Issuer or Erste Group since the
date hereof or the date upon which this Prospectus has been most recently amended or
supplemented or that any other information supplied in connection with the Programme is
correct as of any time subsequent to the date on which it is supplied or, if different, the date
indicated in the document containing the same. Any material new circumstances or any
material incorrectness or inaccuracy as to the statements contained in this Prospectus that
could influence the assessment of the Certificates issued under the Programme and that
occur or are determined between the approval of the Prospectus by the FMA and the final
end of the public offer, or if later, the time when trading of Certificates under the Programme
on a regulated market begins will be included and published in a supplement to this
Prospectus in accordance with the KMG.

The distribution of this Prospectus and the offering or sale of the Certificates in certain
jurisdictions may be restricted by law. Persons into whose possession this Prospectus comes
are required by the Issuer to inform themselves about and to observe any such restriction.
The Certificates have not been and will not be registered under the United States Securities
Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act"), and may include Certificates in bearer form
that are subject to U.S. tax law requirements. The Certificates may not be offered, sold or
delivered within the United States or to U.S. persons except in certain transactions permitted
by U.S. tax regulations and the Securities Act. For a description of certain restrictions on
offers and sales of Certificates and on distribution of this Prospectus, see "10. Subscription
and Sale".

This Prospectus does not constitute an offer of, or an invitation by or on behalf of the Issuer to
subscribe for, or purchase, any Certificates.
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Neither this Prospectus nor any financial statements supplied in connection with the
Programme or any Certificates are intended to provide the basis of any credit or other
evaluation and should not be considered as a recommendation by the Issuer that any
recipient of this Prospectus or any financial statements should purchase the Certificates.
Each potential purchaser of Certificates should determine for itself the relevance of the
information contained in this Prospectus or any financial statements and its purchase of
Certificates should be based upon any such investigation as it deems necessary.

This Prospectus has been prepared on the basis that any offer of Certificates in any Member
State of the EEA which has implemented the Prospectus Directive (each, a "Relevant
Member State") will only be made pursuant to the rules for public offers under the Prospectus
Directive, as implemented in that Relevant Member State, or according to an exemption
under the Prospectus Directive, as implemented in that Relevant Member State, from the
requirement to publish a prospectus for offers of Certificates. Accordingly any person making
or intending to make an offer in that Relevant Member State of Certificates which are the
subject of an offering contemplated in this Prospectus as completed by the Final Terms in
relation to the offer of those Certificates may only do so: (i) if a prospectus for such offer has
been approved by the competent authority in that Relevant Member State or, where
appropriate, approved in another Relevant Member State and notified to the competent
authority in that Relevant Member State and (in either case) published, all in accordance with
the Prospectus Directive, provided that any such prospectus has subsequently been
completed by the Final Terms which specify that offers may be made other than pursuant to
Article 3(2) of the Prospectus Directive in that Relevant Member State and such offer is made
in the period beginning and ending on the dates specified for such purpose in such
prospectus or the Final Terms, as applicable, and the Issuer has consented in writing to its
use for the purpose of such offer; or (ii) in circumstances in which no obligation arises for the
Issuer to publish a prospectus pursuant to Article 3 of the Prospectus Directive or supplement
a prospectus pursuant to Article 16 of the Prospectus Directive, in each case, in relation to
such offer. Except to the extent sub-paragraph (i) above may apply, the Issuer has not
authorised, and will not authorise, the making of any offer of Certificates in circumstances in
which an obligation arises for the Issuer to publish or supplement a prospectus for such offer.

Benchmark Regulation Statement in relation to Administrator’s Registration

Amounts payable under the Certificates may be calculated by reference to a specific
benchmark which is provided by an administrator.

As at the date of this Prospectus, the specific benchmark(s) are not yet determined. The Final
Terms may set out the name of the specific benchmark(s) and the relevant administrator. In
such a case they will further specify if the relevant administrator appears or does not appear
on the register of administrators and benchmarks (the "Register") established and maintained
by the European Securities and Markets Authority (ESMA) pursuant to Article 36 of the
Regulation (EU) 2016/1011 (the "Benchmark Regulation™).
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DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

This Prospectus should be read and construed in conjunction with the following parts of the
following documents which are incorporated by reference into this Prospectus and which have

been filed with the FMA:

Document/Heading

German language version of the Audited Consolidated
Financial Statements of the Issuer for the financial year
ended 31 December 2017- Annual Report 2017
(Geschéftsbericht  2017) Sthe "Audited Consolidated
Financial Statements 2017")

Consolidated Income Statement
(Konzern-Gewinn- und Verlustrechnung)

Consolidated Comprehensive Income Statement
(Konzern-Gesamtergebnisrechnung)

Consolidated Balance Sheet (Konzernbilanz)

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
(Konzern-Eigenkapitalveranderungsrechnung)

Consolidated Cash Flows Statement
(Konzern-Kapitalflussrechnung)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(Anhang (Notes) zum Konzernabschluss)

Auditor's Report (Bestatigungsvermerk)
German language version of the Audited Consolidated
Financial Statements of the Issuer for the financial year
ended 31 December 2016- Annual Report 2016

(Geschaftsbericht 2016) gthe "Audited Consolidated
Financial Statements 2016")

Consolidated Income Statement
(Konzerngesamtergebnisrechnung)
Consolidated Balance Sheet (Konzernbilanz)

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Total Equity
(Konzern-Kapitalveranderungsrechnung)

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

Page reference in the
relevant financial report

104
105

106
107 - 108

109
110 -290

291 - 295

104 - 105

106
107

108

and 2016 are solely legally binding and definitive.

The officially signed German language versions of the Issuer's Audited Consolidated Financial Statements 2017

For the purposes of this Prospectus the defined term "Audited Consolidated Financial Statements 2017" shall
also include the English language translation of the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Issuer for

the financial year ended 31 December 2017.
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(Konzerngeldflussrechnung)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 109 - 301
(Anhang (Notes) zum Konzernabschluss)

Auditors' Report (Bestatigungsvermerk (Bericht der 306 — 311
unabhangigen Abschlussprifer))

English language translation of the Audited Consolidated
Financial Statements of the Issuer for the financial year
ended 31 December 2017 — Annual Report 20177

Consolidated Income Statement 100
Consolidated Comprehensive Income Statement 101
Consolidated Balance Sheet 102
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 103 -104
Consolidated Cash Flows Statement 105
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 106 — 273
Auditor's Report 274 - 278

English language translation of the Audited Consolidated
Financial Statements of the Issuer for the financial year
ended 31 December 2016 — Annual Report 2016°

Consolidated Income Statement 100 -101
Consolidated Balance Sheet 102
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Total Equity 103
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement 104
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 105 - 284
Auditors' Report 289 — 294

English language translation of the Unaudited Interim
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements of the
Issuer for the first half year ended 30 June 2018 — Interim
Report First Half Year 2018 (the "Unaudited Interim
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements as of
30 June 2018")

Condensed Statement of Income 16 - 18
Condensed Balance Sheet 19-20
Condensed Statement of Changes in Equity 21

The English language translations of the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Issuer for the
financial years ended 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2017 are not legally binding and are incorporated
into this Prospectus by reference for convenience purposes only.
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Condensed Statement of Cash Flows 22 -23

Condensed notes to the Financial Statements of Erste 24 - 87
Group for the period from 1 January to 30 June 2018

For the avoidance of doubt, such parts of the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements
2017 and 2016 respectively as well as of the Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated
Financial Statements as of 30 June 2018 which are not explicitly listed in the tables above,
are not incorporated by reference into this Prospectus as these parts are either not relevant
for the investor or covered elsewhere in this Prospectus.

Any information not listed above but included in the above documents incorporated by
reference is given for information purposes only.

Such parts of the documents which are explicitly listed above shall be deemed to be
incorporated in, and form part of this Prospectus, save that any statement contained in such a
document shall be deemed to be modified or superseded for the purpose of this Prospectus
to the extent that a statement contained in this Prospectus modifies or supersedes such
earlier statement (whether expressly, by implication or otherwise). Any statement so modified
or superseded shall not be deemed, except as so modified or superseded, to constitute a part
of this Prospectus.

Furthermore, this Prospectus should be read and construed in conjunction with each set of
Final Terms relating to any Certificates that are offered under the Programme at the time of
this Prospectus which has been previously filed with the FMA. The following sections of the
following prospectuses relating to the Programme, which have been previously published, are
incorporated by reference into this Prospectus:

Prospectus/Section Page reference in the
relevant prospectus

The prospectus dated 3 November 2017

Terms and Conditions of the Certificates (German and 95 - 227
English language)

Form of Final Terms, provided that the reference to 270 - 285
the prospectus dated 3 November 2017 should be
replaced by a reference to this Prospectus

The prospectus dated 4 November 2016

Terms and Conditions of the Certificates (German and 93 -196
English language)

Form of Final Terms, provided that the reference to 245 - 261
the prospectus dated 4 November 2016 should be
replaced by a reference to this Prospectus

The prospectus dated 5 November 2015

Terms and Conditions of the Certificates (German and 87 -188
English language)

Form of Final Terms, provided that the reference to 237 - 251
the prospectus dated 5 November 2015 should be
replaced by a reference to this Prospectus
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The prospectus dated 7 November 2014

Terms and Conditions of the Certificates (German and 85— 187
English language)

Form of Final Terms, provided that the reference to 234 — 248
the prospectus dated 7 November 2014 should be
replaced by a reference to this Prospectus

The prospectus dated 16 July 2014

Terms and Conditions of the Certificates (German and 78 — 164
English language)

Form of Final Terms, provided that the reference to 210-221
the prospectus dated 16 July 2014 should be replaced
by a reference to this Prospectus

The prospectus dated 16 July 2013

Terms and Conditions of the Certificates (German and 73 —-159
English language)

Form of Final Terms, provided that the reference to 215 -225
the prospectus dated 16 July 2013 should be replaced
by a reference to this Prospectus

For the avoidance of doubt, such parts of the above listed previously published prospectuses
relating to the Programme which are not explicitly listed in the tables above, are not
incorporated by reference into this Prospectus as these parts are either not relevant for the
investor or covered elsewhere in this Prospectus. Any information not listed above but
included in the prospectuses incorporated by reference is given for information purposes only.

Under this Prospectus, the Issuer may also publicly offer certificates which have been issued
under the prospectus dated 3 November 2017, the prospectus dated 4 November 2016, the
prospectus dated 5 November 2015, the prospectus dated 7 November 2014, the prospectus
dated 16 July 2014 and the prospectus dated 16 July 2013. Such certificates may include all
certificates: (a) for which either (i) the first day of the subscription period; or (ii) the issue date
is after 16 July 2013; and (b) which have not already been redeemed or cancelled or
otherwise repaid by the Issuer.

DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE FOR INSPECTION

Electronic versions of the following documents will be available on the website of the Issuer
under "www .erstegroup.com" (see also the links set out below in brackets):

0] the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements 2017 incorporated by reference into this
Prospectus

("https://www.erstegroup.com/content/dam/at/eh/www_erstegroup _com/de/ir/2017/Beri
chte/GB2017_Jahresfinanzbericht_de.pdf");

(i)  the English language translation of the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of
the Issuer for the financial year ended 31 December 2017 incorporated by reference
into this Prospectus

("https://www.erstegroup.com/content/dam/at/eh/www _erstegroup_com/en/Investor%?2
ORelations/2017/Reports/AR2017_Annual_Financial_Report_en.pdf");
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(iii)

(iv)

V)

(vi)

(Vi)

(viii)

(ix)

)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements 2016 incorporated by reference into this
Prospectus

("https://www.erstegroup.com/content/dam/at/eh/www_erstegroup_com/de/ir/2016/Beri
chte/GB2016_Jahresfinanzbericht_de.pdf");

the English language translation of the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of
the Issuer for the financial year ended 31 December 2016 incorporated by reference
into this Prospectus

("https:/iwww.erstegroup.com/content/dam/at/eh/www_erstegroup_com/en/Investor%?2
ORelations/2016/Reports/AR2016_Annual_Financial_Report_en.pdf");

the Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements as of
30 June 2018 incorporated by reference into this Prospectus

("https://www.erstegroup.com/content/dam/at/eh/www_erstegroup_com/en/Investor%?2
ORelations/2018/Reports/IR_Interim_Report EG_H118en.pdf");

the prospectus dated 3 November 2017

(https://iwww.erstegroup.com/content/dam/at/eh/www_erstegroup_com/de/Erste%20Gr
oup%20Emissionen/prospekte/os-zertifikate-ab-2006/cp-20171103/20171103-
CertificatesProgramme.pdf);

the prospectus dated 4 November 2016

(https://www.erstegroup.com/content/dam/at/eh/www_erstegroup_com/de/Erste%20Gr
oup%20Emissionen/prospekte/os-zertifikate-ab-2006/cp-20161104/20161104-
CertificatesProgramme.pdf);

the prospectus dated 5 November 2015

("https://lwww.erstegroup.com/content/dam/at/eh/www_erstegroup_com/de/Erste%20Gr
oup%20Emissionen/prospekte/os-zertifikate-ab-2006/cp-20151105/20151106-
CertificatesProgramme.pdf");

the prospectus dated 7 November 2014

("https://www.erstegroup.com/content/dam/at/eh/www_erstegroup_com/de/Erste%20Gr
oup%20Emissionen/prospekte/os-zertifikate-ab-2006/cp-20141107/20141107-
CertificatesProgramme.pdf");

the prospectus dated 16 July 2014

("https://www.erstegroup.com/content/dam/at/eh/www_erstegroup_com/de/Erste%20Gr
oup%20Emissionen/prospekte/os-zertifikate-ab-2006/cp-20140716/20140716-
CertificatesProgramme.pdf");

the prospectus dated 16 July 2013

("https://lwww.erstegroup.com/content/dam/at/eh/www_erstegroup_com/de/Erste%20Gr
oup%20Emissionen/prospekte/os-zertifikate-ab-2006/cp-20130716/Certificates-
Programme-2013.pdf");

each set of Final Terms for Certificates that are publicly offered or admitted to trading
on a regulated Market

("www .erstegroup.com/Optionsscheine-Zertifikate");

a copy of this Prospectus together with any supplement to this Prospectus or further
Prospectus

("https://www.erstegroup.com/content/dam/at/eh/www_erstegroup_com/de/Erste%20Gr
oup%20Emissionen/prospekte/os-zertifikate-ab-2006/cp-20181102/20181102-
CertificatesProgramme.pdf*)

("www .erstegroup.com/Optionsscheine-Zertifikate"); and

the articles of association of the Issuer

Page 11


https://www.erstegroup.com/content/dam/at/eh/www_erstegroup_com/de/Erste%20Gr
https://www.erstegroup.com/content/dam/at/eh/www_erstegroup_com/de/Erste%20Gr

("www .erstegroup.com/en/about-us").

The document mentioned above under item (xiv) will also be available, during usual business
hours on any weekday (Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays excepted) for inspection at
the registered office of the Issuer (Erste Group Bank AG, Am Belvedere 1, A-1100, Vienna,
Austria).

SUPPLEMENT TO THIS PROSPECTUS

The Issuer is obliged by the provisions of the Prospectus Directive and the KMG, that if at any
time during the duration of the Programme there is a significant new factor, material mistake
or inaccuracy relating to information contained in this Prospectus which is capable of affecting
the assessment of any Certificates and which arises or is noted between the time when this
Prospectus is approved and the final closing of an offer of such Certificates to the public or,
as the case may be, the time when trading on a regulated market begins, whichever occurs
later, the Issuer shall prepare a supplement to this Prospectus or publish a replacement
Prospectus for use in connection with any subsequent offering of the Certificates and shall
supply to the FMA and the stock exchange operating the Markets such number of copies of
such supplement or replacement hereto as relevant applicable legislation require.

SOURCES OF INFORMATION

Unless otherwise stated, statistical and other data provided in this Prospectus has been
extracted from the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements 2017 and the English language
translation of the annual report thereon as well as the Unaudited Interim Condensed
Consolidated Financial Statements as of 30 June 2018. The lIssuer confirms that such
information has been accurately reproduced and that, so far as it is aware, and is able to
ascertain from information published by such sources, no facts have been omitted which
would render the reproduced information inaccurate or misleading.

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES AND MATERIAL ADVERSE
CHANGES

Except as disclosed under "5.5 Recent Developments" starting on page 241 of this
Prospectus, there has been no significant change in the financial position of Erste Group
since 30 June 2018 and no material adverse change in the prospects of the Issuer since
31 December 2017.

CONSENT TO USE PROSPECTUS

The Issuer consents that: (i) all credit institutions pursuant to the Directive 2013/36/EU acting
as financial intermediaries subsequently reselling or finally placing the Certificates and
(ii) each further financial intermediary who has been disclosed on the website of the Issuer
under "www .erstegroup.com” as an intermediary who is given the Issuer's consent to the use
of this Prospectus for the reselling or final placing of Certificates (if any) (together, the
"Financial Intermediaries") are entitled to use this Prospectus in Austria the Czech Republic,
Germany, Hungary, Romania, the Slovak Republic and such other Member State of the EEA
whose competent authorities have been notified of the approval of this Prospectus for the
subsequent resale or final placement of Certificates to be issued under the Programme during
the relevant offer period (as determined in the applicable Final Terms) during which
subsequent resale or final placement of the relevant instruments can be made, provided
however, that the Prospectus is still valid in accordance with § 6a KMG which implements the
Prospectus Directive.

The Issuer accepts responsibility for the information given in this Prospectus also with respect
to such subsequent resale or final placement of the Certificates by Financial Intermediaries.
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The consent by the Issuer to the use of this Prospectus for subsequent resale or final
placement of the Certificates by Financial Intermediaries has been given under the condition
that: (i) potential investors will be provided with this Prospectus, any supplement hereto and
the relevant Final Terms; and (ii) each of the Financial Intermediaries ensures that it will use
this Prospectus, any supplement hereto and the relevant Final Terms in accordance with all
applicable selling restrictions specified in this Prospectus and any applicable laws and
regulations in the relevant jurisdiction.

In the relevant Final Terms, the Issuer can determine further conditions attached to its
consent which are relevant for the use of this Prospectus. The Issuer reserves the right to
withdraw its consent to use this Prospectus at any time. Such withdrawal shall be published
on the website of the Issuer under "www .erstegroup.com”.

In the event of an offer being made by a Financial Intermediary the Financial
Intermediary shall provide information to investors on the terms and conditions of the
offer at the time the offer is made.

Any Financial Intermediary using this Prospectus shall state on its website that it uses
this Prospectus in accordance with this consent and the conditions attached to this
consent.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Prospectus contains certain forward-looking statements. A forward-looking statement is
a statement that does not relate to historical facts and events. They are based on analyses or
forecasts of future results and estimates of amounts not yet determinable or foreseeable.
These forward-looking statements can be identified by the use of terms and phrases such as
"anticipate”, "believe", "could”, "estimate”, "expect”, "intend", "may", "plan”, "predict", "project”,
"will" and similar terms and phrases, including references and assumptions. This applies, in
particular, to statements in this Prospectus containing information on future earning capacity,
plans and expectations regarding the Issuer's business and management, its growth and
profitability, and general economic and regulatory conditions and other factors that affect it.

Forward-looking statements in this Prospectus are based on current estimates and
assumptions that the Issuer makes to the best of its present knowledge. These forward-
looking statements are subject to risks, uncertainties and other factors which could cause
actual results, including the lIssuer's financial condition and results of operations, to differ
materially from and be worse than results that have expressly or implicitly been assumed or
described in these forward-looking statements. The Issuer's business is also subject to a
number of risks and uncertainties that could cause a forward-looking statement, estimate or
prediction in this Prospectus to become inaccurate. Accordingly, investors are strongly
advised to read the following sections of this Prospectus: "2. Risk Factors" and "5. Erste
Group Bank AG". These sections include more detailed descriptions of factors that might
have an impact on the Issuer's business and the markets in which it operates.

In light of these risks, uncertainties and assumptions, future events described in this
Prospectus may not occur.

RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The Issuer, with its registered office at Am Belvedere 1, A-1100 Vienna, Austria, is
responsible for the information given in this Prospectus.

The Issuer hereby declares that, having taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the
case, the information contained in this Prospectus is, to the best of the knowledge of the
Issuer, in accordance with the facts and contains no omission likely to affect its import.
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1. SUMMARY

This summary (the "Summary") is made up of disclosure requirements known as elements
(the "Elements"). These Elements are numbered in sections A — E (A.1 — E.7).

This Summary contains all the Elements required to be included in a summary for this type of
securities and the Issuer. As some Elements are not required to be addressed, there may be
gaps in the numbering sequence of the Elements.

Even though an Element may be required to be inserted in this Summary because of the type
of securities and the Issuer, it is possible that no relevant information can be given regarding
the Element. In this case a short description of the Element is included in this Summary with
the specification of "Not applicable".

[This Summary contains options, characterised by square brackets or typesetting in italics
(other than the respective translations of specific legal terms), and placeholders regarding the
Certificates to be issued under the Programme. The summary of the individual issue of
Certificates will include the options relevant to this issue of Certificates as determined by the
applicable Final Terms and will contain the information, which had been left blank, as
completed by the applicable Final Terms.]

[In the case of multi issuances, i.e. if more than one Series of Certificates is contained
in the issue specific summary, insert: Some Elements might not be uniform with regard to
all individual Series of Certificates described herein. In this case the respective information
relating to the individual Series of Certificates or a specific Underlying will be specified by
mentioning the relevant ISIN of the Series or another unique identification feature in
connection with the relevant information.]

A. INTRODUCTION AND WARNINGS

A.l Warning: This summary (the "Summary") should be read as an
introduction to the prospectus (the "Prospectus") of the
Certificates Programme (the "Programme").

Any decision by an investor to invest in Certificates issued
under the Prospectus (the "Certificates™) should be based on
consideration of the Prospectus as a whole by the investor.

Where a claim relating to the information contained in the
Prospectus is brought before a court, the plaintiff investor
might, under the national legislation of the Member States of
the European Economic Area, have to bear the costs of
translating the Prospectus before the legal proceedings are
initiated.

Civil liability attaches only to Erste Group Bank AG ("Erste
Group Bank"), Am Belvedere 1, A-1100 Vienna, Austria (in
its capacity as issuer under the Programme, the "Issuer")
who tabled this Summary including any translation thereof,
but only if this Summary is misleading, inaccurate or
inconsistent when read together with the other parts of the
Prospectus, or it does not provide, when read together with
the other parts of the Prospectus, key information in order to
aid investors when considering whether to invest in such
Certificates.

A.2 Consent by the The Issuer consents that: (i) all credit institutions pursuant to
Issuer or person the Directive 2013/36/EU acting as financial intermediaries
responsible for subsequently reselling or finally placing the Certificates; and
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drawing up the
Prospectus to the
use of the
Prospectus for
subsequent resale
or final placement
of securities by
financial

intermediaries and
indication of the
offer period within
which subsequent

resale or final
placement of
securities by
financial

intermediaries can
be made and for
which consent to
use the Prospectus
is given:

Any other clear and
objective conditions
attached to the
consent which are
relevant for the use
of the Prospectus:

Notice in  bold
informing investors
that, in the event of
an offer being
made by a financial

intermediary,  this
financial
intermediary will

provide information
to investors on the
terms and
conditions of the
offer at the time the
offer is made:

THE ISSUER

The legal and
commercial name of

(ii) each further financial intermediary that is disclosed on the
website of the Issuer under "www .erstegroup.com” as an
intermediary that is given the Issuer's consent to the use of
the Prospectus for the reselling or final placing of the
Certificates (together, the "Financial Intermediaries") are
entitled to use the Prospectus during the relevant offer period
as indicated in the Final Terms during which subsequent
resale or final placement of the Certificates issued under the
Prospectus can be made, provided however, that the
Prospectus is still valid in accordance with § 6a of the KMG
which implements the Prospectus Directive.

The consent by the Issuer to the use of this Prospectus for
subsequent resale or final placement of the Certificates by
Financial Intermediaries has been given under the condition
that: (i) potential investors will be provided with this
Prospectus, any supplement hereto and the relevant Final
Terms; and (i) each of the Financial Intermediaries ensures
that it will use this Prospectus, any supplement hereto and
the relevant Final Terms in accordance with all applicable
selling restrictions specified in this Prospectus and any
applicable laws and regulations in the relevant jurisdiction.

In the Final Terms, the Issuer can determine further
conditions attached to its consent which are relevant for the
use of the Prospectus. The Issuer reserves the right to
withdraw its consent to use the Prospectus at any time. Such
withdrawal shall be published on the website of the Issuer
under "www .erstegroup.com".

In the event of an offer being made by a Financial
Intermediary the Financial Intermediary shall provide
information to investors on the terms and conditions of
the offer at the time the offer is made.

The legal name of the Issuer is "Erste Group Bank AG", its
commercial name is "Erste Group". "Erste Group" also refers
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B.2

B.4b

B.5

B.9

B.10

the Issuer:

The domicile and

legal form of the
Issuer, the
legislation under
which  the Issuer
operates and its
country or
incorporation:

Any known trends
affecting the Issuer
and the industries in
which it operates:

If the Issuer is part
of a group, a
description of the
group and the
Issuer's position
within the group:

Where a  profit
forecast or estimate
is made, state the
figure:

A description of the
nature of any
qualifications in the
audit report on the
historical ~ financial
information:

to Erste Group Bank and its consolidated subsidiaries.

Erste Group Bank is a stock corporation (Aktiengesellschaft)
organised and operating under Austrian law, registered with

the companies register (Firmenbuch) at the Vienna
commercial court (Handelsgericht Wien) under the
registration number FN 33209 m. Erste Group Bank's

registered office is in Vienna, Republic of Austria. It has its
business address at Am Belvedere 1, A-1100 Vienna,
Austria.

The past global financial crisis has led to an increase in
regulatory activities at national and international levels to
adopt new and more strictly enforce existing regulation for the
financial industry in which the Issuer operates. Regulatory
changes or enforcement initiatives could further affect the
financial industry. New governmental or regulatory
requirements and changes in levels of adequate
capitalisation, liquidity and leverage could lead to increased
capital and liquidity requirements or standards. Governmental
and central bank action in response to the financial crisis
could significantly affect competition and may affect investors
of financial institutions.

"Erste Group" consists of Erste Group Bank and its
subsidiaries and participations, including Erste Bank
Oesterreich in Austria, Ceska spofitelna in the Czech
Republic, Banca Comerciala Romana in Romania, Slovenska
sporitelfia in the Slovak Republic, Erste Bank Hungary in
Hungary, Erste Bank Croatia in Croatia, Erste Bank Serbia in
Serbia and, in Austria, savings banks of the
Haftungsverbund, s-Bausparkasse, Erste Group Immorent
GmbH, and others. Erste Group Bank operates as the parent
company of Erste Group and is the lead bank in the Austrian
Savings Banks Sector.

Not applicable; no profit forecast or estimate has been made.

Not applicable; there are no qualifications.
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B.12

Selected historical
key financial
information:

Statement with
regard to no material
adverse change in
the prospects of the
Issuer since the date
of its last published
audited financial
statements or a
description of any

material adverse
change:

Description of
significant changes
in the financial or
trading position

subsequent to the

in millions of
Euro (rounded)

Total liabilities and
equity

Total equity
Net interest income

Pre-tax result from
continuing operations

Net result for the
period

Net result attributable
to owners of the
parent

Source: Audited Consolidated Financial Statements 2017

in millions of Euro

(rounded)

Total liabilities and equity

Total equity

in millions of Euro

(rounded)

Net interest income

Pre-tax result from continuing

operations

Net result for the period

Net result attributable to

owners of the parent

Source: Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
as of 30 June 2018 with comparative financial information for the first half
year ended 30 June 2017 and the year ended 31 December 2017,

respectively

*) Since 1 January 2018 Erste Group applies the IFRS 9 "Financial
Instruments". The comparative figures for 2017 were not adjusted and
are based on the assessment requirements of IAS 39 (as replaced by

IFRS 9).

There has been no material adverse change in the prospects

31 December
2017
audited

220,659

18,288
4,353
2,078

1,668

1,316

30 June
2018
unaudited

229,878
17,708

30 June
2018
unaudited

2,213.8
1,174.7

939.8
774.3

of the Issuer since 31 December 2017.

Not applicable. There has been no significant change in the

31 December
2016
audited

208,227

16,602
4,375
1,950

1,537

1,265

31 December
2017
audited*)

220,659
18,288

30 June
2017
unaudited®)

2,143.0
1,017.6

793.8
624.7

financial position of the Issuer since 30 June 2018.
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B.13

B.14

B.15

B.16

C.

Ci1

period covered by
the historical
financial information:

Description of any
recent events
particular to the
Issuer which are to a
material extent
relevant to the
evaluation of the
Issuer’s solvency:

If the Issuer is part
of a group, any
dependency  upon
other entities within
the group:

A description of the
Issuer’s principal
activities:

To the extent known
to the Issuer, state
whether the Issuer is
directly or indirectly
owned or controlled
and by whom and
describe the nature
of such control:

SECURITIES

Description of the
type and the class of
the securities being
offered and/or
admitted to trading,
including any
security
identification
number:

Not applicable; there are no recent events particular to the
Issuer that are to a material extent relevant to the evaluation
of the Issuer’s solvency.

The Issuer is the parent company of Erste Group and thus
dependent on the business results of the operations of all of
its affiliates, subsidiaries and group companies.

Erste Group provides a full range of banking and financial
services, including deposit and current account products,
mortgage and consumer finance, investment and working
capital finance, private banking, investment banking, asset
management, project finance, international trade finance,
trading, leasing and factoring.

As of the date of this Prospectus, 29.9% of the shares in
Erste Group Bank were attributable to DIE ERSTE
Osterreichische Spar-Casse Privatstiftung ("Erste Stiftung").
This comprises an 11.3% economic interest of Erste Stiftung
as well as shares attributable to Erste Stiftung through
syndicate agreements concluded with CaixaBank, S.A., the
Austrian savings banks and other parties (i.e. the
Sparkassenstiftungen and Anteilsverwaltungssparkassen,
and Wiener Stadtische Wechselseitiger Versicherungsverein
— Vermogensverwaltung — Vienna Insurance Group), which
held 9.9%, 5.6% and 3.1%, respectively. The free float
amounts to 70.1% (of which 43.7% were held by institutional
investors, 5.0% by Austrian retail investors, 9.3% by
unidentified international institutional and private investors,
3.2% by identified trading (including market makers, prime
brokerage, proprietary trading, collateral and stock lending),
4.2% by BlackRock Inc., 4.0% by T. Rowe Price Group Inc.
and 0.7% by Erste Group's employees as well as by Erste
Employees Private Foundation) (all numbers are rounded).

Type of Certificates

The Certificates are [Bonus][Capped Bonus][Discount][Open
End Participation][Open End Index][Reverse Bonus][Capped
Reverse Bonus][Participation][Index][Twin Win][Capped Twin
Win] [Factor] Certificates.

Form of Certificates

[Each Series of the] [The] Certificates will be represented by
a global note.

Security identification number
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C.2

C5

C.8

cl1

Currency of the

securities issue:

Description of any
restrictions on the
free transferability of
the securities:

Description of the
rights attached to

the securities
including ranking
and limitation to

those rights:

Indication as to
whether the
securities  offered
are or will be the
object of an
application for
admission to
trading, with a view
to their distribution
in a regulated
market or other
equivalent markets

ISIN(s): [e]

The specified Currency of the Certificates is [o]

Each Certificate [of a series of Certificates] is transferable in a
number equal to the Minimum Trading Number as specified in
the Final Terms or an integral multiple thereof and in
accordance with the laws applying in each case and, where
relevant, the respective applicable regulations and
procedures of the securities depositary in whose records the
transfer is registered.

Rights attached to the Securities

Each Certificate provides its respective holders, a claim for
payment of a cash amount, as described in detail under C.15.

Status of the Securities

[Each Series of the] [The] Certificates will constitute direct,
unconditional, unsecured and unsubordinated obligations of
the Issuer.

Rank

The Certificates are ranking pari passu among themselves
and pari passu with all other unsecured and unsubordinated
obligations of the Issuer except for any obligations preferred
by law.

Limitations to the Rights

The Issuer is entitled to terminate the Certificates and to
adjust the Terms and Conditions under the conditions set out
in the Terms and Conditions.

Governing law

Form and content of the Securities as well as all rights and
obligations from matters under the Certificates are
determined in every respect by the laws of Austria.

Place of jurisdiction

To the extent permitted by mandatory law, the courts
competent for Vienna, Inner City, shall have exclusive
jurisdiction, provided that the Issuer shall be entitled to bring
proceedings in any other competent court. The submission to
the jurisdiction of the courts of Vienna shall not limit the right
of any Security Holder to take proceedings in a place of
consumer jurisdiction if and to the extent mandated by
applicable statute.

[Application has been made to list [each Series of] the
Certificates on the [[regulated] [®] market of the Vienna Stock
Exchangel][,] [and] [[[un]regulated] [®] market of the Stuttgart
Stock Exchange (EUWAX)][,] [and] [[[un]regulated] [®] market
of the Budapest Stock Exchange][,] [and] [[[un]regulated] [®]
market of the Bucharest Stock Exchange],] [and]
[[[un]regulated] [®] market of the Prague Stock Exchange].
Reference to regulated and/or unregulated market is solely
for the purposes of Directive 2014/65/EU.]

[Not applicable. The Issuer has made no application for the
Certificates to be listed or admitted to trading on any
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C.15

with indication of
the markets in
guestion:

A description of
how the value of

the investment s
affected by the
value of the
underlying
instrument(s),
unless the

securities have a
denomination of at
least EUR 100,000.

regulated or unregulated market.]

[Description of [Bonus][Capped Bonus] Certificates

In the case of these Certificates, on the Repayment Date
Security Holders receive a Cash Amount, converted into the
Settlement Currency, as the case may be, the amount of
which depends on the performance of the Underlying.

(i) If no Barrier Event occurs, the Cash Amount equals the
Reference Price taking into account the Multiplier, and the
Cash Amount is at least equal to the Bonus Amount[ and
does not exceed the Maximum Amount].

(ii) If a Barrier Event has occurred, the Cash Amount is no
longer at least equal to the Bonus Amount, but is always
equal to the Reference Price (taking into account the
Multiplier) (1:1 participation in the performance of the
Underlying)[ and does not exceed the Maximum Amount].

A Barrier Event occurs if the [Observation Price reaches or
falls below the Barrier at any time during the Observation
Period] [Reference Price reaches or falls below the Barrier on
the Final Valuation Date].

The Security Holders do not have any claim to or arising out
of the Underlying (e.g. voting rights, dividends).]

[Description of Discount Certificates

In the case of these Certificates, Security Holders participate
in the performance of the Underlying throughout the term.
The Initial Issue Price or the current price of the Certificate is
below the current market price of the Underlying (Discount)
taking into account the Multiplier.

On the Repayment Date the Security Holders receive a Cash
Amount, converted into the Settlement Currency, as the case
may be, the amount of which is dependent on the Reference
Price.

() If the Reference Price is at the level of or above the Cap,
the Cash Amount equals the Maximum Amount.

(i) If the Reference Price is below the Cap, Security Holders
receive a Cash Amount which equals the Reference Price
taking into account the Multiplier.

The Security Holders do not have any claim to or arising out
of the Underlying (e.g. voting rights, dividends).]

[Description  of End

Certificates

Open [Participation][Index]

Open End [Participation][Index] Certificates do not have a
specified limited term. The term of the Certificates ends either
(i) on the exercise of the Certificates by the Security Holders
or (i) on ordinary termination by the Issuer or (iii) on
extraordinary termination by the Issuer.

The Cash Amount, converted into the Settlement Currency,
as the case may be, equals the Reference Price multiplied by
the [(current)] Multiplier [and the Management Factor].]
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[Description of [Reverse Bonus][Capped Reverse Bonus]
Certificates

In the case of these Certificates, Security Holders receive a
Cash Amount on the Repayment Date, converted into the
Settlement Currency, as the case may be, the amount of
which depends on the performance of the Underlying. A
particular feature is that the participation of the Security
Holders is inverse to the performance of the Underlying.

(i) If no Barrier Event has occurred, the Cash Amount equals
the Reverse Level minus the Reference Price, taking into
account the Multiplier, and is at least equal to the Bonus
Amount[ and does not exceed the Maximum Amount].

(i) If a Barrier Event has occurred, the Cash Amount is no
longer at least equal to the Bonus Amount, but always equals
the Reverse Level minus the Reference Price, taking into
account the Multiplier (positive participation in the negative
Performance of the Underlying), and is at least equal to zero[
and does not exceed the Maximum Amount].

A Barrier Event occurs if the [Observation Price reaches or
exceeds the Barrier at any time during the Observation
Period] [Reference Price reaches or exceeds the Barrier on
the Final Valuation Date].

Security Holders have no rights in respect of or arising from
the Underlying (e.g. voting rights, dividends).]

[Description of [Participation][Index] Certificates

In the case of these Certificates, Security Holders receive a
Cash Amount on the Repayment Date, converted into the
Settlement Currency, as the case may be, the amount of
which depends on the performance of the Underlying. The
Cash Amount equals the Reference Price multiplied by the
Multiplier [and the Management Factor].]

[Description of [Twin Win] [Capped Twin Win]
Certificates

The level of the Cash Amount, converted into the Settlement
Currency, as the case may be, in the case of Twin Win
Certificates is linked to the performance of the Underlying,
and the following cases are to be distinguished:

() If no Barrier Event has occurred and the Reference Price
equals or exceeds the Strike, the Cash Amount per Security
corresponds to the product of (A) the Multiplier and (B) the
sum of (i) the Strike and (ii) the product of (x) the difference
between Reference Price and Strike and (y) the applicable
Participation Factor[ whereby the Cash Amount does not
exceed the applicable Maximum Amount].

(ii) If no Barrier Event has occurred but the Reference Price
falls below the Strike, the Cash Amount per Security
corresponds to, the product of (A) the Multiplier and (B) the
sum of (i) the Strike and (ii) the product of (x) the difference
between Strike and Reference Price and (y) the applicable
Participation Factor[ whereby the Cash Amount does not
exceed the applicable Maximum Amount].

(iii) If a Barrier Event has occurred, the Cash Amount per
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Security corresponds to, the product of (i) the Reference
Price and (ii) the Multiplier[ whereby the Cash Amount does
not exceed the applicable Maximum Amount].

A Barrier Event occurs if an Observation Price specified in the
applicable Final Terms reaches or falls below the Barrier.

The Participation Factors[ and the Maximum Amounts] can
differ in the individual cases.

Security Holders have no rights in respect of or arising from
the Underlying (e.g. voting rights, dividends).]

[Description of Factor Certificates

Factor Certificates do not have a specified limited term. The
term of the Certificates ends either (i) on the exercise of the
Certificates by the Security Holders or (i) on ordinary
termination by the Issuer or (iii) on extraordinary termination
by the Issuer.

The price development of Factor Certificates depends on
movements of the respective Underlying taking into account a
leverage component and a financing component.

[In the case of Factor Long Certificates the leverage
component reflects the multiple purchase of the Underlying.
Therefore, price movements of the Underlying have a
disproportional effect on the value of the Factor Long
Certificates with positive as well as with negative
developments of the Underlying.

The financing component results from the costs for the raising
of capital at an overnight rate plus an add-on interest. As the
financing component is always negative it has an adverse
effect on the Factor Certificate on each Calculation Date.

With Factor Long Certificates the Cash Amount corresponds
to the difference between (i) the product of the Cash Amount
on the previous Calculation Date and the Daily Leveraged
Performance and (ii) the Financing Costs, converted into the
Settlement Currency, as the case may be. The Daily
Leveraged Performance corresponds to the sum of (i) one (1)
and (ii) the product of the Performance in Percent of the
Underlying and the Factor. The Performance in Percent of the
Underlying on a Calculation Date corresponds to the
difference between (i) the quotient of the Reference Price and
the Reference Price on the previous Calculation Date or, if a
Stop-Loss Event has occurred between the time of
determination of the Reference Price on the previous
Calculation Date and the determination of the Reference
Price on the Calculation Date, to the Stop-Loss Reference
Price and (ii) one (1). A Stop-Loss Event occurs, if a certain
Observation Price reaches or falls below the Stop-Loss
Barrier.]

[In the case of Factor Short Certificates the leverage
component reflects the multiple selling of the Underlying.
Therefore, price movements of the Underlying have a
disproportional effect on the value of the Factor Short
Certificates with positive as well as with negative
developments of the Underlying.

The financing component results from the costs for the raising
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C.16

Cc.17

C.18

The expiration or
maturity date of the
derivative securities
- the exercise date
or final reference
date.

A description of the
settlement
procedure of
derivative
securities.

the

A description of
how the return on
derivative securities
takes place.

of capital at an overnight reduced by an interest rebate. As
the financing component is always negative it has an adverse
effect on the Factor Certificate on each Calculation Date.

With Factor Short Certificates the Cash Amount corresponds
to the sum of (i) the product of the Cash Amount on the
previous Calculation Date and the Daily Leveraged
Performance and (ii) the Financing Costs, converted into the
Settlement Currency, as the case may be. The Daily
Leveraged Performance corresponds to the sum of (i) one (1)
and (ii) the product of the Performance in Percent of the
Underlying and the Factor. The Performance in Percent of the
Underlying on a Calculation Date corresponds to the
difference between (i) one (1) and (ii) the quotient of the
Reference Price and the Reference Price on the previous
Calculation Date or, if a Stop-Loss Event has occurred
between the time of determination of the Reference Price on
the previous Calculation Date and the determination of the
Reference Price on the Calculation Date, to the Stop-Loss
Reference Price. A Stop-Loss Event occurs, if a certain
Observation Price reaches or exceeds the Stop-Loss Barrier.]

Due to the construction of the Factor Certificates, in
particular due to the linkage of the Factor Certificates to
the Daily Leverage Performance, the daily fluctuations of
the Underlying might have a material adverse effect on
the price performance of the Certificates. As a
consequence, Factor Certificates are not suited for long-
term investments and are not a suitable alternative for
direct investments into the Underlying, because the
development of the Daily Leveraged Performance of the
Underlying and, thus, of the value of the Factor
Certificates might significantly deviate from the
development of the value of the Underlying itself over a
period of time.]

Repayment Date(s): [o]
Exercise Date(s): [e]

Final Valuation Date(s): [e]

Any cash amounts payable by the Issuer shall be transferred
to the relevant Clearing System for distribution to the Security
Holders.

The Issuer will cause the transfer of any Cash Amount to the
Clearing System for credit to the accounts of the depositors of
the Securities with the Clearing System.
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C.19 The exercise price Underlying Price on the Final Valuation Date (Reference
or the final Price): [o]
reference price of
the underlying.

C.20 A description of the Type: [Share] [Basket of Shares] [Index] [Exchange Traded
type of the Fund] [Currency Exchange Rate] [Interest Rates]
underlying and [Commodity] [Future Contract]
where the
information on the
underlying can be [Issuer][Company][Calculation Agent][Index
found. Sponsor][Reference Market]: [e]

Name: [e]

[Reference Source][Screen Page]: [e]

Information on the Underlying and its volatility can be
obtained [on the public website on www.[e]] [and] [on the
Bloomberg or Reuters page] as provided for each security or
item composing the Underlying.

D. RISKS

D.2 Key information on the key risks that are specific to the Issuer

Risks related to the business of Erste Group

- Difficult macroeconomic and financial market conditions may have a
material adverse effect on Erste Group’s business, financial condition,
results of operations and prospects.

- Erste Group has been and may continue to be affected by the European
sovereign debt crisis, and it may be required to take impairments on its
exposures to the sovereign debt of certain countries.

- Erste Group has experienced, and may in the future continue to
experience deterioration in credit quality, particularly as a result of financial
crises or economic downturns.

- Erste Group is subject to significant counterparty risk, and defaults by
counterparties may lead to losses that exceed Erste Group’s provisions.

- Erste Group’s hedging strategies may prove to be ineffective.

- Erste Group is generally exposed to market volatility when it comes to
loans covered by real estate collateral.

- Market fluctuations and volatility may adversely affect the value of Erste
Group’s assets, reduce profitability and make it more difficult to assess the
fair value of certain of its assets.

- Erste Group is subject to the risk that liquidity may not be readily available.

- Credit rating agencies may suspend, downgrade or withdraw a credit
rating of Erste Group Bank and/or a local entity that is part of Erste Group

¥ Not applicable for Product No. 7: Factor Certificates
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or a country where Erste Group is active, and such action might negatively
affect the refinancing conditions for Erste Group Bank, in particular its
access to debt capital markets.

New governmental or regulatory requirements and changes in perceived
levels of adequate capitalisation and leverage could subject Erste Group to
increased capital requirements or standards and require it to obtain
additional capital or liquidity in the future.

The Issuer is subject to the risk of changes in the tax framework, in
particular regarding bank tax and the introduction of a financial transaction
tax.

The Issuer may not be able to meet the minimum requirement for own
funds and eligible liabilities.

The Issuer is obliged to contribute to the Single Resolution Fund (SRF)
and to ex ante financed funds of the deposit guarantee scheme of the
savings bank sector on an annual basis.

Erste Group’s risk management strategies, techniques and internal control
procedures may leave it exposed to unidentified or unanticipated risks.

Erste Group’s business entails operational risks.

Any failure or interruption in or breach of Erste Group’s information
systems, and any failure to update such systems, may result in lost
business and other losses.

Erste Group may have difficulty recruiting new talent or retaining qualified
employees.

Erste Group Bank may be required to provide financial support to troubled
banks in the Haftungsverbund, which could result in significant costs and a
diversion of resources from other activities.

Changes in interest rates are caused by many factors beyond Erste
Group’s control, and such changes can have significant adverse effects on
its financial results, including net interest income.

Since a large part of Erste Group’s operations, assets and customers are
located in CEE countries that are not part of the Eurozone, Erste Group is
exposed to currency risks.

Erste Group Bank's profit can be lower or even negative.

A change of the ECB’s collateral standards could have an adverse effect
on the funding of Erste Group and access to liquidity.

Erste Group operates in highly competitive markets and competes against
large international financial institutions as well as established local
competitors.

Erste Group Bank’s major shareholder may be able to control shareholder
actions.

Compliance with applicable rules and regulations, in particular on anti-
money laundering and anti-terrorism financing, anti-corruption and fraud
prevention, economic sanctions and tax as well as capital markets
(securities and stock exchange related) involve significant costs and efforts
and non-compliance may have severe legal and reputational
consequences for Erste Group.

Changes in consumer protection laws as well as the application or
interpretation of such laws might limit the fees and other pricing terms that
Erste Group may charge for certain banking transactions and might allow
consumers to claim back certain of those fees and interest already paid in
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the past.

The integration of potential future acquisitions may create additional
challenges.

Risks related to the markets in which Erste Group operates

The departure of any one or more countries from the Eurozone could have
unpredictable consequences for the financial system and the greater
economy, potentially leading to declines in business levels, write-downs of
assets and losses across Erste Group’s business.

Erste Group operates in emerging markets that may experience rapid
economic or political changes, either of which may adversely impact its
financial performance and results of operations.

Committed EU funds may not be released or further aid programmes may
not be adopted by the EU and/or international credit institutions.

Loss of customer confidence in Erste Group’s business or in banking
businesses generally could result in unexpectedly high levels of customer
deposit withdrawals, which could have a material adverse effect on Erste
Group’s results, financial condition and liquidity.

Liquidity problems experienced by certain CEE countries may adversely
affect the broader CEE region and could negatively impact Erste Group's
business results and financial condition.

Governments in countries in which Erste Group operates may react to
financial and economic crises with increased protectionism,
nationalisations or similar measures.

Erste Group may be adversely affected by slower growth or recession in
the banking sector in which it operates as well as slower expansion of the
Eurozone and the EU.

The legal systems and procedural safeguards in many CEE countries and,
in particular, in the Eastern European countries are not yet fully developed.

Applicable bankruptcy laws and other laws and regulations governing
creditors’ rights in various CEE countries may limit Erste Group’s ability to
obtain payments on defaulted loans and advances.

Erste Group may be required to participate in or finance governmental
support programs for credit institutions or finance governmental budget
consolidation programmes, through the introduction of banking taxes and
other levies.

D.3, Key information on the key risks that are specific to the securities

D.6

RISK WARNING: Investors should be aware that they may lose the value of
their entire investment or part of it, as the case may be.

General risk factors

The Certificates are risky investment instruments. Compared to other capital
investments, the risk of loss — up to the total loss of the invested capital as
well as the related transaction costs — is high; the Certificates do not, unless
expressly provided, yield any current income.

Certificates with a Participation Factor include the risk of the Security Holder’s
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participation being disproportionately lower or higher than any price
fluctuations of the Underlying.

The Certificates may have no liquidity or the market for such Certificates may
be limited and this may adversely impact their value or the ability of the
Security Holder to dispose of them.

Security Holders should consider that price movements of the Underlying (or
the non-occurrence of an expected price movement) may decrease the value
of the Underlying disproportionately and even render it worthless and that
there is no assurance that in the case of Certificates with a limited term, the
price of the Certificate will recover in time.

The performance of the Certificates is linked to the performance of the
Underlying which may be affected by national and international financial,
political, military or economic events, including governmental actions, or by
the activities of participants in the relevant markets. Any of these events or
activities may adversely affect the market price of the Certificates.

If an Underlying is linked with emerging markets, a Security Holder must
expect considerable political and economic uncertainty, which may
significantly affect the market price development of the Certificates.

Where payments under the Certificates will be made in a currency which is
different from the currency of the Underlying and such Certificates do not
have a "quanto feature", the Security Holders are exposed also to the
performance of the currency of the Underlying against the Currency of the
Certificates, which cannot be predicted. Furthermore, the Security Holder
bears a currency risk if the account of the Security Holder to which the Cash
Amount is paid is held in a currency other than the currency of the
Certificates.

Security Holders should be aware that they may not be able to hedge their
exposure from the Certificates.

A credit financing of the acquisition of Certificates significantly increases the
maximum possible loss.

Hedging transactions concluded by the Issuer may influence the market price
of the Certificates in a detrimental manner for the investor.

Incidental costs on any income reduce any Security Holders' profits.

Security Holders are exposed to the risk of wrong assessment of the
Certificates’ liquidity due to the issue size of the Certificates.

Market disruptions, adjustment measures and termination rights may
negatively affect the rights of the Security Holders.

Corrections, changes, or amendments to the Terms and Conditions may be
detrimental to the Security Holders.

Changes in tax law may negatively affect the Security Holders.
Certificates may not be appropriate to hedge exposures.

There is a risk that trading in the Certificates or in the Underlying and/or
components will be suspended, interrupted or terminated.

Due to future money depreciation (inflation), the real yield of an investment
may be reduced.

Investors have to rely on the functionality of the relevant clearing system.
Credit ratings may not reflect all risks.

Legal investment considerations may restrict certain investments.
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- An Austrian court could appoint a trustee for the Certificates to exercise the
rights and represent the interests of Security Holders on their behalf in which
case the ability of Security Holders to pursue their rights under the
Certificates individually may be limited.

- Risks related to Dividend Equivalent Payments.

- The Certificates may be subject to write-down or conversion to equity upon
the occurrence of a certain trigger event, which may result in Security Holders
losing some or all of their investment in the Certificates (statutory loss
absorption).

- The Issuer may be subject to resolution powers which may also have a
negative impact on the Certificates.

- The Issuer is not prohibited from issuing further debt instruments or incurring
further liabilities.

- Inthe case of the Issuer's insolvency, deposits have a higher ranking than the
claims of the Holders under the Certificates.

Risk factors relating to certain types of Certificates

[Product No. 1. Risk factors applicable to [Bonus][Capped Bonus]
Certificates

Risk factors related to the limited term of the Certificates and/or to the Issuer’s
ability to terminate

The Certificates have a fixed term (Closed End), i.e. they have a specific term. The
Issuer has the right to terminate the Certificates extraordinarily, e.g. if an
adjustment is not possible or if an Additional Disruption Event occurs. The term of
the Certificates is then ended early. It should be noted that the Issuer exercises its
extraordinary termination right at its reasonable discretion and is not subject to any
restrictions regarding the exercise of its termination right. If the Issuer exercises
the extraordinary termination right at short notice, the Security Holder may no
longer have the opportunity to sell his Certificate on the secondary market. The
higher the volatility in the Underlying or the more illiquid the market in financial
instruments linked to the Underlying (including the futures and lending market), the
more likely it is that the Issuer will make use of its termination right.

A Security Holder in principle has no right to terminate.
Return and reinvestment risk in the case of extraordinary termination by the Issuer

Security Holders should note that the term of the Certificates can be ended by an
extraordinary termination by the Issuer. In this case, the Security Holder bears the
risk that its expectations with respect to an increase in the price of the Certificates
can no longer be satisfied due to the premature ending of the term. It should also
be taken into account in the case of an extraordinary termination that the Security
Holder bears the reinvestment risk. This means that it may only be able to reinvest
the Termination Amount to be paid by the Issuer in the case of an extraordinary
termination on less favourable market terms than those existing when the
Certificate was acquired.

Risk of total loss in the case of a Barrier Event

A so called Barrier Event occurs if the [Observation Price reaches or falls below
the Barrier at any time during the Observation Period] [Reference Price reaches or
falls below the Barrier on the Final Valuation Date]. Security Holders should note
that if a Barrier Event occurs, the entitlement to a minimum redemption in the
amount of the Bonus Amount expires, and that the [Bonus][Capped Bonus]
Certificate is comparable with a direct investment in the Underlying (irrespective of
dividend payments). Consequently, the Security Holder is exposed to a risk of loss
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comparable to the direct investment. Therefore, the Security Holder has a risk of
total loss with regards to the invested capital. A total loss occurs when the
Underlying is worthless on the Final Valuation Date.

An important determinant for the probability of the occurrence of a Barrier Event is
the volatility of the Underlying. The term "Volatility" means the fluctuation margin or
price movements of the Underlying. The higher the volatility of an Underlying, the
higher the risk to the Security Holder that the Barrier will be broken. An increasing
probability of a Barrier break tends to result in a declining price of the Security.

[In case of Capped Bonus Certificates the Cash Amount is limited to the Maximum
Amount

Irrespective of whether or not a Barrier Event has occurred, the Cash Amount will
not exceed the Maximum Amount. This means that the Security Holder does not
participate in a price movement of the Underlying above the Cap, with the result
that the possible yield on Capped Bonus Certificates has an upper limit.]]

[Product No. 2: Risk factors applicable to Discount Certificates

Risk factors related to the limited term of the Certificates and/or to the Issuer’s
ability to terminate

The Certificates have a fixed term (Closed End), i.e. they have a specific term. The
Issuer has the right to terminate the Certificates extraordinarily, e.g. if an
adjustment is not possible or if an Additional Disruption Event occurs. The term of
the Certificates is then ended early. It should be noted that the Issuer exercises its
extraordinary termination right at its reasonable discretion and is not subject to any
restrictions regarding the exercise of its termination right. If the Issuer exercises
the extraordinary termination right at short notice, the Security Holder may no
longer have the opportunity to sell his Certificate on the secondary market. The
higher the volatility in the Underlying or the more illiquid the market in financial
instruments linked to the Underlying (including the futures and lending market), the
more likely it is that the Issuer will make use of its termination right.

A Security Holder in principle has no right to terminate.
Return and reinvestment risk in the case of extraordinary termination by the Issuer

Security Holders should note that the term of the Certificates can be ended by an
extraordinary termination by the Issuer. In this case, the Security Holder bears the
risk that its expectations with respect to an increase in the price of the Certificates
can no longer be satisfied due to the premature ending of the term. It should also
be taken into account in the case of an extraordinary termination that the Security
Holder bears the reinvestment risk. This means that it may only be able to reinvest
the Termination Amount to be paid by the Issuer in the case of an extraordinary
termination on less favourable market terms than those existing when the
Certificate was acquired.

Cash Amount is limited to Maximum Amount

In the case of Discount Certificates, the Cash Amount will not exceed the
Maximum Amount. This means that the Security Holder does not participate in a
price movement of the Underlying above the Cap, with the result that the possible
yield on Discount Certificates has an upper limit.

Risk of total loss

Below the Cap, Discount Certificates are comparable with a direct investment in
the Underlying (without taking into account dividend payments). In this case there
is a risk of a total loss of the Security Holder's invested capital. A total loss will
occur if the Underlying is worthless on the Final Valuation Date.]

[Product No. 3: Risk factors applicable to Open End [Participation][Index]
Certificates
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Risk factors related to the unlimited term of the Certificates and/or to the Issuer’s
ability to terminate

The Certificates do not have a specified limited term (Open End). The term of the
Certificates ends either (i) on the exercise of the Certificates by the Security
Holders or (ii) on ordinary termination by the Issuer or (iii) on extraordinary
termination by the Issuer.

The Certificates may be exercised by the Security Holder during a certain Exercise
Period during their term by submitting an Exercise Notice. The Cash Amount for
exercised Certificates is calculated based on the Underlying Price of the
Underlying on the relevant Exercise Date.

The Issuer is furthermore entitled to extraordinary termination of the Certificates by
notice if an adjustment is no longer possible or in the case of an Additional
Disruption Event. It is to be noted that the Issuer exercises its termination right at
its reasonable discretion and has no further obligations in relation to its termination
right. The exercise of the right to extraordinary termination may occur at short
notice, so that, in certain circumstances, the Security Holder may no longer be able
to sell his or her Certificates on the secondary market.

The exercise of the termination right by the Issuer is generally more likely, the
greater the volatility of the Underlying or the more illiquid the market in financial
instruments related to the Underlying (including the forward and loan markets).
Owing to the Issuer's termination right, Security Holders may not assume that the
Certificates will have an unlimited term. Security Holders should therefore not rely
on being able to maintain a position in the Certificates over a long period.
Furthermore, Security Holders may not rely on the timely movement of the
Underlying in a favourable direction before a Termination Date.

Return and reinvestment risk in the case of ordinary or extraordinary termination by
the Issuer

Security Holders should note that the fundamentally unlimited term of the
Certificates may be ended by an ordinary or extraordinary termination by the
Issuer. In the case of a termination, the Security Holder bears the risk that his
expectations with respect to an increase in the value of the Certificates may no
longer be satisfied due to the ending of the term. In the case of a termination, it
must also be considered that the Security Holder bears the reinvestment risk. This
means that he or she may only be able to reinvest the amount paid by the Issuer in
the event of a termination on more unfavourable market terms compared with
those existing when the Certificate was purchased.

[Risk related to the Open End Participation Certificates related to futures contracts
with Transaction Fee

In the case of Open End Participation Certificates related to futures contracts, it is
to be noted that a "Transaction Fee" may be calculated to cover the transaction
costs arising from the Rollover. The amount of such Transaction Fee is based on a
number per futures contract, expressed in the Reference Currency. The application
of the Multiplier to these transaction costs leads to a loss in value of the
Certificates if the Transaction Fee is greater than zero (0). It must further be noted
that the Transaction Fee is incurred both in respect of the purchase and the sale of
the futures contracts on a Rollover, so the determination of the applicable Multiplier
has to be considered twice.]

Risk of total loss

Open End [Participation][Index] Certificates are comparable with a direct
investment in the Underlying (irrespective of dividend payments and transaction
fees, if applicable), with the result that the Security Holder is also exposed to a risk
of loss comparable to the direct investment. Therefore, there is a risk of total loss
with regard to the invested capital if the Underlying is worthless on the Final
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Valuation Date (e.g. in the case of a termination by the Issuer).

[Risk related to Open End [Participation][Index] Certificates with a Management
Fee

Security Holders should note that subject to the holding period of the Certificates
the Management Fee will reduce the Cash Amount which a Security Holder
receives at the end of the term and that the Management Fee also has a negative
impact on the secondary market prices of the Certificates during the term of the
Certificates.]

[Risk related to Open End [Participation][Index] Certificates linked to performance
indices

In the case of Open End [Participation][Index] Certificates linked to performance
indices the Terms and Conditions may provide for an adjustment of the Multiplier
on each Dividend Record Date. In the course of the adjustment any dividends or
cash amounts equivalent to dividends will be taken into account (also considering
the relevant Dividend Factor). As a conquence, the Multiplier will decrease which
will have a negative impact on the Cash Amount. The effect will be greater, the
higher the dividends and/or the dividend taxation.]]

[Product No. 4: Risk factors applicable to [Reverse Bonus][Capped Reverse
Bonus] Certificates

Risk factors related to the limited term of the Certificates and/or to the Issuer’s
ability to terminate

The Certificates have a fixed term (Closed End), i.e. they have a specific term. The
Issuer has the right to terminate the Certificates extraordinarily, e.g. if an
adjustment is not possible or if an Additional Disruption Event occurs. The term of
the Certificates is then ended early. It should be noted that the Issuer exercises its
extraordinary termination right at its reasonable discretion and is not subject to any
restrictions regarding the exercise of its termination right. If the Issuer exercises
the extraordinary termination right at short notice, the Security Holder may no
longer have the opportunity to sell his Certificate on the secondary market. The
higher the volatility in the Underlying or the more illiquid the market in financial
instruments linked to the Underlying (including the futures and lending market), the
more likely it is that the Issuer will make use of its termination right.

A Security Holder in principle has no right to terminate.
Return and reinvestment risk in the case of extraordinary termination by the Issuer

Security Holders should note that the term of the Certificates can be ended by an
extraordinary termination by the Issuer. In this case, the Security Holder bears the
risk that its expectations with respect to an increase in the price of the Certificates
can no longer be satisfied due to the premature ending of the term. It should also
be taken into account in the case of an extraordinary termination that the Security
Holder bears the reinvestment risk. This means that it may only be able to reinvest
the Termination Amount to be paid by the Issuer in the case of an extraordinary
termination on less favourable market terms than those existing when the
Certificate was acquired.

Risks related to the performance of [Reverse Bonus][Capped Reverse Bonus]
Certificates owing to the reverse structure

In the case of Reverse Bonus Certificates and Capped Reverse Bonus
Certificates, the performance of the Certificates conversely depends on the
performance of the Underlying. In contrast to typical participation securities, which
represent a so-called "long position" (synthetic "purchase" of the Underlying),
Reverse Bonus Certificates represent a so-called "short position" (synthetic "short
sale" of the Underlying). This means that the Certificates enable the Security
Holders to profit from a loss in value of the Underlying. A Reverse Bonus
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Certificate typically declines in value (i.e. irrespective of other features and
factors that determine the price of Certificates), if the value of the Underlying
increases.

Risk of a total loss in the case of a Barrier Event

In case of reverse structures a so called Barrier Event occurs if the [Observation
Price reaches or exceeds the Barrier at any time during the Observation Period]
[Reference Price reaches or exceeds the Barrier on the Final Valuation Date].
Security Holders should consider that if a Barrier Event occurs, the entitlement to a
minimum redemption expires and the Security Holder participates in the negative
performance of the Underlying and/or in the case of Capped Reverse Bonus
Certificates the Security Holder participates in the negative performance of the
Underlying up to the Cap. In this case, the Security Holder has a risk of total loss
with regard to the invested capital. A total loss occurs when the Underlying is equal
to or above the Reverse Level on the Final Valuation Date.

An important determinant of the probability of the occurrence of a Barrier Event is
the volatility of the Underlying. The term "Volatility" means the fluctuation margin
or price fluctuations of the Underlying. The higher the Volatility of an Underlying,
the higher the risk to the Security Holder that the Barrier will be broken. An
increasing probability of a Barrier break tends to result in the price of the Certificate
declining.

[In case of Capped Reverse Bonus Certificates the Cash Amount is limited to the
Maximum Amount

In the case of Capped Reverse Bonus Certificates, the Cash Amount will not
exceed the Maximum Amount. This means that the Security Holder does not
participate in a negative price movement of the Underlying above the Cap, with the
result that the possible yield on Capped Reverse Bonus Certificates has an upper
limit.]

Limited yield potential due to reverse structure and irrespective of a Cap

Security Holders should note that the yield potential is limited (regardless of a Cap)
due to the reverse structure, since the participation in the negative performance of
the Underlying is limited to 100%, i.e. in the case of Reverse Bonus Certificates the
Cash Amount is limited to the Reverse Level (taking into account the Multiplier
and, as the case may be, conversion into the Settlement Currency).

Accordingly, in the case of Reverse Bonus Certificates, the following relationship
exists in principle between the economic value of the Certificates and the
economic value of the Underlying: A Reverse Bonus Certificate typically
declines in value (i.e. irrespective of other features and factors that
determine the price of Certificate), if the value of the Underlying increases.
Accordingly, a Security Holder may suffer a total loss of the invested capital
if the level of the Underlying increases and reaches or exceeds the Reverse
Level.

Leverage effect in the case of [Reverse Bonus][Capped Reverse Bonus]
Certificates due to the reverse structure

There exists a leverage effect in the case of [Reverse Bonus][Capped Reverse
Bonus] Certificates, the amount of which depends on the Reverse Level. A lower
Reverse Level leads to a higher leverage effect and, therefor, to a higher risk of
loss.]

[Product No. 5. Risk factors applicable to [Participation][Index] Certificates

Risk factors related to the limited term of the Certificates and/or to the Issuer’s
ability to terminate

The Certificates have a fixed term (Closed End), i.e. they have a specific term. The
Issuer has the right to terminate the Certificates extraordinarily, e.g. if an
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adjustment is not possible or if an Additional Disruption Event occurs. The term of
the Certificates is then ended early. It should be noted that the Issuer exercises its
extraordinary termination right at its reasonable discretion and is not subject to any
restrictions regarding the exercise of its termination right. If the Issuer exercises
the extraordinary termination right at short notice, the Security Holder may no
longer have the opportunity to sell his Certificate on the secondary market. The
higher the volatility in the Underlying or the more illiquid the market in financial
instruments linked to the Underlying (including the futures and lending market), the
more likely it is that the Issuer will make use of its termination right.

A Security Holder in principle has no right to terminate.
Return and reinvestment risk in the case of extraordinary termination by the Issuer

Security Holders should note that the term of the Certificates can be ended by an
extraordinary termination by the Issuer. In this case, the Security Holder bears the
risk that its expectations with respect to an increase in the price of the Certificates
can no longer be satisfied due to the premature ending of the term. It should also
be taken into account in the case of an extraordinary termination that the Security
Holder bears the reinvestment risk. This means that it may only be able to reinvest
the Termination Amount to be paid by the Issuer in the case of an extraordinary
termination on less favourable market terms than those existing when the
Certificate was acquired.

[Risk related to Participation Certificates with a Management Fee

Security Holders should note that subject to the holding period of the Certificates
the Management Fee will reduce the Cash Amount which a Security Holder
receives at the end of the term and that the Management Fee also has a negative
impact on the secondary market prices of the Certificates during the term of the
Certificates.]

Risk of total loss

[Participation][Index] Certificates are comparable with a direct investment in the
Underlying (irrespective of dividend payments). Consequently, the Security Holder
is exposed to a risk of loss comparable to the direct investment. Therefore, there is
a risk of total loss with regard to the invested capital if the Underlying is worthless
on the Final Valuation Date.]

[Product No. 6. Risk factors applicable to [Twin Win][Capped Twin Win]
Certificates

Risk factors related to the limited term of the Certificates and/or to the Issuer’s
ability to terminate

The Certificates have a fixed term (Closed End), i.e. they have a specific term. The
Issuer has the right to terminate the Certificates extraordinarily, e.g. if an
adjustment is not possible or if an Additional Disruption Event occurs. The term of
the Certificates is then ended early. It should be noted that the Issuer exercises its
extraordinary termination right at its reasonable discretion and is not subject to any
restrictions regarding the exercise of its termination right. If the Issuer exercises
the extraordinary termination right at short notice, the Security Holder may no
longer have the opportunity to sell his Certificate on the secondary market. The
higher the volatility in the Underlying or the more illiquid the market in financial
instruments linked to the Underlying (including the futures and lending market), the
more likely it is that the Issuer will make use of its termination right.

A Security Holder in principle has no right to terminate.
Return and reinvestment risk in the case of extraordinary termination by the Issuer

Security Holders should note that the term of the Certificates can be ended by an
extraordinary termination by the Issuer. In this case, the Security Holder bears the
risk that its expectations with respect to an increase in the price of the Certificates
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can no longer be satisfied due to the premature ending of the term. It should also
be taken into account in the case of an extraordinary termination that the Security
Holder bears the reinvestment risk. This means that it may only be able to reinvest
the Termination Amount to be paid by the Issuer in the case of an extraordinary
termination on less favourable market terms than those existing when the
Certificate was acquired.

Risk of total loss in the case of a Barrier Event

Security Holders should note that if a Barrier Event has occurred, the Certificate is
comparable to a direct investment in the Underlying (without taking into account
dividend payments). As a result, the Security Holder is also exposed to a risk of
loss comparable to the direct investment. Therefore, the Security Holder bears a
risk of total loss with regard to the invested capital. A total loss occurs if the
Underlying is worthless at the end of the term.

An important determinant of the probability of a Barrier Event is the volatility of the
Underlying. The term "Volatility" means the fluctuation margin or price fluctuations
of the Underlying. The higher the Volatility of an Underlying, the higher the risk to
the Security Holder that the Barrier will be broken. An increasing probability of a
Barrier break tends to result in the price of the Certificate declining.

[In case of Capped Twin Win Certificates the Cash Amount is limited to a
Maximum Amount

Irrespective of whether or not a Barrier Event has occurred, the Cash Amount will
not exceed the Maximum Amount. This means that the Security Holder does not
participate in a price movement of the Underlying above the Cap, with the result
that the possible yield on Capped Twin Win Certificates has an upper limit.]]

[Product No. 7. Risk factors applicable to Factor Certificates
Risk of investment in leveraged Underlyings

Different from other Open End Participation Certificates, Factor Certificates are
leveraged.

Investors should in particular note, that in the case of Factor Certificates the daily
performance of the Underlying is leveraged with the applicable Leverage Factor,
i.e. positive and negative movements of the Underlying have a disproportionate
effect on the value of the Certificate. This means that the determination of the
Leverage Factor determines the degree of risk. The higher the leverage the higher
the risk. It should be noted that the price development of the Factor
Certificates can be completely independent from the price development of
the Underlying.

In the case that the price of the Underlying falls significantly the value of the
Certificate due to the leverage factor may decrease to a very low level.
Subsequent price gains of the Underlying will lead to price increases of the
Certificate. However, as the base level for the recovery of the Certificate will be
very low significant price gains of the Underlying will only have relatively small
effects on the price recovery of the Certificate.

The Factor Certificates provide for a kind of adjustment level (Stop-Loss Barrier)
that should protect the investors against a total loss of their investment. However,
such adjustment level might — under unfavourable circumstances — not prevent
investors from intraday losses which might come close to a total loss of the capital
invested.

Capital markets are generally subject to fluctuations over a longer period of
time. Due to the construction of the Factor Certificates these fluctuations
might have a material adverse effect on the price performance of the
Certificates. Factor Certificates are not suited for long-term investments and
are not a suitable alternative for direct investments into the Underlying,
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because the development of the Daily Leveraged Performance of the
Underlying and, thus, of the value of the Factor Certificates might
significantly deviate from the development of the value of the Underlying
itself over a period of time.

Risk factors related to the unlimited term of the Certificates and to the Issuer’s
ability to terminate

The Certificates do not have a specified limited term (Open End). The term of the
Certificates ends either (i) on the exercise of the Certificates by the Security
Holders or (ii) on ordinary termination by the Issuer or (iii) on extraordinary
termination by the Issuer.

The Certificates may be exercised by the Security Holder during a certain Exercise
Period during their term by submitting an Exercise Notice. The Cash Amount for
exercised Certificates is calculated based on the daily price performance of the
Underlying on the relevant Exercise Date.

The Issuer is furthermore entitled to extraordinary termination of the Certificates by
notice if an adjustment is no longer possible or in the case of an Additional
Disruption Event. It is to be noted that the Issuer exercises its termination right at
its reasonable discretion and has no further obligations in relation to its termination
right. The exercise of the right to extraordinary termination by the Issuer may occur
at short notice, so that, in certain circumstances, the Security Holder may no
longer be able to sell his Certificate on the secondary market.

The exercise of the termination right by the Issuer is generally more likely, the
greater the volatility of the Underlying or the more illiquid the market in financial
instruments related to the Underlying (including the forward and loan markets).
Owing to the Issuer's termination right, Security Holders may not assume that the
Certificates will have an unlimited term. Security Holders should therefore not rely
on being able to maintain a position in the Certificates over a long period.

Return and reinvestment risk in the case of ordinary or extraordinary termination by
the Issuer

Security Holders should note that the fundamentally unlimited term of the
Certificates may be ended by an ordinary or extraordinary termination by the
Issuer. In the case of a termination, the Security Holder bears the risk that his
expectations with respect to an increase in the value of the Certificates may no
longer be satisfied due to the ending of the term. In the case of a termination, it
must also be considered that the Security Holder bears the reinvestment risk. This
means that he may only be able to reinvest the termination amount paid by the
Issuer in the event of a termination on more unfavourable market terms compared
with those existing when the Certificate was purchased.

[Risk of Factor Certificates with Transaction Fee

In the case of Factor Certificates related to futures contracts a "Transaction Fee"
may be calculated to cover the transaction costs arising from the Rollover, whose
amount is based on a number per futures contract, expressed in the Reference
Currency. The application of those transaction costs to the Multiplier leads to a loss
in value of the Certificates if the Transaction Fee is greater than zero. It must
further be noted that the Transaction Fee is incurred both in respect of the
purchase and the sale of the futures contracts on a Rollover.]

Risk of total loss

In the worst case an investment in Factor Certificates may involve the total loss of
the capital invested. This will in any event be the case if the Reference Price of the
Underlying on the Final Valuation Date amounts to zero.]
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E.

E.2b

E.3

Risk factors relating to certain types of Underlyings

Depending on the Underlying to which the Certificates give exposure, Investors are
exposed to risks stemming from the type of Underlying and the behavior of its
market prices as the Cash Amount an Investor may receive depends on the
development of the price of the Underlying. The types of Underlyings foreseen in
this Programme differ significantly as per their typical price volatility. Investors
should only invest in Certificates if they are familiar with the relevant Underlying
and have a comprehensive understanding of the type of Underlying itself, the
market and other rules of the relevant Underlying as this is prerequisite to
understand the risks associated with the Certificates; a lack of such understanding
may have material adverse effects for the respective investor and result in loosing
such investors investment entirely or partly.

Risk factors relating to conflicts of interest

Investors are exposed to the risk that direct or indirect actions of the Issuer have
negative effects on the market price of the Certificates or otherwise negatively
affect the Security Holders and conflicts of interest may make such actions more
likely; for a description of possible conflicts of interest, please see E.4 below

OFFER

Reasons for the The issue of the Certificates is part of the ordinary business
offer and use of activity of the Issuer and is undertaken solely to generate

proceeds when profits which is also the reason for the offer.
different from

making profit and/or

hedging certain

risks:

Description of the Terms and conditions to which the offer is subject
terms and
conditions of the
offer:

Not applicable; there are no conditions to which the offer is
subject.

The Certificates will be offered permanently
(Daueremissionen, "tap issue").

The Certificates will be offered in the Offer State(s) starting:
[o].
The Issue Date is [e].

[The Certificates are offered for subscription during the
subscription period, i.e. from [e] to [e]. The Issuer reserves
the right to terminate the subscription period early. The Issuer
is not obliged to issue subscribed Certificates.]

Selling restrictions

Certificates may be offered, sold, or delivered within a
jurisdiction or originating from a jurisdiction only, if this is
permitted pursuant to applicable laws and other legal
provisions and if no obligations arise for the Issuer.

The Certificates have not been and will not be registered
under the Securities Act and may include Certificates in
bearer form that are subject to U.S. tax law requirements.
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E.4

E.7

Description of any
interest that is
material to the
issue/offer including
conflicting interest:

Estimated
expenses charged
to the investor by
the lIssuer or the
offeror:

Certificates may not be offered, sold or delivered within the
United States or, for the account and benefit of U.S. persons.

Initial Issue Price, costs and taxes when purchasing the
Certificates

The Initial Issue Price(s) is (are) [e].
[Not applicable; there are no such interests.]

[The Issuer may from time to time act in other capacities with
regard to the Certificates, such as calculation agent or market
maker/specialist which allow the Issuer to calculate the value
of the Underlying or any other reference asset or determine
the composition of the Underlying, which could raise conflicts
of interest where securities or other assets issued by the
Issuer itself or a group company can be chosen to be part of
the Underlying, or where the Issuer maintains a business
relationship with the issuer or obligor of such securities or
assets.

The Issuer may from time to time engage in transactions
involving the Underlying for its proprietary accounts and for
accounts under its management. Such transactions may have
a positive or negative effect on the value of the Underlying or
any other reference asset and consequently upon the market
price of the Certificates.

The Issuer may issue other derivative instruments in respect
of the Underlying and the introduction of such competing
products into the marketplace may affect the market price of
the Certificates.

The Issuer may use all or some of the proceeds received
from the sale of the Certificates to enter into hedging
transactions which may affect the market price of the
Certificates.

The Issuer may acquire non-public information with respect to
the Underlying, and the Issuer does not undertake to disclose
any such information to any Security Holder. The Issuer may
also publish research reports with respect to the Underlying.
Such activities could present conflicts of interest and may
affect the market price of the Certificates.]

[Insert description of any further such interests]

[Not applicable as no such expenses will be charged to the
investor by the Issuer or the offeror/s.] [insert description of
any such costs]
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2. RISK FACTORS

Prospective investors should consider carefully the risks set forth below and the other
information contained in this Prospectus prior to making any investment decision with respect
to the Certificates. Prospective investors should note that the risks described below are not
the only risks the Issuer faces. The Issuer has described only those risks relating to its
business, operations, financial condition or prospects that it considers to be material and of
which it is currently aware. There may be additional risks that the Issuer currently considers
not to be material or of which it is not currently aware, and any of these risks could have the
effects set forth above.

Prospective investors should also read the detailed information set out elsewhere in this
Prospectus and should consult with their own professional advisers (including their financial,
accounting, legal and tax advisers) and reach their own views prior to making any investment
decision.

Words and expressions defined in the section entitled "4. Terms and Conditions of the
Certificates" shall have the same meanings in this section "2. Risk Factors".

2.1. Factors that may affect the Issuer’s ability to fulfil its obligations
under the Certificates issued under this Programme:

Each of the Issuer related risks highlighted below could have a material adverse effect on the
Issuer’s business, operations, financial condition or prospects which, in turn, could have a
material adverse effect on the amounts which investors will receive in respect of the
Certificates. In addition, each of the Issuer related risks highlighted below could adversely
affect the trading price of the Certificates or the rights of investors under the Certificates and,
as a result, investors could lose some or all of their investment.

The Issuer believes that the following factors may affect its ability to fulfil its obligations under
Certificates to be issued under the Programme. Most of these factors are contingencies which
may or may not occur and the Issuer is not in a position to express a view on the likelihood of
any such contingency occurring.

In addition, factors which are material for the purposes of assessing the market risks
associated with Certificates to be issued under the Programme are described below.

The Issuer believes that the factors described below represent the principal risks inherent in
investing in Certificates to be issued under the Programme, but the inability of the Issuer to
pay amounts on or in connection with any Certificates may occur for other reasons which may
not be considered significant risks by the Issuer based on information currently available to it
or which it may not currently be able to anticipate.

2.1.1Risks related to the business of Erste Group

Difficult macroeconomic and financial market conditions may have a material adverse
effect on Erste Group’s business, financial condition, results of operations and
prospects.

As a result of the global financial crisis from the second half of 2007 until 2009, levels of
public sector debt around the world and the perceived and/or actual instability of numerous
credit institutions in certain European countries, including, in particular Spain, Greece,
Portugal, Italy, Ireland, Cyprus and Slovenia, and - in addition to the Eurozone - Ukraine,
Russia and Turkey, had a negative impact on macroeconomic conditions. However, by 2017,
the Eurozone was growing strongly again and several Eurozone countries got upgraded,
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amongst others Spain, Italy, Ireland, Greece, Portugal and Cyprus in 2016 and 2017.
Nevertheless, many European economies continued to face structural challenges as
unemployment and structural debt levels remain elevated which constantly results in
unusually high political risk and polarization for European standards. In response to the global
financial crisis, unprecedented steps have been taken to help stabilise the financial system
and increase the flow of credit in the global economy. There can be no assurances as to the
actual impact that these measures and related actions will have on the financial markets, on
consumer and corporate confidence generally and on Erste Group specifically in the medium
to long-run. In order to prevent further deterioration of economic growth and to respond to
concerns about the effects of the European sovereign debt crisis, the European Central Bank
("ECB") (among other central banks) announced a plan to buy unlimited amounts of
government bonds of distressed countries in case needed partially in exchange for their
request for and acceptance of a formal programme including certain austerity reforms (OMT
program). However, monetary policy objectives have decoupled significantly across countries.
In 2017 and 2018, the U.S. Federal Reserve Bank increased the interest rate several times
and plans further increases of the interest rate in 2018. This development was driven by a
continuing solid growth of the U.S. economy and the recovery of the U.S. employment
market. While the U.S. economy is performing well at the moment, the aggressive fiscal
impulse which is provided by U.S. President Trump’s tax reform is risking an overheating of
the U.S. economy which is already working at full-employment. The ECB, on the other hand,
commenced the broad-based asset purchase program in March 2015, which is currently
intended to end in December 2018. In course of the quantitative easing, the Euro system
bought assets to the tune of about EUR 2,350 billion, mostly government bonds. The still
ultra-low interest environment creates further pressure on the financial sectors globally. The
impact of the ECB's or any other entity’s actions in the future is currently unknown and these
actions may or may not result in the expected benefits for the relevant economies in the long-
run. Monetary policy in the future will depend on inflation and due to these unprecedented
policies could vary from the foreseen path in either direction fast and without prior notice.
Variances in monetary policy may result also in increased volatility in debt and foreign
exchange markets. Moreover, excesses in both advanced and particularly emerging
economies, may be extended. Global monetary policy might have helped to build significant
exaggeration in various asset classes such as equity, housing and bonds and these asset
prices could also correct swiftly and markedly.

During 2016 and 2017, the Eurozone economy recovered stronger than expected,
accompanied by a positive trend of leading indicators for inflation and a declining
unemployment rate within the Eurozone. The major pillar for growth in the Eurozone remains
private consumption, also benefiting from low energy prices. The positive development in the
Eurozone is expected to continue, however, the volatility of the financial markets due to
erratic policy making in the U.S. and geopolitical uncertainties over North Korea, Russia,
Ukraine, Turkey, Iran and Syria and the high total debt levels in China, pose a downside risk.
In 2018, the European Union and the United Kingdom have to take decisive actions regarding
the handling of the Brexit as well as preparing the future relationship between both areas. The
first year of the U.S. Presidency of Trump has seen strong gains on equity markets while real
reforms except for the recent tax reform have been limited. In 2018, U.S. President Trump re-
started to hit on global trade and imposed tariffs on certain countries. Thus, there is a
significant risk for a global trade conflict. Protection and nationalism are on the rise worldwide.
There is a risk that Erste Group’s performance might be hit as Erste Group’s general strategy
is based on further European integration and global trade and not the opposite of it. Oil prices
which hit a relative low in early 2016 have been rising substantially again in 2017 and
influence the economies of Erste Group's home market which are widely net energy
importers. This global economic situation combined with increasing geopolitical challenges
has implications on the Eurozone and may lead to corresponding risks within the Eurozone.

Erste Group’s performance will continue to be influenced by conditions in the global, and
especially European, economy. The outlook for the European and global economy over the
near to medium term remains in general favourable, which also impacts prospects for
stabilisation and improvement of economic and financial conditions in Central and Eastern
Europe ("CEE"). In general, should economic conditions affecting Erste Group’s operating
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markets become subdued again, Erste Group’s results and operations may be materially and
adversely affected.

Erste Group has been and may continue to be affected by the European sovereign debt
crisis, and it may be required to take impairments on its exposures to the sovereign
debt of certain countries.

In the early 2010s, the sovereign debt markets in the Eurozone have experienced substantial
stress as the financial markets have begun to perceive a number of countries as presenting
an increased credit risk. These concerns have been particularly prominent with respect to
Greece, Ireland, Italy, Portugal, Spain, Cyprus and Slovenia and - in addition to the Eurozone
- Ukraine and Russia, and were threatening the recovery from the global financial and
economic crisis. These concerns have widely receded in light of stabilising public debt levels
and accelerating economic growth in these and other European countries both within and
outside the Eurozone, including countries in CEE. The effects of the sovereign debt crisis
have especially impacted the financial sector as a large portion of the sovereign debt of
Eurozone countries is held by financial institutions, including Erste Group. Concerns over the
ability of highly indebted Eurozone sovereigns to manage their debt levels could again
intensify when the ECB will start to exit from ultra-easy monetary policy, debt restructuring
negotiations similar to those with Greece could take place with respect to the sovereign debt
of other affected countries, and the outcome of any negotiation regarding changed terms
(including reduced principal amounts or extended maturities) of such sovereign debt may
result in Erste Group suffering additional impairments. Any such negotiations are highly likely
to be subject to political and economic pressures beyond Erste Group’s control.

Distracted by an unresolved migration crisis and negotiations on the terms of Great Britain’s
departure from the European Union, Eurozone leaders could be caught unprepared by a new
storm on financial markets. Global market turmoil at the start of 2018 has helped set warning
lights flashing in Eurozone equity markets. However, at the same time the premium that
investors charge to hold Portuguese, Spanish and Italian government debt rather than
German bonds hit multi-year lows due to monetary policy. European credit institution shares
which have been badly hit in recent years by concerns over their high stock of non-performing
loans ("NPL"), new regulatory burdens and a squeeze on profits due to negative official
interest rates have been recovering lately. New EU banking regulations that force
shareholders and bondholders to take first losses if a credit institution needs rescuing are
further spooking the market, notably in Italy. All this comes at a time when public resistance to
further austerity measures has surged all over southern Europe, resulting in increasing
support for populist parties and leading to unexpected results at national and/or regional
elections.

Erste Group is also exposed to the credit risk of financial institutions which may be dependent
on governmental support to continue their operations. The availability of government funds or
the willingness of governments for such support is unclear given current levels of public debt
in several Eurozone countries. In addition, hedging instruments, including credit default
swaps, could provide ineffective if restructurings of outstanding sovereign debt avoid credit
events that would trigger payment under such instruments or if the amounts ultimately paid
under such instruments do not correspond to the full amount of net exposure after hedging.
Any restructuring of outstanding sovereign debt may result in potential losses for Erste Group
and other participants in transactions that are not covered by pay-outs on hedging
instruments that Erste Group has entered or may enter into to protect against the risk of
default.

Erste Group has experienced, and may in the future continue to experience
deterioration in credit quality, particularly as a result of financial crises or economic
downturns.

Erste Group is, and may in the future continue to be, exposed to the risk that borrowers may
not repay their loans according to their contractual terms, that the collateral or income stream
securing the payment of these loans may be insufficient, or that legislation is imposed setting
fixed exchange rates for loans in foreign currencies.
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Negative economic developments could have a negative effect on the credit quality of Erste
Group’s loan portfolio. This is particularly true for customer loans in currencies other than the
local currency of the customer's jurisdiction, i.e. many of Erste Group's retail and corporate
customers in Hungary, Romania, Croatia, Serbia and Austria have taken out loans which are
denominated in currencies other than their relevant local currencies (primarily in EUR, USD
and CHF) ("FX loans"). As the value of the local currency declines versus the foreign
currencies of such loans, as occurred in certain CEE countries during the economic downturn,
the effective cost of the foreign currency denominated loan to the local customer may
increase substantially, which can lead to delinquent payments on customer loans, migration
of previously highly-rated loans into lower-rated categories and, ultimately, increases in NPL
and impairment charges.

A proportion of FX loans, especially the mortgage loans in CHF in Austria, which most of
them have already been signed some years ago, are bullet repayment loans (endfallige
Verbraucherkredite) which are secured by a repayment vehicle (Tilgungstréger). Adverse
movements in the market price of such instruments for accumulating capital for bullet
repayment and foreign currency risk applicable to repayment vehicles denominated in
currencies other than the currency of the customer's jurisdiction may negatively affect the
position of the loan secured by such repayment vehicle. This may increase the risk of a
debtor defaulting under the loan.

Potential higher interest rates in countries of Erste Group's core markets could result in more
debtors to be unable to repay their loans according to their contractual terms and
consequently lead to an increase of Erste Group's NPL.

Deterioration in the quality of Erste Group's credit portfolio and increases in NPL may result in
increased risk costs for Erste Group. Erste Group’s risk costs are based on, among other
things, its analysis of current and historical probabilities of default and loan management
methods and the valuation of underlying assets and expected available income of clients, as
well as other management assumptions. Erste Group’s analyses and assumptions may prove
to be inadequate and might result in inaccurate predictions of credit performance.

The new impairment model under IFRS 9 requires recognition of credit loss allowances
("CLA") based on expected credit losses ("ECL") rather than only incurred credit losses as is
the case under IAS 39. It applies to credit risk exposures stemming from debt instruments
classified at amortized cost ("AC") or fair value through other comprehensive income
("FVOCI"), lease receivables, financial guarantee contracts and certain loan commitments.

For credit risk exposures that are not credit-impaired at initial recognition, Erste Group will
recognise CLA at an amount equal to 12-month ECL (referred to as stage 1) for as long as no
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition (SICR) is identified at the reporting
date. In the other cases, the CLA is measured at lifetime ECL and the related instruments are
referred to as stage 2, unless they are found to be credit-impaired at the reporting date
(referred to as stage 3). For purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets ("POCI"),
only adverse changes in lifetime ECL after the initial recognition are distinctly recognised as
CLA, whilst favourable changes are recognized as impairment gains increasing the carrying
amount of the related POCI assets. The measurement of ECL reflects a probability-weighted
outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and supportable forward-looking
information.

For lease receivables and trade receivables containing a significant financing component
(where Erste Group also includes its factoring receivables), IFRS 9 allows a simplified
impairment approach, whereby credit loss allowances are always measured at lifetime ECL.
Erste Group will not apply this simplification.

Transition to IFRS 9 resulted in an increase of the 2018 opening balance of credit loss
allowances compared to the 2017 closing balance of loan loss provisions under IAS 39
(including provisions for off-balance exposures treated under IAS 37) of 4.4%. This change
includes both equity-neutral changes and changes that impact accounting equity. Also, it
combines effects due to changes in the scope of impairment and changes triggered by the
adoption of the expected loss model.
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Overall, the IFRS 9 transition resulted in a decrease of Erste Group’s consolidated accounting
equity by EUR 0.6 billion, thereof EUR 0.4 billion represents an increase in retained earnings
(accumulated effects which would have impacted profit or loss in previous periods, in
connection with all financial instruments subject to classification-driven re-measurement
and/or ECL calculation upon transition) and EUR 1.1 billion represents a negative impact to
accumulated other comprehensive income (OCI) (accumulated effects which would have
impacted other comprehensive income in previous periods, in connection with both financial
assets classified at FVOCI and financial liabilities retrospectively designated at fair value
through profit or loss ("FVTPL") upon transition). Further, the associated impact on common
equity tier 1 ("CET 1") ratio is close to 0.

In 2017, management continued to focus on critical NPL portfolios and improved the overall
portfolio quality. Risk costs significantly decreased throughout the year driven by loan loss
releases, due to the active management of the NPL stock. NPL portfolio sales especially in
Romania, Ukraine and Croatia contributed to the clean-up activities as well as write-offs. The
majority of NPL recoveries resulted from going concern and traditional gone concern workout
activities. Therefore the recoveries from workout activities outweighed new NPL inflows. On
the basis of an increasing performing portfolio and the significant decrease in risk costs, the
NPL portfolio as well as the NPL ratio have been further reduced. The overall NPL coverage
ratio (ratio of risk provisions for loans and advances to customers on Erste Group’s balance
sheet as a percentage of NPL and advances to customers) of problematic portfolios
corresponds well with the defined workout strategies (e.g. going concern, gone concern or
portfolio sale).

Erste Group seeks to maintain an NPL coverage ratio that, in management’s judgement, is
appropriate to cover potential credit losses. However, there can be no assurances that the
current NPL coverage ratio will not decline in the future, that annual risk costs will not
increase or that the NPL coverage ratio will prove to be sufficient.

Deterioration in credit quality may continue in certain countries where Erste Group operates
and could even intensify if economic conditions remain difficult or if improving business
climates are temporary. In addition, unanticipated political events or a lack of liquidity in
certain CEE economies could result in credit losses which exceed the amount of Erste
Group’s loan loss provisions.

Each of the above factors has had in the past and could have in future periods a material
adverse effect on Erste Group’s results of operations, financial condition and capital base.

Erste Group is subject to significant counterparty risk, and defaults by counterparties
may lead to losses that exceed Erste Group’s provisions.

In the ordinary course of its business, Erste Group is exposed to the risk that third parties who
owe Erste Group money, securities or other assets will not perform their obligations. This
exposes Erste Group to the risk of counterparty defaults, which have historically been higher
during periods of economic downturn.

In the ordinary course of its business, Erste Group is exposed to a risk of hon-performance by
counterparties in the financial services industry. This exposure can arise through trading,
lending, clearance and settlement and many other activities and relationships. These
counterparties include brokers and dealers, custodians, commercial credit institutions,
investment banks, mutual and hedge funds, and other institutional clients. Many of these
relationships expose Erste Group to credit risk in the event of counterparty default. In
addition, Erste Group’s credit risk may be exacerbated when the collateral it holds cannot be
realised or is liquidated at prices below the level necessary to recover the full amount of the
loan or cover the full amount of derivative exposure. Many of the hedging and other risk
management strategies utilised by Erste Group also involve transactions with financial
services counterparties. A weakness or insolvency of these counterparties may impair the
effectiveness of Erste Group’s hedging and other risk management strategies. Erste Group
will incur losses if its counterparties default on their obligations. If a higher than expected
proportion of Erste Group’s counterparties default, or if the average amount lost as a result of
defaults is higher than expected, actual losses due to counterparty defaults will exceed the
amount of provisions already made. If losses due to counterparty defaults significantly exceed
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the amounts of Erste Group’s provisions’ stock or require an increase in provisions, this could
have a material adverse impact on Erste Group's business, financial condition and results of
operations.

Concerns about potential default by a financial institution can lead to significant liquidity
problems, losses or defaults by other financial institutions, as the commercial and financial
soundness of many financial institutions is interrelated due to credit, trading and other
relationships. Even a perceived lack of creditworthiness may lead to market-wide liquidity
problems. This risk is often referred to as "systemic risk", and it affects credit institutions and
all other types of intermediaries in the financial services industry. Systemic risk could lead to a
need for Erste Group, as well as other credit institutions in the markets in which Erste Group
operates, to raise additional capital, while at the same time making it more difficult to do so.
Systemic risk could therefore have a material adverse effect on Erste Group's business,
financial condition, results of operations, liquidity and/or prospects.

Erste Group’s hedging strategies may prove to be ineffective.

Erste Group utilises a range of instruments and strategies to hedge risks. Unforeseen market
developments may have a significant impact on the effectiveness of hedging measures.
Instruments used to hedge interest and currency risks can result in losses if the underlying
financial instruments are sold or if valuation adjustments must be undertaken. Gains and
losses from ineffective risk-hedging measures can increase the volatility of the results of
operation generated by Erste Group, which could have a material adverse effect on Erste
Group’s business and financial condition. Moreover, the portion of the transaction that is
considered as ineffective hedge does not qualify for hedge accounting treatment, and may
therefore increase the volatility of earnings.

Erste Group is generally exposed to market volatility when it comes to loans covered
by real estate collateral.

Presently, the economic surroundings are relative stable in the CEE region and therefore, the
collateral values are steady. The real estate market prices have shown in general an upward
trend in the last years. Collateral values, however, are strongly correlated to the real estate
market price development. If the market conditions take a turn for the worse, collateral values
will be negatively influenced.

The development of the commercial and residential real estate market highly depends on the
economic progress of the CEE. In certain countries the economic surroundings are highly
influenced by political forces, and this could have a negative impact (risk) on the real estate
market.

Market fluctuations and volatility may adversely affect the value of Erste Group’s
assets, reduce profitability and make it more difficult to assess the fair value of certain
of its assets.

Financial markets could face periods of significant stress conditions when steep falls in
perceived or actual values of assets held by credit institutions and other financial institutions
could be accompanied by a severe reduction in market liquidity. Prices of the financial assets
in the Eurozone have been driven up by the ECB monetary policy measures applied since
2015, whose termination would lead to financial assets price adjustment. Future
deteriorations in economic and financial market conditions could lead to impairment charges
or revaluation losses. Despite recent robustness of both economic and financial market
conditions in the markets in which Erste Group is active, the value of financial assets may
start to fluctuate significantly and materially impact Erste Group’s capital and comprehensive
income.

Market volatility and illiquidity may make revaluation of certain exposures difficult, and the
value ultimately realised by Erste Group may be materially different from the current or
estimated fair value. In addition, Erste Group’s estimates of fair value may differ materially
both from similar estimates made by other financial institutions and from the values that would
have been used if a market for these assets had been readily available. Any of these factors
could require Erste Group to recognise further revaluation losses or realise impairment
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charges, any of which may adversely affect its business, financial condition, results of
operations, liquidity or prospects.

Erste Group is subject to the risk that liquidity may not be readily available.

Erste Group relies on customer deposits to meet a substantial portion of its funding
requirements. The majority of Erste Group’s deposits are retail deposits, a significant
proportion of which are demand deposits. Such deposits are subject to fluctuation due to
factors outside Erste Group’s control, and Erste Group can provide no assurances that it will
not experience a significant outflow of deposits within a short period of time. Because a
significant portion of Erste Group’s funding comes from its deposit base, any material
decrease in deposits could have a negative impact on Erste Group’s liquidity unless
corresponding actions were taken to improve the liquidity profile of other deposits or to reduce
liquid assets, which may not be possible on economically beneficial terms, if at all.

As credit providers, group companies of Erste Group are exposed to market liquidity risk,
which arises from an inability to easily sell an asset because there is inadequate market
liquidity or market disruption. They are also exposed to funding liquidity risk, which is an
exposure to losses arising out of a change in the cost of refinancing, or from a spread over a
certain horizon and confidence level, or from insolvency of counterparties, which may result in
difficulties in meeting future payment obligations, either in full, on time or on economically
beneficial terms.

Credit and money markets worldwide have experienced and continue to experience a
reluctance of credit institutions to lend to each other because of uncertainty as to the
creditworthiness of the borrowing credit institution. Even a perception among market
participants that a financial institution is experiencing greater liquidity risk may cause
significant damage to the institution, since potential lenders may require additional collateral
or other measures that further reduce the financial institution’s ability to secure funding. This
increase in perceived counterparty risk has led to further reductions in the access of Erste
Group, along with other credit institutions, to traditional sources of liquidity, and may be
compounded by further regulatory restrictions on funding and capital structures as well as
calculation of regulatory capital and liquidity ratios.

If Erste Group has difficulty in securing adequate sources of short- and long-term liquidity or if
there were material deposit outflows this would have a material adverse effect on its
business, financial condition and results of operations.

Credit rating agencies may suspend, downgrade or withdraw a credit rating of Erste
Group Bank and/or a local entity that is part of Erste Group or a country where Erste
Group is active, and such action might negatively affect the refinancing conditions for
Erste Group Bank, in particular its access to debt capital markets.

Erste Group Bank’s credit ratings are important to its business. A credit rating is the opinion of
a credit rating agency on the credit standing of an issuer, i.e., a forecast or an indicator of a
possible credit loss due to insolvency, delay in payment or incomplete payment to the
investors. It is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold securities. Such credit ratings have
been issued by credit rating agencies established in the European Community and registered
under the CRA Regulation. Erste Group Bank is rated by the following credit rating agencies:
Standard & Poor's, Moody’s and Fitch.

A credit rating agency may in particular suspend, downgrade or withdraw a credit rating. A
credit rating may also be suspended or withdrawn if Erste Group were to terminate the
agreement with the relevant credit rating agency or to determine that it would not be in its
interest to continue to supply financial data to a credit rating agency. A downgrading of the
credit rating may lead to a restriction of access to funds and, consequently, to higher
refinancing costs. A credit rating could also be negatively affected by the soundness or
perceived soundness of other financial institutions.

A credit rating agency may also suspend, downgrade or withdraw a credit rating concerning
one or more countries where Erste Group operates or may publish unfavourable reports or
outlooks for a region or country where Erste Group operates. Moreover, if a credit rating
agency suspends, downgrades or withdraws a credit rating or publishes unfavourable reports
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or outlooks on Austria or any other country where Erste Group operates, this could increase
the funding costs of Erste Group.

Rating actions of credit rating agencies may also be triggered by changes in their respective
rating methodology, their assessment of government support, as well as by regulatory
activities (e.g. introduction of bail-in regimes).

Any downgrade of the credit rating of Erste Group Bank or any member of Erste Group, or of
the Republic of Austria or any other country in which Erste Group has significant operations,
could have a material adverse effect on its liquidity and competitive position, undermine
confidence in Erste Group, increase its borrowing costs, limit its access to funding and capital
markets or limit the range of counterparties willing to enter into transactions with Erste Group
and would as a consequence have a material adverse effect on its business, financial
condition and results of operations.

New governmental or regulatory requirements and changes in perceived levels of
adequate capitalisation and leverage could subject Erste Group to increased capital
requirements or standards and require it to obtain additional capital or liquidity in the
future.

There are numerous ongoing initiatives for developing new, implementing, amending and
more strictly enforcing existing regulatory requirements applicable to European credit
institutions, including Erste Group, at national and international levels. Such initiatives which
aim to continuously enhance the banking regulatory framework (also in response to the past
global financial crisis and the European sovereign debt crisis), inter alia, include the following:

. Changes in Recognition of Own Funds.

Due to regulatory changes, certain existing capital instruments (which have been
issued in the past) wil be subject to (gradual) exclusion from own funds
(grandfathering) or reclassification as a lower category of own funds. For example,
existing hybrid capital instruments will, over time, be phased out.

. SREP Requirements.

Erste Group is subject to SREP requirements stipulated in 8 70 (4a) and (4b) in
connection with § 77c and § 77d of the Austrian Banking Act (Bankwesengesetz —
"BWG"), implementing Articles 97, 98, 104 (1) and 113 CRD IV and Article 16 of the
Council Regulation (EU) No 1024/2013 (Single Supervisory Mechanism Regulation)
determined by the annual Supervisory Review and Evaluation Process ("SREP") by the
ECB. Depending on the business model, governance and risk management, capital
adequacy and the liquidity situation of a credit institution, each year the competent
authority (i.e. in case of Erste Group the ECB) sets an individual additional own funds
requirement for each credit institution (group). This requirement also takes into account
results from the latest stress tests and needs to be met by the sort of capital (CET 1
capital, Additional Tier 1 ("AT 1") capital or Tier 2 capital) set by the ECB. Depending
on the situation of the credit institution (group), SREP requirements may vary annually.
According to ECB's SREP methodology 2017 (initially communicated by the ECB in
July 2016), the SREP requirements have been split into (i) a hard Pillar 2 requirement
located above the 4.5 per cent. CET 1 Pillar 1 requirement, but below the combined
buffer requirement (see below) and (ii) a soft Pillar 2 guidance located above the
combined buffer requirement. This methodology has been further amended and
detailed in the European Banking Authority's ("EBA") consultation paper on "Draft
Guidelines for common procedures and methodologies for the supervisory review and
evaluation process (SREP)" from 31 October 2017. A breach of the Pillar 2 guidance
may result in increased non-public supervisory action to improve capitalisation of the
relevant credit institution. Increasing Pillar 2 requirements for Erste Group or its
individual members could trigger additional pressure on the capitalisation of Erste
Group and/or its individual entities requiring unplanned adaptions.
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Combined Buffer Requirements.

88 23 to 23d BWG which implement Articles 128 to 140 CRD 1V into national law
in Austria require institutions to maintain in addition to the CET 1 capital
maintained to meet the own funds requirements imposed by the CRR and
potentially any Pillar 2 additional own funds requirement specific capital buffers
to be met with CET 1 capital. The Austrian Capital Buffers Regulation
(Kapitalpuffer-Verordnung — "KP-V") of the FMA further stipulates the calculation,
determination and recognition of the countercyclical buffer rate pursuant to
§ 23a(3) BWG, the determination of the capital buffer rate for systemic
vulnerability and for systemic concentration risk (= systemic risk buffer) pursuant
to § 23d(3) BWG (in case of Erste Group to be applied on an individual and on
a consolidated level) and of the capital buffer for other systemically important
institutions ("O-SlIs") pursuant to § 23c(5) BWG (in case of Erste Group to be
applied on a consolidated level), and the more precise elaboration of the
calculation basis pursuant to § 24(2) BWG concerning the calculation of the
maximum distributable amount. These buffer requirements are gradually being
phased in from 1 January 2016 until 1 January 2019.

§ 23(1) BWG requires credit institutions to maintain a capital conservation
buffer equal to 2.5% of their total risk exposure amount calculated in
accordance with Article 92(3) CRR and subject to the respective phasing-in
rules.

§ 23a(1) BWG requires credit institutions to also maintain a countercyclical
capital buffer. Pursuant to the KP-V, the countercyclical buffer rate is
currently set at 0.00% for significant credit exposures located in Austria. In
addition, national countercyclical buffers determined by the designated
authorities of other Member States and third countries for significant credit
exposures located in their respective territories apply. However, if a (national)
countercyclical buffer rate has been determined in excess of 2.50%, a rate of
2.50% shall apply, unless the FMA has recognised a rate exceeding 2.50%.
The KP-V specifies that the institution specific countercyclical capital buffer
rate is a weighted average of all applicable national countercyclical capital
buffers based on the respective total risk exposure.

In this regard, the following countercyclical buffer rates above 0.00% apply to
Erste Group on the total risk exposure in other jurisdictions: a 1.00%
countercyclical buffer in the Czech Republic since 1 July 2018 (1.25% as of
1 January 2019) and a 1.25% countercyclical buffer in the Slovak Republic as
of 1 August 2018. For Erste Group (which qualifies as an O-Sll), the KP-V
stipulates a systemic risk buffer (to be applied on an individual and on a
consolidated level) and an O-Sll buffer (to be applied on a consolidated
level), each totalling 1.00% (since 1 January 2018) and 2.00% (as of
1 January 2019). According to the BWG (and therefore in the case of Erste
Group), in general, the higher of such capital buffer rates at any given time
applies.

As a result, the combined buffer requirement for Erste Group is the total
CET 1 capital required to meet the capital conservation buffer extended by an
institution-specific countercyclical buffer, an O-SllI buffer and a systemic risk
buffer (on an individual and/or on a consolidated level). On 4 July 2018, the
Austrian Financial Market Stability Board (Finanzmarktstabilitétsgremium —
FMSG) adopted a recommendation for extending the list of (other) systemically
important banks and also concluded that banks may also be systemically
relevant at the unconsolidated level.

On 23 November 2016, the European Commission published a proposal for a
European Directive amending the CRD IV. The proposed amendments, inter
alia, are intended to clarify the conditions for the application of Pillar 2 capital
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add-ons stemming from the CRD IV (Article 104(1)(a) CRD IV), distinguishing
between:

o Pillar 2 capital requirements that are mandatory and imposed by
supervisors to address risks not covered or not sufficiently covered by
Pillar 1 and buffer capital requirements; and

o Pillar 2 capital guidance that refers to the possibility of competent
authorities to communicate to an institution their expectations for such
institution to hold capital in excess of Pillar 1 capital requirement,
Pillar 2 capital requirements and combined buffer requirements in order
to cope with forward looking and remote situations.

The proposal furthermore clarifies that the use of Pillar 2 capital add-ons are
institution-specific measures that should be used to address specific situations,
but not to deal with macro-prudential or systemic risks. It further provides that
Pillar 2 capital add-ons should be confined to a purely micro-prudential
perspective.

In March 2018, the Bulgarian Presidency of the Council put forward a proposal to
remove the concept of (MREL) guidance and to move the market confidence
buffer from the guidance to the MREL requirement. In the same proposal, a new
minimum mandatory subordination requirement for "top tier banks" (i.e.
consolidated balance sheet at resolution group level above EUR 75 billion) is
mentioned. The proposal of the Bulgarian Presidency of the Council could
amount to stricter rules than the European Commission proposal, but is also
subject to change and further legislative procedure.

= Erste Group reports since the end of the second quarter of 2017 on consolidated
level a risk-weighted assets ("RWA")-add-on in view of the calculation of RWA
for credit risk in Banca Comerciala Romana ("BCR") in the amount of around
EUR 2.4 billion. This RWA increase front-loads the expected difference in BCR
between the treatments of exposures under the standardised approach
compared to the treatment under the internal ratings based ("IRB") approach and
is limited in time until the authorisation of the IRB-approach in BCR.

Furthermore, Erste Group is reporting on consolidated level since the third
quarter of 2017 - due to a decision of the ECB in the context of its supervisory
assessments in view of deficiencies in credit risk models — an RWA-add-on of
around EUR 1.7 billion until these deficiencies will be addressed in the course of
an update of these models.

BCBS' Reviews of Banking Regulatory Framework.

As part of its continuous effort to enhance the banking regulatory framework, the Basel
Committee of Banking Supervision ("BCBS") has reviewed different aspects and
approaches under the Basel IIl framework. In this regard, on 7 December 2017, the
BCBS announced to have finalised the Basel Ill framework reforms. A key objective of
the revisions incorporated into the framework is to reduce excessive variability of RWA
which will help restoring credibility in the calculation of RWA by: (i) enhancing the
robustness and risk sensitivity of the standardised approaches for credit risk and
operational risk, which will facilitate the comparability of credit institutions' capital ratios;
(ii) constraining the use of internally modelled approaches; and (iii) complementing the
risk-weighted capital ratio with a finalised leverage ratio and a revised and robust
capital floor. The revised standards will take effect from 1 January 2022 (which will
constitute both the implementation and regulatory reporting date for the revised
framework) — parts of the reform including the output floor, will be phased in over a
period of five years commencing in 2022. As the agreed standards constitute minimum
standards, jurisdictions may elect to adopt more conservative standards. Accordingly,
the implementation of the amendments to the Basel Il framework within the European
Union may go beyond the Basel standards and provide for European specificities.
Moreover, jurisdictions will be considered compliant with the Basel Il framework if they
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do not implement any of the internally modelled approaches and instead implement the
standardised approaches. In addition, BCBS also announced that a high-level task
force set up to review the regulatory treatment of sovereign exposures in the Basel Il
framework and to recommend potential policy options has not reached a consensus at
this stage to make any changes to the treatment of sovereign exposures, but for the
time being only has published a discussion paper. Therefore, currently no firm
conclusions regarding the impact on the future capital requirements and their impact on
the capital requirements for Erste Group can be made.

Bank Recovery and Resolution Legislation.

The Directive 2014/59/EU (Bank Recovery and Resolution Directive - "BRRD") has
been implemented in Austria into national law by the Austrian Recovery and Resolution
Act (Sanierungs- und Abwicklungsgesetz — "BaSAG"). Institutions, inter alia, have to
meet, at all times, the MREL set by the resolution authority on a case-by-case basis.
Measures undertaken under the BRRD/BaSAG may also have a negative impact on
debt instruments by allowing resolution authorities to order the write-down of such
instruments or convert them into instruments of ownership (see also the risk factor "The
Certificates may be subject to write-down or conversion to equity upon the occurrence
of a certain trigger event, which may result in Security Holders losing some or all of
their investment in the Certificates (statutory loss absorption).”). Apart from potentially
being subject to resolution tools and other powers as set out under the SRM, the Issuer
may also be subject to national insolvency proceedings.

Single Resolution Mechanism for European Banks.

The Single Resolution Mechanism ("SRM") which started operationally in
January 2016 is one of the components of the Banking Union, alongside the Single
Supervisory Mechanism ("SSM") and a common deposit guarantee scheme. It is set
to centralise key competences and resources for managing the failure of a credit
institution in the participating Member States of the Banking Union. Under the SRM,
the Single Resolution Board ("SRB") is, in particular, responsible for adopting
resolution decisions in close cooperation with the ECB, the European Commission
and the national resolution authorities in case of a failing (or likely failing) of a
significant entity subject to direct supervision of the ECB, such as the Issuer (see
also the risk factor "The Certificates may be subject to write-down or conversion to
equity upon the occurrence of a certain trigger event, which may result in Security
Holders losing some or all of their investment in the Certificates (statutory loss
absorption).”). The SRM complements the SSM and aims to ensure that if a credit
institution subject to the SSM faces serious difficulties, its resolution can be
managed efficiently with minimal costs to taxpayers and the real economy.

The SRM is governed by: (i) the Regulation (EU) No 806/2014 (Single Resolution
Mechanism Regulation — "SRM Regulation”) covering the main aspects of the
mechanism and broadly replicating the BRRD rules on the recovery and resolution of
credit institutions; and (ii) an intergovernmental agreement related to some specific
aspects of the Single Resolution Fund ("SRF").

EU Banking Reform Package of the European Commission and the European Council.

On 23 November 2016, the European Commission published proposals for the revision
of the CRD IV and the CRR as well as of the BRRD and the SRM Regulation. The
proposal builds on existing EU banking rules and aims to complete the post-crisis
regulatory agenda of the European Commission. The proposals, which have been
submitted to the European Parliament and to the Council for their consideration and
adoption, include the following key elements: (i) more risk-sensitive capital
requirements, in particular in the area of market risk, counterparty credit risk, and for
exposures to central counterparties; (ii) a binding leverage ratio to prevent institutions
from excessive leverage; (iii) a binding net stable funding ratio to address the excessive
reliance on short-term wholesale funding and to reduce long-term funding risk; and
(iv) the total loss absorbing capacity ("TLAC") requirement for global systemically
important banks ("G-SIBs") which will be integrated into the MREL logic applicable to

Page 48



all credit institutions. It also proposes a harmonised national insolvency ranking of
unsecured debt instruments to facilitate credit institutions' issuance of such loss
absorbing debt instruments. The Directive (EU) 2017/2399 has to be transposed into
national law by the Member States by 29 December 2018 at the latest. In Austria, the
relevant amendments to § 131 BaSAG have already entered into force on 30 June
2018. (see also the risk factor "In the case of the Issuer's insolvency, deposits have a
higher ranking than the claims of the Security Holders under the Certificates.").

On 25 May 2018, the European Council announced that an agreement was reached on
its stance on the proposed amendments at a meeting of the Economic and Financial
Affairs Council and that the EU presidency was asked to start negotiations with the
European Parliament as soon as the European Parliament is ready to negotiate. In late
June 2018, the European Parliament’'s Committee on Economic and Monetary Affairs
adopted its full report on the scheduled three-way talks with the European Commission
and the European Council ("trilogue™) to begin after the announcement of the text in the
European Parliament’s July plenary session.

Currently, no firm conclusions regarding the impact on the potential future capital
requirements and consequently how this will affect the capital requirements for Erste
Group can be made.

MREL.

In order to ensure the effectiveness of bail-in and other resolution tools introduced
by the BRRD, the BRRD requires that all institutions must meet an individual MREL
requirement, currently to be calculated as a percentage of total liabilities and own
funds and set by the relevant resolution authorities, with effect from
1 January 2016. In this regard, the European Commission issued a Delegated
Regulation supplementing the BRRD, which specifies the current criteria for setting
MREL ("MREL Delegated Regulation”). The MREL Delegated Regulation requires
each resolution authority to make a separate determination of the appropriate
MREL requirement for each group or institution within its jurisdiction, de pending on
the institution's resolvability, risk profile, systemic importance and other
characteristics. As of the date of the Prospectus, no MREL has been set for Erste
Group.

On 9 November 2015, the Financial Stability Board ("FSB") published its final
principles and term sheet containing an international standard to enhance the loss
absorbing capacity of G-SIBs. In the most recent updated G-SIB list published by
the FSB on 21 November 2017, Erste Group is not included and therefore, currently
would not be subject to the TLAC standard as such. However, on-going work on the
EU level intended to align TLAC implementation with the existing MREL framework,
may have an impact on Erste Group.

The EU banking reform package of the European Commission published on
23 November 2016 also includes proposals for the revision of the CRR, the BRRD
and the SRM Regulation in order to implement the TLAC standard rules by avoiding
the application of two parallel requirements. Although TLAC and MREL pursue the
same regulatory objective, there are some differences between them in the way
they are constructed. The European Commission proposals intend to integrate the
TLAC requirements into the existing MREL requirements and intend to ensure that
both requirements are met with mainly similar instruments defined for TLAC and
MREL in the revised CRR and via reference to the revised CRR in the revised
BRRD and SRM Regulation respectively, except for the subordination requirement,
which, for the purposes of MREL, will be institution-specific and determined by the
resolution authority. The proposals require the introduction of limited adjustments to
the existing MREL rules ensuring technical consistency with the structure of any
requirements for G-SIBs. In particular, technical amendments to the existing rules
on MREL are needed to align them with the TLAC standard regarding inter alia the
denominators used for measuring loss-absorbing capacity, the interaction with
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capital buffer requirements, disclosure of risks to investors, and their application in
relation to different resolution strategies.

On 20 December 2017, the EBA has published an updated quantitative analysis on
the MREL, based on the same methodology and assumptions developed in the
context of its (final) MREL report published in December 2016.

While the general goal of these proposals is now well understood, it is too early to
confirm the exact amendments that will be introduced, the timing of their introduction
and consequently the precise impact on the Issuer.

It is possible that the Issuer has to issue additional eligible liabilities, which qualify
for MREL purposes (including, potentially, further Tier 2 instruments, other
subordinated debt and/or certain other types of debt ranking senior to subordinated
notes) in order to meet the additional requirements (see also the risk factor "The
Issuer may not be able to meet the minimum requirement for own funds and eligible
liabilities.").

o European Banking Authority's 2018 EU-wide Stress Test.

The Issuer participates in the 2018 EU-wide stress test initiated by EBA. The exercise
covers 70% of the EU banking sector and aims to assess EU credit institutions' ability
to meet relevant supervisory capital ratios during an adverse economic shock. It is
based on the common methodology and results will inform the 2018 SREP. For credit
institutions starting to report under IFRS 9 in 2018, the 2018 EU-wide stress test takes
into account the impact of the implementation of IFRS 9. The 2018 EU-wide stress test
exercise was launched on 31 January 2018 with a release of the macroeconomic
scenario and publication of results by EBA is scheduled for 2 November 2018.

. MiFID Il and MiFIR.

The regulatory framework for investment services and regulated markets is updated by
MIFID Il and by the Regulation (EU) No 600/2014 (Markets in Financial Instruments
Regulation - "MiFIR") and applies since 3 January 2018. In Austria, MiFID Il has been
implemented by the Austrian Securities Supervision Act 2018
(Wertpapieraufsichtsgesetz 2018 — WAG 2018). Due to increased regulatory
requirements, there are also increased costs for the Issuer. As many issues with regard
to the application of these changes currently remain unclear in practice, the full impact
of MIFID Il and MiFIR remains uncertain for the Issuer.

. Stricter and Changing Accounting Standards.

Prospective changes in accounting standards as well as those imposing stricter or
more extensive requirements to carry assets at fair value, could impact Erste Group's
capital needs.

Additional, stricter and/or new regulatory requirements may be adopted in the future, and the
existing regulatory environment in many markets in which Erste Group operates continues to
evolve. New governmental or regulatory requirements and changes in levels of adequate
capitalisation, liquidity and leverage could lead to increased capital and liquidity requirements
or standards. The substance and scope of any such (new or amended) laws and regulations
as well as the manner in which they are (or will be) adopted, enforced or interpreted may
increase Erste Group's financing costs and could have an adverse effect on Erste Group's
business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects. Furthermore, governmental
and central bank action in response to the past global financial crisis could significantly affect
competition and may affect investors of financial institutions, such as the Issuer.

In addition to complying with capital requirements on a consolidated basis of Erste Group, the
Issuer itself is also subject to capital requirements on an unconsolidated basis. Furthermore,
members of Erste Group which are subject to local supervision in their country of
incorporation are, on an unconsolidated and/or on a (sub-)consolidated basis, also required to
comply with applicable local regulatory capital requirements and demands. It is therefore
possible that individual entities within Erste Group or sub-groups require additional capital,
even though the capital of Erste Group is sufficient.
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Legislative and/or regulatory changes in the current definitions of what is deemed to qualify as
own funds could reduce Erste Group's eligible capital and/or require reducing the RWA of
the Issuer or Erste Group both on an individual and/or a consolidated basis. There can be no
assurance that, in the event of any further changes of the applicable rules, adequate
grandfathering or transition periods will be implemented to allow Erste Group to repay or
replace such derecognised capital instruments in a timely fashion or on favourable terms.
Erste Group may therefore need to obtain additional capital in the future which may not be
available on attractive terms or at all.

Further, any such regulatory development may expose Erste Group to additional costs and
liabilities which may require Erste Group to change its business strategy or otherwise have a
negative impact on its business, the offered products and services as well as the value of its
assets. There can be no assurance that Erste Group would be able to increase its eligible
capital (or, thus, its capital ratios) sufficiently or on time. If Erste Group is unable to increase
its capital ratios sufficiently and/or comply with (other) regulatory requirements, its credit
ratings may drop and its cost of funding may increase, and/or the competent authorities may
impose fines, penalties or other regulatory measures. The occurrence of all such
consequences could have a material adverse effect on Erste Group's business, financial
condition and results of operations.

The Issuer is subject to the risk of changes in the tax framework, in particular
regarding bank tax and the introduction of a financial transaction tax.

The future development of the Issuer's assets, financial and profit position, inter alia, depends
on the tax framework. Every future change in legislation, case law and the tax authorities'
administrative practice may negatively impact on the Issuer's assets, financial and profit
position.

The Issuer is subject to bank tax (Stabilitditsabgabe) pursuant to the Austrian Bank Tax Act
(Stabilitatsabgabegesetz). The tax basis is the average unconsolidated balance sheet total. It
is reduced, inter alia, by secured deposits, subscribed capital and reserves, certain export
finance related liabilities for which the Republic of Austria has posted guarantees and certain
liabilities resulting from the holding of assets on trust. The tax rate is 0.024% for that part of
the tax basis exceeding EUR 300 million but not exceeding EUR 20 billion and 0.029% for
that part exceeding EUR 20 billion. However, the bank tax must neither exceed certain
statutorily defined limits (Zumutbarkeitsgrenze and Belastungsobergrenze) nor undercut a
minimum amount. In addition, a special payment of 0.211% for that part of the tax basis
exceeding EUR 300 million but not exceeding EUR 20 billion and of 0.258% for that part
exceeding EUR 20 billion shall be paid generally in four instalments in the first quarters of the
years 2017 to 2020.

Pursuant to the proposal by the European Commission for a Council Directive implementing
enhanced cooperation in the area of financial transaction tax eleven EU Member States, i.e.
Austria, Belgium, Estonia, France, Germany, Greece, Italy, Portugal, the Slovak Republic,
Slovenia and Spain ("Participating Member States") shall charge a financial transaction tax
("FTT" on financial transactions as defined if at least one party to the transaction is
established in the territory of a Participating Member State and a financial institution
established in the territory of a Participating Member State is party to the transaction, acting
either for its own account or for the account of another person, or is acting in the name of a
party to the transaction (residency principle). In addition, the proposal contains rules pursuant
to which a financial institution and, respectively, a person which is not a financial institution
are deemed to be established in the territory of a Participating Member State if they are
parties to a financial transaction in certain instruments issued within the territory of that
Participating Member State (issuance principle). According to a publication by the Council of
the European Union dated 8 December 2015, shares and derivatives shall be taxed initially.
All Participating Member States except for Estonia have agreed on main features of the tax
base, but not on the respective tax rates. It is unclear whether an FTT will be introduced at all.
The FTT as proposed by the European Commission has a very broad scope and could, if
introduced, apply to certain dealings in the Certificates (including secondary market
transactions) in certain circumstances. If an FTT is introduced, due to higher costs for
investors there is a risk that it would result in fewer transactions taking place, thereby
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negatively affecting the earnings of the Issuer. Prospective holders of the Certificates are
advised to seek their own professional advice in relation to FTT.

The Issuer may not be able to meet the minimum requirement for own funds and
eligible liabilities.

Under the SRM, each institution has to ensure that it meets the MREL at all times (on an
individual basis and in case of EU parent undertakings (such as Erste Group) also on a
consolidated basis). Such minimum requirement currently shall be determined by the
resolution authority and shall be calculated as the amount of own funds and eligible liabilities
expressed as a percentage of the total liabilities and own funds of the institution. The scope,
calculation and composition of the MREL is currently under review (see also the risk factor
"New governmental or regulatory requirements and changes in perceived levels of adequate
capitalisation and leverage could subject Erste Group to increased capital requirements or
standards and require it to obtain additional capital or liquidity in the future."). There is a risk
that the Issuer may not be able to meet the MREL which could result in higher refinancing
costs, regulatory measures and, if resolution measures were imposed on the Issuer, could
significantly affect its business operations, could lead to losses for its creditors (including the
Holders) and could result in restrictions on, or materially adversely affect the Issuer's ability to
make payments on the Certificates.

The Issuer is obliged to contribute to the Single Resolution Fund (SRF) and to ex ante
financed funds of the deposit guarantee scheme of the savings bank sector on an
annual basis.

The SRF shall be gradually built up during the initial period of eight years (2016 - 2023) in
accordance with Article 69 of the SRM Regulation and shall reach the target level of at least
1.00% of the amount of covered deposits of all credit institutions within the Banking Union by
31 December 2023.

Furthermore, the Directive 2014/49/EU (Directive on Deposit Guarantee Schemes — DGSD)
stipulates financing requirements for the Deposit Guarantee Schemes ("DGS") as transposed
in Austria by the Deposit Guarantee and Investor Protection Act (Einlagensicherungs- und
Anlegerentschadigungsgesetz — ESAEG), In principle, the target level of ex ante financed
funds for the savings bank sector DGS is 0.80% of covered deposits to be collected from
credit institutions until 3 July 2024,

In addition to ex ante contributions, if necessary, credit institutions have to pay certain
additional (ex post) contributions in case of a resolution of a credit institution as well as
depositor protection when funds have been used for payments to failing institutions.

The obligation to contribute amounts for the establishment of the SRF and the ex-ante funds
to the savings bank sector DGS results in additional financial burdens for the Issuer and thus,
adversely affects the financial position of the Issuer and the results of its business, financial
condition and results of operations.

Erste Group’s risk management strategies, techniques and internal control procedures
may leave it exposed to unidentified or unanticipated risks.

Erste Group’s risk management techniques and strategies have not been, and may in the
future not be, fully effective in mitigating Erste Group’s risk exposure in all economic market
environments or against all types of risks, including risks that it fails to identify or anticipate.
Furthermore, regulatory audits or other regular reviews of the risk management procedures
and methods have in the past detected, and may in the future detect, weaknesses or
deficiencies in Erste Group’s risk management systems. Some of Erste Group’s quantitative
tools and metrics for managing risks are based upon its use of observed historical market
behaviour. Erste Group applies a wide variety of statistical and other tools to these
observations to be able to quantify risk exposures. During the global financial crisis, the
financial markets experienced unprecedented levels of volatility (rapid changes in price
development) and the breakdown of historically observed correlations across asset classes,
compounded by extremely limited liquidity. In this volatile market environment, Erste Group’s
risk management tools and metrics failed to predict some of the losses it experienced and
may in the future under similar conditions of market disruption fail to predict future important
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risk exposures. In addition, Erste Group’s quantitative modelling does not necessarily take all
risks into account and makes numerous assumptions regarding the overall environment
and/or the implicit consideration of risks in the quantification approaches, which may or may
not materialise. As a result, risk exposures could arise from factors not anticipated or correctly
evaluated in Erste Group’s statistical models.

This has limited and could continue to limit Erste Group’s ability to manage its risks. If
circumstances arise that Erste Group did not identify, anticipate or correctly evaluate in
developing its statistical models, losses could be greater than the maximum losses envisaged
under its risk management system. Furthermore, the quantifications do not take all risks or
market conditions into account. If the measures used to assess and mitigate risks prove
insufficient, Erste Group may experience material unanticipated losses, which could have a
material adverse effect on its business, financial condition and results of operations.

Erste Group’s business entails operational risks.

Erste Group is exposed to operational risk, which is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate
or failed internal processes, people and systems as well as external events, including in
particular legal, regulatory, compliance and outsourcing risks. Erste Group is susceptible to,
among other things, fraud by employees or outsiders, including unauthorised transactions and
operational errors, clerical or record-keeping errors and errors resulting from faulty computer
or telecommunications systems. Given Erste Group’s high volume of transactions, fraud or
errors may be repeated or compounded before they are discovered and rectified.
Consequently, any inadequacy of Erste Group’s internal processes or systems in detecting or
containing such risks could result in unauthorised transactions and errors, which may have a
material adverse effect on Erste Group’s business, financial condition, results of operations
and prospects. Erste Group may also suffer service interruptions from time to time due to
failures by third-party service providers and natural disasters, which are beyond its control.
Such interruptions may result in interruptions in services to Erste Group’s subsidiaries and
branches and may impact customer service.

Any failure or interruption in or breach of Erste Group’s information systems, and any
failure to update such systems, may result in lost business and other losses.

Erste Group relies heavily on information systems to conduct its business. Any failure or
interruption or breach in security of these systems could result in failures or interruptions in its
risk management, general ledger, deposit servicing or loan origination systems. If Erste
Group’s information systems, including its back-up systems, were to fail, even for a short
period of time, or its business continuity plans for cases of emergency would prove
ineffective, it could be unable to serve some customers’ needs on a timely basis and could
thus lose their business.

Likewise, a temporary shutdown of Erste Group's information systems could result in costs
that are required for information retrieval and verification. There can be no assurances that
such failures or interruptions will not occur or that Erste Group can adequately address them
if they do occur. Accordingly, the occurrence of such failures or interruptions could have a
material adverse effect on Erste Group's business, financial condition, results of operations
and prospects. In addition, there can be no assurances that the rollout or implementation of
any new systems or processes will provide the desired benefit to Erste Group’s business, or
will not involve failures or business interruptions that could have a material adverse effect on
its business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects. Erste Group has
outsourced certain IT services and operations to external service providers and may in the
future expand the scope of outsourcing arrangements in order to optimise its costs structure
and increase flexibility. Unsatisfactory quality of the external providers’ services could
heighten or exacerbate risks associated with the failure or interruption of its information
systems as well as result in additional operational deficiencies or reputational risk.

Erste Group may have difficulty recruiting new talent or retaining qualified employees.

Erste Group's existing operations and ability to enter new markets depend on its ability to
retain existing employees and to recruit additional talents with the necessary qualifications
and level of experience in banking. In many of the CEE markets in which Erste Group
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currently operates, the pool of individuals with the required set of skills is still limited however
growing due to increased focus of local universities and governments on implementation of
competitive educational programs and development of a skilled workforce. If hiring should not
be the outcome of a qualitative staff plan but happen more on an ad hoc or short term basis,
the risk of high staff turnover or not creating a valid succession pool would be high. Missing
leadership responsibility in setting the respective development measures or not promoting
high-performers may bear the risk that qualified staff may leave Erste Group. Furthermore,
nominations of employees as talents without overall valid high quality criteria may prove
wrong and cause the risk of false investments and higher costs.

Increasing competition for labour in Erste Group's core markets from other international
financial institutions may also make it more difficult for Erste Group to attract and retain
qualified employees and may lead to rising labour costs in the future. Moreover, if caps or
further restrictions under applicable remuneration rules were to be imposed on salaries or
bonuses paid to executives of Erste Group Bank or its subsidiaries (including caps imposed
by governments in connection with extending support to Erste Group), Erste Group’s ability to
attract and retain high-quality personnel could be limited and could result in losses of qualified
personnel. If Erste Group is unable to attract and retain new talent in key strategic markets or
if competition for qualified employees increases its labour costs, this could have a material
adverse effect on Erste Group’s business, financial condition and results of operations.

Erste Group Bank may be required to provide financial support to troubled banks in
the Haftungsverbund, which could result in significant costs and a diversion of
resources from other activities.

In 2002, the Haftungsverbund was formed pursuant to the Grundsatzvereinbarung among the
majority of Austrian savings banks. The purpose of the Haftungsverbund was to establish a
joint early-warning system as well as a cross-guarantee for certain liabilities of the member
savings banks and to strengthen the cooperation of the Savings Banks Sector (except
UniCredit Bank Austria AG) in the Austrian market.

In 2013, the cooperation between the savings banks was intensified. The aim of the new
agreement which entered into force on 1 January 2014, is the intensification of the group
steering and the setting up of an institutional protection scheme (Article 113(7) CRR) and a
cross-guarantee scheme (Article 4(1)(127) CRR) in order to fulfil the requirements of
Article 84(6) CRR to recognize any minority interest arising within the cross-guarantee
scheme in full and in light of IFRS 10 to strengthen Erste Group Bank’s power in the
provisions of the agreement governing the Haftungsverbund.

Under the Haftungsverbund, Erste Group Bank and all other member savings banks are
obliged to provide financially troubled members with specified forms of financial and
management support and, in the event of a member’s insolvency, to contribute to the
repayment of certain protected deposits. The member savings banks agreed that a part of the
funds has to be ex ante financed in the form of special funds, whereas the Haftungsverbund
GmbH ("Steering Company") alone has access to these special funds and is obliged to use
all other options available before availing itself of the special funds. In order to build up the
special fund, all savings banks contribute on a quarterly basis until it reaches its final size of
EUR 250 million after 10 years. Under the Haftungsverbund, member savings banks are also
required to follow specific credit and risk management guidelines for providing and managing
loans and for identifying, measuring, managing and limiting risks. This is effectively set and
monitored indirectly by Erste Group Bank although Erste Group Bank does not exercise direct
operational control over the management of the member savings banks. These requirements
are often more detailed and strict than those previously in place at certain of the individual
savings banks. Erste Group Bank may be required to provide support and repay certain
protected deposits even where there has been non-compliance by one or more members of
the Haftungsverbund with the risk management requirements, although Erste Group Bank
may exercise little direct control over the management of the member savings bank.
Consequently, Erste Group Bank’s ability to manage the risk associated with the financial
obligations it has assumed under the Haftungsverbund will depend on its ability to enforce the
risk management requirements of the system. Erste Group Bank may be obliged to provide
liquidity, take other measures and incur significant costs in the event that another savings

Page 54



bank in the Haftungsverbund experiences financial difficulties or becomes insolvent or in
order to prevent one of the savings banks from experiencing financial difficulties. This could
require Erste Group Bank to utilise resources in a manner that could have a material adverse
effect on Erste Group Bank’s business, financial condition and results of operations.

Changes in interest rates are caused by many factors beyond Erste Group’s control,
and such changes can have significant adverse effects on its financial results,
including net interest income.

Erste Group derives the majority of its operating income from net interest income. Interest
rates are sensitive to many factors beyond Erste Group’s control, such as inflation, monetary
policies set by central banks and national governments, the innovation of financial services
and increased competition in the markets in which Erste Group operates, domestic and
international economic and political conditions, as well as other factors. While the competitive
pressure on the margins is a rather obvious factor, also changes in the absolute level of the
interest rate environment can affect the spread between the rate of interest that a credit
institution pays to borrow funds from its depositors and other lenders and the rate of interest
that it charges on loans it extends to its customers. If the interest margin decreases, net
interest income will also decrease unless Erste Group is able to compensate such decrease
by increasing the total amount of funds it lends to its customers. Ultra-low interest rate
monetary policy accompanied by quantitative easing brings additional challenge to interest
margin stability as the potential to re-price customers' deposits might be exhausted sooner
than lending rates find their new equilibrium. Additionally, in a very low or even negative
interest rate environment, Erste Group will bear increased costs of maintaining the regulatory
and prudential liquidity buffers held in cash and highly liquid assets. An increase in rates
charged to customers can also negatively impact interest income if it reduces the amount of
customer borrowings. For competitive reasons, Erste Group may also choose to raise rates of
interest it pays on deposits without being able to make a corresponding increase in the
interest rates it charges to its customers. Finally, a mismatch in the structure of interest-
bearing assets and interest-bearing liabilities in any given period could, in the event of
changes in interest rates, reduce Erste Group’s net interest margin and have a material
adverse effect on its net interest income and, thereby, its business, results of operation and
financial condition.

Since a large part of Erste Group’s operations, assets and customers are located in
CEE countries that are not part of the Eurozone, Erste Group is exposed to currency
risks.

A large part of Erste Group Bank's and Erste Group's operations, assets and customers are
located in CEE countries that are not part of the Eurozone (i.e., that do not use the Euro as
their legal tender), and financial transactions in currencies other than the Euro give rise to
foreign currency risks. Local governments may undertake measures that affect currency
levels and exchange rates and impact Erste Group's credit exposure to such currencies, such
as the Swiss National Bank's setting of a minimum exchange rate against the Euro in
September 2011 and in January 2015 reversing its support measures, or Hungary's
introduction of a new law in 2014 regulating how credit institutions change loan interest and
convert FX loans into local currency. In September 2015, the Croatian Parliament adopted
changes in the legislation that allows debtors of Swiss franc loans to convert their loans into
euro loans at an exchange rate, which corresponds to the exchange rate at the time of
origination of the loans. In October 2016, the Romanian parliament approved a version of the
Swiss franc conversion law, allowing individuals to convert Swiss franc loans into local
currency at historical exchange rates. There can be no assurances that similar measures will
not be introduced or imposed on other customer segments or countries as well.

In addition, the equity investments that Erste Group Bank has in its non-Eurozone
subsidiaries, and the income and assets, liabilities and equity of non-Eurozone subsidiaries,
when translated into Euro, may also be lower due to devaluation of their local or foreign
currencies vis-a-vis the Euro. These and other effects of currency devaluation could have a
material adverse effect on Erste Group Bank’s and Erste Group’s business, financial
condition, regulatory capital ratios, results of operations and prospects.
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Erste Group Bank's profit can be lower or even negative.

Erste Group’s results of operations in the current financial year and in the future will depend in
part on the profitability of its subsidiaries. Erste Group Bank (i.e. the holding company of Erste
Group) may have higher than planned risk provisions for loans and advances or may receive
lower than planned dividend payments from its subsidiaries.

Depending on the size of the reduction in profitability, such a reduction could have a material
adverse effect on Erste Group’s results of operations in that period, on the reported amount of
its assets and on its equity, and on Erste Group’s ability to make payments on the
Certificates.

A change of the ECB’s collateral standards could have an adverse effect on the
funding of Erste Group and access to liquidity.

As a result of the funding pressures arising from the European sovereign debt crisis, there
has been increased intervention by a number of central banks, in particular the ECB. Among
other measures, the ECB has agreed to provide low-interest secured loans to European
financial institutions for up to four years. As of the date of this Prospectus, the ECB accepts
certain instruments, including covered bonds issued by Erste Group Bank as collateral for its
tenders. If the ECB or local national banks were to restrict its collateral standards or if it would
increase the rating requirements for collateral securities, this could increase Erste Group’s
funding costs and limit Erste Group’s access to liquidity and accordingly have an adverse
effect on Erste Group’s business, financial condition and results of operations.

Erste Group operates in highly competitive markets and competes against large
international financial institutions as well as established local competitors.

Erste Group faces significant competition in all aspects of its business, both in Austria and
CEE. Erste Group competes with a number of large international financial institutions and
local competitors. If Erste Group is unable to respond to the competitive environment in these
markets with product and service offerings that are profitable, it may lose market shares in
important parts of its business or incur losses on some or all of its activities.

The trend towards consolidation in the global financial services industry, resulting from the
continuing low interest rate environment and consequently mounting pressure on operating
results which has increased due to the last financial and economic crisis, is creating
competitors with extensive ranges of product and service offerings, increased access to
capital and greater efficiency and pricing power. These global financial institutions may be
more appealing to customers, especially large corporate customers, because of their larger
international presence or financial resources. In addition, in some markets, in particular
Austria and Hungary, Erste Group faces competition from established local credit institutions
which operate a larger number of branches, offer customers a broader range of banking and
financial products and services, and benefit from relationships with a large number of existing
customers.

Erste Group faces strong competition in Austria not only from UniCredit Bank Austria AG and
the Raiffeisen banks, but also from large international credit institutions and new entrants
from neighbouring countries. As a result of this competition, in particular in the retail segment
and the current low interest rate environment, net interest margins have historically been very
low. Failure to maintain net interest margins at current levels may have a significant negative
impact on Erste Group's financial condition and results of operations.

As banking markets in CEE mature, Erste Group expects increased competition from global
financial institutions and local competitors, with the level of increased competition likely to
vary from country to country. Erste Group's ability to compete effectively will depend on the
ability of its businesses to adapt quickly to market and industry trends. If Erste Group fails to
compete effectively, or if governmental action in response to financial crises or economic
downturns results in it being placed at a competitive disadvantage, Erste Group’s business,
financial condition and results of operations may be adversely affected.
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Erste Group Bank’s major shareholder may be able to control shareholder actions.

As of the date of this Prospectus, 29.9% of the shares in Erste Group Bank were attributed to
DIE ERSTE 0sterreichische Spar-Casse Privatstiftung ("Erste Stiftung"). Erste Stiftung has
the right to appoint one third of the members of the Supervisory Board of Erste Group Bank
who were not delegated by the employees' council, however, Erste Stiftung has not exercised
its appointment right, so that all of the Supervisory Board members who were not delegated
by the employees' council have been elected by the shareholders' meeting.

In addition, because voting is based on the number of shares present or represented at a
shareholders’ meeting rather than the total number of shares outstanding, the ability of major
shareholders to influence a shareholder vote on subjects which require a majority vote will
often be greater than the percentage of outstanding shares owned by them. Under Austrian
corporate law and the articles of association of the Issuer, a shareholder that holds more than
25% of Erste Group Bank's shares is able to block a variety of corporate actions requiring
shareholder approval, such as the creation of authorised or conditional capital, changes in the
purpose of Erste Group Bank’s business, mergers, spin-offs and other business
combinations. As a result, Erste Stiftung will be able to exert significant influence on the
outcome of any shareholder vote and may, depending on the level of attendance at a
shareholders’ meeting, be able to control the outcome of most decisions requiring
shareholder approval. Therefore, it is possible that in pursuing these objectives Erste Stiftung
may exercise or be expected to exercise influence over Erste Group in ways that may not be
in the interest of other shareholders.

Compliance with applicable rules and regulations, in particular on anti-money
laundering and anti-terrorism financing, anti-corruption and fraud prevention,
economic sanctions and tax as well as capital markets (securities and stock exchange
related) involve significant costs and efforts and non-compliance may have severe
legal and reputational consequences for Erste Group.

Erste Group is subject to rules and regulations, in particular on anti-money laundering and
anti-terrorism financing, anti-corruption and fraud prevention, economic sanctions and tax as
well as capital markets (securities and stock exchange related). These rules and regulations
which have been recently tightened, in particular by the Directive (EU) 2015/849 (so-called
"4th AML-Directive™), will be further amended in the near future by, inter alia, the
Directive (EU) 2018/843 (so-called "5th AML-Directive").

Monitoring compliance with such rules and regulations constitutes a significant financial
burden on credit institutions and other financial institutions and can pose serious technical
problems on them. Erste Group cannot guarantee that it is in compliance with all applicable
rules and regulations at all times or that its group standards are being consistently applied by
its employees in all circumstances. Any violation of such rules and regulations, or even
alleged violations, may have severe legal, monetary and reputational consequences and
could have a material adverse effect on Erste Group's business, financial condition and
results of operations.

Changes in consumer protection laws as well as the application or interpretation of
such laws might limit the fees and other pricing terms that Erste Group may charge for
certain banking transactions and might allow consumers to claim back certain of those
fees and interest already paid in the past.

Changes in consumer protection laws or the interpretation of consumer protection laws by
courts or governmental authorities (i.e. Fair Banking Act in Hungary) could limit the fees that
Erste Group may charge for certain of its products and services and thereby result in lower
commission income. Moreover, as new laws and amendments to existing laws are adopted in
order to keep pace with the continuing transition to market economies in some of the CEE
countries in which Erste Group operates, existing laws and regulations as well as
amendments to such laws and regulations may be applied inconsistently or interpreted in a
manner that is more restrictive. Several subsidiaries of Erste Group in CEE countries have
been named in their respective jurisdictions as defendants in a number of lawsuits and in
regulatory proceedings filed by individual customers, regulatory authorities or consumer
protection agencies and associations. Some of the lawsuits are class actions. The lawsuits
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mainly relate to allegations that certain contractual provisions, particularly in respect of
consumer loans, violate mandatory consumer protection laws and regulations. The
allegations relate to the enforceability of certain fees as well as of contractual provisions for
the adjustment of interest rates and currencies. Moreover, any such changes in consumer
protection laws or the interpretation of such laws by courts or governmental authorities could
impair Erste Group’s ability to offer certain products and services or to enforce certain clauses
and reduce Erste Group’s net commission income and have an adverse effect on its results of
operations.

The integration of potential future acquisitions may create additional challenges.

Erste Group may in the future seek to make acquisitions to support its business objectives
and complement the development of its business in its existing and new geographic markets.
Such strategic transactions demand significant management attention and require Erste
Group to divert financial and other resources that would otherwise be available for its existing
business, and the benefits of potential future acquisitions may take longer to realise than
expected and may not be realised fully or at all. There can be no assurance that Erste Group
will be able to successfully pursue, complete and integrate any future acquisition targets. In
addition, there can be no assurance that it will be able to identify all actual and potential
liabilities to which an acquired business is exposed prior to its acquisition. Any of these
factors could lead to unexpected losses following the acquisition, which may have a material
adverse effect on Erste Group’s business, financial condition and results of operations.

2.1.2Risks related to the markets in which Erste Group operates

The departure of any one or more countries from the Eurozone could have
unpredictable consequences for the financial system and the greater economy,
potentially leading to declines in business levels, write-downs of assets and losses
across Erste Group’s business.

If a Eurozone country should conclude that it must exit the common currency, the resulting
need to reintroduce a national currency and restate existing contractual obligations could
have unpredictable financial, legal, political and social consequences. Given the highly
interconnected nature of the financial system within the Eurozone and the levels of exposure
Erste Group has to public and private counterparties across Europe, its ability to plan for such
a contingency in a manner that would reduce its exposure to non-material levels is limited. If
the overall economic climate deteriorates as a result of one or more departures from the
Eurozone, nearly all of Erste Group's segments could be materially adversely affected.

If European policymakers are unable to contain the European sovereign debt crisis in the
long-run, Erste Group's results of operations and financial position would likely be materially
adversely affected as Erste Group may be required to take write-downs on its sovereign debt
exposures and other assets when the macroeconomic environment would deteriorate again.
In addition, one or more members of the Eurozone may leave the common currency, resulting
in the reintroduction of one or more national currencies in such countries. The effects of such
an event are difficult to anticipate and may have a substantial negative effect on Erste
Group’s business and outlook, including as a consequence of adverse impacts on economic
activity both within and outside the Eurozone.

The deterioration of the sovereign debt market in the Eurozone and CEE, particularly the
increasing costs of borrowing affecting many Eurozone states late in 2011 and downgrades in
credit rating of most Eurozone countries in 2011 and 2012, indicate that the sovereign debt
crisis can affect even the financially most stable countries in the Eurozone. While the costs of
sovereign borrowing in the Eurozone remain low by early 2018, some doubt remains whether
actions taken by European policymakers will have been sufficient to prevent a return of the
debt crisis in the long-run. In particular, potential credit rating downgrades of EU Member
States may threaten the effectiveness of the European Stability Mechanism ("ESM"). Since
the ESM's credit rating is based on the credit ratings of its financing members, the reduction
of these members’ credit ratings may increase the borrowing costs of the ESM such that its
ability to raise funds to assist Eurozone governments would be reduced.
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Erste Group operates in emerging markets that may experience rapid economic or
political changes, either of which may adversely impact its financial performance and
results of operations.

Erste Group operates directly or indirectly in emerging markets throughout CEE but also
partially in other parts of the world. In recent years, some of these countries have undergone
substantial political, economic and social change. As is typical for emerging markets, they do
not have in place the full business, legal and regulatory structures that would commonly exist
in more mature free market economies. As a result, Erste Group's operations are exposed to
risks common to regions undergoing rapid political, economic and social change, including —
but not limited to — currency fluctuations, exchange control restrictions, an evolving regulatory
environment, inflation or deflation, economic recession, local market disruption and labour
unrest or even military disputes. Macroeconomic events, such as recession, deflation or
hyper-inflation, may lead to an increase in defaults by Erste Group's customers, which would
adversely impact Erste Group's results of operations and financial condition. Political or
economic instability resulting from, or causing, the occurrence of any of these risks would also
adversely affect the market for Erste Group’s products and services. However, the level of
risk that Erste Group faces differs significantly by country.

The conflict in the Donbass between Russia and Ukraine remains frozen. There is no or only
minor progress with the Minsk agreement. EU sanctions versus Russia have been prolonged
again in early 2018 for another six months. The attempted coup in Turkey in summer 2016
has also been a negative credit event. Since then, there have been several sovereign rating
downgrades for Turkey, the latest one in August 2018. Political risk remains high given by the
still-prevailing state of emergency, a deterioration in relationships to major partners and
investors in the U.S. and EU, involvement in the Syrian civil war and the onset of the Turkish
Presidential election at the end of June 2018. External macro-imbalances of Turkey remain
high and a constant risk factor to macro stability of the Turkish economy.

Committed EU funds may not be released or further aid programmes may not be
adopted by the EU and/or international credit institutions.

In addition to Greece and Portugal, some of the CEE countries in which Erste Group operates
(i.e. Slovakia, Romania, Hungary, Czech Republic and Croatia), and to a lesser extent EU
candidates such as Serbia, have been promised funds for infrastructure and other projects in
substantial amounts by the EU and international credit institutions, including the European
Bank for Reconstruction and Development ("EBRD"), the International Monetary Fund (IMF)
and the European Investment Bank (EIB). If these funds are not released, are released only
in part or with delay as the absorption rate of these funds still poses a significant challenge in
the CEE countries, or if no further aid will be made available by the EU and the international
credit institutions, the relevant national economies could be adversely affected, which would,
in turn, negatively affect Erste Group's business prospects in the respective countries. The
departure of Great Britain, the second largest net contributor to the EU budget, could cause a
substantial reduction in the EU’s budget and therefore the funds available for such
programmes. In the next EU budget period the disbursal of EU funds may be tied to the rule
of law and/or the fulfilment of refugee quotas by recipient countries. Such measures could
mean significantly lower EU funds for several CEE countries, especially Hungary and Poland.

Loss of customer confidence in Erste Group’s business or in banking businesses
generally could result in unexpectedly high levels of customer deposit withdrawals,
which could have a material adverse effect on Erste Group’s results, financial
condition and liquidity.

The availability of Erste Group's customer deposits to fund its loan portfolio and other financial
assets is subject to potential changes in certain factors outside Erste Group's control, such as
a loss of confidence of depositors in either the economy in general, the financial services
industry or Erste Group specifically, credit ratings downgrades, low interest rates and
significant deterioration in economic conditions. These factors could lead to a reduction in
Erste Group's ability to access customer deposit funding on appropriate terms in the future
and to sustained deposit outflows, both of which would adversely impact Erste Group's ability
to fund its operations. Any loss in customer confidence in Erste Group’s banking businesses,
or in banking businesses generally, could significantly increase the amount of deposit

Page 59



withdrawals in a short period of time. Should Erste Group experience an unusually high level
of withdrawals, this may have an adverse effect on Erste Group's results, financial condition
and prospects and could, in extreme circumstances, prevent Erste Group from funding its
operations. In such extreme circumstances Erste Group may not be in a position to continue
to operate without additional funding support, which it may be unable to access. A change in
the funding structure towards less stable and more expensive funding sources would also
result in higher liquidity buffer requirements and an adverse impact on net interest income.

Liquidity problems experienced by certain CEE countries may adversely affect the
broader CEE region and could negatively impact Erste Group's business results and
financial condition.

Certain countries where Erste Group has operations may encounter severe liquidity problems.
In the past, Romania and Serbia have all turned to international institutions for assistance,
and other countries in the CEE may be forced to do the same. If such liquidity problems
should occur, this could have significant consequences throughout the region, including
foreign credit institutions withdrawing funds from their CEE subsidiaries and regulators
imposing further limitations to the free transfer of liquidity, thereby weakening local economies
and affecting customers of Erste Group who borrow from a number of different credit
institutions and weakening Erste Group’s liquidity position. This could also lead to an increase
of defaults throughout the economy or by Erste Group customers and, accordingly, could
have a material adverse effect on Erste Group's business, financial condition and results of
operation.

Governments in countries in which Erste Group operates may react to financial and
economic crises with increased protectionism, nationalisations or similar measures.

Governments in CEE countries in which Erste Group operates could take various protectionist
measures to protect their national economies, currencies or fiscal income in response to
financial and economic crises, including among other things:

o force for loans denominated in foreign currencies like EUR, USD or CHF to be
converted into local currencies at set interest and/or exchange rates, in some cases
below market rates, as happened in Hungary, or allow loans to be assumed by
government entities, potentially resulting in a reduction in value for such loans;

. set limitations on the repatriation of profits (either through payment of dividends to their
parent companies or otherwise) or export of foreign currency;

. set out regulations limiting interest rates and fees for services that can be charged and
other terms and conditions;

. prohibit money transfers abroad by credit institutions receiving state support measures
(e.g., loans granted to credit institutions from sovereigns or covered by sovereign
deposit guarantees);

. introduce or increase banking taxes or legislation imposing levies on financial
transactions or income generated through banking services or extend such measures
previously introduced on a temporary basis;

. nationalisation of local credit institutions, with or without compensation, in order to
stabilise the banking sector and the economy; and

. restricting repossessions of collateral on defaulted loans.

Any of these or similar state actions could have a material adverse effect on Erste Group’s
business, financial condition and results of operations.

Erste Group may be adversely affected by slower growth or recession in the banking
sector in which it operates as well as slower expansion of the Eurozone and the EU.

Banking sector growth in some countries in which Erste Group operates has been strong in
recent years. Nevertheless, as the economies in CEE mature, particularly in the Czech
Republic and Slovakia, growth in the banking sector can be expected to slow down in these
regions over the medium-term. Of the countries in which Erste Group has significant
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operations, the Czech Republic, Hungary, Slovakia and Slovenia joined the EU in 2004,
Romania joined the EU in 2007 and Croatia in July 2013. Economic growth in the region may
be further constrained in the coming years by continuing effects of the last financial crisis and
recession, as well as a slowing expansion of the Eurozone and the EU and increasing
constraints on the EU budget, which may reduce various subsidies to CEE countries. In
addition, EU legal, fiscal and monetary regulations may limit a country’s ability to respond to
local economic conditions. Moreover, some of these countries are expected to raise tax rates
and levies to EU standards or introduce new taxes in order to provide social protection for
unemployed workers and others affected by the economic downturn and to put public sector
finance on a more sustainable basis, which could also limit their growth rates.

The legal systems and procedural safeguards in many CEE countries and, in particular,
in the Eastern European countries are not yet fully developed.

The legal and judicial systems in some of the markets where Erste Group operates are less
developed than those of other European countries. Commercial law, competition law,
securities law, company law, bankruptcy law and other areas of law in these countries have
been and continue to be subject to constant changes as new laws are being adopted in order
to keep pace with the transition to market economies. In this regard, the laws of some of the
jurisdictions where Erste Group operates may not be as favourable to investors' interests as
the laws of Western European countries or other jurisdictions with which prospective investors
may be familiar. Existing laws and regulations in some countries in which Erste Group
operates may be applied inconsistently or may be interpreted in a manner that is restrictive
and non-commercial. It may not be possible, in certain circumstances, to obtain legal
remedies in a timely manner in these countries. The relatively limited experience of a
significant number of judges and magistrates practising in these markets, particularly with
regard to securities laws issues, and the existence of a number of issues relating to the
independence of the judiciary may lead to unfounded decisions or to decisions based on
considerations that are not founded in the law. In addition, resolving cases in the judicial
systems of some of the markets where Erste Group operates may at times involve very
considerable delays. This lack of legal certainty and the inability to obtain effective legal
remedies in a timely manner may adversely affect Erste Group's business.

Applicable bankruptcy laws and other laws and regulations governing creditors’ rights
in various CEE countries may limit Erste Group’s ability to obtain payments on
defaulted loans and advances.

Bankruptcy laws and other laws and regulations governing creditors' rights vary significantly
among countries in the CEE. In some countries, the laws offer significantly less protection for
creditors than the bankruptcy regimes in Western Europe. In addition, it is often difficult to
locate all of the assets of an insolvent debtor in CEE countries. Erste Group’s local
subsidiaries have at times had substantial difficulties receiving pay-outs on claims related to,
or foreclosing on collateral that secures, extensions of credit that they have made to entities
that have subsequently filed for bankruptcy protection. In the event of further economic
downturns, these problems could intensify, including as a result of changes in law or
regulations intended to limit the impact of economic downturns on corporate and retail
borrowers. These problems, if they were to persist or intensify, may have an adverse effect on
Erste Group’s business, results of operations and financial condition.

Erste Group may be required to participate in or finance governmental support
programs for credit institutions or finance governmental budget consolidation
programmes, through the introduction of banking taxes and other levies.

If a major credit institution or other financial institution in Austria or the CEE markets where
Erste Group has significant operations were to suffer significant liquidity problems, risk
defaulting on its obligations or otherwise potentially risk declaring bankruptcy, the local
government might require Erste Group Bank or a member of Erste Group to provide funding
or other guarantees to ensure the continued existence of such institution. This might require
Erste Group Bank or one of its affiliates to allocate resources to such assistance rather than
using such resources to promote other business activities that may be financially more
productive, which could have an adverse effect on Erste Group’s business, results of
operations and financial condition.
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2.2 Factors which are material for the purpose of assessing the market
risks associated with Certificates issued under this Programme

Prospective Security Holders of the Certificates, which are the subject of the
Prospectus and of the Final Terms, should consider the following risk factors, which
are material to assess the risks associated with the Certificates, when making their
investment decision and should make such decision only on the basis of the
Prospectus as a whole and the Final Terms.

No person should acquire Certificates without a thorough understanding of the
mechanism of the relevant Certificates and without being aware of the potential risk of
loss. Any prospective Security Holder should carefully examine whether an investment
in the Certificates is appropriate given his or her personal circumstances and financial
situation.

The risk factors herein are organised into the following sub-sections below:
2.2.1. General risk factors

2.2.2. Risk factors associated with certain types of Certificates

2.2.3. Risk factors associated with certain types of Underlyings

2.2.4. Risk factors relating to conflicts of interest

2.2.1General risk factors

The Certificates are risky investment instruments. Compared to other capital
investments, the risk of loss — up to the total loss of the invested capital as well as the
related transaction costs — is high; the Certificates do not, unless expressly provided,
yield any current income.

The Certificates are tradable securities that enable Security Holders to participate in the
performance of a particular Underlying without having to purchase such Underlying. As used
in this section "2.2 Factors which are material for the purpose of assessing the market risks
associated with Certificates issued under the Progremme", references to the Underlying shall
be deemed to include any of its constituents, if applicable.

The Certificates grant holders the right to a Cash Amount on maturity of the Certificates.
Claims for delivery of definitive securities are precluded.

The calculation of the Cash Amount depends in principle on the performance (so-called
"Performance") of an Underlying during the term of the Certificates.

There is a relationship between the economic value of the Certificates and the economic
value of the Underlying. The market price of the Certificate will typically fall (i.e. without taking
into account other features and other factors that are determinative of the market price of
securities) if the price of the Underlying falls. The Certificates may however be structured in
such a way — as in the case of reverse structures — so that a Security may decrease in value
(without taking into account other features and other factors that are determinative of the price
of securities) if the value of the Underlying increases. This is the case with, for example,
Reverse Bonus Certificates.

As a matter of principle the Cash Amount is calculated on the basis of a reference price, the
Multiplier and other factors, as the case may be. The Multiplier specifies how many units of
the Underlying the Certificate corresponds to. The Multiplier is expressed as a decimal, so a
Multiplier of e.g. 0.01 indicates that a Security corresponds to one-hundredth of a unit of the
Underlying.
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A Certificate does not, unless expressly provided, confer a right to receipt of dividend
payments and does not confer a right to an interest payment, so does not provide a current
yield. This means that potential losses in market price of the Certificate may not be
compensated by income generated by the Certificate.

Certificates with a Participation Factor include the risk of the Security Holder’s
participation being disproportionately lower or higher than any price fluctuations of the
Underlying.

If a Participation Factor is applicable, the Security Holder participates in the performance of
the Underlying based on a certain factor. Depending on the Certificate, a Participation Factor
other than one (1) may, subject to further features influencing the value of the Underlying,
result in the Security Holder’s participation being disproportionately lower or higher than any
price fluctuations of the Underlying.

The Certificates may have no liquidity or the market for such Certificates may be
limited and this may adversely impact their market price or the ability of the Security
Holder to dispose of them.

Unless otherwise communicated by the Issuer to the purchaser of the Certificates, or to the
extent that the rules of any stock exchange on which the Certificates are listed and admitted
to trading require the Issuer to provide liquidity in respect of such Certificates, the Certificates
may have no liquidity or the market for such Certificates may be limited and this may
adversely impact their value or the ability of the purchaser of Certificates to dispose of them.

The Issuer is not under an obligation, or makes any commitment, to make a market in or to
repurchase the Certificates. If the Issuer does make a market for the Certificates, it may
cease to do so at any time without notice. Purchasers should therefore not assume that the
Certificates can be sold at a specific time or at a specific price during their life. The Issuer has
no obligation to provide any quotation of bid or offer price(s) of the Certificates which is
favourable to any purchaser of the Certificates. Although application may be made for
Certificates issued under this Prospectus to be admitted to trading on a stock exchange, there
is no assurance that such application will be accepted, that any particular Certificates will be
so admitted or that an active trading market for the Certificates will develop. Accordingly,
there is no assurance as to the development or liquidity of any trading market for any
particular Certificates. The Issuer does not assume any responsibility for, or makes any
commitment to, any potential purchaser of any particular Certificates for such development or
liquidity of any trading market for such Certificates.

Security Holders should consider that price movements of the Underlying (or the non-
occurrence of an expected price movement) may decrease the value of the Underlying
disproportionately and even render it worthless and that there is no assurance that in
the case of Certificates with a limited term, the market price of the Certificate will
recover in time.

The pricing of the Certificates is determined by several factors during their term. In addition to
the term of the Certificates, in particular the solvency of the Issuer is relevant.

The Certificates may be traded over the counter and/or on a stock exchange throughout their
term. In contrast to most other securities, the pricing of the Certificates is not based on the
principle of supply and demand, since the Issuer or a third party in its function as market
maker will quote independently calculated bid and offer prices for the Certificates on the
secondary market (however, without being committed or being under any obligation legal or
otherwise to do so).

The price calculation by the market maker will be based on internal price calculation models,
so that the theoretical value of the Certificates will be determined on the basis of the value of
the Underlying and other variable parameters. These other variable parameters may include,
among other things, derivative components, expected yields on the Underlying (e.g.
dividends), interest rates, the volatility of the Underlying and the supply and demand for
hedging instruments.
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It is to be noted that price movements of the Underlying (or the non-occurrence of an
expected price movement) may decrease the market price of the Certificates
disproportionately and even render it worthless. In particular, there can be no assurance that
in the case of Certificates with a limited term, the market price of the Certificate will recover in
time in light of the limited term. There is then the risk of partial or total loss of the invested
capital including transaction costs. This risk is independent of the financial strength of the
Issuer.

The performance of the Certificates is linked to the performance of the Underlying
which may be affected by national and international financial, political, military or
economic events, including governmental actions, or by the activities of participants in
the relevant markets. Any of these events or activities may adversely affect the market
price of the Certificates.

The Certificates reference one Underlying. Therefore, the Security Holders are exposed to the
performance of such Underlying. The rate or market price of the Underlying may be subject to
unpredictable change over time and this degree of change is known as "volatility". The
volatility of an Underlying may be affected by national and international financial, political,
military or economic events, including governmental actions, or by the activities of participants
in the relevant markets. Any of these events or activities could adversely affect the market
price of the Certificates. Volatility does not imply direction of the rate or price, although an
Underlying that is more volatile is likely to increase or decrease in value more often and/or to
a greater extent than one that is less volatile.

For information on the risks associated with the Underlying see also below in section "2.2.3.
Risk factors relating to certain types of Underlyings".

If an Underlying is linked with emerging markets, a Security Holder must expect
considerable political and economic uncertainty, which may significantly affect the
market price development of the Certificates.

Investments in so-called emerging markets contain further risk factors in addition to the risks
normally associated with the investment in the respective Underlying. These include the
unstable economic situation, high inflation, increased currency risks as well as political and
legal risks. The political and economic structures in emerging markets are sometimes subject
to considerable transitions and rapid developments and these countries often lack social,
political and economic stability if compared with more industrialised nations. Of particular
importance is the increased risk of currency fluctuations. Instability in these countries can also
be caused by authoritarian governments or military interference in political and economic
decision making. This also includes anti-constitutional (attempted) regime change, civil unrest
relating to demands for improved political, economic and social conditions, hostile relations
with neighbouring countries or conflicts based on ethnic, religious or racial reasons.

There is also the possibility of restrictions being imposed on foreign investors, expropriation of
assets, confiscatory taxation, confiscation or nationalisation of foreign bank deposits or other
assets, the introduction of currency controls or other detrimental developments which may
adversely affect the success of investments in such countries. Such adverse effects can,
under certain circumstances, last for long periods of time, i.e. months or years. Each of these
adverse effects may cause what is known as a market disruption in relation to the Certificates
and one of the results of this may be that during this period no prices will be quoted for the
Certificates affected by the market disruption.

The small size and lack of experience on the securities markets in certain countries as well as
the limited trading volume of securities can cause an Underlying to be less liquid and/or
considerably more volatile than Underlyings in more established markets. It is possible that
very little financial information is available on local issuers, which can make it difficult to
assess the value of and/or prospects of the Underlying.

In addition, if the Underlyings of the Certificates are quoted in local currency, i.e. not hedged
against the euro, there is an increased foreign exchange risk. Experience shows that the
currency exchange rates in emerging markets are subject to particularly high fluctuations.
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This may result in a considerable negative performance of the Certificates, even though the
performance of the Underlying during the term of the Certificates has essentially remained
unchanged or even risen. This may mean that some or all of the total performance of the
Underlying may be eroded by currency losses and that the performance of the Underlying
even may become negative.

Where payments under the Certificates will be made in a currency which is different
from the currency of the Underlying and such Certificates do not have a "quanto
feature", the Security Holders are exposed also to the performance of the currency of
the Underlying against the Currency of the Certificates, which cannot be predicted.
Furthermore, the Security Holder bears a currency risk if the account of the Security
Holder to which the Cash Amount is paid is held in a currency other than the currency
of the Certificates.

Where payments under the Certificates will be made in one currency (the so-called
"Settlement Currency") which is different from the currency of the Underlying (the so-called
"Reference Currency"), and such Certificates do not have a "quanto feature", the Security
Holders may be exposed not only to the performance of the Underlying but also to the
performance of such Reference Currency, which cannot be predicted. Security Holders
should be aware that foreign exchange rates are, and have been, highly volatile and
determined by supply and demand for currencies in the international foreign exchange
markets, which are subject to economic factors, including inflation rates in the countries
concerned, interest rate differences between the respective countries, economic forecasts,
international political factors, currency convertibility and safety of making financial
investments in the currency concerned, speculation and measures taken by governments and
central banks (e.g., imposition of regulatory controls or taxes, issuance of a new currency to
replace an existing currency, alteration of the exchange rate or exchange characteristics by
devaluation or revaluation of a currency or imposition of exchange controls with respect to the
exchange or transfer of a specified currency that would affect exchange rates as well as the
availability of a specified currency). Foreign exchange fluctuations between a purchaser's
home currency and the Settlement Currency, i.e. the relevant currency in which the Cash
Amount of the Certificates is denominated may affect purchasers who intend to convert gains
or losses from the exercise or sale of Certificates into their home currency.

If any Underlying is not denominated in the Settlement Currency and at the same time only
the performance of the Underlying in the Reference Currency is relevant to the payout on the
Certificates, such Certificates are referred to as currency-protected Certificates or Certificates
with a "quanto feature". Under such feature, the investment return of the Certificates depends
only on the performance of the Underlying (in the relevant Reference Currency) and any
change in the exchange rate between the Reference Currency and the Settlement Currency
is disregarded. Accordingly, the application of a "quanto" feature means that purchasers of
such Certificates will not have the benefit of any change in the exchange rate between the
Reference Currency and the Settlement Currency that would otherwise increase the price of
the Certificates or the Cash Amount to be paid at maturity in the absence of such "quanto"
feature. In addition, changes in the relevant exchange rate may indirectly influence the price
of the relevant Underlying which, in turn, could have a negative effect on the return on the
Certificates.

Furthermore, a currency risk exists if the account of the Security Holder to which the Cash
Amount is paid is managed in a currency different from the Settlement Currency of the
Certificates and the relevant amount is being converted into the respective currency of the
account. In the case of an unfavourable movement of the applicable exchange rate, the
amount paid is reduced accordingly.

Investors should note that the fixing of exchange rates was manipulated by agreements
between market participants in the past. The Issuer cannot exclude the possibility that
manipulations of the fixing of exchange rates will arise in the future, which may have an
adverse effect on the relevant exchange rate and accordingly on the Certificates (see also the
risk factor "Risks associated with the regulation and reform of "benchmarks", including
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LIBOR, EURIBOR and other interest rate, equity, commodity, foreign exchange rate and other
types of benchmarks.").

Security Holders should be aware that they may not be able to hedge their exposure
from the Certificates.

Security Holders cannot rely on being able to enter into transactions during the term of the
Certificates through which they can exclude or limit their initial risk. This depends on the
market situation and the respective underlying conditions. It may be possible that such
transaction can be concluded only at a market price that is disadvantageous for the Security
Holder so that he suffers a corresponding loss.

A credit financing of the acquisition of Certificates significantly increases the
maximum possible loss.

If Security Holders finance the purchase of Certificates by drawing a credit, they will not only
have to accept the loss incurred if their expectations are not fulfilled, but will also pay interest
on and repay the credit. This causes the risk of loss of Security Holders to increase
significantly. Security Holders should therefore not rely on being able to pay interest on or
repay the credit using income from a Certificate. Rather, they have to consider their economic
situation in advance as to whether they are able to pay interest on and, if applicable, repay
the credit at short notice, even if losses occur instead of the expected income.

Hedging transactions concluded by the Issuer may influence the market price of the
Certificates in a detrimental manner for the investor.

The Issuer may at any point in time during the term of the Certificates buy or sell such
Certificates on a market or through any other public or not-public transaction. The Issuer
trades the Certificates and Underlyings in the course of its normal business activities and
partially or fully hedges itself against financial risks connected with the Certificates by
concluding hedge contracts on such Underlyings.

Hedging activities of the Issuer may influence the price of the Underlyings on the market as
well as the market price of the Certificates and/or the cash amount to be received by the
Security Holders. Such a transaction may trigger certain relevant price thresholds (e.g. the
Barrier) which may influence the price of the Certificates in a detrimental manner for the
Security Holder.

The Issuer has no obligation to notify the Security Holders about such sales or purchases or
other events (for example the conclusion of hedging contracts) which may have an influence
on the performance of the market price of the Certificates and/or of the price of the
Underlyings, except where demanded by law. The Security Holders are therefore required to
keep themselves informed of the development of the market price of the Certificates or of the
price of the Underlyings.

Incidental costs on any income reduce any Security Holders' profits.

Fees and other transactions costs that arise when purchasing or selling Certificates reduce
the chances of the Security Holder generating a profit on the acquisition of the Certificate.
Fixed costs have a greater effect in the case of a small invested amount. Security Holders
should therefore obtain information about all costs arising during the purchase or sale of the
Certificates before acquiring a Certificate.

Security Holders are exposed to the risk of wrong assessment of the Certificates’
liquidity due to the issue size of the Certificates.

The issue size set in the applicable Final Terms corresponds to the maximum amount of the
offered Certificates, but does not give any indication as to the volume of the respective
effectively issued Certificates deposited with a central depositary. This volume is determined
by the market situation and may change during the term of the Certificates. Security Holders
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should therefore note that no conclusions regarding the liquidity of the Certificates on the
secondary market are possible based on the issue size set in the applicable Final Terms.

Market disruptions, adjustment measures and termination rights may negatively affect
the rights of the Security Holders.

The occurrence or existence of market disruptions is determined in accordance with the
Terms and Conditions. Market disruptions may affect the market price of the Certificates and
delay the repayment of Certificates.

Adjustment measures are carried out in accordance with the Terms and Conditions. In the
case of adjustment measures in respect to the Underlying, it cannot be ruled out that the
assessment, on which an adjustment measure is based subsequently turns out to be incorrect
and the adjustment measure subsequently turns out to be disadvantageous for the Security
Holder and the Security Holder may be placed in a worse economic situation through the
adjustment measure than he was in prior to an adjustment measure or would be in through a
different adjustment measure.

Furthermore, the Issuer may have an extraordinary termination right under certain
circumstances. If the termination right is exercised, the Issuer will repay the Certificates at an
adequate market price determined in its reasonable discretion. In the case of an extraordinary
termination, there is no claim to payment of an amount to be calculated based on a
repayment formula determined in the Terms and Conditions for the ordinary end of the term
nor is there a fixed unconditional minimum amount. The Termination Amount can be zero. A
reinvestment risk exists in this case, i.e. a risk that the Security Holder may only be able to
reinvest the prematurely returned funds on more unfavourable conditions. If provided for in
the Terms and Conditions, the Issuer has an ordinary termination right. In this case, a
reinvestment risk of the Security Holder also exists.

When determining the adequate market price in the case of an extraordinary termination, the
Calculation Agent may take various market factors into account. These generally also include
the probability of default by the Issuer, calculated by using the credit spreads or the yields of
sufficiently liquid traded bonds quoted on the market at the time of determination of the
Termination Amount. In the case of Certificates with a fixed term linked to shares or a basket
of shares as Underlying, it should be noted that in the case of a termination as a
consequence of a takeover bid, the price of the Underlying after announcement of the
takeover bid may be used as a basis for purposes of determining the Termination Amount in
accordance with the procedure customary at futures exchanges for determining the
theoretical fair value, if the consideration is paid exclusively or mainly in cash, while
particularly the expected dividends and the average implied volatility in the previous ten
trading days prior to the announcement of the takeover bid are also taken into account (so-
called "Fair Value Method"). The Fair Value Method serves to take the remaining time value
of the underlying option into account.

Additional information about risks in connection with an extraordinary and ordinary termination
right of the Issuer can also be found in section "2.2.2 Risk factors relating to certain types of
Certificates".

Corrections, changes, or amendments to the Terms and Conditions may be detrimental
to the Security Holders.

Investors should note that the Issuer has the right in certain cases to correct, change, or
amend provisions in the Terms and Conditions, and the correction, change, or amendment of
a provision in the Terms and Conditions may, if applicable, be detrimental for the investor
compared to the originally certified provision, i.e. that information or provisions may be
affected by the correction, change, or amendment, which are part of the factors determining
the market price of the Certificates.

If due to the correction, change, or amendment of the provision the content or scope of the
Issuer's performance obligations is changed in an unforeseeable and detrimental manner for
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the investor, the investor has the right to terminate the Certificates within a certain period. The
investor does not have a termination right, if the correction, change, or amendment was
foreseeable or is not disadvantageous for it.

If a correction, change, or amendment is out of the question, the Issuer has the right to
terminate the Certificates without undue delay, if the preconditions for a contestation in the
sense of § 871 of the Austrian General Civil Code (ABGB) are fulfilled vis-a-vis the Security
Holders. Individual Security Holders are also entitled to a termination right under these
conditions. The Termination Amount to be paid in the case of a termination generally
corresponds to the market price of a Certificate but is also dependent on certain other rules
for its determination. In order to reduce the effects of any price fluctuations immediately prior
to the Termination Date on the determination of the Termination Amount, the market price
generally corresponds to the arithmetic mean of the spot prices, which were published at the
relevant securities exchange where the Certificates are listed on a certain number of
Business Days immediately preceding the Termination Date. Calculating the average is
disadvantageous for the Security Holder, if the spot price on the Business Day prior to the
Termination Date is higher than the arithmetic mean. The investor may furthermore demand
from the Issuer, subject to certain conditions , the difference between the purchase price paid
by the investor when acquiring the Certificates and a lower market price in addition, to the
extent that this is documented by the Security Holder. Investors should furthermore note that
they bear the reinvestment risk in the case of a termination.

Changes in tax law may negatively affect the Security Holders.

Tax law and practice is subject to change, possibly with retrospective effect and this could
adversely affect the market price of the Certificates to the purchaser and/or the market price
of the Certificates. Any such change may (i) cause the tax treatment of the relevant
Certificates to change from what the purchaser understood the position to be at the time of
purchase; or (ii) render the statements in this Prospectus concerning relevant tax law and
practice in relation to Certificates under the Prospectus inaccurate or inapplicable in some or
all respects to certain Certificates or have the effect that the Prospectus does not include
material tax considerations in relation to certain Certificates. Prospective purchasers of
Certificates should consult their own tax advisers in relevant jurisdictions about the tax
implications of holding any Certificate and of any transaction involving any Certificate.

Certificates may not be appropriate to hedge exposures.

Investors in Certificates should not rely on the possibility that they may exclude or restrict
risks derived from other securities positions by acquiring the Certificates; risks relating to such
other securities may depend on the market conditions and the conditions which apply thereto.
Under certain circumstances, such transactions may only be effected at an unfavourable
market price, so that the investor in the Certificates may experience a financial loss.

There is a risk that trading in the Certificates or in the Underlying and/or components
will be suspended, interrupted or terminated.

If the Certificates are listed on one (or more) markets (which may be regulated or
unregulated), the listing of such Certificates may — depending on the rules applicable to such
stock exchange - be suspended or interrupted by the respective stock exchange or a
competent regulatory authority upon the occurrence of a number of reasons, including
violation of price limits, breach of statutory provisions, occurrence of operational problems of
the stock exchange or generally if deemed required in order to secure a functioning market or
to safeguard the interests of investors. Furthermore, trading in the Certificates may be
terminated, either upon decision of the stock exchange, a regulatory authority or upon
application by the Issuer. Where trading in an Underlying of the Certificates is suspended,
interrupted or terminated, trading in the respective Certificates will usually also be suspended,
interrupted or terminated and existing orders for the sale or purchase of such Certificates will
usually be cancelled. Investors should note that the Issuer has no influence on trading
suspension or interruptions (other than where trading in the Certificates is terminated upon
the Issuer's decision) and that investors in any event must bear the risks connected therewith.
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In particular, investors may not be able to sell their Certificates where trading is suspended,
interrupted or terminated, and the stock exchange quotations of such Certificates may not
adequately reflect the market price of such Certificates. Furthermore, a trading suspension,
interruption or termination of Underlyings of the Certificates may cause a suspension,
interruption or termination of trading in the Certificates and may as well result in an artificial or
wrong valuation of the Certificates. Finally, even if trading in Certificates or Underlyings is
suspended, interrupted or terminated, investors should note that such measures may neither
be sufficient nor adequate nor in time to prevent price disruptions or to safeguard the
investors' interests; for example, where trading in Certificates is suspended after price-
sensitive information relating to such Certificates has been published, the market price of
such Certificates may already have been adversely affected. All these risks would, if they
materialise, have a material adverse effect on the investors.

Due to future money depreciation (inflation), the real yield of an investment may be
reduced.

Inflation risk describes the possibility that the value of assets such as the Certificates or
income there from will decrease as inflation shrinks the purchasing power of a currency.
Inflation causes the rate of return to decrease in value.

Investors have to rely on the functionality of the relevant clearing system.

The Certificates are purchased and sold through different clearing systems, such as OeKB
CSD. The Issuer does not assume any responsibility for to whether the Certificates are
actually transferred to the securities portfolio of the relevant investor. Investors have to rely on
the functionality of the relevant clearing system. There is the risk that due to the use of the
clearing system any credits on the investors' account will not be processed, will not be
processed within the time expected by the investor or will be delayed. Thus, the investor may
suffer economic disadvantages.

Credit ratings may not reflect all risks.

One or more independent credit rating agencies may assign credit ratings to an issue of
Certificates. The credit ratings may not reflect the potential impact of all risks related to
structure, market, additional factors discussed above, and other factors that may affect the
value of the Certificates. A credit rating is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold securities
and may be revised or withdrawn by the credit rating agency at any time.

Legal investment considerations may restrict certain investments.

The investment activities of certain investors are subject to investment laws and regulations,
or review or regulation by certain authorities. Each potential investor should consult its legal
advisers to determine whether and to what extent: (i) the Certificates are legal investments for
it; (i) the Certificates can be used as collateral for various types of borrowing; and (iii) other
restrictions apply to its purchase or pledge of any Certificates. Financial institutions should
consult their legal advisers or the appropriate regulators to determine the appropriate
treatment of Certificates under any applicable risk-based capital requirements or similar rules.

Furthermore, investors might not being able to claim (or only to claim partial) indemnification
for damage that has been caused to them due to certain exclusions or restrictions of the
Issuer's or other parties' (e.g. the Calculation Agent, the Paying Agent, etc) liability for
negligent acts or omissions in connection with the Certificates (or calculations thereof), which
could result in the investors not being able to claim (or only to claim partial) indemnification for
damage that has been caused to them. Investors should therefore inform themselves about
such exclusions or restrictions of liability and consider whether these are acceptable for them.

Page 69



An Austrian court could appoint a trustee for the Certificates to exercise the rights and
represent the interests of Security Holders on their behalf in which case the ability of
Security Holders to pursue their rights under the Certificates individually may be
limited.

Pursuant to the Austrian Notes Trustee Act (Kuratorengesetz) and the Austrian Notes Trustee
Supplementation Act (Kuratorenerganzungsgesetz), a trustee (Kurator) could be appointed by
an Austrian court upon the request of any interested party (e.g. a Security Holder) or upon the
initiative of a competent court, for the purposes of representing the common interests of the
Security Holders in matters concerning their collective rights to the extent the rights are
endangered due to a lack of joint representation. In particular, this may occur if insolvency
proceedings are initiated against the Issuer, in connection with any amendments to the Terms
and Conditions of the Certificates or changes relating to the Issuer, or under other similar
circumstances. If a trustee is appointed, it will exercise the collective rights and represent the
interests of the Security Holders and will be entitled to make statements on their behalf which
shall be binding on all Security Holders. Where a trustee represents the interests of and
exercises the rights of Security Holders, this may conflict with or otherwise adversely affect
the interests of individual or all Security Holders.

Risks related to Dividend Equivalent Payments

Certificates that directly or indirectly reference the performance of United States equities
(including an index or basket that includes United States equities) may be subject to
withholding tax under Section 871(m) of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as
amended (the "Code"). Prospective investors should consult their tax advisers regarding the
potential application of the Code to the Certificates.

The Certificates may be subject to write-down or conversion to equity upon the
occurrence of a certain trigger event, which may result in Security Holders losing some
or all of their investment in the Certificates (statutory loss absorption).

The stated aim of the SRM is to provide relevant resolution authorities with common tools
and powers to address banking crises pre-emptively in order to safeguard financial
stability and minimise taxpayers' exposure to losses.

The powers provided to such resolution authorities include write-down and conversion
powers which may be used prior to or on entry into resolution to ensure that, inter alia,
relevant capital instruments fully absorb losses at the point of non-viability (defined
below) of the issuing institution and/or the group. The relevant resolution authority may
also apply the bail-in tool in resolution with the objective of restoring the capital of the
failing institution to enable it to continue to operate as a going concern. Accordingly,
resolution authorities will be required to order the write-down of such capital instruments
on a permanent basis, or convert them into instruments of ownership (such as ordinary
shares or other instruments of ownership), at the point of non-viability and before any
resolution tool other than the bail-in tool is made use of (statutory loss absorption).

In case of the application of the bail-in tool and the participation of holders of relevant capital
instruments the resolution authority has to comply with the following order for write-down and
conversion (loss absorption cascade):

(i) CET 1 is reduced first in proportion to the relevant losses; (ii) the principal amount of
Additional Tier 1 instruments ("AT 1") is written down or converted or both; (iii) the principal
amount of Tier 2 instruments ("Tier 2") is written down or converted or both.

The relevant resolution authorities may also apply, if the conditions for resolution are met, the
bail-in tool in order to meet the resolution objectives. In such case, the resolution authority is
not only entitled to reduce shares or other instruments of ownership, CET 1, AT 1 and Tier 2
in the manner and order set out above, but if such reduction is not sufficient to cover the
losses, also: (iv) reduce other subordinated debt that is not AT 1 or Tier 2 in accordance with
the hierarchy of claims in the normal insolvency proceedings; and (v) reduce the rest of
eligible liabilities (including certain senior debt) in accordance with the hierarchy of claims in
the normal insolvency proceedings including the ranking pursuant to § 131 BaSAG.
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For the purposes of statutory loss absorption, the point of non-viability is the point at
which the resolution authority considers that all of the following conditions are met:

1. the competent authority or the resolution authority determines that the institution is
failing or likely to fail; for these purposes, an institution shall be deemed to be failing or
likely to fail in any one or more of the following circumstances:

(a) the conditions for the withdrawal of the authorisation by the competent
authority are met or there are objective elements to support a determination
that this will be the case in the near future, including but not limited to
because the institution has incurred or is likely to incur losses that will
deplete all or a significant amount of its own funds;

(b) the assets of the institution are or there are objective elements to support a
determination that the assets of the institution will, in the near future, be less
than its liabilities;

(c) the institution is or there are objective elements to support a determination
that the institution will, in the near future, be unable to pay its debts or other
liabilities as they fall due;

(d) extraordinary public financial support is required except when the
extraordinary public financial support takes certain forms in order to remedy a
serious disturbance in the economy of a Member State and preserve financial
stability;

2. having regard to timing and other relevant circumstances, there is no reasonable
prospect that any alternative private sector measures, including measures by an
institutional protection scheme, or supervisory action, including early intervention
measures or the write-down or conversion of relevant capital instruments taken in
respect of the institution, would prevent the failure of the institution within a
reasonable timeframe;

3. in case of the application of the bail-in tool, a resolution action is necessary in the
public interest;

4. in case of exercising the power to write down or conversion of capital instruments, a
group shall be deemed to be failing or likely to fail where the group infringes, or there
are objective elements to support a determination that the group, in the near future, will
infringe, its consolidated prudential requirements in a way that would justify action by
the competent authority including but not limited to because the group has incurred or
is likely to incur losses that will deplete all or a significant amount of its own funds.

Any write-down or conversion of all or part of the principal amount of any instrument,
including accrued but unpaid interest in respect thereof, in accordance with the bail-in tool
or the write-down and conversion powers would not constitute an event of default under
the terms of the relevant instruments. Consequently, any amounts so written down or
converted would be irrevocably lost and the holders of such instruments would cease to
have any claims thereunder, regardless whether or not the institution's financial position
is restored.

Hence, the Certificates may be subject to write-down or conversion into instruments of
ownership upon the occurrence of the relevant trigger event, which may result in Security
Holders losing some or all of their investment in the Certificates. The exercise of any such
power is highly unpredictable and any suggestion or anticipation of such exercise could
materially adversely affect the market price of the Certificates.

Apart from potentially being subject to resolution tools and powers as set out above, the
Issuer may also be subject to national insolvency proceedings.

The Issuer may be subject to resolution powers which may also have a negative impact
on the Certificates.

Provided that the Issuer meets the applicable conditions for resolution, the resolution authority
has certain resolution powers which it may exercise either individually or in any combination
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together with or in preparation of applying a resolution instrument. Such resolution powers in
particular include:

. the power to transfer to another entity rights, assets or liabilities of the Issuer (possibly
such as the Certificates);

. the power to reduce, including to reduce to zero, the nominal value of or outstanding
amount due in respect of eligible liabilities of the Issuer;

. the power to convert eligible liabilities of the Issuer into ordinary shares or other
instruments of ownership of the Issuer, a relevant parent institution or a bridge
institution to which assets, rights or liabilities of the Issuer are transferred;

. the power to cancel debt instruments issued by the Issuer (possibly such as the
Certificates);

. the power to require the Issuer or a relevant parent institution to issue new shares or
other instruments of ownership or other capital instruments, including preference
shares and contingent convertible instruments; and/or

. the power to amend or alter the maturity of debt instruments (possibly such as the
Certificates) and other eligible liabilities issued by the Issuer or the amount of interest
payable under such debt instruments and other eligible liabilities, or the date on which
the interest becomes payable, including by suspending payment for a temporary
period.

The exercise of such resolution powers could have a negative impact on the Issuer and/or the
Certificates.

The Issuer is not prohibited from issuing further debt instruments or incurring further
liabilities.

The Terms and Conditions of the Certificates place no restriction on the amount of debt that
the Issuer may issue, incur and/or guarantee. Furthermore, the Issuer is not obliged to inform
Security Holders about issuing, incurring or guaranteeing further debt. Issuing, incurring or
guaranteeing further debt may have a negative impact on the market price of the Certificates
and the Issuer's ability to meet all obligations under the issued Certificates and may also
reduce the amount recoverable by Security Holders upon the Issuer's insolvency. If the
Issuer's financial situation were to deteriorate, the Security Holders could suffer direct and
materially adverse consequences, including, in case of the Issuer's liquidation, loss of their
entire investment. All these factors may have a negative impact on the Security Holders.

In the case of the Issuer's insolvency, deposits have a higher ranking than the claims
of the Security Holders under the Certificates.

§ 131 BaSAG implements Article 108 BRRD in Austria and stipulates the ranking in the
insolvency hierarchy, whereas in insolvency proceedings opened in relation to the Issuer the
following insolvency hierarchy for deposits applies:

(a) The following claims have the same ranking, which is higher than the ranking of the
claims of ordinary unsecured, non-preferred creditors: (i) that part of eligible
deposits from natural persons and micro, small and medium-sized enterprises
which exceeds the coverage level provided for in Article 6 of DGSD; and
(i) deposits that would be eligible deposits from natural persons, micro, small and
medium-sized enterprises if they are not made through branches (located outside
the EU) of institutions established within the EU.

(b) The following claims have the same priority ranking, which is higher than the
ranking of claims provided for under point (a) above: (i) covered deposits; and
(if) deposit guarantee schemes subrogating to the rights and obligations of covered
depositors in insolvency.

The implementation of the amendments to Article 108 BRRD by Directive (EU) 2017/2399
leads to the introduction of a (new) rank for certain debt instruments within the meaning of
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§ 131 (3) BaSAG. Directive (EU) 2017/2399 has to be transposed into national law by the
Member States by 29 December 2018 at the latest. In Austria, the relevant amendments to
§ 131 BaSAG have already entered into force on 30 June 2018. Therefore, Security Holders
should bear in mind that in case of insolvency proceedings opened in relation to the Issuer
their claims will also be junior to the claims listed above in points (a) and (b), and that
therefore they will only receive payment of their claims if and to the extent that such claims
listed above in points (a) and (b) have been discharged in full.

2.2.2Risk factors relating to certain types of Certificates

Product No. 1: Risk factors applicable to Bonus/Capped Bonus Certificates

Risk factors related to the limited term of the Certificates and/or to the Issuer’s ability to
terminate

The Certificates have a fixed term (Closed End), i.e. they have a specific term. The Issuer has
the right to terminate the Certificates extraordinarily, e.g. if an adjustment is not possible or if
an Additional Disruption Event occurs. The term of the Certificates is then ended early. It
should be noted that the Issuer exercises its extraordinary termination right at its reasonable
discretion and is not subject to any restrictions regarding the exercise of its termination right.
If the Issuer exercises the extraordinary termination right at short notice, the Security Holder
may no longer have the opportunity to sell his Certificate on the secondary market. The higher
the volatility in the Underlying or the more illiquid the market in financial instruments linked to
the Underlying (including the futures and lending market), the more likely it is that the Issuer
will make use of its termination right.

A Security Holder in principle has no right to terminate.
Return and reinvestment risk in the case of extraordinary termination by the Issuer

Security Holders should note that the term of the Certificates can be ended by an
extraordinary termination by the Issuer. In this case, the Security Holder bears the risk that its
expectations with respect to an increase in the price of the Certificates can no longer be
satisfied due to the premature ending of the term. It should also be taken into account in the
case of an extraordinary termination that the Security Holder bears the reinvestment risk. This
means that it may only be able to reinvest the Termination Amount to be paid by the Issuer in
the case of an extraordinary termination on less favourable market terms than those existing
when the Certificate was acquired.

Risk of total loss in the case of a Barrier Event

A so called "Barrier Event" occurs if — as provided for in the applicable Final Terms - the
Observation Price reaches or falls below the Barrier at any time during the Observation
Period and/or the Reference Price reaches or falls below the Barrier on the Final Valuation
Date. Security Holders should note that if a Barrier Event occurs, the entitlement to a
minimum redemption in the amount of the Bonus Amount expires, and that the Bonus/Capped
Bonus Certificate is comparable with a direct investment in the Underlying (irrespective of
dividend payments). Consequently, the Security Holder is exposed to a risk of loss
comparable to the direct investment. Therefore, the Security Holder has a risk of total loss
with regards to the invested capital. A total loss occurs when the Underlying is worthless on
the Final Valuation Date.

An important determinant for the probability of the occurrence of a Barrier Event is the
volatility of the Underlying. The term "Volatility" means the fluctuation margin or price
movements of the Underlying. The higher the volatility of an Underlying, the higher the risk to
the Security Holder that the Barrier will be broken. An increasing probability of a Barrier break
tends to result in a declining price of the Certificate.

In case of Capped Bonus Certificates the Cash Amount is limited to Maximum Amount

Irrespective of whether or not a Barrier Event has occurred, the Cash Amount will not exceed
the Maximum Amount. This means that the Security Holder does not participate in a price
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movement of the Underlying above the Cap, with the result that the possible yield on Capped
Bonus Certificates has an upper limit.

Product No. 2: Risk factors applicable to Discount Certificates

In addition to the risk factors applicable to Product No. 1 described in "Risk factors related to
the limited term of the Certificates and/or to the Issuer’s ability to terminate" and "Return and
reinvestment risk in the case of extraordinary termination by the Issuer”, the following specific
risk factors shall apply to the Certificates:

Cash Amount is limited to Maximum Amount

In the case of Discount Certificates, the Cash Amount will not exceed the Maximum Amount.
This means that the Security Holder does not participate in a price movement of the
Underlying above the Cap, with the result that the possible yield on Discount Certificates has
an upper limit.

Risk of total loss

Below the Cap, Discount Certificates are comparable with a direct investment in the
Underlying (without taking into account dividend payments). In this case there is a risk of a
total loss of the Security Holder's invested capital. A total loss will occur if the Underlying is
worthless on the Final Valuation Date.

Product No. 3: Risk factors applicable to Open End Participation and Open End Index
Certificates

Risk factors related to the unlimited term of the Certificates and/or to the Issuer’s ability to
terminate

The Certificates do not have a specified limited term (Open End). The term of the Certificates
ends either (i) on the exercise of the Certificates by the Security Holders or (ii) on ordinary
termination by the Issuer or (iii) on extraordinary termination by the Issuer.

The Certificates may be exercised by the Security Holder during a certain Exercise Period
during their term by submitting an Exercise Notice. The Cash Amount for exercised
Certificates is calculated based on the Underlying Price of the Underlying on the relevant
Exercise Date.

The Issuer is furthermore entitled to extraordinary termination of the Certificates by notice if
an adjustment is no longer possible or in the case of an Additional Disruption Event. It is to be
noted that the Issuer exercises its termination right at its reasonable discretion and has no
further obligations in relation to its termination right. The exercise of the right to extraordinary
termination may occur at short notice, so that, in certain circumstances, the Security Holder
may no longer be able to sell his or her Certificates on the secondary market.

The exercise of the termination right by the Issuer is generally more likely, the greater the
volatility of the Underlying or the more illiquid the market in financial instruments related to the
Underlying (including the forward and loan markets). Owing to the Issuer's termination right,
Security Holders may not assume that the Certificates will have an unlimited term. Security
Holders should therefore not rely on being able to maintain a position in the Certificates over
a long period. Furthermore, Security Holders may not rely on the timely movement of the
Underlying in a favourable direction before a Termination Date.

Return and reinvestment risk in the case of ordinary or extraordinary termination by the Issuer

Security Holders should note that the fundamentally unlimited term of the Certificates may be
ended by an ordinary or extraordinary termination by the Issuer. In the case of a termination,
the Security Holder bears the risk that his expectations with respect to an increase in the
value of the Certificates may no longer be satisfied due to the ending of the term. In the case
of a termination, it must also be considered that the Security Holder bears the reinvestment
risk. This means that he or she may only be able to reinvest the amount paid by the Issuer in
the event of a termination on more unfavourable market terms compared with those existing
when the Certificate was purchased.
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Risk related to the Open End Participation Certificates related to futures contracts with
Transaction Fee

In the case of Open End Participation Certificates related to futures contracts, it is to be noted
that a "Transaction Fee" may be calculated to cover the transaction costs arising from the
Rollover (see also below in section "Risk factors associated with Futures Contracts as
Underlying — Rollover" under section "2.2.3. Risk factors relating to certain types of
Underlyings"). The amount of such Transaction Fee is based on a number per futures
contract, expressed in the Reference Currency. The application of the Multiplier to these
transaction costs leads to a loss in value of the Certificates if the Transaction Fee is greater
than zero (0). It must further be noted that the Transaction Fee is incurred both in respect of
the purchase and the sale of the futures contracts on a Rollover, so the determination of the
applicable Multiplier has to be considered twice.

Risk of total loss

Open End Participation and Open End Index Certificates are comparable with a direct
investment in the Underlying (irrespective of dividend payments and transaction fees, if
applicable), with the result that the Security Holder is also exposed to a risk of loss
comparable to the direct investment. Therefore, there is a risk of total loss with regard to the
invested capital if the Underlying is worthless on the Final Valuation Date (e.g. in the case of
a termination by the Issuer).

Risk related to Open End Patrticipation and Open End Index Certificates with a Management
Fee

If in the case of Open End Participation and Open End Index Certificates a Management Fee
is foreseen, the Security Holder should note that subject to the holding period of the
Certificates the Management Fee will reduce the Cash Amount which the Security Holder
receives at the end of the term and that the Management Fee also has a negative impact on
the secondary market prices of the Certificates during the term of the Certificates.

Risk related to Open End Participation and Open End Index Certificates linked to
performance indices

In the case of Open End Participation and Open End Index Certificates linked to performance
indices the Terms and Conditions may provide for an adjustment of the Multiplier on each
Dividend Record Date. In the course of the adjustment any dividends or cash amounts
equivalent to dividends will be taken into account (also considering the relevant Dividend
Factor). As a conquence, the Multiplier will decrease which will have a negative impact on the
Cash Amount. The effect will be greater, the higher the dividends and/or the dividend
taxation.

Product No. 4: Risk factors applicable to Reverse Bonus/Capped Reverse Bonus
Certificates

In addition to the risk factors applicable to Product No. 1 described in "Risk factors related to
the limited term of the Certificates and/or to the Issuer’s ability to terminate" and "Return and
reinvestment risk in the case of extraordinary termination by the Issuer"”, the following specific
risk factors shall apply to the Certificates:

Risks related to the performance of Reverse Bonus/Capped Reverse Bonus Certificates
owing to the reverse structure

In the case of Reverse Bonus Certificates and Capped Reverse Bonus, the performance of
the Certificates conversely depends on the performance of the Underlying. In contrast to
typical participation securities, which represent a so-called "long position" (synthetic
"purchase" of the Underlying), Reverse Bonus Certificates represent a so-called "short
position" (synthetic "short sale" of the Underlying). This means that the Certificates enable the
Security Holders to profit from a loss in value of the Underlying. A Reverse Bonus
Certificate typically declines in value (i.e. irrespective of other features and factors that
determine the price of Certificates), if the value of the Underlying increases.
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Risk of a total loss in the case of a Barrier Event

In case of reverse structures a so called Barrier Event occurs if — as provided for in the
applicable Final Terms - the Observation Price reaches or exceeds the Barrier at any time
during the Observation Period and/or the Reference Price reaches or falls below the Barrier
on the Final Valuation Date. Security Holders should consider that if a Barrier Event occurs,
the entitlement to a minimum redemption expires and the Security Holder participates in the
negative performance of the Underlying and/or in the case of Capped Reverse Bonus
Certificates the Security Holder participates in the negative performance of the Underlying up
to the Cap. In this case, the Security Holder has a risk of total loss with regard to the invested
capital. A total loss occurs when the Underlying is equal to or above the Reverse Level on the
Final Valuation Date.

An important determinant of the probability of the occurrence of a Barrier Event is the volatility
of the Underlying. The term "Volatility" means the fluctuation margin or price fluctuations of
the Underlying. The higher the Volatility of an Underlying, the higher the risk to the Security
Holder that the Barrier will be broken. An increasing probability of a Barrier break tends to
result in the price of the Certificate declining.

In case of Capped Reverse Bonus Certificates the Cash Amount is limited to the Maximum
Amount

In the case of Capped Reverse Bonus Certificates, the Cash Amount will not exceed the
Maximum Amount. This means that the Security Holder does not participate in a negative
price movement of the Underlying above the Cap, with the result that the possible yield on
Capped Reverse Bonus Certificates has an upper limit.

Limited yield potential due to reverse structure and irrespective of a Cap

Security Holders should note that the yield potential is limited (regardless of a Cap) due to the
reverse structure, since the participation in the negative performance of the Underlying is
limited to 100%, i.e. in the case of Reverse Bonus Certificates the Cash Amount is limited to
the Reverse Level (taking into account the Multiplier and, as the case may be, conversion into
the Settlement Currency).

Accordingly, in the case of Reverse Bonus Certificates, the following relationship exists in
principle between the economic value of the Certificates and the economic value of the
Underlying: A Reverse Bonus Certificate typically declines in value (i.e. irrespective of
other features and factors that determine the price of Certificate), if the value of the
Underlying increases. Accordingly, a Security Holder may suffer a total loss of the
invested capital if the level of the Underlying increases and reaches or exceeds the
Reverse Level.

Leverage effect in the case of Reverse Bonus and/or Capped Reverse Bonus Certificates due
to the reverse structure

There exists a leverage effect in the case of Reverse Bonus and/or Capped Reverse Bonus
Certificates, the amount of which depends on the Reverse Level. A lower Reverse Level
leads to a higher leverage effect and, therefor, to a higher risk of loss.

Product No. 5. Risk factors applicable to Participation and Index Certificates

In addition to the risk factors applicable to Product No. 1 described in "Risk factors related to
the limited term of the Certificates and/or to the Issuer’s ability to terminate" and "Return and
reinvestment risk in the case of extraordinary termination by the Issuer"”, the following specific
risk factors shall apply to the Certificates:

Risk related to Participation Certificates with a Management Fee

If in the case of Participation Certificates a Management Fee is foreseen, the Security Holder
should note that subject to the holding period of the Certificates the Management Fee will
reduce the Cash Amount which the Security Holder receives at the end of the term and that
the Management Fee also has a negative impact on the secondary market prices of the
Certificates during the term of the Certificates.
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Risk of total loss

Participation and Index Certificates are comparable with a direct investment in the Underlying
(irrespective of dividend payments). Consequently, the Security Holder is exposed to a risk of
loss comparable to the direct investment. Therefore, there is a risk of total loss with regard to
the invested capital if the Underlying is worthless on the Final Valuation Date.

Product No. 6. Risk factors applicable to Twin Win or Capped Twin Win Certificates

In addition to the risk factors applicable to Product No. 1 described in "Risk factors related to
the limited term of the Certificates and/or to the Issuer’s ability to terminate" and "Return and
reinvestment risk in the case of extraordinary termination by the Issuer”, the following specific
risk factors shall apply to the Certificates:

Risk of total loss in the case of a Barrier Event

Security Holders should note that if a Barrier Event has occurred, the Certificate is
comparable to a direct investment in the Underlying (without taking into account dividend
payments). As a result, the Security Holder is also exposed to a risk of loss comparable to the
direct investment. Therefore, the Security Holder bears a risk of total loss with regard to the
invested capital. A total loss occurs if the Underlying is worthless at the end of the term.

An important determinant of the probability of a Barrier Event is the volatility of the Underlying.
The term "Volatility” means the fluctuation margin or price fluctuations of the Underlying. The
higher the Volatility of an Underlying, the higher the risk to the Security Holder that the Barrier
will be broken. An increasing probability of a Barrier break tends to result in the price of the
Certificate declining.

In case of Capped Twin Win Certificates the Cash Amount is limited to a Maximum Amount

Irrespective of whether or not a Barrier Event has occurred, the Cash Amount will not exceed
the Maximum Amount. This means that the Security Holder does not participate in a price
movement of the Underlying above the Cap, with the result that the possible yield on Capped
Twin Win Certificates has an upper limit.

Product No. 7. Risk factors applicable to Factor Certificates
Risk of investment in leveraged Underlyings
Different from other Open End Participation-Certificates Factor Certificates are leveraged.

Investors should in particular note, that in the case of Factor Certificates the daily
performance of the Underlying will be leveraged with the applicable Leverage Factor, i.e.
positive and negative movements of the Underlying have a disproportionate effect on the
value of the Certificate. This means that the determination of the Leverage Factor determines
the degree of risk. The higher the leverage the higher the risk. It should be noted that the
price development of the Factor Certificates can be completely independent from the
price development of the Underlying.

In the case that the price of the Underlying falls significantly the value of the Certificate due to
the leverage factor may decrease to a very low level. Subsequent price gains of the
Underlying will lead to price increases of the Certificate. However, as the base level for the
recovery of the Certificate will be very low significant price gains of the Underlying will only
have relatively small effects on the price recovery of the Certificate.

The Factor Certificates provide for a kind of adjustment level (Stop-Loss Barrier) that should
protect the investors against a total loss of their investment. However, such adjustment level
might — under unfavourable circumstances — not prevent investors from intraday losses which
might come close to a total loss of the capital invested.
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Capital markets are generally subject to fluctuations over a longer period of time. Due
to the construction of Factor Certificates these fluctuations might have a material
adverse effect on the price performance of the Certificates. Factor Certificates are not
suited for long-term investments and are not a suitable alternative for direct
investments into the Underlying, because the development of the Daily Leveraged
Performance of the Underlying and, thus, of the value of the Factor Certificates might
significantly deviate from the development of the value of the Underlying itself over a
period of time.

Risk factors related to the unlimited term of the Certificates and to the Issuer’s ability to
terminate

The Certificates do not have a specified limited term (Open End). The term of the Certificates
ends either (i) on the exercise of the Certificates by the Security Holders or (ii) on ordinary
termination by the Issuer or (iii) on an extraordinary termination by the Issuer.

The Certificates may be exercised by the Security Holder during a certain Exercise Period
during their term by submitting an Exercise Notice. The Cash Amount of exercised
Certificates is calculated based on the daily price development of the Underlying on the
relevant Exercise Date.

The Issuer is furthermore entitled to extraordinary terminate the Certificates by notice if an
adjustment is no longer possible or in the case of an Additional Disruption Event. It is to be
noted that the Issuer may exercise its termination right at its reasonable discretion and has no
further obligations in relation to its termination right. The exercise of the extraordinary
termination right may occur at short notice, so that, in certain circumstances, the Security
Holder may no longer be able to sell his Certificate on the secondary market.

The exercise of the termination right by the Issuer is generally more likely, the greater the
volatility of the Underlying or the more illiquid the market in financial instruments related to the
Underlying (including the forward and loan markets). Due to the Issuer's termination right,
Security Holders may not assume that the Certificates will have an unlimited term. Security
Holders should therefore not rely on being able to maintain a position in the Certificates over
a longer period of time.

Return and reinvestment risk in the case of ordinary or extraordinary termination by the Issuer

Security Holders should note that the fundamentally unlimited term of the Certificates may be
ended by an ordinary or extraordinary termination by the Issuer. In the case of a termination,
the Security Holder bears the risk that his expectations with respect to an increase in the
value of the Certificates may no longer be satisfied due to the ending of the term. In the case
of a termination, it must also be considered that the Security Holder bears the reinvestment
risk. This means that he may only be able to reinvest the amount paid by the Issuer in the
event of a termination on more unfavourable market terms compared with those existing
when the Certificate was purchased.

Risk of Factor Certificates with Transaction Fee

In the case of Factor Certificates related to futures contracts a "Transaction Fee" may be
calculated to cover the transaction costs in addition to the costs arising from the Rollover (see
therefore under "Risk factors associated with Futures Contracts as Underlying — Rollover" in
section "2.2.3. Risk factors relating to certain types of Underlyings"), whose amount is based
on a number per futures contract, expressed in the Reference Currency. The application of
those transaction costs to the Multiplier leads to a loss in value of the Certificates if the
Transaction Fee is greater than zero. It must further be noted that the Transaction Fee is
incurred both in respect of the purchase and the sale of the futures contracts on a Rollover.
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Risk of total loss

In the worst case an investment in Factor Certificates may involve the total loss of the capital
invested. This will in any event be the case if the Reference Price of the Underlying on the
Final Valuation Date amounts to zero.

2.2.3Risk factors relating to certain types of Underlyings

Depending on the Underlying(s) to which the Certificates give exposure, Investors are
exposed to further risks stemming from the type of Underlying and the behavior of its
market prices as the Cash Amount an Investor may receive depends on the
development of the price of the Underlying. The types of Underlyings foreseen in this
Programme differ significantly as per their typical price volatility. Investors should only
invest in Certificates if they are familiar with the relevant Underlying and have a
comprehensive understanding of the type of Underlying itself, the market and other
rules of the relevant Underlying as this is prerequisite to understand the risks
associated with the Certificates; a lack of such understanding may have material
adverse effects for the respective investor and result in loosing such investors
investment entirely or partly.

Risk factors associated with Baskets as Underlying

Factors that have an adverse impact on the performance of the basket, impair also the price
and the Cash Amount of the Certificates.

A basket as the underlying is composed of different basket constituents (shares) as specified
in the Terms and Conditions of the securities. The individual basket constituents may be
equally weighted or may have different weighting factors depending on the structure of the
basket. As a general rule, the lower the weighting of an individual basket constituent is, the
lower is the effect of its price performance on the price performance of the basket as a whole.
The respective value of the basket is calculated on the basis of the prices of the individual
basket constituents and of the weighting factor allocated to the particular basket constituent.

In case of a high correlation of the price development of the individual basket constituents it
can be assumed that a negative price development of one basket constituent adversely
affects the value of the basket as a whole. Investors should not rely on the assumption that
the diversification in several basket constituents might have a balancing effect in case of a
high correlation.

The term "correlation of the basket constituents” refers — expressed simply — to the extent to
which the performance of the basket constituents depends on each other. Correlation is
expressed as a value between '-1' to '+1', where '+1', i.e. a high positive correlation, means
that the prices of the basket constituents always move in the same direction. If the correlation
is '-1', i.e. a high negative correlation, the prices of the basket constituents always move in
exactly opposite directions. A correlation of '0" signifies that it is not possible to make a
statement on the connection between the performances of the individual basket constituents.
If, for example, the basket constituents are shares and all of the shares relate to the same
sector and the same country, it can generally be assumed that they will have a high positive
correlation. But the correlation may fall if, for example, the corporations whose shares
comprise the basket constituents are competing fiercely for market shares and the same
sales markets.

The Issuer is entitled to adjust the composition of the basket specified at the time of issue of
the Securities in certain circumstances. Therefore, the investors cannot assume that the
composition of the basket and the weighting of the individual basket constituents will remain
the same throughout the term of the Securities.
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Risk factors associated with Indices as Underlying

Factors having a negative effect on the Performance of an Index may also negatively affect
the value and Cash Amount of the Certificates

In the case of Certificates linked to indices, the Cash Amount depends on the development of
the price of the Index. Risks of the Index are thus also risks of the Certificates. The
development of the price of the Index in turn depends on the individual index components of
which the relevant Index is comprised. Equity indices are comprised of a synthetic portfolio of
shares, and as such, the performance of an Index is dependent upon the macroeconomic
factors relating to the shares that underlie such Index, such as interest and price levels on the
capital markets, currency developments, political factors as well as company-specific factors
such as earnings position, market position, risk situation, shareholder structure and
distribution policy. ETF indices are comprised of a synthetic portfolio of exchange traded
funds, and as such, the performance of an Index linked to ETFs is dependent upon the
development of the relevant exchange traded funds and the index underlying the respective
ETF (and the components of the relevant index underlying the respective ETF). During the
term of the Certificates, the market price of the Certificates may deviate from the development
of the price of the Index or of the index components, since other factors, for example the
correlations, volatilities and interest rate levels may influence the development of the price of
the Certificates. In the case of performance indices, the reinvestment of dividend payments
relating to the index components may also influence the development of the price of the
Certificates.

The Issuer has no influence on the existence, composition and calculation of the Index

It should be noted that the Index Sponsor of any Index can add, delete or substitute the
components of such Index or make other methodological changes that could change the level
of one or more components. The changing of components of any Index may affect the level of
such Index as a newly added company may perform significantly worse or better than the
company it replaces, which in turn may affect the payments made by the Issuer to the
purchasers of the Certificates. The Index Sponsor of any such Index may also alter,
discontinue or suspend calculation or dissemination of such Index. The Index Sponsor of an
Index will have no involvement in the offer and sale of the Certificates and will have no
obligation to any purchaser of such Certificates. The Index Sponsor of an Index may take any
actions in respect of such Index without regard to the interests of the purchasers of the
Certificates, and any of these actions could adversely affect the market value of the
Certificates.

Certificates relating to a price index do not take into account dividends and other distributions
paid in relation to the index components, since they are not reflected in the price of such an
index

The rules governing the composition and calculation of the relevant underlying Index might
stipulate that dividends distributed on its components do not lead to a rise in the index level,
for example, if it is a "price" index, which may lead to a decrease in the index level if all other
circumstances remain the same. As a result, in such cases the purchasers of Certificates in
respect of which an Underlying is such type of Index will not participate in dividends or other
distributions paid on the components comprising the Index. Even if the rules of the relevant
underlying Index provide that distributed dividends or other distributions of the components
are reinvested in the Index and therefore result in raising its level, in some circumstances the
dividends or other distributions may not be fully reinvested in such Index.

The Index Sponsor does not carry out any activity which affects the value of the Index and
does not issue investment recommendations regarding the Index

The Index Sponsor or licensor does not carry out sales or promotional or marketing activities
for the Certificates. It does not give investment advice for the Certificates. In particular, the
Index is determined, comprised and calculated by the Index Sponsor or licensor without
consideration of the Issuer and the Certificates.

The Index Sponsor of an Index will have no involvement in the offer and sale of the
Certificates and will have no obligation to any purchaser of such Certificates. The Index
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Sponsor of an Index may take any actions in respect of such an Index without regard to the
interests of the purchasers of the Certificates, and any of these actions could adversely affect
the market value of the Certificates.

Neither the Index Sponsor nor the licensor assume any responsibility or liability for the
marketing or trading of the Certificates.

Security Holders do not have any rights in relation to the index components underlying the
Index

Even if the amount of the payment to be made on the Certificates is entirely dependent on the
performance of the underlying Index, the Certificates do not give a right to assert claims
against the issuer of the shares underlying the Index.

Risks associated with Exchange Traded Funds (ETF) as Underlying

Various unpredictable factors may affect the performance of Exchange Traded Funds

An Exchange Traded Fund ("ETF") may seek to track the performance of an index (in relation
to such ETF, an "Underlying Index"), or the performance of certain assets, contracts and/or
instruments which may be invested in or held by the ETF. The performance of an ETF may be
dependent upon company-specific factors such as earnings position, market position, risk
situation, shareholder structure and distribution policy of the underlying companies that
comprise the Underlying Index of such ETF, or upon the value of such assets, contracts
and/or instruments invested in, held by or tracked by the ETF as well as macroeconomic
factors, such as interest and price levels on the capital markets, currency developments and
political factors.

The net asset value of the shares in an ETF may be calculated by reference to the levels of
the shares of the underlying companies comprising the Underlying Index, without taking into
account the value of dividends paid on those underlying shares (where the ETF seeks to track
the performance of the Underlying Index), or by reference to the value of such assets,
contracts and/or instruments invested in or held by the ETF as specified in its prospectus or
constitutive documents.

Therefore, an investment in the Certificates which are linked to an ETF is not the same as a
direct investment in any Underlying Index, or the shares of the underlying companies
comprising the Underlying Index, or any assets, contracts and/or instruments which may be
invested in or held by the ETF and may therefore result in a lower yield than a direct
investment in such index or shares.

Exposure to the risk that the return on the Certificate does not reflect the return on a direct
investment in the fund units or the assets included in the portfolio of the ETF linked thereto

An investor's return on Certificates linked to ETFs may not reflect the return such investor
would realise if he or she actually owned the relevant fund units or assets included in the
portfolio(s) of the ETF. For example, if the portfolio of the fund includes shares or a share
index, investors in the Certificate linked to such ETF will not receive any dividends paid on
such shares or the shares included in such share index and will not benefit from those
dividends unless such ETF takes such dividends into account for purposes of calculating the
value of such ETF. Similarly, investors in Certificates linked to ETFs will not have any voting
rights in the shares or other assets that are included in the portfolio of the fund. Accordingly,
an investor in Certificates linked to ETF may receive a lower payment (if any) upon
redemption of such Certificates than such investor would have received, if he or she had
directly invested in the fund units or assets included in the portfolio of such ETF.

A change in the composition or discontinuance of the ETF could adversely affect the market
value of, and return (if any) on, Certificates linked thereto

The Issuer has no influence on the composition or performance of any ETF or any index that
such ETF is intended to replicate. The management company or the licensor/index sponsor,
as applicable, of an Underlying Index can add, delete or substitute the assets included in such
index, respectively, or make methodological changes that could affect the value of such ETF
or of such Underlying Index, respectively. The substitution of assets included in the portfolio
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of an ETF or in an Underlying Index, respectively, may affect the value of such ETF, as a
newly added asset may perform significantly worse or better than the asset it replaces, which
in turn may affect the market value of, or payments (or other benefits to be received) under,
the Certificates. The management company or licensor/index sponsor of any Underlying
Index may also alter, discontinue or suspend calculation or dissemination of information on
such ETF or such Underlying Index, respectively. The management company and
licensor/index sponsor of such ETF underlying index are not involved in the offer and sale of
the Certificates and have no obligation to invest therein. The management company and
licensor/index sponsor of such Underlying Index may take any actions in respect of such ETF
or such Underlying Index, respectively, without regard to the interests of the investors in
Certificates, and any of these actions could adversely affect the market value of (or amount
payable under) such Certificates. In particular, no assurance can be given that the
performance of an ETF will be identical to the performance of the assets included in the
portfolio of the ETF or which the ETF intends to replicate, respectively, due to many factors.

The Issuer gives no assurance that all events occurring prior to the First Settlement Date of
the Certificates that would affect the trading price of the relevant ETF will have been publicly
disclosed. Subsequent disclosure of any such events or the disclosure of or failure to disclose
material future events concerning the share issuer could affect the trading price of the shares
in an ETF and therefore the trading price of and return on the Certificates.

If the ETF underlying index or the ETF is materially changed, the Terms and Conditions of the
Certificates may be adjusted or the Certificates may be redeemed early

If at any time the Underlying Index is changed in a material respect, or if the ETF in any other
way is modified so that it does not, in the opinion of the Issuer, fairly represent the net asset
value of the ETF had those changes or modifications not been made, then, from and after that
time, the Issuer will make those calculations and adjustments as may be necessary in order
to arrive at a price of an exchange traded fund comparable to the ETF, as if those changes or
modifications had not been made, and calculate the closing prices with reference to the ETF,
as adjusted. Accordingly, if the ETF is modified in a way that the price of its shares is a
fraction of what it would have been if it had not been modified (for example, due to a split or a
reverse split), then the Issuer will adjust the price in order to arrive at a price of the ETF as if it
had not been modified (for example, as if the split or the reverse split had not occurred). The
Issuer may determine that no adjustment is required by the modification of the method of
calculation. Any of these determinations could negatively affect the value of and return on the
Certificates.

Risks in relation to market price

The market price of interests in the ETF may, due to the forces of supply and demand, as well
as liquidity and scale of trading spread in the secondary market, diverge from their net asset
value, i.e., the market price per interest in the ETF could be higher or lower than its net asset
value, and will fluctuate during the trading day.

The performance of an ETF with a portfolio of assets that are concentrated in the assets of a
particular industry or group of industries could be more volatile than the performance of ETFs
with portfolios of more diverse assets

Investors in Certificates linked to an ETF with a portfolio of assets that are concentrated in the
assets of a particular industry or group of industries should be aware that the performance of
such ETF could be more volatile than the performance of ETFs with portfolios of more diverse
assets.

Risk factors associated with Shares as Underlying

Factors having a negative effect on the performance of the Shares may also negatively affect
the value and Cash Amount of the Certificates

Relevant for the development of the price of the Certificates is the development of the share
price. The development of the share price cannot be predicted and is determined by
macroeconomic factors, e.g. the interest rate and price level on capital markets, currency
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developments, political circumstances, as well as company-specific factors such as e.g. the
earnings situation, market position, risk situation, shareholder structure, and distribution

policy.

Certificates relating to Shares do not take into account any dividends and other distributions
paid in relation to the Shares

Purchasers of the Certificates will not participate in dividends or other distributions paid on
Shares as Underlying. Therefore, the return on the Certificates will not reflect the return a
purchaser would have realised had he or she actually owned such Shares and received the
dividends on them. The Security Holders also do not have voting rights regarding the Share.

Actions by the issuer of a Share may negatively affect the Certificates

The issuer of a Share will have no involvement in the offer and sale of the Certificates and will
have no obligation to any Certificate Holder. The issuer of a Share may take any actions in
respect of such Share without regard to the interests of the Security Holder, and any of these
actions could have a negative effect on the market value and the return of the Certificates.

Security Holders do not have any claims against the Share issuer

Even if redemption of the Certificates is significantly dependent on the performance of the
underlying Share, the Certificates do not give any recourse rights or other claims against the
issuer of the Shares underlying the Certificates.

Risk factors associated with Currency Exchange Rates as Underlying

Currency Exchange Rates reflect the value ratio of one specific currency to a different
currency. In international foreign exchange trading, where a specific currency is traded
against another, the currency being traded is referred to as the "Base Currency"”, while the
currency which states the price for the Base Currency, is referred to as "Reference
Currency"”. For example, the foreign exchange rate "EUR/USD 1.1684" indicates that USD
1.1684 (= Reference Currency) has to be paid to purchase one Euro (= Base Currency). An
increase of this foreign exchange rate therefore means an increase in the Euro compared to
the US-Dollar. Conversely, the foreign exchange rate "USD/EUR 0.8556" indicates that EUR
0.8556 has to be paid to purchase one US-Dollar. An increase in this foreign exchange rate
therefore means an increase in the US-Dollar compared to the Euro.

The performance of foreign exchange rates is dependent upon the supply and demand for
currencies in the international foreign exchange markets, which are subject to economic
factors, including inflation rates in the countries concerned, interest rate differences between
the respective countries, economic forecasts, international political factors, currency
convertibility and safety of making financial investments in the currency concerned,
speculation and measures taken by governments and central banks. Such measures include,
without limitation, imposition of regulatory controls or taxes, issuance of a new currency to
replace an existing currency, alteration of the exchange rate or exchange characteristics by
devaluation or revaluation of a currency or imposition of exchange controls with respect to the
exchange or transfer of a specified currency that would affect exchange rates as well as the
availability of a specified currency.
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Values from various sources may be used as price for the currency exchange rates. On the
one side, this may be currency exchange rate prices, which are established in the so-called
inter-bank trading, since the majority of international foreign exchange trading is settled
between large banks. Such prices are published on screen pages of renowned financial
information services (such as e.g. Reuters or Bloomberg). On the other side, official currency
exchange rates determined by central banks (such as e.g. the European Central Bank) may
be used as price for the currency exchange rate. Furthermore, it may be possible that the
price of certain currency exchange rate pairs cannot be obtained in a suitable form at a
reference market. For these foreign exchange rates, the price is determined by the
Calculation Agent indirectly by using two currency exchange rate pairs, each of which
contains a currency of the currency exchange rate pair underlying the Certificates as well as a
common reference currency. The price of the Currency Exchange Rate underlying the
Certificates is determined by making a cross rate calculation of these two currency exchange
rates.

Risk factors associated with Interest Rates as Underlying

The development of the relevant Interest Rate is not foreseeable at the time of the issue and
depends on numerous factors, inter alia, supply and demand factors on international money
markets, which are influenced by measures of governments and central banks as well as
speculations and, if applicable, general economic factors.

Risk factors associated with Commodities as Underlying

Raw materials or commodities are generally divided into three main categories: mineral
commodities (such as e.g. oil, gas, aluminium and copper), agricultural products (such as e.qg.
wheat and corn), and precious metals (such as e.g. gold and silver). A majority of raw
materials or commodities are traded on specialized exchanges or directly among market
participants (inter-bank trading) worldwide in the form of OTC transactions ("over the
counter™) using mostly standardized contracts.

Price risks of raw materials or commodities are often complex. The prices are subject to
greater fluctuations (volatility) than those of different investment categories. Commodity
markets particularly have a lower liquidity than bond, foreign currency and stock markets.
Changes in supply and demand therefore have a more drastic effect on prices and volatility,
which is why investments in commodities are more risky and complex.

The factors influencing commodity prices are numerous and complex. The following are
examples of some typical factors, which are reflected in commaodity prices.

Supply and demand

The planning and management of commodities supplies are very time-consuming. This
means that the scope for action on the supply side is limited and it is not always possible to
adjust production swiftly to take account of changed demand. Demand can also vary on a
regional basis. Transport costs for commodities in regions where these are needed also affect
their prices. The fact that some commodities take a cyclical pattern, such as agricultural
products which are only produced at certain times of the year, can also result in major price
fluctuations.

Direct investment costs

Direct investments in commodities involve costs related to storage, insurance and tax.
Moreover, no interest or dividends are paid on commodities. The total returns from
commodities investments are therefore influenced by these factors.

Liquidity
Not all commodities markets are liquid and able to quickly and adequately react to changes in
supply and demand. The fact that there are only a few market participants active on the

commodities markets means that large speculative investments can have negative
consequences and may distort prices.
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Weather and natural catastrophes

Unfavourable weather conditions can influence the supply of certain commodities for the
entire year. This kind of supply crisis can lead to severe and unpredictable price fluctuations.
Diseases and epidemics can also influence the prices for agricultural products.

Governmental programs and policies, national and international political, military and
economic events and trading activities in commaodities

Commodities are often produced in emerging market countries, with demand coming from
industrialized nations. However, the political and economic situation of emerging markets is
often far less stable than in industrialized nations. They are generally much more susceptible
to the risks of rapid political change and economic setbacks. Political crises can affect
investor confidence, which can as a consequence influence commodity prices. Armed
conflicts can also have impact on the supply and demand for certain commodities. It is also
possible for industrialized nations to impose embargos on imports and exports of goods and
services. This can directly and indirectly impact commodity prices. Furthermore, numerous
commodity producers have joined forces to establish organizations or cartels in order to
regulate supply and influence prices.

Taxes and duties

Changes in tax rates and customs duties may have a positive or a negative impact on the
profitability margins for commodities producers. If these costs are passed on to buyers, these
changes will affect the prices of the relevant commodities.

Risk factors associated with Futures Contracts as Underlying
General

Futures Contracts, also referred to as futures, are standardized futures transactions linked to
(i) financial instruments (e.g. shares, indices, interest rates, dividends or foreign currencies) —
so-called financial futures contract — or (ii) to commodities (e.g. precious metals, wheat, or
sugar) — so-called commodity future contract.

A Futures Contract represents the contractual obligation to purchase or sell a certain quantity
of the respective contract object on a fixed date at an agreed price. Futures Contracts are
traded on futures exchanges and are standardized in respect to contract size, type and quality
of the contract object, and potential places and dates of delivery. General, a close correlation
exists between the price development of the financial instrument or commodity underlying the
Underlying on a spot market and the corresponding futures market. However, Futures
Contracts are generally traded with a premium or discount compared to the spot price of the
underlying financial instrument or commodity. This difference between spot and futures price,
which is referred to as "basis" in futures exchange terminology, results on the one side from
the inclusion of costs, which usually arise during spot transactions in the calculation (storage,
delivery, insurance, etc.), or of income usually related to spot transactions (interest, dividends,
etc.) and on the other side from the differing valuation of general market factors on the spot
and futures market. Furthermore, the liquidity may significantly differ between the spot and
the corresponding futures market depending on the financial instrument or commodity.

Since the Certificates are linked to the exchange price of the Futures Contract underlying the
Certificates, it is advisable that the Security Holder, in addition to knowledge about the market
for the financial instrument underlying the relevant Futures Contract or the market for the
commodity underlying the relevant Futures Contract, also has knowledge about the
mechanisms and valuation factors of futures transactions, since an appropriate evaluation of
the risks related to the purchase of these Certificates is possible only in this case.

Rollover

Since Futures Contracts as Underlying of the Certificates have a fixed expiration date in each
case, the Underlying is replaced by the Issuer in the case of Open End Participation
Certificates or Factor Certificates at a certain point in time with a Futures Contract, which
except for an expiration date that is more distant in the future has the same contract
specifications as the originally underlying Futures Contract ("Rollover").
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The Issuer will close out its positions entered into through respective hedging transactions
regarding the previous Futures Contracts, the expiration date of which is imminent, on the
Rollover Date and build up corresponding positions in respect to a Futures Contract with
identical features but a longer term.

After completion of the Rollover, the Multiplier is adjusted based on the Roll Over Price for the
Successor Value.

Risks associated with the regulation and reform of "benchmarks"”, including LIBOR,
EURIBOR and other interest rate, equity, commodity, foreign exchange rate and other
types of benchmarks.

The London Interbank Offered Rate ("LIBOR"), the Euro Interbank Offered Rate
("EURIBOR") and other interest rate, equity, commodity, foreign exchange rate and other
types of rates and indices which are deemed to be "benchmarks" are the subject of ongoing
national and international regulatory reform. Following any such reforms benchmarks may
perform differently than in the past or disappear entirely, or there could be other
consequences which cannot be predicted. Any such consequence could have a material
adverse effect on any Certificates linked to such a benchmark.

Key regulatory proposals and initiatives in this area include (amongst others) I0SCO's
Principles for Financial Market Benchmarks, published in July 2013 (the "IOSCO Benchmark
Principles”), the Benchmark Regulation, and the transition, proposed by the UK's Financial
Conduct Authority (the "FCA"), away from LIBOR to one or more alternative benchmarks.

The IOSCO Benchmark Principles aim to create an overarching framework of principles for
benchmarks to be used in financial markets, specifically covering governance and
accountability as well as the quality and transparency of benchmark design and
methodologies. Subsequent implementation reviews have found that widespread efforts are
being made to implement the IOSCO Benchmark Principles by the majority of administrators
surveyed. However, the reviews also note that, as the "benchmarks industry” is in a state of
flux, IOSCO may need to take further steps in the future - although it is not yet clear what
these steps might be.

The Benchmark Regulation entered into force in June 2016 and is fully applicable in the EU
since 1 January 2018 (save that certain provisions, including those related to “critical
benchmarks", took effect as at 30 June 2016), subject to certain transitional provisions. The
Benchmark Regulation applies to "contributors" to, "administrators" of, and "users" of
benchmarks in the EU. Since 1 January 2018, it does, among other things, (a) require EU
benchmark administrators to be authorised or registered and to comply with requirements
relating to the administration of benchmarks, (b) prohibit the use in the EU of benchmarks
provided by EU administrators which are not authorised or registered in accordance with the
Benchmark Regulation, and (c) prohibit the use in the EU of benchmarks provided by non-EU
administrators which are not (i) authorised or registered and subject to supervision in a
jurisdiction in respect of which an "equivalence" decision has been adopted in accordance
with the Benchmark Regulation, or (ii) where such equivalence decision is pending,
"recognised" by the competent authorities of the applicable EU Member State(s). An
exception to this is that a benchmark provided by a non-EU administrator can itself be
endorsed for use in the EU by an EU authorised or registered administrator or an EU-based
supervised entity, following authorisation of the endorsement by the relevant competent
authority.

The scope of the Benchmark Regulation is wide and, in addition to so-called “critical
benchmark" indices such as EURIBOR, will, when fully applicable, apply to many other
interest rate indices, as well as equity, commodity and foreign exchange rate indices and
other indices. This will include "proprietary" indices or strategies where these are used to
(i) determine the amount payable under, or the value of, certain financial instruments
(including securities and OTC derivatives listed on an EU regulated market, EU multilateral
trading facility (MTF), EU organised trading facility (OTF) or traded via a systematic
internaliser), (i) determine the amount payable under certain financial contracts, or
(iii) measure the performance of an investment fund. The requirements of the Benchmark
Regulation vary depending on the category of benchmark in question. In particular, a lighter
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touch regime applies to benchmarks which are not interest rate or commodity benchmarks
where the total average value of financial instruments, financial contracts or investment funds
referencing the benchmark over a period of six months is less than EUR 50 billion (subject to
further conditions).

The Benchmark Regulation could have a material impact on Certificates linked to a
benchmark rate or index. For example:

o a rate or index which is a benchmark could be prohibited from being used in the EU if
(subject to applicable transitional provisions) its administrator is (i) based in the EU and
does not obtain authorisation or registration, or (ii) based in a non-EU jurisdiction which
does not satisfy the "equivalence" conditions and is not "recognised"” pending an
equivalence decision. It could also become unlawful or contradictory to any applicable
licensing requirements for the Calculation Agent to determine the level or other value of
such benchmark or to make any other determination in respect of the Certificates which
it would otherwise be obliged to do so pursuant to the Terms and Conditions of the
Certificates.In such events, depending on the particular benchmark and the applicable
Terms and Conditions of the Certificates, the Certificates could be de-listed, adjusted,
redeemed prior to maturity or otherwise impacted;

o the methodology or other terms of the benchmark could be changed in order to comply
with the terms of the Benchmark Regulation, and such changes could reduce or
increase the rate or level or affect the volatility of the published rate or level, and could
lead to adjustments to the Terms and Conditions of the Certificates, including the
Calculation Agent determination of the rate or level in its reasonable discretion.

In a speech in July 2017, the Chief Executive of the FCA announced that by the end of 2021
the FCA would no longer seek to persuade LIBOR panel banks to continue to submit rates to
the LIBOR administrator, and that the market should begin planning transition to alternative
reference rates that are based on actual transactions. The Bank of England's Working Group
on Sterling Risk-Free Reference Rates has been considering risk free rates for use as
alternatives to LIBOR and has chosen a reformed Sterling Overnight Index Average
("SONIA™). The reforms to SONIA became effective on 23 April 2018 and it is expected that
there will be a transition to SONIA over the next four years across sterling bond, loan and
derivatives related markets, so that SONIA is established as the primary sterling interest rate
benchmark by end 2021.

Ongoing international and/or national reform initiatives and the increased regulatory scrutiny
of benchmarks generally could increase the costs and risks of administering or otherwise
participating in the setting of a benchmark and complying with any applicable regulations or
requirements. Such factors may discourage market participants from continuing to administer
or contribute to benchmarks, trigger changes in the rules or methodologies used in respect of
benchmarks, and/or lead to the disappearance of benchmarks, including LIBOR.

This could in particular result in (i) adjustments to the terms and conditions such as the
substitution of the relevant benchmark and/or discretionary determinations by the Calculation
Agent and/or (ii) delisting of the Certificates. In this respect, Security Holders should also note
that the Issuer may terminate the Certificates extraordinarily if according to the reasonable
discretion of the Calculation Agent a determination of the relevant underlying price is not
possible. This can particularly be the case if the relevant benchmark provided by the
administrator may no longer be used or if its methodology has materially changed as a
consequence of the Benchmark Regulation and if a substitute benchmark is not available.
Any such consequence could have a material adverse effect on the market price of and return
on any such Certificates linked to a benchmark.

2.2.4Risk factors relating to conflicts of interest

The Issuer may from time to time act in other capacities with regard to the Certificates, such
as calculation agent. Such functions may allow the Issuer to calculate the value of the
Underlying which could raise conflicts of interest where securities or other assets issued by
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the Issuer itself or a group company can be chosen to be part of the Underlying, or where the
Issuer maintains a business relationship with the issuer or obligor of such securities or assets.

The Issuer may from time to time engage in transactions involving the Underlying for its
proprietary accounts and for accounts under its management. Such transactions may have a
positive or negative effect on the value of the Underlying and consequently upon the market
price of the Certificates. As used in this section "Risk factors relating to conflicts of interest",
references to the Underlying shall be deemed to include any of its constituents, if applicable.

The Issuer may issue other derivative instruments in respect of the Underlying (if any) and the
introduction of such competing products into the marketplace may affect the market price of
the Certificates.

The Issuer may use all or some of the proceeds received from the sale of the Certificates to
enter into hedging transactions. The Issuer believes that such hedging activity will under
normal circumstances not have a material impact on the market price of the Certificates.
However, it cannot be assured that the Issuer's hedging activities will not affect such market
price. The market price of the Certificates might in particular be affected by the liquidation of
all or a portion of the hedging positions at or about the time of the maturity or expiration of the
Certificates.

The Issuer may acquire non-public information with respect to the Underlying, and the Issuer
does not undertake to disclose any such information to any Security Holder. In addition, the
Issuer may publish research reports with respect to the Underlying. Such activities could
present conflicts of interest and may affect the market price of the Certificates.
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3. THE CERTIFICATES

3.1. General Information about the Certificates

3.1.1Description of the Certificates and the rights attached to the Certificates,
information relating to the underlying and consequences of market
disruptions or adjustments

The type of the Certificate and the relevant securities identification number of the Certificate are stated
in Table 1 in the Annex to the Issue Specific Conditions of the Final Terms.

The Certificates issued by the Issuer may be linked to indices, ETFs, shares, basket of shares,
currency exchange rates, interest rates, commaodities or future contracts as specified in Table 2 in the
Annex to the Issue Specific Conditions of the Final Terms.

A description of the underlying and the components of the underlying, as the case may be, and an
indication where information about the past and further performance of the underlying and the
components of the underlying, as the case may be, and its volatility can be obtained can be found in
the Final Terms of the respective Certificates.

Furthermore and as the case may be, the Final Terms contain information about the name of the
issuer or sponsor of the underlying, the international securities identification number (ISIN) or other
such security identification code, the name of the index in case of an index as underlying, or
equivalent information in relation to the relevant underlying and its components, as the case may be. If
the underlying is a basket the Final Terms shall disclose the relevant weightings of each underlying in
the basket.

Where the applicable Final Terms specify the Underlying to be an index and if such index is provided
by a legal entity or a natural person acting in association with, or on behalf of the Issuer the Issuer
makes the following statements:

. the complete set of rules of the index and information on the performance of the index are freely
accessible on the Issuer’s or the Index Sponsor’s website; and

o the governing rules (including methodology of the index for the selection and the rebalancing of
the components of the index, description of market disruption events and adjustment rules) are
based on predetermined and objective criteria.

The right to demand payment of a Cash Amount on the respective Repayment Date is specified in
Section 1 of the Issue Specific Conditions in the relevant Final Terms.

Any consequences of market disruptions, e.g. the postponement of a Final Valuation Date, are
specified in Section 8 of the Issue Specific Conditions in the relevant Final Terms.

Any consequences of adjustments, e.g. the substitution of an Underlying, are specified in Section 9 of
the Issue Specific Conditions in the relevant Final Terms.

3.1.2Listing and trading

The Issuer may introduce or apply for admission of the Certificates on one or several stock
exchange(s) or multilateral trading system(s) or regulated or unregulated market(s), inter alia, at the
Vienna Stock Exchange and/or the Stuttgart Stock Exchange (Bérse Stuttgart) (EUWAX) and/or the
Budapest Stock Exchange and/or the Bucharest Stock Exchange and/or the Prague Stock Exchange.
The Issuer may also issue Certificates which are not admitted to trading.

Certificates of the same class may have been admitted to trading on the same or another market
already. If and where a listing is intended, this will be stated in the relevant Final Terms. Further,
information concerning a public offer of the Certificates will be contained in the relevant Final Terms, if
any.

In the case of admission to trading and/or listing, the Minimum Trading Number will be stated in
Table 1 in the Annex to the Issue Specific Conditions of the Final Terms. The Issuer intends to quote
bid and ask prices for the Certificates of an issue on a regular basis under normal market conditions,
however the Issuer does not commit itself and is under no obligation legal or otherwise to quote bid
and ask prices for the Certificates of an issue.
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3.1.3Currency of the Certificates

The Certificates will be offered for purchase (offer subject to change) in the Settlement Currency which
is specified in Table 1 in the Annex to the Issue Specific Conditions of the Final Terms. Exchange and
off-exchange trading in the Certificates (if applicable) will likewise be conducted in the Settlement
Currency. The dishursement of the Cash Amount (if any) will be made in the Settlement Currency
(following a conversion into the Settlement Currency, as the case may be).

3.1.4Terms and conditions of the offer, offer period

The offer of Certificates under this Prospectus is not subject to any conditions. The Final Terms must
be read in conjunction with the Prospectus and its supplement(s) (if any).

The Prospectus provides for permanent and/or repeated issues of Certificates. Individual issues of
Certificates will be offered permanently (Daueremissionen), where Certificates may be issued during
most of their term at a price determined and adjusted from time to time by the Issuer ("tap issue").
Alternatively, the Certificates may be offered during a subscription period in one or several Series, with
different features, at a fixed price plus an issuing premium. When the respective subscription period
has ended, the Certificates will be sold over-the-counter.

The invitation to prospective investors to make offers for the subscription of Certificates is carried out
by the Issuer and distribution partners, if any. An offer to subscribe for Certificates may be made by an
investor to the Issuer or distribution partners, if any, during substantially the whole (or part of the) term
of the Certificates at the discretion of the Issuer. The Issuer retains the right to accept or reject
subscription offers, in whole or in part.

The Certificates are issued as non-par value instruments (Stiicknotiz) and do not have any specified
denominations; the Minimum Trading Numbers are set out in Table 1 in the Annex to the Issue
Specific Conditions of the Final Terms, if any. In general, no maximum subscription amount will be set
by the Issuer.

The Certificates are issued as tap issues (Daueremissionen) so that the result of the offer will not be
made public prior to the closing of the issue. Usually a notification of the maximum amount to OeKB
CSD will be made.

3.1.5Pricing of the Certificates and factors influencing the market price of the
Certificates

The Initial Issue Price of the Certificates is fixed by the Issuer by taking into account several price
relevant factors, including the price of the Underlying, the current interest rate, anticipated dividends
and other product specific criteria.

Additionally, the Initial Issue Price may include an issue premium which is intended to cover
commissions for the Issuer or other ancillary costs arising in connection with the issue and hedging of
the respective Certificates.

The Initial Issue Price is disclosed in Table 1 in the Annex to the Issue Specific Conditions of the Final
Terms, and any further market prices of the Certificates are determined at the Issuer's reasonable
discretion according to market conditions.

Costs and disbursements incurred by an investor in connection with a secondary purchase of the
Certificates are outside of the influence of the Issuer.
3.1.6Delivery of the Certificates

If the Final Terms do not provide otherwise, the payment of the subscription price is effected on the
basis of a subscription agreement between the investor and the Issuer concerning the acquisition of
the respective Certificates. Delivery shall be effected upon payment within market customary time
periods.

3.1.7Clearing Systems and form and delivery

The Certificates are cleared by OeKB CSD, Strauchgasse 1-3, A-1010 Vienna. After settlement, the
Certificates are represented by a global bearer note, which is deposited with OeKB CSD. No
Certificates in definite form will be issued. The Security Holders are entitled to co-ownership interests

Page 90



in the global bearer note, which are transferrable in accordance with the terms and conditions of OeKB
CSD and applicable law.

3.1.8 Restrictions on the free transferability of the securities

Each Certificate (of a series of Certificates) is transferable in accordance with the laws applying in
each case and, where relevant, the respective applicable regulations and procedures of the securities
depositary in whose records the transfer is registered.

The Certificates are transferable in a number equal to the Minimum Trading Number as specified in
Table 1 in the Annex to the Issue Specific Conditions or an integral multiple thereof.

When purchasing, transferring or exercising the Certificates, investors must comply with the selling
restrictions as laid out in Part "10. Subscription and Sale" of this Prospectus.

3.1.9Ranking of the Certificates

The Certificates constitute direct, unsecured and unsubordinated obligations of the Issuer, which rank
pari passu among themselves and with all other present and future unsecured and unsubordinated
obligations of the Issuer, save for those obligations that have priority according to mandatory law.

3.1.10 Consents and approvals, resolutions in respect of the issue of the
Certificates

The Issuer has obtained all necessary consents, approvals and authorisations in Austria in connection
with the issue and performance of Certificates.

The Issuer may issue Certificates under the Prospectus in accordance with internal approvals, as in
force from time to time, provided that, unless otherwise specified in the Final Terms, issues of
Certificates from 1 July 2018 to 30 June 2019 will be made in accordance with a resolution of the
Management Board of the Issuer passed on 22 June 2018 and a resolution of the Supervisory Board
dated 28 June 2018, and issues of Certificates from 1 July 2019 to 30 June 2020 will be made in
accordance with resolutions of the Management Board of the Issuer which are expected to be adopted
in May 2019.

3.1.11 Reasons for the offer and use of proceeds from the sale of the
Certificates

The issue of the Certificates is part of the ordinary business activity of the Issuer and is undertaken
solely to generate profits. For the avoidance of doubt: Even if the Cash Amount and the performance
of the Certificates are calculated by referencing to a price of the underlying defined in the Terms and
Conditions of the Certificates the Issuer is not obliged to invest the proceeds from the issuance into
the underlying or components of the underlying at any time. The Security Holders do not have any
property rights or shares in the underlying or its components. The Issuer is free to choose about the
use of the proceeds of the issuance.

3.1.12 Applicable law, place of performance and place of jurisdiction

Form and content of the Certificates as well as all rights and obligations from matters governed in the
Terms and Conditions are determined in every respect by the laws of Austria.

Vienna, Austria, shall be place of performance.

To the extent permitted by mandatory law, the courts competent for Vienna, Inner City, shall have
exclusive jurisdiction, provided that the Issuer shall be entitled to bring proceedings in any other
competent court. The submission to the jurisdiction of the courts of Vienna shall not limit the right of
any Security Holder to take proceedings in a place of consumer jurisdiction if and to the extent
mandated by applicable statute.

3.1.13 Interest of individuals or legal entities involved in the issue

Concerning interests of individuals or legal entities involved in the issue as well as potential conflicts of
interests resulting from this, please see "2.2.4 Risk factors relating to conflicts of interest" in the
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Prospectus and under "Interest of natural and legal persons involved in the issue/offer" under "Other
information” in the relevant Final Terms.

3.1.14 Fees

The Final Terms will specify, if applicable, the kind and amount of fees charged to the subscriber or
purchaser.

3.1.15 Categories of potential investors

The Issuer generally does not distinct in various categories of potential investors to which the
Certificates are offered. The Issuer may offer Certificates generally to retail and institutional investors
in any jurisdiction where the legal and further requirements for offering securities are fulfilled. If offers
are being made simultaneously in the markets of two or more countries, the Issuer generally does not
reserve any tranches of Certificates for certain of these.

3.1.16 Eligibility of the Certificates

The Certificates issued under this Programme constitute eligible liabilities within the meaning of
§ 2 (71) in connection with § 86 (1) BaSAG and thus, the bail-in tool may also apply to the Certificates.
For further information please see the risk factor "The Certificates may be subject to write-down or
conversion to equity upon the occurrence of a certain trigger event, which may result in Security
Holders losing some or all of their investment in the Certificates (statutory loss absorption).".

3.2. Explanation Description of mechanism of Certificates

Product No. 1: Explanation of mechanism of Bonus/Capped Bonus Certificates

In the case of these Certificates, on the Repayment Date Security Holders receive a Cash Amount,
converted into the Settlement Currency, as the case may be, the amount of which depends on the
performance of the Underlying.

0] If no Barrier Event occurs, the Cash Amount equals the Reference Price taking into account the
Multiplier, and the Cash Amount is at least equal to the Bonus Amount and in case of Capped
Bonus Certificates does not exceed the Maximum Amount.

(i)  If a Barrier Event has occurred, the Cash Amount is no longer at least equal to the Bonus
Amount, but is always equal to the Reference Price (taking into account the Multiplier) (1:1
participation in the performance of the Underlying) and in case of Capped Bonus Certificates
does not exceed the Maximum Amount.

A "Barrier Event" occurs if the Observation Price reaches or falls below the Barrier at any time during
the Observation Period and/or the Reference Price reaches or falls below the Barrier on the Final
Valuation Date, as determined in the relevant Final Terms.

The Security Holders do not have any claim to or arising out of the Underlying (e.g. voting rights,
dividends).
Product No. 2: Explanation of mechanism of Discount Certificates

In the case of these Certificates, Security Holders participate in the performance of the Underlying
throughout the term. The Initial Issue Price or the current price of the Certificate is below the current
market price of the Underlying (Discount) taking into account the Multiplier.

On the Repayment Date the Security Holders receive a Cash Amount, converted into the Settlement
Currency, as the case may be, the amount of which is dependent on the Reference Price.

0] If the Reference Price is at the level of or above the Cap, the Cash Amount equals the
Maximum Amount.

(i) If the Reference Price is below the Cap, Security Holders receive a Cash Amount which equals
the Reference Price taking into account the Multiplier.

The Security Holders do not have any claim to or arising out of the Underlying (e.g. voting rights,
dividends).
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Product No. 3: Explanation of mechanism of Open End Participation and Open
End Index Certificates

Open End Participation and Open End Index Certificates do not have a specified limited term. The
term of the Certificates ends either (i) on the exercise of the Certificates by the Security Holders or (ii)
on ordinary termination by the Issuer or (iii) on extraordinary termination by the Issuer.

The Cash Amount, converted into the Settlement Currency, as the case may be, equals the Reference
Price multiplied by the (current) Multiplier and a Management Factor, if a Management Fee applies.

Product No. 4: Explanation of mechanism of Reverse Bonus/Capped Reverse
Bonus Certificates

In the case of these Certificates, Security Holders receive a Cash Amount on the Repayment Date,
converted into the Settlement Currency, as the case may be, the amount of which depends on the
performance of the Underlying. A particular feature is that the participation of the Security Holders is
inverse to the performance of the Underlying.

0] If no Barrier Event has occurred, the Cash Amount equals the Reverse Level minus the
Reference Price, taking into account the Multiplier, and is at least equal to the Bonus Amount
and in case of Capped Reverse Bonus Certificates does not exceed the Maximum Amount.

(i)  If a Barrier Event has occurred, the Cash Amount is no longer at least equal to the Bonus
Amount, but always equals the Reverse Level minus the Reference Price, taking into account
the Multiplier (positive participation in the negative Performance of the Underlying), and is at
least equal to zero and in case of Capped Reverse Bonus Certificates does not exceed the
Maximum Amount.

A Barrier Event occurs if the Observation Price reaches or exceeds the Barrier at any time during the
Observation Period and/or the Reference Price reaches or exceeds the Barrier on the Final Valuation
Date, as determined in the relevant Final Terms.

Security Holders have no rights in respect of or arising from the Underlying (e.g. voting rights,
dividends).

Product No. 5: Explanation of mechanism of Participation and Index
Certificates

In the case of these Certificates, Security Holders receive a Cash Amount on the Repayment Date,
converted into the Settlement Currency, as the case may be, the amount of which depends on the
performance of the Underlying. The Cash Amount equals the Reference Price multiplied by the
Multiplier and a Management Factor, if a Management Fee applies.

Product No. 6: Explanation of mechanism of Twin Win or Capped Twin Win
Certificates

The level of the Cash Amount, converted into the Settlement Currency, as the case may be, in the
case of Twin Win Certificates is linked to the performance of the Underlying, and the following cases
are to be distinguished:

0] If no Barrier Event has occurred and the Reference Price equals or exceeds the Strike, the
Cash Amount per Security corresponds to the product of (A) the Multiplier and (B) the sum of
(i) the Strike and (ii) the product of (x) the difference between Reference Price and Strike and
(y) the applicable Participation Factor and in case of Capped Twin Win Certificates does not
exceed the applicable Maximum Amount.

(i)  If no Barrier Event has occurred but the Reference Price falls below the Strike, the Cash
Amount per Security corresponds to, the product of (A) the Multiplier and (B) the sum of (i) the
Strike and (ii) the product of (x) the difference between Strike and Reference Price and (y) the
applicable Participation Factor and in case of Capped Twin Win Certificates does not exceed
the applicable Maximum Amount.

(i) If a Barrier Event has occurred, the Cash Amount per Security corresponds to, the product of
(i) the Reference Price and (ii) the Multiplier and in case of Capped Twin Win Certificates does
not exceed the applicable Maximum Amount.
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A Barrier Event occurs if an Observation Price specified in the applicable Final Terms reaches or falls
below the Barrier as specified in the relevant Final Terms.

The Participation Factors and the Maximum Amounts can differ in the individual cases.

Security Holders have no rights in respect of or arising from the Underlying (e.g. voting rights,
dividends).

Product No. 7: Explanation of mechanism of Factor Certificates

Factor Certificates do not have a specified limited term. The term of the Certificates ends either (i) on
the exercise of the Certificates by the Security Holders or (ii) on ordinary termination by the Issuer or
(iii) on extraordinary termination by the Issuer.

The price development of Factor Certificates depends on movements of the respective Underlying
taking into account a leverage component and a financing component.

In the case of Factor Long Certificates the leverage component reflects the multiple purchase of the
Underlying. Therefore, price movements of the Underlying have a disproportional effect on the value
of the Factor Long Certificates with positive as well as with negative developments of the Underlying.

The financing component results from the costs for the raising of capital at an overnight rate plus an
add-on interest. As the financing component is always negative it has an adverse effect on the Factor
Certificate on each Calculation Date.

With Factor Long Certificates the Cash Amount corresponds to the difference between (i) the product
of the Cash Amount on the previous Calculation Date and the Daily Leveraged Performance and
(ii) the Financing Costs, converted into the Settlement Currency, as the case may be. The Daily
Leveraged Performance corresponds to the sum of (i) one (1) and (ii) the product of the Performance
in Percent of the Underlying and the Factor. The Performance in Percent of the Underlying on a
Calculation Date corresponds to the difference between (i) the quotient of the Reference Price and the
Reference Price on the previous Calculation Date or, if a Stop-Loss Event has occurred between the
time of determination of the Reference Price on the previous Calculation Date and the determination
of the Reference Price on the Calculation Date, to the Stop-Loss Reference Price and (ii) one (1). A
Stop-Loss Event occurs, if a certain Observation Price reaches or falls below the Stop-Loss Barrier.

In the case of Factor Short Certificates the leverage component reflects the multiple selling of the
Underlying. Therefore, price movements of the Underlying have a disproportional effect on the value
of the Factor Short Certificates with positive as well as with negative developments of the Underlying.

The financing component results from the costs for the raising of capital at an overnight reduced by an
interest rebate. As the financing component is always negative it has an adverse effect on the Factor
Certificate on each Calculation Date.

With Factor Short Certificates the Cash Amount corresponds to the sum of (i) the product of the Cash
Amount on the previous Calculation Date and the Daily Leveraged Performance and (ii) the Financing
Costs, converted into the Settlement Currency, as the case may be. The Daily Leveraged
Performance corresponds to the sum of (i) one (1) and (ii) the product of the Performance in Percent
of the Underlying and the Factor. The Performance in Percent of the Underlying on a Calculation Date
corresponds to the difference between (i) one (1) and (ii) the quotient of the Reference Price and the
Reference Price on the previous Calculation Date or, if a Stop-Loss Event has occurred between the
time of determination of the Reference Price on the previous Calculation Date and the determination
of the Reference Price on the Calculation Date, to the Stop-Loss Reference Price. A Stop-Loss Event
occurs, if a certain Observation Price reaches or exceeds the Stop-Loss Barrier.

Due to the construction of the Factor Certificates, in particular due to the linkage of the Factor
Certificates to the Daily Leverage Performance, the daily fluctuations of the Underlying might
have a material adverse effect on the price performance of the Certificates. Factor Certificates
are not suited for long-term investments and are not a suitable alternative for direct
investments into the Underlying, because the development of the Daily Leveraged Performance
of the Underlying and, thus, of the value of the Factor Certificates might significantly deviate
from the development of the value of the Underlying itself over a period of time.
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4. TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE CERTIFICATES

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

The Terms and Conditions are composed of the
following parts (together, the "Terms and
Conditions"):

(a) the Issue Specific Conditions as set out under
4.1 below (the "Issue Specific Conditions")
consisting of

(i) Part A. Product Specific Conditions; and

(i) Part B. Underlying Specific Conditions;
as well as

(b) the General Conditions as set out under 4.2
below (the "General Conditions™).

The relevant Final Terms will (i) replicate the
applicable optional Issue Specific Conditions and
(ii) contain the applicable new issue specific
information in respect of the Issue Specific
Conditions. New information will be given in Final
Terms only in compliance with the requirements
for Category B and C information items as set out
in Annex XX of the Prospectus Regulation. In
respect of each Series of Certificates the Issue
Specific Conditions as replicated in the respective
Final Terms and the General Conditions together
shall constitute the Terms and Conditions
applicable to such a Series of Certificates (the
"Conditions"). The Issue Specific Conditions as
replicated in the respective Final Terms are to be
read in conjunction with the General Conditions.

The Conditions will be in the German language or
the English language or both and the controlling
and binding language of the Conditions will be
specified in the relevant Final Terms.

Each Global Note representing the Certificates of
the relevant Tranche will have the Issue Specific
Conditions as replicated in the Final Terms and
the General Conditions attached.

ZERTIFIKATSBEDINGUNGEN

Die Zertifikatsbedingungen setzen sich aus
folgenden Teilen zusammen (zusammen die
"Zertifikatsbedingungen™):

(a) den Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen wie
nachfolgend unter 4.1  aufgefihrt (die
"Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen"), die aus

(i) Teil A. Produktbezogene Bedingungen;

und
(i) Teil B. Basiswertbezogene
Bedingungen bestehen; sowie
(b) den Allgemeinen Bedingungen  wie
nachfolgend unter 4.2  aufgefihrt (die

"Allgemeinen Bedingungen™).

Die jeweiligen Endgiltigen Bedingungen werden
0] die anwendbaren optionalen
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen wiederholen
und (i) im Rahmen dieser anwendbaren
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen neue
emissionsspezifische Informationen enthalten.
Soweit in den Endgultigen Bedingungen neue
Informationen aufgenommen werden, erfolgt dies
ausschlie3lich im Rahmen der Vorgaben fir
Kategorie B- und Kategorie C-Informa-
tionsbestandteile des Annex XX der
Prospektverordnung. In Bezug auf jede einzelne
Serie von Zertifikaten beinhalten die
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen, in der
Gestalt wie sie in den Endgultigen Bedingungen
wiederholt werden, und die Allgemeinen
Bedingungen die auf die jeweilige Serie von
Zertifikaten anwendbaren Zertifikatsbedingungen
(die "Bedingungen"). Die Emissionsbezogenen
Bedingungen, in der Gestalt wie sie in den
jeweiligen Endgultigen Bedingungen wiederholt
werden, missen zusammen mit den Allgemeinen
Bedingungen gelesen werden.

Die Bedingungen werden in deutscher Sprache,
englischer Sprache oder beiden Sprachen
erstellt, wobei die rechtsverbindliche Sprache in
den jeweiligen  Endgultigen  Bedingungen
festgelegt wird.

Jeder die Zertifikate der jeweiligen Tranche
verbriefenden  Globalurkunde  werden  die
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen, in der
Gestalt wie sie in den Endgiltigen Bedingungen
wiederholt werden, und die Allgemeinen
Bedingungen beigefiugt.
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4.1 Issue Specific Conditions

Part A. Product Specific Conditions

[in case of Product No 1, insert:

Product

No 1. [Bonus] [Capped Bonus]

Certificates

1)

)

1)

Section 1
Security Right; Transferability

Erste Group Bank AG, Vienna, Austria,
(the "Issuer™) hereby grants the holder
(the "Security Holder") of Bonus
Certificates [with Cap] (the "Certificates”
or the "Securities"), relating to the
Underlying (Section 9 (1) of the Issue
Specific Conditions), the right (the
"Security Right"), to demand payment of
the Cash Amount (Section 2 (1) of the
Issue Specific Conditions) in accordance
with these Conditions.

The Certificates shall be transferable in a
number equal to the Minimum Trading
Number as specified in Table 1 in the
Annex to the Issue Specific Conditions
(the "Minimum Trading Number") or an
integral multiple thereof.

Section 2
Cash Amount

The "Cash Amount" per Security
corresponds to the Reference Price
(paragraph (5)) multiplied by the Multiplier
(paragraph (6)), subject to the payment of
a Minimum Amount (paragraph (2)) [and
subject to the payment of a Maximum
Amount (paragraph (3))]. The Cash
Amount is [if Currency Conversion is not
applicable, insert: denominated in the
Settlement Currency (paragraph (7))] [if
Currency Conversion is applicable, insert:
converted from the Reference Currency
(paragraph (7)) into the Settlement
Currency (paragraph (7)) pursuant to
paragraph (8) (the "Currency
Conversion")]. The Cash Amount will be
commercially rounded to [two][e] decimal

[im Fall von Produkt Nr. 1 einfligen:

Produkt

Nr.1l: [Bonus] [Capped Bonus]

Zertifikate

@)

)

)

81
Wertpapierrecht; Ubertragbarkeit

Erste Group Bank AG, Wien, Osterreich,
(die "Emittentin™) gewahrt hiermit dem
Inhaber (der "Wertpapierinhaber™) von
Bonus Zertifikaten [mit Cap] (die
"Zertifikate" oder die "Wertpapiere"),
bezogen auf den Basiswert (8 9 (1) der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen), das
Recht (das "Wertpapierrecht"), nach
Mallgabe dieser Bedingungen die
Zahlung des Auszahlungsbetrags (8 2 (1)
der Emissionshezogenen Bedingungen)
zu verlangen.

Die Zertifikate sind in einer Anzahl, die
dem in Tabellel im Annex der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
festgelegten Mindesthandelsvolumen
entspricht (das
"Mindesthandelsvolumen"), oder einem
ganzzahligen Vielfachen davon
Ubertragbar.

82
Auszahlungsbetrag

Der "Auszahlungsbetrag" je Wertpapier
entspricht, vorbehaltlich der Zahlung
eines Mindestbetrags (Absatz (2)) [und
vorbehaltlich der Zahlung eines
Hochstbetrags (Absatz (3))], dem mit dem
Bezugsverhaltnis (Absatz (6))
multiplizierten Referenzpreis (Absatz (5)).
Der Auszahlungsbetrag wird [sofern
Wéahrungsumrechnung nicht anwendbar
ist, einfugen: in der Auszahlungswéhrung
ausgedruckt (Absatz (7))] [sofern
Wahrungsumrechnung anwendbar ist,
einfligen: gemal Absatz (8) von der
Referenzwéhrung (Absatz (7)) in die
Auszahlungswahrung (Absatz (7))
umgerechnet (die
"Wahrungsumrechnung™]. Der
Auszahlungsbetrag wird gegebenenfalls
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)

3

(4)

places, as the case may be.

If the [Observation Price (Section 9 (2) of
the Issue Specific Conditions) does not
reach or fall below the Barrier
(Section 3 (1) of the Issue Specific
Conditions) at any time during the
Observation Period (Section 3 (2) of the
Issue Specific Conditions)] [Reference
Price (paragraph (5)) does not reach or
fall below the Barrier (Section 3 of the
Issue Specific Conditions) on the Final
Valuation Date], the Cash Amount per
Security corresponds [at least] to the
Bonus Level multiplied by the Multiplier
(paragraph 6)) (the "Bonus Amount” or
the "Minimum Amount"). The "Bonus
Level" corresponds to the Bonus Level as
specified in Table 1 in the Annex to the
Issue Specific Conditions. The Bonus
Amount [if Currency Conversion is not
applicable, insert: is denominated in the
Settlement Currency (paragraph (7))] [if
Currency Conversion is applicable, insert:
is converted from the Reference Currency
(paragraph 7)) into the Settlement
Currency (paragraph (7)) (the "Currency
Conversion")] pursuant to
paragraph (8).] The Bonus Amount will be
commercially rounded to [two][e] decimal
places, as the case may be.

[(intentionally left blank)] [insert in the
case of Bonus Certificates with Cap:

The Cash Amount per Security
corresponds at the most to the Maximum
Amount. The "Maximum Amount"
corresponds to the Cap multiplied by the
Multiplier (paragraph (6)). The "Cap"
corresponds to the Cap specified in Table
1 in the Annex to the Issue Specific
Conditions. The Maximum Amount is [if
Currency Conversion is not applicable,
insert: denominated in the Settlement
Currency (paragraph (7))] [if Currency
Conversion is  applicable, insert:
converted from the Reference Currency
(paragraph (7)) into the Settlement
Currency (paragraph (7)) pursuant to
paragraph (8) (the "Currency
Conversion™)]. The Maximum Amount
will be commercially rounded to [two][e]
decimal places, as the case may be.]

The "Initial Reference Price"

)

3

(4)

auf [zwei][e] Nachkommastellen
kaufménnisch gerundet.

Sofern der [Beobachtungskurs (8 9 (2) der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen) zu
keinem Zeitpunkt wéahrend des
Beobachtungszeitraums (8 3(2) der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen) die
Barriere (8 3 (1) der Emissionsbezogenen
Bedingungen) erreicht oder unterschreitet]
[Referenzpreis (Absatz (5)) am Finalen
Bewertungstag die Barriere (83 der
Emissionshezogenen Bedingungen) nicht
erreicht oder unterschreitet], entspricht der
Auszahlungsbetrag je Wertpapier
[mindestens] dem mit dem
Bezugsverhéltnis (Absatz (6))
multiplizierten Bonuslevel (der
"Bonusbetrag” oder der
"Mindestbetrag”). Der "Bonuslevel"
entspricht dem in der Tabelle 1 im Annex
der Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
angegebenen Bonuslevel. Der
Bonusbetrag wird [sofern
Wahrungsumrechnung nicht anwendbar
ist, einflgen: in der Auszahlungswahrung

ausgedruckt (Absatz (7))] [sofern
Wahrungsumrechnung anwendbar ist,
einfiugen: gemaR Absatz (8) von der
Referenzwéhrung (Absatz (7)) in die
Auszahlungswahrung (Absatz (7))
umgerechnet (die
"Wéahrungsumrechnung")]. Der

Bonusbetrag wird gegebenenfalls auf
[zwei][e] Nachkommastellen
kaufmannisch gerundet.

[(entfallt)][im Fall von Bonus Zertifikaten
mit Cap einfligen:

Der Auszahlungsbetrag je Wertpapier
entspricht hoéchstens dem Hdchstbetrag.
Der "Hochstbetrag" entspricht dem mit
dem Bezugsverhéltnis (Absatz (6))
multiplizierten Cap. Der "Cap" entspricht
dem in der Tabelle 1 im Annex der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
angegebenen Cap. Der Hochstbetrag wird
[sofern Wahrungsumrechnung nicht
anwendbar ist, einfugen: in  der
Auszahlungswahrung ausgedruckt
(Absatz (7))] [sofern
Wahrungsumrechnung anwendbar ist,
einfigen: gemaR Absatz (8) von der

Referenzwéhrung (Absatz (7)) in die
Auszahlungswahrung (Absatz (7))
umgerechnet (die
"Wahrungsumrechnung™]. Der

Hochstbetrag wird gegebenenfalls auf
[zwei][e] Nachkommastellen

kaufmannisch gerundet.]
Der "Anfangliche Referenzpreis"
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®)

(6)

()

[if

Currency Conversion

corresponds to the Initial Reference Price
of the Underlying on the Initial Reference
Date (Section 4 (1) of the Issue Specific
Conditions), as specified in Table 1 in the
Annex to the Issue Specific Conditions,
on the basis of which the "Initial Issue
Price", as specified in Table 1 in the
Annex to the Issue Specific Conditions,
has been determined.

The "Reference Price" corresponds to
the Underlying Price (Section 9 (2) of the
Issue Specific Conditions) on the Final
Valuation Date (Section 4 (2) of the Issue
Specific Conditions).

The "Multiplier" corresponds to the
Multiplier as specified in Table 1 in the
Annex to the Issue Specific Conditions.

The "Settlement Currency" corresponds
to the Settlement Currency as specified in
Table 1 in the Annex to the Issue Specific
Conditions. The "Reference Currency"
corresponds to the Reference Currency
as specified in Table 1 in the Annex to the
Issue Specific Conditions.

is applicable, the

following paragraph shall apply:

8

[if Quanto is applicable, insert: The
Reference Currency is converted into the
Settlement Currency by the Calculation
Agent at an exchange rate of one unit of
the Reference Currency to one unit of the
Settlement Currency ("Quanto”).] [if
Quanto is not applicable, insert: The
Reference Currency is converted into the
Settlement Currency by the Calculation
Agent based on the exchange rate
expressed in the Reference Currency for
one unit of the Settlement Currency,
which is shown on the Final Valuation
Date (Section 4 (2) of the Issue Specific
Conditions) [at or around [insert relevant
time: e]] [at the time when the Calculation
Agent determines the Reference Price]
on the Exchange Rate Screen Page as
specified in Table 2 in the Annex to the
Issue Specific Conditions (the "Exchange
Rate Screen Page") or any page
replacing it. If the conversion occurs at a
time when the Exchange Rate Screen
Page should not be available on the
stated date or if the exchange rate is not
shown, the exchange rate shall
correspond to the exchange rate shown
on the corresponding page of another
financial information service. If the

®)

(6)

@)

entspricht dem in der Tabelle 1 im Annex
der Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
angegebenen Anfénglichen
Referenzpreis des Basiswerts am
Anfanglichen Referenztag (84 (1) der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen), auf
dessen Basis der in Tabelle 1 im Annex
der Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
angegebene "Anfangliche
Ausgabepreis" ermittelt wurde.

Der "Referenzpreis" entspricht der
Kursreferenz des Basiswerts (8 9 (2) der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen) am
Finalen Bewertungstag (84 (2) der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen).

Das "Bezugsverhaltnis" entspricht dem
in der Tabellel im Annex der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
angegebenen Bezugsverhaltnis.

Die "Auszahlungswéhrung" entspricht
der in Tabellel im Annex der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
angegebenen Auszahlungswahrung. Die
"Referenzwahrung" entspricht der in
Tabelle 1 im Annex der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
angegebenen Referenzwahrung.

[sofern Wahrungsumrechnung anwendbar ist, gilt
der folgende Absatz:

C)

[sofern Quanto anwendbar ist, einfligen:
Die Referenzwahrung wird von der
Berechnungsstelle in die
Auszahlungswahrung umgerechnet,
wobei eine Einheit der Referenzwahrung
einer Einheit der Auszahlungswéahrung
entspricht ("Quanto").] [sofern Quanto
nicht anwendbar ist, einfiigen: Die
Referenzwéhrung wird von der
Berechnungsstelle basierend auf dem
Wechselkurs der Referenzwahrung fir
eine Einheit der Auszahlungswahrung,
wie am Finalen Bewertungstag (8 4 (2)
der Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen)
[um oder gegen [maf3gebliche Uhrzeit
einfugen: e]] [zum Zeitpunkt, zu dem die
Berechnungsstelle den Referenzpreis
feststellt,] auf der in Tabelle 2 im Annex
der Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
angegebenen Wechselkurs-
Bildschirmseite  (die  "Wechselkurs-

Bildschirmseite"), oder einer diese
ersetzende Seite, angezeigt, in die
Auszahlungswahrung umgerechnet.

Sollte die Umrechnung zu einem
Zeitpunkt  erfolgen, zu dem die
Wechselkurs-Bildschirmseite an dem
angegebenen Tag nicht zur Verfugung
stent oder der Wechselkurs nicht
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(D]

[(2)

exchange rate should not or no longer be
shown in any of the above ways, the
Calculation Agent has the right to
determine in its reasonable discretion an
exchange rate determined based on the
then applicable market conditions, taking
into account the then existing market
situation, as the exchange rate.]]

Section 3
Barrier[; Observation Period]

The "Barrier" corresponds to the Barrier
specified in Table 1 in the Annex to the
Issue Specific Conditions.

The "Observation Period"” corresponds
to the Observation Period specified in
Table 1 in the Annex to the Issue Specific
Conditions.]

Section 4

Initial Reference Date; Final Valuation Date;

(D]

(@)

angezeigt wird, entspricht der
Wechselkurs dem Wechselkurs, wie er
auf der entsprechenden Seite eines
anderen Wirtschaftsinformationsdienstes
angezeigt wird. Sollte der Wechselkurs
nicht oder nicht mehr in einer der
vorgenannten Arten angezeigt werden, ist
die Berechnungsstelle berechtigt, als
Wechselkurs einen auf der Basis der
dann geltenden Marktusancen und unter
Berlicksichtigung der dann herrschenden
Marktgegebenheiten nach billigem
Ermessen ermittelten Wechselkurs
festzulegen.]]

83
Barriere[; Beobachtungszeitraum]

Die "Barriere" entspricht der in der
Tabelle 1 im Annex der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
angegebenen Barriere.

Der "Beobachtungszeitraum" entspricht
dem in der Tabelle 1 im Annex der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
angegebenen Beobachtungszeitraum.]

§4

Anfanglicher Referenztaqg; Finaler Bewertungstaq;

)

)

®)

Term; Business Day

The "Initial Reference Date"
corresponds to the Initial Reference Date
specified in Table 1 in the Annex to the
Issue Specific Conditions.

The "Final Valuation Date" is, subject to
Section 10 of the Issue Specific
Conditions, the Final Valuation Date
specified in Table 1 in the Annex to the
Issue Specific Conditions. If the Final
Valuation Date is not a Calculation Date
(Section 9 (2) of the Issue Specific
Conditions), the Final Valuation Date is
the next following day which is a
Calculation Date.

The "Term of the Securities" begins on
the First Settlement Date as specified in
Table 1 in the Annex to the Issue Specific
Conditions (the "First Settlement Date")
and ends, subject to an extraordinary
termination in accordance with
Section 10 (1) of the Issue Specific
Conditions or Section 5 of the General
Conditions, on the Final Valuation Date

@

)

®)

Laufzeit; Bankgeschéftstag

Der "Anfangliche Referenztag" entspricht
dem in der Tabellel im Annex der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
angegebenen Anfanglichen Referenztag.

Der "Finale Bewertungstag" entspricht,
vorbehaltlich §10 der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen, dem
in der Tabellel im Annex der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
angegebenen Finalen Bewertungstag.
Sollte der Finale Bewertungstag kein
Berechnungstag (89 (2 der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen) sein,
so ist der néchstfolgende Tag, der ein
Berechnungstag ist, der Finale
Bewertungstag.

Die "Laufzeit der Wertpapiere" beginnt
am in der Tabellel im Annex der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
genannten Ersten Valutatag (der "Erste
Valutatag") und endet, vorbehaltlich einer
auB3erordentlichen  Kindigung geman
§10 (1) der Emissionsbezogenen
Bedingungen bzw. § 5 der Allgemeinen
Bedingungen, am Finalen Bewertungstag
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(4)

1)

)

(paragraph (2)).

"Business Day" is, subject to the
following rules and unless set forth
otherwise in these Terms and Conditions,
each day on which banks in [Vienna][,

Jland ][Frankfurt am Main][, ][and
JlLondon][, ][and ][e] are open for
business. In connection with payment

transactions in accordance with Section 6
and Section 10 of the Issue Specific
Conditions, "Business Day" is each day
(except for Saturday and Sunday) on
which [if EUR is specified as Settlement
Currency, insert: the TARGET2-System is
open and] the Clearing System
(Section 2 (1) of the General Conditions)
processes payments [and on which banks
in [Vienna][, J[and ][Frankfurt am Main][,
J[and ][London][, J]and ][e] are open for
business]. [If EUR s specified as
Settlement Currency, insert: "TARGET2-
System" means the Trans-European
Automated Real-time Gross Settlement
Express Transfer (TARGET2) payment
system or any system succeeding it.]

Section 5
(intentionally left blank)

Section 6
Payments; Repayment Date

The Issuer will cause the transfer of any
Cash Amount by the [fifth][e] [5th]
[¢] Business Day after the Final Valuation
Date (Section 4 (2) of the Issue Specific
Conditions) (the "Repayment Date") to
the Clearing System for credit to the
accounts of the depositors of the
Securities with the Clearing System. If the
Final Valuation Date is postponed
pursuant to Section 4 (2) of the Issue
Specific Conditions, the Security Holder is
not entitled to demand interest or other
payments on the basis of the
postponement.

A declaration that neither the Security
Holder nor the beneficial owner of the
Securities is a U.S. person is deemed to
be issued automatically. The terms used
in this paragraph have the meaning

(4)

@)

)

(Absatz (2)).

"Bankgeschaftstag” ist, vorbehaltlich der
nachfolgenden Regelung und sofern
nichts Abweichendes in diesen
Zertifikatsbedingungen geregelt ist, jeder
Tag, an dem die Banken in [Wien][, Jlund
J[Frankfurt am Main][, ]J[und ][London]],
Jlund][ e] fir den Geschaftsverkehr
gedffnet sind. Im Zusammenhang mit
Zahlungsvorgéangen gemafl 8 6 und § 10
der Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
ist "Bankgeschéaftstag" jeder Tag (aul3er
Samstag und Sonntag), an dem [sofern
EUR als Auszahlungswahrung festgelegt
ist, einfugen: das TARGET2-System
geoffnet ist und] das Clearing-System
(82 (1) der Allgemeinen Bedingungen)
Zahlungen abwickelt] und an dem die
Banken in [Wien][, Jlund ][Frankfurt am
Main][, JJund ]J[London][, J[und][ e] fir den
Geschéftsverkehr geoffnet sind]. [Sofern
EUR als Auszahlungswéahrung festgelegt
ist, einfugen: "TARGET2-System"
bezeichnet das Trans-European
Automated Real-time Gross Settlement
Express Transfer (TARGET2)-
Zahlungssystem jedes
Nachfolgesystem dazu.]

oder

§5
(entfallt)

86
Zahlungen; Riickzahlungstag

Die Emittentin wird bis zu dem [fuinften][e]
[(5.)][[*]] Bankgeschéftstag nach dem
Finalen Bewertungstag (84 (2) der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen) (der
"Riickzahlungstag”) die Uberweisung
des gegebenenfalls zu beanspruchenden
Auszahlungsbetrags an das Clearing-
System zur Gutschrift auf die Konten der
Hinterleger der Wertpapiere bei dem
Clearing-System veranlassen. Sofern der
Finale Bewertungstag gemaf § 4 (2) der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
verschoben wird, ist der
Wertpapierinhaber  nicht  berechtigt,
Zinsen oder sonstige Zahlungen aufgrund
der Verschiebung zu verlangen.

Eine Erklarung, dass weder der
Wertpapierinhaber noch der
wirtschaftliche Eigentimer (beneficial

owner) der Wertpapiere eine US-Person
ist, gilt als automatisch abgegeben. Die in
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®3)

ascribed to them in Regulation S
promulgated under the United States
Securities Act of 1933, as amended from
time to time.

All taxes, fees or other charges arising in
connection with the exercise of the
Security Rights or with the payment of the
Cash Amount shall be borne and paid by
the Security Holder. The Issuer or the
Paying Agent has the right to withhold
any taxes, fees or other charges payable
by the Security Holder, as aforesaid.

Section 7
(intentionally left blank)]

®3)

diesem Absatz verwendeten
Bezeichnungen haben die Bedeutung, die
ihnen in Regulation S gemaf dem United
States Securities Act von 1933 in seiner
jeweils gultigen Fassung zugewiesen ist.

Alle im Zusammenhang mit der
Ausiibung der Wertpapierrechte bzw. mit
der Zahlung des Auszahlungsbetrags
anfallenden Steuern, Geblhren oder
anderen Abgaben sind von dem
Wertpapierinhaber zu tragen und zu
zahlen. Die Emittentin bzw. die Zahlstelle
ist berechtigt, etwaige Steuern, Gebihren
oder sonstige Abgaben einzubehalten,
die von dem Wertpapierinhaber geman
vorstehendem Satz zu zahlen sind.

87
(entfallt)]
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[in case of Product No 2, insert:

Product No 2: Discount Certificates

)

2

)

)

Section 1
Security Right; Transferability

Erste Group Bank AG, Vienna, Austria,
(the "Issuer") hereby grants the holder
(the "Security Holder") of Discount
Certificates (the "Certificates" or the
"Securities"), relating to the Underlying
(Section 9 (1) of the Issue Specific
Conditions), the right (the "Security
Right"), to demand payment of the Cash
Amount (Section 2 (1) of the Issue
Specific Conditions) in accordance with
these Conditions.

The Certificates shall be transferable in a
number equal to the Minimum Trading
Number as specified in Table 1 in the
Annex to the Issue Specific Conditions
(the "Minimum Trading Number") or an
integral multiple thereof.

Section 2
Cash Amount

The "Cash Amount" per Security
corresponds to the Reference Price
(paragraph (4)) multiplied by the
Multiplier (paragraph (5)), subject to the
payment of a Maximum Amount
(paragraph (2)). The Cash Amount is [if
Currency Conversion is not applicable,
insert: denominated in the Settlement
Currency (paragraph (6))] [if Currency
Conversion is  applicable, insert:
converted from the Reference Currency
(paragraph (6)) into the Settlement
Currency (paragraph (6)) pursuant to
paragraph (7) (the "Currency
Conversion")]. The Cash Amount will be
commercially rounded to [two][e] decimal
places, as the case may be.

The Cash Amount per Security
corresponds at the most to the Maximum
Amount. The "Maximum Amount"

[im Fall von Produkt Nr. 2 einfligen:

Produkt Nr. 2: Discount Zertifikate

1)

2)

1)

)

81
Wertpapierrecht; Ubertragbarkeit

Erste Group Bank AG, Wien, Osterreich,
(die "Emittentin") gewahrt hiermit dem
Inhaber (der "Wertpapierinhaber™) von
Discount Zertifikaten (die "Zertifikate"
oder die "Wertpapiere"), bezogen auf den
Basiswert (89 (1) der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen), das
Recht (das "Wertpapierrecht”), nach
MalRgabe dieser Bedingungen die
Zahlung des Auszahlungsbetrags (8 2 (1)
der Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen)
zu verlangen.

Die Zertifikate sind in einer Anzahl, die
dem in Tabellel im Annex der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
festgelegten Mindesthandelsvolumen
entspricht (das
"Mindesthandelsvolumen™), oder einem
ganzzahligen Vielfachen davon
Ubertragbar.

8§82
Auszahlungsbetrag

Der "Auszahlungsbetrag" je Wertpapier
entspricht, vorbehaltlich der Zahlung
eines Hochstbetrags (Absatz (2)), dem mit
dem Bezugsverhéaltnis (Absatz (5))
multiplizierten Referenzpreis (Absatz (4)).
Der Auszahlungsbetrag wird [sofern
Wéhrungsumrechnung nicht anwendbar
ist, einflgen: in der Auszahlungswéahrung
ausgedruckt (Absatz (6))] [sofern
Wahrungsumrechnung anwendbar ist,
einfigen: gemall Absatz (7) von der

Referenzwéhrung (Absatz (6)) in die
Auszahlungswahrung (Absatz (6))
umgerechnet (die
"Wéahrungsumrechnung")]. Der

Auszahlungsbetrag wird gegebenenfalls
auf [zwei][e] Nachkommastellen
kaufmannisch gerundet.

Der Auszahlungsbetrag je Wertpapier
entspricht hochstens dem Hdochstbetrag.
Der "Ho6chstbetrag" entspricht dem mit
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©)

4

(®)

(6)

corresponds to the Cap multiplied by the
Multiplier (paragraph (5)). The "Cap"
corresponds to the Cap specified in
Table 1 in the Annex to the Issue Specific
Conditions. The Maximum Amount is [if
Currency Conversion is not applicable,
insert: denominated in the Settlement
Currency (paragraph (6))] [if Currency
Conversion is  applicable, insert:
converted from the Reference Currency
(paragraph 6)) into the Settlement
Currency (paragraph (6)) pursuant to
paragraph (7) (the "Currency
Conversion")]. The Maximum Amount
will be commercially rounded to [two][e]
decimal places, as the case may be.

The "Initial Reference Price"
corresponds to the Initial Reference Price
of the Underlying on the Initial Reference
Date (Section 4 (1) of the Issue Specific
Conditions), as specified in Table 1 in the
Annex to the Issue Specific Conditions,
on the basis of which the "Initial Issue
Price", as specified in Table 1 in the
Annex to the Issue Specific Conditions,
has been determined.

The "Reference Price" corresponds to
the Underlying Price (Section 9 (2) of the
Issue Specific Conditions) on the Final
Valuation Date (Section 4 (2) of the Issue
Specific Conditions).

The "Multiplier" corresponds to the
Multiplier as specified in Table 1 in the
Annex to the Issue Specific Conditions.

The "Settlement Currency" corresponds
to the Settlement Currency as specified
in Table1 in the Annex to the Issue
Specific Conditions. The "Reference
Currency" corresponds to the Reference
Currency as specified in Table 1 in the
Annex to the Issue Specific Conditions.

[if Currency Conversion is applicable, the
following paragraph shall apply:

()

[if Quanto is applicable, insert: The
Reference Currency is converted into the
Settlement Currency by the Calculation
Agent at an exchange rate of one unit of
the Reference Currency to one unit of the
Settlement Currency ("Quanto”).] [if
Quanto is not applicable, insert: The
Reference Currency is converted into the
Settlement Currency by the Calculation

®3)

4)

(%)

(6)

dem Bezugsverhaltnis (Absatz (5))
multiplizierten Cap. Der "Cap" entspricht
dem in der Tabelle 1 im Annex der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
angegebenen Cap. Der Hochstbetrag wird
[sofern  Wahrungsumrechnung  nicht
anwendbar ist, einfligen: in der
Auszahlungswahrung ausgedrickt
(Absatz (6))] [sofern
Wéhrungsumrechnung anwendbar ist,
einflgen: gemal Absatz (7) von der

Referenzwahrung (Absatz (6)) in die
Auszahlungswahrung (Absatz (6))
umgerechnet (die
"Wahrungsumrechnung")]. Der

Hochstbetrag wird gegebenenfalls auf
[zwei][e] Nachkommastellen
kaufménnisch gerundet.

Der "Anfangliche Referenzpreis"
entspricht dem in der Tabelle 1 im Annex
der Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
angegebenen Anfanglichen Referenzpreis
des Basiswerts am  Anfanglichen
Referenztag (84 (1) der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen), auf
dessen Basis der in Tabelle 1 im Annex
der Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
angegebene "Anfangliche
Ausgabepreis” ermittelt wurde.

Der "Referenzpreis" entspricht der
Kursreferenz des Basiswerts (8 9 (2) der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen) am
Finalen Bewertungstag (84 (2) der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen).

Das "Bezugsverhaltnis" entspricht dem
in der Tabellel im Annex der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
angegebenen Bezugsverhaltnis.

Die "Auszahlungswahrung" entspricht
der in Tabellel im Annex der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
angegebenen Auszahlungswéahrung. Die
"Referenzwahrung" entspricht der in
Tabelle 1 im Annex der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
angegebenen Referenzwahrung.

[sofern Wahrungsumrechnung anwendbar ist, gilt
der folgende Absatz:

()

[sofern Quanto anwendbar ist, einfligen:
Die Referenzwéhrung wird von der
Berechnungsstelle in die
Auszahlungswéahrung umgerechnet,
wobei eine Einheit der Referenzwéahrung
einer Einheit der Auszahlungswahrung
entspricht ("Quanto").] [sofern Quanto
nicht anwendbar ist, einfigen: Die
Referenzwéahrung wird von der
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1)

)

Agent based on the exchange rate
expressed in the Reference Currency for
one unit of the Settlement Currency,
which is shown on the Final Valuation
Date (Section 4 (2) of the Issue Specific
Conditions) [at or around [insert relevant
time: o]] [at the time when the Calculation
Agent determines the Reference Price]
on the Exchange Rate Screen Page as
specified in Table 2 in the Annex to the
Issue Specific Conditions (the
"Exchange Rate Screen Page") or any
page replacing it. If the conversion
occurs at a time when the Exchange
Rate Screen Page should not be
available on the stated date or if the
exchange rate is not shown, the
exchange rate shall correspond to the
exchange rate shown on the
corresponding page of another financial
information service. If the exchange rate
should not or no longer be shown in any
of the above ways, the Calculation Agent
has the right to determine in its
reasonable discretion an exchange rate
determined based on the then applicable
market conditions, taking into account the
then existing market situation, as the
exchange rate.]]

Section 3
(intentionally left blank)

Section 4
Initial Reference Date; Final Valuation
Date; Term; Business Day

The "Initial Reference Date"
corresponds to the Initial Reference Date
specified in Table 1 in the Annex to the
Issue Specific Conditions.

The "Final Valuation Date" is, subject to
Section 10 of the Issue Specific
Conditions, the Final Valuation Date
specified in Table 1 in the Annex to the
Issue Specific Conditions. If the Final
Valuation Date is not a Calculation Date
(Section 9 (2) of the Issue Specific
Conditions), the Final Valuation Date is
the next following day which is a
Calculation Date.

1)

()

Berechnungsstelle basierend auf dem
Wechselkurs der Referenzwéhrung fur
eine Einheit der Auszahlungswéahrung,
wie am Finalen Bewertungstag (84 (2)
der Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen)
[um oder gegen [malgebliche Uhrzeit
einflgen: e]] [zum Zeitpunkt, zu dem die
Berechnungsstelle den Referenzpreis
feststellt,] auf der in Tabelle 2 im Annex
der Emissionsbhezogenen Bedingungen
angegebenen Wechselkurs-
Bildschirmseite  (die  "Wechselkurs-
Bildschirmseite"), oder einer diese
ersetzende Seite, angezeigt, in die
Auszahlungswahrung umgerechnet. Sollte
die Umrechnung zu einem Zeitpunkt
erfolgen, zu dem die Wechselkurs-
Bildschirmseite an dem angegebenen Tag

nicht zur Verfigung steht oder der
Wechselkurs  nicht angezeigt  wird,
entspricht der  Wechselkurs dem

Wechselkurs, wie er auf der
entsprechenden Seite eines anderen
Wirtschaftsinformationsdienstes angezeigt
wird. Sollte der Wechselkurs nicht oder
nicht mehr in einer der vorgenannten
Arten  angezeigt werden, st die
Berechnungsstelle berechtigt, als
Wechselkurs einen auf der Basis der
dann geltenden Marktusancen und unter
Berucksichtigung der dann herrschenden
Marktgegebenheiten nach billigem
Ermessen ermittelten Wechselkurs
festzulegen.]]

§3
(entfallt)

8§84
Anfanglicher Referenztag; Finaler

Bewertungstag; Laufzeit; Bankgeschéftstag

Der "Anfangliche Referenztag"
entspricht dem in der Tabelle 1 im Annex
der Emissionshezogenen Bedingungen
angegebenen Anfanglichen Referenztag.

Der "Finale Bewertungstag" entspricht,
vorbehaltlich §10 der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen, dem
in der Tabellel im Annex der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
angegebenen Finalen Bewertungstag.
Sollte der Finale Bewertungstag kein
Berechnungstag (892 der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen) sein,
so ist der néachstfolgende Tag, der ein
Berechnungstag ist, der Finale
Bewertungstag.
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(4)

@)

The "Term of the Securities" begins on
the First Settlement Date as specified in
Table 1 in the Annex to the Issue Specific
Conditions (the "First Settlement Date")
and ends, subject to an extraordinary
termination in accordance with
Section 10 (1) of the Issue Specific
Conditions or Section 5 of the General
Conditions, on the Final Valuation Date
(paragraph (2)).

"Business Day" s, subject to the
following rules and unless set forth
otherwise in these Terms and Conditions,
each day on which banks in [Vienna][,
Jland ][Frankfurt am Main][, ][and
JlLondon][, ]J[and ][e] are open for
business. In connection with payment
transactions in accordance with Section 6
and Section 10 of the Issue Specific
Conditions, "Business Day" is each day
(except for Saturday and Sunday) on
which [if EUR is specified as Settlement
Currency, insert: the TARGET2-System
is open and] the Clearing System
(Section 2 (1) of the General Conditions)
processes payments [and on which
banks in [Vienna][, ]J[and][Frankfurt am
Main][, ][and ][London][, ]land ][e] are
open for business]. [If EUR is specified
as Settlement Currency, insert:
"TARGET2-System" means the Trans-
European Automated Real-time Gross
Settlement Express Transfer (TARGET?2)
payment system or any system
succeeding it.]

Section 5

(intentionally left blank)

Section 6
Payments; Repayment Date

The Issuer will cause the transfer of any
Cash Amount by the ([fifth][e] [5th][e]
Business Day after the Final Valuation
Date (Section 4 (2) of the Issue Specific
Conditions) (the "Repayment Date") to
the Clearing System for credit to the
accounts of the depositors of the
Securities with the Clearing System. If
the Final Valuation Date is postponed
pursuant to Section 4 (2) of the lIssue
Specific Conditions, the Security Holder
is not entitled to demand interest or other
payments on the basis of the
postponement.

®3)

(4)

)

Die "Laufzeit der Wertpapiere" beginnt
am in der Tabelle 1 im Annex der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
genannten Ersten Valutatag (der "Erste
Valutatag") und endet, vorbehaltlich einer
aullerordentlichen  Kundigung gemaf
§10 (1) der Emissionsbezogenen
Bedingungen bzw. § 5 der Allgemeinen
Bedingungen, am Finalen Bewertungstag
(Absatz (2)).

"Bankgeschaéftstag"” ist, vorbehaltlich der
nachfolgenden Regelung und sofern
nichts Abweichendes in diesen
Zertifikatsbedingungen geregelt ist, jeder
Tag, an dem die Banken in [Wien][, J[und
J[Frankfurt am Main][, J[und ][London][,
Jlund][ e] fir den Geschéaftsverkehr
geodffnet sind. Im Zusammenhang mit
Zahlungsvorgangen gemall § 6 und § 10
der Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen ist
"Bankgeschéftstag" jeder Tag (auler
Samstag und Sonntag), an dem [sofern
EUR als Auszahlungswéhrung festgelegt
ist, einfugen: das TARGET2-System
geodffnet ist und] das Clearing-System
(82 (1) der Alilgemeinen Bedingungen)
Zahlungen abwickeltf und an dem die
Banken in [Wien][, ][und][Frankfurt am
Main][, ]Jlund ]J[London][, Jund][ e] fur den
Geschaftsverkehr gedéffnet sind]. [Sofern
EUR als Auszahlungswéahrung festgelegt
ist, einflgen: "TARGET2-System"
bezeichnet das Trans-European
Automated Real-time Gross Settlement
Express Transfer (TARGET?2)-
Zahlungssystem jedes
Nachfolgesystem dazu.]

oder

§5
(entfallt)

86
Zahlungen; Riickzahlungstag

Die Emittentin wird bis zu dem [flinften][e]
[(5)][[*]] Bankgeschéftstag nach dem
Finalen Bewertungstag (84 (2) der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen) (der
"Riickzahlungstag”) die Uberweisung
des gegebenenfalls zu beanspruchenden
Auszahlungsbetrags an das Clearing-
System zur Gutschrift auf die Konten der
Hinterleger der Wertpapiere bei dem
Clearing-System veranlassen. Sofern der
Finale Bewertungstag gemaR § 4 (2) der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
verschoben wird, ist der
Wertpapierinhaber nicht berechtigt,
Zinsen oder sonstige Zahlungen aufgrund
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®)

A declaration that neither the Security
Holder nor the beneficial owner of the
Securities is a U.S. person is deemed to
be issued automatically. The terms used
in this paragraph have the meaning
ascribed to them in Regulation S
promulgated under the United States
Securities Act of 1933, as amended from
time to time.

All taxes, fees or other charges arising in
connection with the exercise of the
Security Rights or with the payment of
the Cash Amount shall be borne and
paid by the Security Holder. The Issuer
or the Paying Agent has the right to
withhold any taxes, fees or other charges
which are payable by the Security
Holder, as aforementioned.

Section 7
(intentionally left blank)]

)

®3)

der Verschiebung zu verlangen.

Eine  Erklarung, dass weder der
Wertpapierinhaber noch der
wirtschaftliche Eigentimer  (beneficial

owner) der Wertpapiere eine US-Person
ist, gilt als automatisch abgegeben. Die in
diesem Absatz verwendeten
Bezeichnungen haben die Bedeutung, die
ihnen in Regulation S gemar dem United
States Securities Act von 1933 in seiner
jeweils gtiltigen Fassung zugewiesen ist.

Alle im Zusammenhang mit der Ausiibung
der Wertpapierrechte bzw. mit der
Zahlung des Auszahlungsbetrags
anfallenden Steuern, Gebulhren oder
anderen Abgaben sind von dem
Wertpapierinhaber zu tragen und zu
zahlen. Die Emittentin bzw. die Zahlstelle
ist berechtigt, etwaige Steuern, Gebuhren
oder sonstige Abgaben einzubehalten, die
von dem Wertpapierinhaber gemaf
vorstehendem Satz zu zahlen sind.

87
(entfallt)]
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[in case of Product No. 3, insert:

Product

No 3: [Open End Participation]

[Open End Index] Certificates

@)

)

1)

)

Section 1
Security Right; Transferability

Erste Group Bank AG, Vienna, Austria,
(the "Issuer™) hereby grants the holder
(the "Security Holder") of Open End
[Index] [Participation] Certificates (the
"Certificates” or the "Securities"),
relating to the Underlying (Section 9 (1)
of the Issue Specific Conditions), the
right (the "Security Right"), to demand
payment of the Cash Amount
(Section 2 (1) of the Issue Specific
Conditions) in accordance with these
Conditions.

The Certificates shall be transferable in
a number equal to the Minimum
Trading Number as specified in Table 1
in the Annex to the Issue Specific
Conditions (the "Minimum Trading

Number") or an integral multiple
thereof.

Section 2

Cash Amount
The "Cash Amount" per Security

corresponds to the Reference Price
(paragraph (2)) multiplied by the
[(current)] Multiplier (paragraph (4))
[and the Management Factor
(paragraph ([6][7]))]. The Cash Amount
is [if Currency Conversion is not
applicable, insert: denominated in the
Settlement Currency (paragraph (5))] [if
Currency Conversion is applicable,
insert: converted from the Reference
Currency (paragraph (5)) into the
Settlement Currency (paragraph (5))
pursuant to  paragraph (6) (the
"Currency Conversion")]. The Cash
Amount will be commercially rounded
to [two][e] decimal places, as the case
may be.

The "Reference Price" corresponds to
the Underlying Price (Section 9 (2) of
the Issue Specific Conditions) on the

[im Fall von Produkt Nr. 3 einfligen:

Produkt

Nr.3: [Open End Partizipations-]

[Open End Index-] Zertifikate

)

()

1)

)

81
Wertpapierrecht; Ubertragbarkeit

Erste Group Bank AG, Wien, Osterreich,
(die "Emittentin™) gewdahrt hiermit dem
Inhaber (der "Wertpapierinhaber") von
Open End [Index-][Partizipations-
|Zertifikaten (die "Zertifikate” oder die
"Wertpapiere"), bezogen auf  den
Basiswert (8 9 (1) der Emissionsbezogenen

Bedingungen), das Recht (das
"Wertpapierrecht"), nach MaRRgabe dieser
Bedingungen die Zahlung des

Auszahlungsbetrags
Emissionsbezogenen
verlangen.

(82(1) der
Bedingungen) zu

Die Zertifikate sind in einer Anzahl, die dem
in Tabelle 1 im Annex der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
festgelegten Mindesthandelsvolumen
entspricht (das
"Mindesthandelsvolumen"), oder einem
ganzzahligen Vielfachen davon
Ubertragbar.

8§82
Auszahlungsbetrag

Der "Auszahlungsbetrag" je Wertpapier
entspricht dem mit dem [(aktuellen)]
Bezugsverhaltnis (Absatz (4)) [und dem
Managementfaktor (Absatz ([6][71)]
multiplizierten Referenzpreis Absatz (2)).
Der Auszahlungsbetrag wird [sofern
Wahrungsumrechnung nicht anwendbar ist,
einfigen: in der Auszahlungswahrung

ausgedruckt (Absatz (5))] [sofern
Wéhrungsumrechnung  anwendbar ist,
einflgen: gemalR Absatz (6) von der

Referenzwéahrung (Absatz (5)) in die
Auszahlungswéahrung (Absatz (5))
umgerechnet (die
"Wéahrungsumrechnung")]. Der

Auszahlungsbetrag wird gegebenenfalls
auf [zwei][e] Nachkommastellen
kaufmannisch gerundet.

Der "Referenzpreis" entspricht der
Kursreferenz des Basiswerts (8 9 (2) der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen) am
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®)

4

Final Valuation Date (Section 4 (2) of
the Issue Specific Conditions).

The  "Initial Reference Price"
corresponds to the Initial Reference
Price of the Underlying on the Initial
Reference Date (Section 4 (1) of the
Issue Specific Conditions), as specified
in Table 1 in the Annex to the Issue
Specific Conditions, on the basis of
which the "Initial Issue Price", as
specified in Table 1 in the Annex to the
Issue Specific Conditions, has been
determined.

[The "Multiplier" corresponds to the
Multiplier as specified in Table 1 in the
Annex to the Issue  Specific
Conditions.][Initially the “"Multiplier"
corresponds to the Multiplier as
specified in Table 1 in the Annex to the
Issue  Specific  Conditions. The
Multiplier is adjusted on each Rollover
Date (89 (5) of the Issue Specific
Conditions) in  accordance  with
Section 9 (6) of the Issue Specific
Conditions.] [insert in the case of
performance indices as Underlying:
Initially the "Multiplier" corresponds to
the Multiplier as specified in Table 1 in
the Annex to the Issue Specific
Conditions. The Multiplier is adjusted
on each Dividend Record Date by
multiplying the Dividend Adjustment
Factor and the relevant Multiplier on the
respective Dividend Record Datel,
whereby the result will be commercially
rounded to [four][e] decimal places].

The "Dividend Adjustment Factor" or
"DAF" reflects the relation between (i)
the closing price of the index (cum
dividend) adjusted by the Dividend
Effect of the relevant share of the
relevant company for which dividends
or cash amounts equivalent to
dividends are to be distributed and (ii)
the closing price of the index (cum
dividend). The Dividend Adjustment
Factor is calculated according to the
following formula:

DAF = (SK — Dividend Effect) / SK,

whereby "SK" corresponds to the
closing price of the index (cum
dividend).

A "Dividend Record Date" is a day on
which shares of the relevant company

®3)

(4)

Finalen Bewertungstag (84 (2) der
Emissionshezogenen Bedingungen).

Der "Anfangliche Referenzpreis"
entspricht dem in der Tabelle 1 im Annex
der Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
angegebenen Anfanglichen Referenzpreis
des Basiswerts am  Anfénglichen
Referenztag (84 (1) der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen), auf
dessen Basis der in Tabelle 1 im Annex
der Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
angegebene "Anfangliche
Ausgabepreis" ermittelt wurde.

[Das "Bezugsverhaltnis" entspricht dem

in der Tabelle 1 im Annex der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
angegebenen Bezugsverhdltnis.][Das

"Bezugsverhaltnis" entspricht anfanglich
dem in der Tabelle 1 im Annex der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen

angegebenen  Bezugsverhdltnis. Das
Bezugsverhaltnis wird an jedem
Rollovertag (89 (5 der

Emissionsspezifischen Bedingungen)
gemal 89 (6) der Emissionsbezogenen
Bedingungen angepasst.] [im Fall von
Performanceindizes als Basiswert
gegebenenfalls einfligen: Das
"Bezugsverhaltnis" entspricht anfanglich

dem in der Tabellel im Annex der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
angegebenen  Bezugsverhdltnis. Das

Bezugsverhaltnis wird an jedem
Dividendentag angepasst, indem das an
dem jeweiligen Dividendentag
mafigebliche Bezugsverhaltnis mit dem
Dividendenanpassungsfaktor multipliziert
wird [, wobei das Ergebnis auf [vier][e]
Nachkommastellen kaufmannisch
gerundet wird].

Der "Dividendenanpassungsfaktor" oder
"DAF" spiegelt das Verhdltnis zwischen
(i) dem um den Dividendeneinfluss der
jeweiligen  Aktie des betreffenden
Unternehmens, auf die Dividenden bzw.
Dividenden gleichstehende Barbetrage
ausgeschiittet werden sollen, bereinigten
Schlusskurs des Index (Cum Dividende)
und (ii) dem Schlusskurs des Index (Cum
Dividende) wider. Der
Dividendenanpassungsfaktor wird
entsprechend nach der folgenden Formel
berechnet:

DAF = (SK - Dividendeneinfluss) / SK,

wobei "SK" dem Schlusskurs des Index
(Cum Dividende) entspricht.

Ein "Dividendentag" ist ein Tag, an dem
Aktien des betreffenden Unternehmens,
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[if Currency Conversion

for which dividends or cash amounts
equivalent to dividends are to be
distributed are traded "ex dividend" on
their relevant primary exchange.

The "Dividend Effect" corresponds to
an amount, which is calculated by the
Calculation Agent in its reasonable
discretion based on the dividends or
cash distributions equivalent to
dividends distributed on a Dividend
Record Date on the relevant share or
on one or several shares represented
in the Index, multiplied by the Dividend
Factor and the current weighting of the
respective share in the Index.

The "Dividend Factor"” on any given
day is the difference between (A) 1 and
(B) a value between 0 and 1, which is
calculated by the Calculation Agent in
its reasonable discretion based on the
taxes or charges payable by the
Calculation Agent or companies
affiliated with it on the dividends or
cash  distributions  equivalent to
dividends distributed on that day on the
relevant share or one or several of the
shares represented in the Index.]

The "Settlement Currency"
corresponds to the  Settlement
Currency as specified in Table 1 in the
Annex to the Issue Specific Conditions.
The "Reference Currency"
corresponds to the Reference Currency
as specified in Table 1 in the Annex to
the Issue Specific Conditions.

is applicable, the

following paragraph shall apply:

(6)

[if Quanto is applicable, insert: The
Reference Currency is converted into
the Settlement Currency by the
Calculation Agent at an exchange rate
of one unit of the Reference Currency
to one unit of the Settlement Currency
("Quanto").] [if Quanto is not
applicable, insert: The Reference
Currency is converted into the
Settlement Currency by the Calculation
Agent based on the exchange rate
expressed in the Reference Currency
for one unit of the Settlement Currency,
which is shown on the Final Valuation
Date (Section 4 (2) of the Issue Specific
Conditions) [at or around [insert
relevant time: e]] [at the time when the
Calculation Agent determines the

(%)

auf die Dividenden bzw. Dividenden
gleichstehende Barbetrage ausgeschiittet
werden sollen, an ihrer entsprechenden

Heimatbtrse "ex Dividende" gehandelt
werden.

Der "Dividendeneinfluss"  entspricht
einem Betrag, der von der

Berechnungsstelle nach billigem Ermessen
auf Grundlage der an einem Dividendentag
auf eine oder mehrere der im Index
vertretenen Aktien ausgeschiitteten
Dividenden bzw. Dividenden
gleichstehenden Barausschuttungen
berechnet wird, multipliziert mit dem
Dividendenfaktor und der aktuellen
Gewichtung der jeweiligen Aktie im Index.

Der "Dividendenfaktor” an einem
angegebenen Tag entspricht der Differenz
zwischen (A) 1 und (B) einem Wert
zwischen 0 und 1, der auf Grundlage der
an diesem Tag auf eine oder mehrere der

im Index vertretenen Aktien
ausgeschitteten Dividenden bzw.
Dividenden gleichstehenden
Barausschittungen von der
Berechnungsstelle bzw. mit ihr

verbundenen Unternehmen zu zahlenden
Steuern  oder  Abgaben von  der
Berechnungsstelle nach billigem Ermessen
berechnet wird.]

Die "Auszahlungswéahrung" entspricht
der in Tabellel im Annex der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
angegebenen Auszahlungswahrung. Die
"Referenzwéahrung" entspricht der in
Tabelle 1 im Annex der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
angegebenen Referenzwahrung.

[sofern Wahrungsumrechnung anwendbar ist, gilt
der folgende Absatz:

(6)

[sofern Quanto anwendbar ist, einfigen:
Die Referenzwdhrung wird von der
Berechnungsstelle in die
Auszahlungswahrung umgerechnet, wobei
eine Einheit der Referenzwahrung einer
Einheit der Auszahlungswéahrung
entspricht ("Quanto").] [sofern Quanto
nicht anwendbar ist, einfigen: Die
Referenzwéhrung wird von der
Berechnungsstelle basierend auf dem
Wechselkurs der Referenzwéahrung fur
eine Einheit der Auszahlungswahrung, wie
am Finalen Bewertungstag (84 (2) der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen) [um
oder gegen [maRgebliche Uhrzeit
einflgen: e]] [zum Zeitpunkt, zu dem die
Berechnungsstelle den  Referenzpreis
feststellt,] auf der in Tabelle 2 im Annex
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Reference Price] on the Exchange Rate
Screen Page as specified in Table 2 in
the Annex to the Issue Specific
Conditions (the "Exchange Rate
Screen Page") or any page replacing
it. If the conversion occurs at a time
when the Exchange Rate Screen Page
should not be available on the stated
date or if the exchange rate is not
shown, the exchange rate shall
correspond to the exchange rate shown
on the corresponding page of another
financial information service. If the
exchange rate should not or no longer
be shown in any of the above ways, the
Calculation Agent has the right to
determine in its reasonable discretion
an exchange rate determined based on
the then applicable market conditions,
taking into account the then existing
market situation, as the exchange
rate.]]

[([6][7]) The "Management Factor" or "MF"

corresponds to the conversion of the
Management Fee in line with the
maturity and according to the following
formula:

MF = 1 — Management Fee * (t / 365)

whereby t means the number of
calendar days since the Issue Date.

The Management Factor will be
commercially rounded to [four][e]
decimal places. The "Management
Fee" corresponds to the Management
Fee specified in Table 1 in the Annex to

the Issue Specific Conditions.]

Section 3
(intentionally left blank)

Section 4

Initial Reference Date; Final Valuation Date;

[((6][7]) Der

der Emissionsbezogenen
angegebenen

Bedingungen
Wechselkurs-
Bildschirmseite (die "Wechselkurs-
Bildschirmseite"), oder einer diese
ersetzende Seite, angezeigt, in die
Auszahlungswahrung umgerechnet. Sollte
die Umrechnung zu einem Zeitpunkt
erfolgen, zu dem die Waechselkurs-
Bildschirmseite an dem angegebenen Tag

nicht zur Verflgung steht oder der
Wechselkurs  nicht angezeigt  wird,
entspricht der  Wechselkurs dem

Wechselkurs, wie er auf der
entsprechenden Seite eines anderen
Wirtschaftsinformationsdienstes angezeigt
wird. Sollte der Wechselkurs nicht oder
nicht mehr in einer der vorgenannten
Arten  angezeigt werden, st die
Berechnungsstelle berechtigt, als
Wechselkurs einen auf der Basis der dann
geltenden  Marktusancen und unter
Bericksichtigung der dann herrschenden
Marktgegebenheiten nach billigem
Ermessen ermittelten Wechselkurs
festzulegen.]]

"Managementfaktor” oder "MF"
entspricht der laufzeitabhéngigen
Umrechnung der Managementgebihr und
wird nach folgender Formel berechnet:

MF = 1 — Managementgebihr * (t / 365)

wobei "t" die Anzahl der Kalendertage seit
dem Emissionstag bezeichnet.

Der Managementfaktor wird auf [vier][e]
Nachkommastellen kaufmannisch
gerundet. Die  "Managementgebihr”
entspricht der in der Tabelle 1 im Annex zu
den Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
angegebenen Managementgebiihr.]

§3
(entfallt)

§4

Anfanglicher Referenztag; Finaler Bewertungstaqg;

1)

)

Term; Business Day

The "Initial Reference Date"
corresponds to the Initial Reference
Date specified in Table 1 in the Annex
to the Issue Specific Conditions.

The "Final Valuation Date" is, in
respect of Securities that have not yet
been exercised pursuant to Section 5 of
the Issue Specific Conditions, [the day
following] the Termination Date in the
case of a termination (Section7 or

1)

)

Laufzeit; Bankgeschéftstag

Der "Anfangliche Referenztag" entspricht
dem in der Tabelle 1 im Annex der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
angegebenen Anfanglichen Referenztag.

Der "Finale Bewertungstag" entspricht
hinsichtlich noch nicht gemal 8§85 der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
ausgelibter Wertpapiere dem [dem]
Kindigungstermin [nachfolgenden Tag im
Fall einer Kindigung] (8 7 bzw. § 10 der
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4

Section 10 of the Issue Specific
Conditions or Section 5 of the General
Conditions) or, in the case of Securities

effectively  exercised pursuant to
Section5 of the Issue Specific
Conditions, if the Underlying Price

(Section 9 (2) of the Issue Specific
Conditions) of the Underlying is usually
determined on a Calculation Date
(Section 9 (2) of the Issue Specific
Conditions) after the Exercise Time
(Section 5 (1) of the Issue Specific
Conditions), the relevant Exercise Date
(Section 5 (1) of the Issue Specific
Conditions) or, if the Underlying Price
of the Underlying is usually determined
on a Calculation Date prior to the
Exercise Time, the Calculation Date
immediately following the relevant
Exercise Date. If the Final Valuation
Date is not a Calculation Date, the Final
Valuation Date is the next following day
which is a Calculation Date.

The "Term of the Securities” begins
on the First Settlement Date as
specified in Table 1 in the Annex to the
Issue Specific Conditions (the "First
Settlement Date") The end of the term
has not yet been set and, in the case of
Securities not yet exercised pursuant to

Section5 of the Issue Specific
Conditions, corresponds to the
Termination Date (Section7 or

Section 10 of the Issue Specific
Conditions or Section 5 of the General
Conditions).

"Business Day" is, subject to the
following rules and unless set forth
otherwise in these Terms and
Conditions, each day on which banks in
[Vienna][, J[and ][Frankfurt am Main][,
I[and ]J[London][, ][and ][e] are open for
business. In connection with payment
transactions in  accordance  with
Section 6 and Section 10 of the Issue
Specific Conditions, "Business Day" is
each day (except for Saturday and
Sunday) on which [if EUR is specified
as Settlement Currency, insert: the
TARGET2-System is open and] the
Clearing System (Section 2 (1) of the
General Conditions) processes
payments [and on which banks in
[Vienna][, J[and ][Frankfurt am Main][,
J[and ][London]][, ][and ][e] are open for
business]. [If EUR is specified as
Settlement Currency, insert:
"TARGET2-System" means the Trans-
European Automated Real-time Gross

®3)

(4)

Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen oder
§5 der Allgemeinen Bedingungen) bzw.
hinsichtlich geman §5 der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
wirksam ausgelbter Wertpapiere, sofern
die Kursreferenz (89 (2 der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen) des
Basiswerts  Ublicherweise an  einem
Berechnungstag (89 (2 der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen) nach
der Ausilibungszeit (85(1) der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen)
festgestellt wird, dem entsprechenden
Ausubungstermin (85(1) der
Emissionshezogenen Bedingungen) bzw.,
falls die Kursreferenz des Basiswerts
Ublicherweise an einem Berechnungstag
vor der AuslUbungszeit festgestellt wird,
dem Berechnungstag, der unmittelbar auf
den AuslUbungstermin folgt. Sollte der
Finale Bewertungstag kein Berechnungstag
sein, so ist der nachstfolgende Tag, der ein
Berechnungstag ist, der Finale
Bewertungstag.

Die "Laufzeit der Wertpapiere" beginnt
am in der Tabellel im Annex der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
genannten Ersten Valutatag (der "Erste
Valutatag”). Das Laufzeitende steht
gegenwartig noch nicht fest und entspricht
hinsichtlich noch nicht gemaR 85 der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
ausgeubter Wertpapiere dem
Kundigungstermin (8 7 bzw. 8§10 der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen bzw.
§ 5 der Allgemeinen Bedingungen).

"Bankgeschaftstag” ist, vorbehaltlich der
nachfolgenden Regelung und sofern nichts
Abweichendes in diesen
Zertifikatsbedingungen geregelt ist, jeder
Tag, an dem die Banken in [Wien][, J[und
J[Frankfurt am Main][, ]J[und ][London]],
Jlund][ o] fir den Geschéftsverkehr getffnet
sind. Im Zusammenhang mit
Zahlungsvorgangen gemal §6 und § 10
der Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen ist
"Bankgeschéftstag" jeder Tag (aulder
Samstag und Sonntag), an dem [sofern
EUR als Auszahlungswahrung festgelegt
ist, einfugen: das TARGET2-System
geodffnet ist und] das Clearing-System
(82 (1) der Allgemeinen Bedingungen)
Zahlungen abwickeltf und an dem die
Banken in [Wien][, JJund ][Frankfurt am
Main][, Jlund ][London][, Jlund][ e] flr den
Geschaftsverkehr getffnet sind]. [Sofern
EUR als Auszahlungswahrung festgelegt
ist, einfigen: "TARGET2-System"
bezeichnet das Trans-European Automated
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Settlement Express Transfer
(TARGET2) payment system or any
system succeeding it.]

Section 5
Exercise of the Securities

The Securities may be exercised by the
Security Holders pursuant to the
following terms (the "Exercise Right").
The Exercise Right may be exercised
by the Security Holders by [11.00][e]
o'clock (Vienna time) (the "Exercise
Time") from the start of the Exercise
Period (the "Start of the Exercise
Period") specified in Table 1 in the
Annex to the Issue Specific Conditions,
subject to an extraordinary or ordinary
termination of the Securities in
accordance  with  Section 10 or
Section7 of the Issue Specific
Conditions or Section 5 of the General
Conditions, on a Business Day in
[Vienna][e] (in each case the "Exercise
Period"). In the case of an
extraordinary or ordinary termination in
accordance  with  Section 10 or
Section7 of the Issue Specific
Conditions or Section 5 of the General
Conditions, the Securities may only be
exercised no later than [11.00]e]
o'clock (Vienna time) on the day the
termination becomes effective. In the
case of an extraordinary or ordinary
termination of the Securities by the
Issuer in accordance with Section 10 or
Section7 of the Issue Specific
Conditions or Section 5 of the General
Conditions before the end of the
Exercise Period, the Exercise Period
ends on the Termination Date.

"Exercise Date" means, subject to the
following conditions, the Business Day
in [Vienna][e], within the Exercise
Period, on which all conditions
specified in paragraphs (2) and (3) are
fulfiled by [11.00][e] o'clock (Vienna
time). If these conditions are fulfilled on
a day that is not a Business Day in
[Vienna][e] or after [11.00][e] o'clock
(Vienna time) on a Business Day in
[Vienna][e], the Exercise Date s
considered to be the immediately
following Business Day in [Vienna][e],
provided this day falls within the
Exercise Period.

Exercise Rights may only be exercised
in each case for the minimum number
of Securities as specified in Table 1 in

)

)

Real-time Gross Settlement Express
Transfer (TARGET2)-Zahlungssystem oder
jedes Nachfolgesystem dazu.]

§5
Ausubung der Wertpapiere
Die Wertpapiere konnen durch die
Wertpapierinhaber gemaf den

nachfolgenden Bestimmungen ausgelibt
werden (das "Ausiubungsrecht"). Das
Ausiibungsrecht kann, vorbehaltlich einer
aulRerordentlichen bzw. ordentlichen
Kindigung der Wertpapiere gemaR § 10
bzw. 87 der Emissionsbezogenen
Bedingungen bzw. 85 der Allgemeinen
Bedingungen durch die Wertpapierinhaber,
jeweils bis [11:00][e] Uhr (Ortszeit Wien)
(die "Ausubungszeit”) ab dem in der
Tabelle 1 im Annex der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
genannten Beginn der Ausubungsfrist (der
"Beginn der Ausibungsfrist”) an jedem
Bankgeschéaftstag in [Wien][e] ausgelbt
werden (jeweils die "Austbungsfrist"). Im
Fall einer  aulerordentlichen oder
ordentlichen Kundigung gemafR § 10 bzw.
§ 7 der Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
bzw. 85 der Allgemeinen Bedingungen
kann das Auslbungsrecht nur bis
spatestens [11:00][e] Uhr (Ortszeit Wien)
an dem Tag des Wirksamwerdens der
Kindigung ausgetbt werden. Im Falle einer
aul3erordentlichen oder ordentlichen
Kindigung der Wertpapiere durch die
Emittentin gemal 8§10 bzw. 87 der
Emissionshezogenen Bedingungen bzw.
§5 der Allgemeinen Bedingungen vor
Ablauf der Ausibungsfrist endet die
Ausubungsfrist am Kundigungstermin.

"Ausibungstermin” ist, vorbehaltlich der
nachfolgenden Bestimmungen, der
Bankgeschéaftstag in [Wien][e] innerhalb
der Ausiibungsfrist, an dem bis spétestens
[11:00][e] Uhr (Ortszeit Wien) samtliche in
den Absatzen (2) und (3) genannten
Bedingungen erfillt sind. Falls diese
Bedingungen an einem Tag erfullt sind, der
kein Bankgeschaftstag in [Wien][e] ist, oder
nach [11:00][e] Uhr (Ortszeit Wien) an
einem Bankgeschaftstag in [Wien][e], gilt
der néachstfolgende Bankgeschéftstag in
[Wien][e] als der Auslbungstermin,
vorausgesetzt, dass dieser Tag in die
Ausiibungsfrist fallt.

Ausiibungsrechte kdnnen jeweils nur fur
die Mindestausiibungsmenge, wie in
Tabelle 1 im Annex der
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(a)

(b)

(4)

the Annex to the Issue Specific
Conditions (the "Minimum Exercise
Number"). [if a maximum exercise
number is specified, insert: The total
number of exercised Securities must
not exceed the maximum exercise
number specified in Table 1 in the
Annex to the Issue Specific Conditions
(the "Maximum Exercise Number").]
On the exercise of the Securities on the
relevant Exercise Date, all rights in
respect of the redeemed Securities
expire.

In order to exercise the Security Rights
effectively, the following conditions
must also be fulfiled on a Business
Day within the Exercise Period:

a declaration signed with legally-
binding effect must have been
submitted to the Paying Agent
(Section 3 (1) of the General

Conditions), including the following
information: (i) the name of the Security
Holder, (ii) the designation and the
number of the Securities, the Security
Rights of which are exercised, (iii) a
suitable bank account to which any
Cash Amount denominated in the
Settlement Currency is to be credited,
and (iv) a declaration that neither the
Security Holder nor the beneficial
owner of the Securities is a U.S. person
(the "Exercise Notice", a template is
available at
https://produkte.erstegroup.com/Retail/
en/ServiceAndContact/Downloads/inde
x.phtml). The Exercise Notice Iis,
subject to Section8 of the Issue
Specific Conditions, irrevocable and
binding. The terms used in this
paragraph have the meaning ascribed
to them in Regulation S promulgated
under the United States Securities Act
of 1933, as amended from time to time;

the Securities must have been received
by the Paying Agent through credit of
the Securities to the account of the
Paying Agent at the Clearing System

(Section 2 (1) of the General
Conditions).
An Exercise Notice is void if the

conditions specified in paragraph (3)
are not fulfilled by the relevant Exercise
Date. If the number of Securities stated
in the Exercise Notice in relation to the
exercise differs from the number of
Securities registered with the Paying

®3)

(@)

(b)

(4)

Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen

festgelegt, (die
"Mindestaustibungsmenge") ausgeibt
werden. [sofern eine
Hoéchstausiibungsmenge  festgelegt st

einflgen: Die Gesamtzahl der ausgelbten
Wertpapiere darf die in Tabelle 1 im Annex
der Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
festgelegte Hochstausibungsmenge (die

"Hochstausibungsmenge") nicht
Uberschreiten.] Mit der Auslbung der
Wertpapiere am jeweiligen

Ausiibungstermin erldschen alle Rechte
aus den eingeldsten Wertpapieren.

Zu einer wirksamen
Wertpapierrechte

Ausuibung  der
missen an  einem
Bankgeschéftstag innerhalb der
Ausubungsfrist  ferner die folgenden
Bedingungen erflillt sein:

bei der Zahlstelle (§ 3 (1) der Allgemeinen
Bedingungen) muss eine rechtsverbindlich
unterzeichnete Erklarung eingereicht sein,
die die folgenden Angaben enthdlt: (i) den
Namen des Wertpapierinhabers, (i) die
Bezeichnung und die Anzahl der

Wertpapiere, deren  Wertpapierrechte
ausgelibt werden, (iii) ein geeignetes
Bankkonto, dem gegebenenfalls der

Auszahlungsbetrag in der
Auszahlungswéhrung gutgeschrieben
werden soll, und (iv) eine Erklarung, dass
weder der Wertpapierinhaber noch der
wirtschaftliche  Eigentimer  (beneficial
owner) der Wertpapiere eine US-Person ist
(die "Ausibungserklarung”, eine Vorlage
ist unter
https://produkte.erstegroup.com/Retail/de/S
erviceAndContact/Downloads/index.phtml
verfugbar). Die AusiUbungserklarung ist,
vorbehaltlich § 8 der Emissionsbezogenen
Bedingungen, unwiderruflich und bindend.
Die in diesem Absatz verwendeten
Bezeichnungen haben die Bedeutung, die
ihnen in Regulation S gemall dem United
States Securities Act von 1933 in seiner
jeweils gultigen Fassung beigelegt ist;

die Wertpapiere missen bei der Zahlstelle
durch Gutschrift der Wertpapiere auf das
Konto der Zahlstelle bei dem Clearing-
System (82 (1) der Allgemeinen
Bedingungen) eingegangen sein.

Eine Ausubungserklarung ist nichtig, wenn
die in Absatz (3) genannten Bedingungen
erst nach dem betreffenden
Ausiibungstermin erfillt sind. Weicht die in
der Ausubungserklarung genannte Zahl
von Wertpapieren, fur die die Austbung
beantragt wird, von der Zahl der bei der
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Agent, the Exercise Notice is
considered to apply only to the lesser of
the two quantities of Securities. Any
excess Securities are to be transferred
back to the Security Holder at such
Security Holder's own cost and risk.

All taxes, fees or other charges arising
in connection with the exercise of
Securities or with the payment of the
Cash Amount shall be borne and paid
by the Security Holder. The Issuer or
the Paying Agent has the right to
withhold any taxes, fees or other
charges payable by the Security
Holder, as aforesaid.

Section 6
Payments; Repayment Date

The Issuer will cause the transfer of
any Cash Amount by the I[fifth][e]
[(5th)][e] Business Day after the Final
Valuation Date (Section 4 (2) of the
Issue  Specific  Conditions) (the
"Repayment Date") to the Clearing
System for credit to the accounts of the
depositors of the Securities with the
Clearing System.

A declaration that neither the Security
Holder nor the beneficial owner of the
Securities is a U.S. person is deemed
to be issued automatically. The terms
used in this paragraph have the
meaning ascribed to them in Regulation
S promulgated under the United States
Securities Act of 1933, as amended
from time to time.

All taxes, fees or other charges arising
in connection with the exercise of the
Security Rights or with the payment of
the Cash Amount shall be borne and
paid by the Security Holder. The Issuer
or the Paying Agent has the right to
withhold any taxes, fees or other
charges payable by the Security
Holder, as aforesaid.

(%)

(1)

)

®3)

Zahlstelle eingegangenen Wertpapieren
ab, so qilt die Ausiibungserklarung nur fur
die der niedrigeren der beiden Zahlen
entsprechende Anzahl von Wertpapieren
als eingereicht. Etwaige Uberschissige
Wertpapiere werden auf Kosten und Gefahr
des Wertpapierinhabers an diesen zurtick
Ubertragen.

Alle im Zusammenhang mit der Ausibung
von Wertpapieren bzw. mit der Zahlung des
Auszahlungsbetrags anfallenden Steuern,
Geblhren oder anderen Abgaben sind von
dem Wertpapierinhaber zu tragen und zu
zahlen. Die Emittentin bzw. die Zahlstelle
ist berechtigt, etwaige Steuern, Gebihren
oder Abgaben einzubehalten, die von dem
Wertpapierinhaber gemafR vorstehendem
Satz zu zahlen sind.

86
Zahlungen; Riickzahlungstag

Die Emittentin wird bis zu dem [flinften][e]
[(5.)]l[e]] Bankgeschéftstag nach  dem
Finalen Bewertungstag (84 (2) der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen) (der
"Riickzahlungstag") die Uberweisung des
gegebenenfalls  zu beanspruchenden
Auszahlungsbetrags an das Clearing-
System zur Gutschrift auf die Konten der

Hinterleger der Wertpapiere bei dem
Clearing-System veranlassen.
Eine Erklarung, dass weder der

Wertpapierinhaber noch der wirtschaftliche
Eigentumer  (beneficial owner)  der
Wertpapiere eine US-Person ist, gilt als
automatisch abgegeben. Die in diesem
Absatz verwendeten Bezeichnungen haben
die Bedeutung, die ihnen in Regulation S
gemalR dem United States Securities Act
von 1933 in seiner jeweils glltigen Fassung
zugewiesen ist.

Alle im Zusammenhang mit der Ausiibung
der Wertpapierrechte bzw. mit der Zahlung
des  Auszahlungsbetrags  anfallenden
Steuern, Gebihren oder anderen Abgaben
sind von dem Wertpapierinhaber zu tragen
und zu zahlen. Die Emittentin bzw. die
Zahlstelle ist berechtigt, etwaige Steuern,
Geblhren oder Abgaben einzubehalten,
die von dem Wertpapierinhaber gemaf
vorstehendem Satz zu zahlen sind.
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Section 7

Ordinary Termination by the Issuer

The Issuer has the right to terminate
the Securities at all times in their
entirety, but not partially, during their
term through an announcement in
accordance with Section 6 (Notices) of
the General Conditions, stating the
calendar day on which the termination
becomes effective (the "Termination
Date”) and subject to a prior
termination notice period of at least
[three (3)][e] month[s] (the
"Termination Notice Period") prior to
the respective Termination Date
effective on an Exercise Date. The
termination amount (the "Termination
Amount") is calculated in the same
manner as the Cash Amount (Section 2
of the Issue Specific Conditions). For
purposes of calculating the Cash
Amount in accordance with Section 2 of
the Issue Specific Conditions, [the day
following] the Termination Date is
deemed to be the Final Valuation Date
in the sense of these Terms and
Conditions. If this date should not be a
Calculation Date, the next following
Calculation Date is deemed to be the
Final Valuation Date. The termination is
irrevocable and must state the
Termination Date.

The Issuer will cause the transfer of
any Cash Amount by the f[fifth][e]
[5th][e] Business Day after the
Termination Date for credit to the
accounts of the depositors of the
Securities with the Clearing System. In
the case of an ordinary termination
pursuant to  paragraph (1), the
declaration specified in Section 6 (2) of
the Issue Specific Conditions is
deemed to be issued automatically.

All taxes, fees or other charges arising
in connection with the payment of the
Termination Amount shall be borne and
paid by the Security Holder. The Issuer
or the Paying Agent has the right to
withhold any taxes, fees or other
charges payable by the Security
Holder, as aforesaid.]

)

)

®3)

§7

Ordentliche Kiindigung durch die Emittentin

Die Emittentin ist jederzeit berechtigt, die
Wertpapiere insgesamt, jedoch nicht
teilweise, wahrend ihrer Laufzeit durch
Bekanntmachung geman 86
(Bekanntmachungen) der Allgemeinen
Bedingungen unter Angabe des
Kalendertags, zu dem die Kindigung
wirksam wird (der "Kindigungstermin"),
und unter Wahrung einer Kindigungsfrist
von mindestens [drei (3)][e¢] Monat[en] vor

dem jeweiligen Kuindigungstermin (die
"Kindigungsfrist™) mit Wirkung zu einem
Ausiibungstag Zu kindigen. Der
Kindigungsbetrag (der
"Kundigungsbetrag") wird auf dieselbe
Weise berechnet wie der
Auszahlungsbetrag (82 der

Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen). Fir
die Zwecke der Berechnung des
Auszahlungsbetrags gemalR 8§82 der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen gilt der
[dem] Kuindigungstermin [nachfolgende
Tag] als Finaler Bewertungstag im Sinne
dieser Zertifikatsbedingungen. Sollte dieser
Tag kein Berechnungstag sein, so gilt der
nachstfolgende Berechnungstag als Finaler
Bewertungstag. Die Kindigung ist
unwiderruflich und muss den
Kindigungstermin benennen.

Die Emittentin wird bis zu dem [flinften][e]
[(5.)][(e)] Bankgeschéftstag nach  dem
Kundigungstermin die Uberweisung des
Kindigungsbetrags an das Clearing-
System zur Gutschrift auf die Konten der
Hinterleger der Wertpapiere bei dem
Clearing-System veranlassen. Im Fall einer
ordentlichen Kindigung gemal Absatz (1)
gilt die in 8 6 (2) der Emissionsbezogenen
Bedingungen genannte Erklarung als
automatisch abgegeben.

Alle im Zusammenhang mit der Zahlung
des Kindigungsbetrags anfallenden
Steuern, Gebihren oder anderen Abgaben
sind von dem Wertpapierinhaber zu tragen
und zu zahlen. Die Emittentin bzw. die
Zahlstelle ist berechtigt, etwaige Steuern,
Gebihren  oder sonstige  Abgaben
einzubehalten, die von dem
Wertpapierinhaber gemafR vorstehendem
Satz zu zahlen sind.]
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[in case of Product No 4, insert:

Product

No 4. [Reverse Bonus] [Capped

Reverse Bonus] Certificates

1)

2

1)

)

Section 1
Security Right; Transferability

Erste Group Bank AG, Vienna, Austria,
(the "Issuer") hereby grants the holder
(the "Security Holder") of Reverse
Bonus Certificates [with Cap] (the
"Certificates" or the "Securities"),
relating to the Underlying (Section 9 (1) of
the Issue Specific Conditions), the right
(the "Security Right"), to demand
payment of the Cash  Amount
(Section 2 (1) of the Issue Specific
Conditions) in accordance with these
Conditions.

The Certificates shall be transferable in a
number equal to the Minimum Trading
Number as specified in Table 1 in the
Annex to the Issue Specific Conditions
(the "Minimum Trading Number") or an
integral multiple thereof.

Section 2
Cash Amount

The "Cash Amount" per Security
corresponds to the difference between
the Reverse Level (paragraph (8)) and
the Reference Price (paragraph (5))
multiplied by the Multiplier
(paragraph (6)), subject to the payment of
a Minimum Amount (paragraph (2)) [and
subject to the payment of a Maximum
Amount (paragraph (3))], but at least zero
(0). The Cash Amount is [if Currency
Conversion is not applicable, insert:
denominated in the Settlement Currency
(paragraph (7))] [if Currency Conversion
is applicable, insert: converted from the
Reference Currency (paragraph (7)) into
the Settlement Currency (paragraph (7))
pursuant to paragraph (9) (the "Currency
Conversion")]. The Cash Amount will be
commercially rounded to [two][e] decimal
places, as the case may be.

If the [Observation Price (Section 9 (2) of

[im Fall von Produkt Nr. 4 einfiigen:

Produkt

Nr. 4: [Reverse Bonus] [Capped

Reverse Bonus] Zertifikate

1)

2

@)

)

81
Wertpapierrecht; Ubertragbarkeit

Erste Group Bank AG, Wien, Osterreich,
(die "Emittentin") gewahrt hiermit dem
Inhaber (der "Wertpapierinhaber") von
Reverse Bonus Zertifikaten [mit Cap] (die
"Zertifikate" oder die "Wertpapiere"),
bezogen auf den Basiswert (8 9 (1) der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen), das
Recht (das "Wertpapierrecht”), nach
MalRgabe dieser Bedingungen die Zahlung
des Auszahlungsbetrags (82 (1) der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen) zu
verlangen.

Die Zertifikate sind in einer Anzahl, die
dem in Tabellel im Annex der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
festgelegten Mindesthandelsvolumen
entspricht (das
"Mindesthandelsvolumen"), oder einem
ganzzahligen Vielfachen davon
Ubertragbar.

8§82
Auszahlungsbetrag

Der "Auszahlungsbetrag" je Wertpapier
entspricht, vorbehaltlich einer der Zahlung
eines Mindestbetrags (Absatz (2)) [und
vorbehaltlich der Zahlung eines
Hochstbetrags (Absatz (3))], der mit dem
Bezugsverhaltnis (Absatz (6))
multiplizierten Differenz zwischen
Reverselevel (Absatz (8)) und dem
Referenzpreis (Absatz (5)) mindestens
jedoch null (0). Der Auszahlungsbetrag
wird [sofern Wahrungsumrechnung nicht
anwendbar ist, einfugen: in  der

Auszahlungswahrung ausgedruckt
(Absatz (7))] [sofern
Wahrungsumrechnung anwendbar ist,
einfiugen: gemdal Absatz (9) von der

Referenzwéhrung (Absatz (7)) in die
Auszahlungswahrung (Absatz (7))
umgerechnet (die
"Wahrungsumrechnung")]. Der

Auszahlungsbetrag wird gegebenenfalls
auf [zwei][e] Nachkommastellen
kaufméannisch gerundet.

Sofern der [Beobachtungskurs (8 9 (2) der
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the Issue Specific Conditions) does not
reach or exceed the Barrier (Section 3 (1)
of the Issue Specific Conditions) at any

time during the Observation Period
(Section 3 (2) of the Issue Specific
Conditions)] [Reference Price

(paragraph (5)) does not reach or exceed
the Barrier (Section3 of the Issue
Specific  Conditions) on the Final
Valuation Date], the Cash Amount per
Security corresponds [at least] to the
difference between the Reverse Level
(paragraph (8)) and the Bonus Level
multiplied by the Multiplier (paragraph 6))
(the "Bonus Amount" or the "Minimum
Amount"). The "Bonus Level”
corresponds to the Bonus Level as
specified in Table 1 in the Annex to the
Issue Specific Conditions. The Bonus
Amount [if Currency Conversion is not
applicable, insert: is denominated in the
Settlement Currency (paragraph (7))] [if
Currency Conversion is applicable, insert:
is converted from the Reference Currency
(paragraph 7)) into the Settlement
Currency (paragraph (7)) (the "Currency
Conversion")] pursuant to
paragraph (9).] The Bonus Amount will be
commercially rounded to [two][e] decimal
places, as the case may be.

[(intentionally left blank)] [insert in the
case of Reverse Bonus Certificates with
Cap:

The Cash Amount per Security
corresponds at the most to the Maximum
Amount. The "Maximum Amount"
corresponds to the difference between
the Reverse Level (paragraph (8)) and
the Cap multiplied by the Multiplier
(paragraph (6)). The "Cap" corresponds
to the Cap specified in Table 1 in the
Annex to the Issue Specific Conditions.
The Maximum Amount is [if Currency
Conversion is not applicable, insert:
denominated in the Settlement Currency
(paragraph (7))] [if Currency Conversion
is applicable, insert: converted from the
Reference Currency (paragraph (7)) into
the Settlement Currency (paragraph (7))
pursuant to paragraph (9) (the "Currency
Conversion")]. The Maximum Amount
will be commercially rounded to [two][e]
decimal places, as the case may be.]

The "Initial Reference Price"

®)

(4)

Emissionsbezogenen
keinem Zeitpunkt wéahrend des
Beobachtungszeitraums (8 3(2) der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen) die
Barriere (8 3 (1) der Emissionsbezogenen
Bedingungen) erreicht oder Uberschreitet]
[Referenzpreis (Absatz (5)) am Finalen
Bewertungstag die Barriere (83 der
Emissionshezogenen Bedingungen) nicht
erreicht oder Uberschreitet], entspricht der
Auszahlungsbetrag je Wertpapier
[mindestens] der mit dem
Bezugsverhéltnis (Absatz (6))
multiplizierten Differenz zwischen dem
Reverselevel (Absatz (8)) und dem
Bonuslevel (der "Bonusbetrag” oder der
"Mindestbetrag”). Der "Bonuslevel"
entspricht dem in der Tabelle 1 im Annex
der Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
angegebenen Bonuslevel. Der
Bonusbetrag wird [sofern
Wahrungsumrechnung nicht anwendbar
ist, einfugen: in der Auszahlungswéhrung

Bedingungen) zu

ausgedrickt (Absatz (7))] [sofern
Wahrungsumrechnung anwendbar ist,
einfigen: gemanR Absatz (9) von der

Referenzwéhrung (Absatz (7)) in die
Auszahlungswahrung (Absatz (7))
umgerechnet (die
"Wahrungsumrechnung")]. Der

Bonusbetrag wird gegebenenfalls auf
[zwei][e] Nachkommastellen
kaufmannisch gerundet.

[(entfallt)]im Fall von Reverse Bonus
Zertifikaten mit Cap einflgen:

Der Auszahlungsbetrag je Wertpapier
entspricht hoéchstens dem Hdchstbetrag.
Der "Hochstbetrag" entspricht der mit
dem Bezugsverhéltnis (Absatz (6))
multiplizierten Differenz zwischen dem
Reverselevel (Absatz (8)) und dem Cap.
Der "Cap" entspricht dem in der Tabelle 1
im Annex der Emissionsbezogenen
Bedingungen angegebenen Cap. Der
Hochstbetrag wird [sofern
Wahrungsumrechnung nicht anwendbar
ist, einfigen: in der Auszahlungswéhrung

ausgedruckt (Absatz (7))] [sofern
Wahrungsumrechnung anwendbar ist,
einfigen: gemaR Absatz (9) von der

Referenzwéhrung (Absatz (7)) in die
Auszahlungswahrung (Absatz (7))
umgerechnet (die
"Wahrungsumrechnung™]. Der

Hochstbetrag wird gegebenenfalls auf
[zwei][e] Nachkommastellen
kaufmannisch gerundet.]

Der "Anfangliche Referenzpreis"
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[if

Currency Conversion

corresponds to the Initial Reference Price
of the Underlying on the Initial Reference
Date (Section 4 (1) of the Issue Specific
Conditions), as specified in Table 1 in the
Annex to the Issue Specific Conditions,
on the basis of which the "Initial Issue
Price", as specified in Table1l in the
Annex to the Issue Specific Conditions,
and the Reverse Level (paragraph (8))
have been determined.

The "Reference Price" corresponds to
the Underlying Price (Section 9 (2) of the
Issue Specific Conditions) on the Final
Valuation Date (Section 4 (2) of the Issue
Specific Conditions).

The "Multiplier" corresponds to the
Multiplier as specified in Table 1 in the
Annex to the Issue Specific Conditions.

The "Settlement Currency" corresponds
to the Settlement Currency as specified in
Table 1 in the Annex to the Issue Specific
Conditions. The "Reference Currency"
corresponds to the Reference Currency
as specified in Table 1 in the Annex to the
Issue Specific Conditions.

The "Reverse Level" corresponds to the
Reverse Level as specified in Table 1 in
the Annex to the Issue Specific
Conditions.

is applicable, the

following paragraph shall apply:

9)

[if Quanto is applicable, insert: The
Reference Currency is converted into the
Settlement Currency by the Calculation
Agent at an exchange rate of one unit of
the Reference Currency to one unit of the
Settlement Currency ("Quanto").] [if
Quanto is not applicable, insert: The
Reference Currency is converted into the
Settlement Currency by the Calculation
Agent based on the exchange rate
expressed in the Reference Currency for
one unit of the Settlement Currency,
which is shown on the Final Valuation
Date (Section 4 (2) of the Issue Specific
Conditions) [at or around [insert relevant
time: o]] [at the time when the Calculation
Agent determines the Reference Price]
on the Exchange Rate Screen Page as
specified in Table 2 in the Annex to the
Issue Specific Conditions (the "Exchange
Rate Screen Page") or any page
replacing it. If the conversion occurs at a
time when the Exchange Rate Screen
Page should not be available on the

®)

(6)

@)

C)

entspricht dem in der Tabelle 1 im Annex
der Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
angegebenen Anfanglichen Referenzpreis
des Basiswerts am  Anfanglichen
Referenztag (84 (1) der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen), auf
dessen Basis der in Tabelle 1 im Annex
der Emissionshezogenen Bedingungen
angegebene "Anfangliche
Ausgabepreis"” und der Reverselevel
(Absatz (8)) ermittelt wurden.

Der "Referenzpreis" entspricht der
Kursreferenz des Basiswerts (8 9 (2) der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen) am
Finalen Bewertungstag (84 (2) der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen).

Das "Bezugsverhaltnis" entspricht dem in
der Tabelle 1 im Annex der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
angegebenen Bezugsverhaltnis.

Die "Auszahlungswéahrung" entspricht
der in Tabellel im Annex der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
angegebenen Auszahlungswahrung. Die
"Referenzwahrung” entspricht der in
Tabelle 1 im Annex der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
angegebenen Referenzwahrung.

Das "Reverselevel” entspricht dem in der
Tabelle 1 im Annex der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
angegebenen Reverselevel.

[sofern Wahrungsumrechnung anwendbar ist, gilt
der folgende Absatz:

9)

[sofern Quanto anwendbar ist, einfligen:
Die Referenzwdhrung wird von der
Berechnungsstelle in die
Auszahlungswahrung umgerechnet, wobei
eine Einheit der Referenzwédhrung einer
Einheit der Auszahlungswahrung
entspricht ("Quanto").] [sofern Quanto
nicht anwendbar ist, einfigen: Die
Referenzwéhrung wird von der
Berechnungsstelle basierend auf dem
Wechselkurs der Referenzwahrung fur
eine Einheit der Auszahlungswéhrung, wie
am Finalen Bewertungstag (84 (2) der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen) [um
oder gegen [malRgebliche Uhrzeit
einflgen: eo]] [zum Zeitpunkt, zu dem die
Berechnungsstelle den Referenzpreis
feststellt,] auf der in Tabelle 2 im Annex
der Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
angegebenen Wechselkurs-
Bildschirmseite (die "Wechselkurs-
Bildschirmseite"), oder einer diese
ersetzende Seite, angezeigt, in die
Auszahlungswahrung umgerechnet. Sollte
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stated date or if the exchange rate is not
shown, the exchange rate shall
correspond to the exchange rate shown
on the corresponding page of another
financial information service. If the
exchange rate should not or no longer be
shown in any of the above ways, the
Calculation Agent has the right to
determine in its reasonable discretion an
exchange rate determined based on the
then applicable market conditions, taking
into account the then existing market
situation, as the exchange rate.]]

Section 3
Barrier[; Observation Period]

[(1)] The "Barrier" corresponds to the Barrier
specified in Table 1 in the Annex to the
Issue Specific Conditions.

[(2) The "Observation Period" corresponds
to the Observation Period specified in
Table 1 in the Annex to the Issue Specific
Conditions.]

Section 4
Initial Reference Date; Final Valuation Date;

die Umrechnung 2zu einem Zeitpunkt
erfolgen, zu dem die Wechselkurs-
Bildschirmseite an dem angegebenen Tag
nicht zur Verfigung steht oder der
Wechselkurs  nicht angezeigt  wird,
entspricht  der  Wechselkurs  dem
Wechselkurs, wie er auf der
entsprechenden Seite eines anderen
Wirtschaftsinformationsdienstes angezeigt
wird. Sollte der Wechselkurs nicht oder
nicht mehr in einer der vorgenannten
Arten  angezeigt werden, ist die
Berechnungsstelle berechtigt, als
Wechselkurs einen auf der Basis der dann
geltenden  Marktusancen und unter
Berlcksichtigung der dann herrschenden
Marktgegebenheiten nach billigem
Ermessen ermittelten Wechselkurs
festzulegen.]]

83
Barriere[; Beobachtungszeitraum]

[(1)] Die "Barriere" entspricht der in der
Tabelle 1 im Annex der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
angegebenen Barriere.

[(2) Der "Beobachtungszeitraum" entspricht
dem in der Tabelle 1 im Annex der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
angegebenen Beobachtungszeitraum.]

84
Anfanglicher Referenztaqg; Finaler Bewertungstaq;

Term; Business Day

(1) The “Initial Reference Date"
corresponds to the Initial Reference Date
specified in Table 1 in the Annex to the
Issue Specific Conditions.

(2) The "Final Valuation Date" is, subject to
Section 10 of the Issue Specific
Conditions, the Final Valuation Date
specified in Table 1 in the Annex to the
Issue Specific Conditions. If the Final
Valuation Date is not a Calculation Date
(Section 9 (2) of the Issue Specific
Conditions), the Final Valuation Date is
the next following day which is a
Calculation Date.

3) The "Term of the Securities" begins on
the First Settlement Date as specified in
Table 1 in the Annex to the Issue Specific
Conditions (the "First Settlement Date")
and ends, subject to an extraordinary
termination in accordance with

Laufzeit; Bankgeschéftstag

1) Der "Anfangliche Referenztag" entspricht
dem in der Tabelle 1 im Annex der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
angegebenen Anfanglichen Referenztag.

(2) Der "Finale Bewertungstag" entspricht,
vorbehaltlich § 10 der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen, dem
in der Tabellel im Annex der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
angegebenen Finalen Bewertungstag.
Sollte der Finale Bewertungstag kein
Berechnungstag (89(2 der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen) sein,
so ist der nachstfolgende Tag, der ein
Berechnungstag ist, der Finale
Bewertungstag.

3) Die "Laufzeit der Wertpapiere" beginnt
am in der Tabelle 1 im Annex der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
genannten Ersten Valutatag (der "Erste
Valutatag") und endet, vorbehaltlich einer
aul3erordentlichen  Kindigung gemaf
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(4)

1)

)

Section 10 (1) of the Issue Specific
Conditions or Section 5 of the General
Conditions, on the Final Valuation Date
(paragraph (2)).

"Business Day" is, subject to the
following rules and unless set forth
otherwise in these Terms and Conditions,
each day on which banks in [Vienna][,

Jland ][Frankfurt am Main][, ][and
JlLondon][, ][and ][e] are open for
business. In connection with payment

transactions in accordance with Section 6
and Section 10 of the Issue Specific
Conditions, "Business Day" is each day
(except for Saturday and Sunday) on
which [if EUR is specified as Settlement
Currency, insert: the TARGET2-System is
open and] the Clearing System
(Section 2 (1) of the General Conditions)
processes payments [and on which banks
in [Vienna][, J[and ][Frankfurt am Main][,
J[and ][London][, ]and ][e] are open for
business]. [If EUR is specified as
Settlement Currency, insert: "TARGET2-
System" means the Trans-European
Automated Real-time Gross Settlement
Express Transfer (TARGET2) payment
system or any system succeeding it.]

Section 5
(intentionally left blank)

Section 6
Payments; Repayment Date

The Issuer will cause the transfer of any
Cash Amount by the [fifth][e] [5th]
[e] Business Day after the Final Valuation
Date (Section 4 (2) of the Issue Specific
Conditions) (the "Repayment Date") to
the Clearing System for credit to the
accounts of the depositors of the
Securities with the Clearing System. If the
Final Valuation Date is postponed
pursuant to Section 4 (2) of the lIssue
Specific Conditions, the Security Holder is
not entitled to demand interest or other
payments on the basis of the
postponement.

A declaration that neither the Security
Holder nor the beneficial owner of the
Securities is a U.S. person is deemed to
be issued automatically. The terms used

(4)

1)

)

§10 (1) der Emissionsbezogenen
Bedingungen bzw. 8§ 5 der Allgemeinen
Bedingungen, am Finalen Bewertungstag
(Absatz (2)).

"Bankgeschaftstag” ist, vorbehaltlich der
nachfolgenden Regelung und sofern
nichts Abweichendes in diesen
Zertifikatsbedingungen geregelt ist, jeder
Tag, an dem die Banken in [Wien][, J[und
J[Frankfurt am Main][, ]Jlund ][London][,
Jlund][ e] fir den Geschéaftsverkehr
gedffnet sind. Im Zusammenhang mit
Zahlungsvorgangen gemafl 8 6 und § 10
der Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen ist
"Bankgeschaftstag" jeder Tag (aul3er
Samstag und Sonntag), an dem [sofern
EUR als Auszahlungswahrung festgelegt
ist, einfigen: das TARGET2-System
gedffnet ist und] das Clearing-System
(82 (1) der Allgemeinen Bedingungen)
Zahlungen abwickeltf und an dem die
Banken in [Wien][, Jlund ][Frankfurt am
Main][, JJund J[London][, J[und][ e] fiir den
Geschéftsverkehr gedffnet sind]. [Sofern
EUR als Auszahlungswahrung festgelegt
ist, einfigen: "TARGET2-System"
bezeichnet das Trans-European
Automated Real-time Gross Settlement
Express Transfer (TARGET?2)-
Zahlungssystem jedes
Nachfolgesystem dazu.]

oder

85
(entfallt)

86
Zahlungen; Riickzahlungstag

Die Emittentin wird bis zu dem [fiinften][e]
[(5.)][*]] Bankgeschéftstag nach dem
Finalen Bewertungstag (84 (2) der
Emissionshezogenen Bedingungen) (der
"Riickzahlungstag") die Uberweisung des
gegebenenfalls zu  beanspruchenden
Auszahlungsbetrags an das Clearing-
System zur Gutschrift auf die Konten der
Hinterleger der Wertpapiere bei dem
Clearing-System veranlassen. Sofern der
Finale Bewertungstag gemaR § 4 (2) der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
verschoben wird, ist der
Wertpapierinhaber nicht berechtigt, Zinsen
oder sonstige Zahlungen aufgrund der
Verschiebung zu verlangen.

Eine Erklarung, dass weder der
Wertpapierinhaber noch der
wirtschaftliche  Eigentimer  (beneficial

owner) der Wertpapiere eine US-Person
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®3)

in this paragraph have the meaning
ascribed to them in Regulation S
promulgated under the United States
Securities Act of 1933, as amended from
time to time.

All taxes, fees or other charges arising in
connection with the exercise of the
Security Rights or with the payment of the
Cash Amount shall be borne and paid by
the Security Holder. The Issuer or the
Paying Agent has the right to withhold
any taxes, fees or other charges payable
by the Security Holder, as aforesaid.

Section 7
(intentionally left blank)]

©)

ist, gilt als automatisch abgegeben. Die in
diesem Absatz verwendeten
Bezeichnungen haben die Bedeutung, die
ihnen in Regulation S gem&R dem United
States Securities Act von 1933 in seiner
jeweils gultigen Fassung zugewiesen ist.

Alle im Zusammenhang mit der Ausibung
der Wertpapierrechte bzw. mit der
Zahlung des Auszahlungsbetrags
anfallenden Steuern, Gebuhren oder
anderen Abgaben sind von dem
Wertpapierinhaber zu tragen und zu
zahlen. Die Emittentin bzw. die Zahlstelle
ist berechtigt, etwaige Steuern, Geblhren
oder Abgaben einzubehalten, die von dem
Wertpapierinhaber gemaf vorstehendem
Satz zu zahlen sind.

§7
(entfallt)]
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[in case of Product No. 5, insert:

Product

No 5: [Participation] [Index]

Certificates

1)

)

1)

)

®3)

Section 1
Security Right; Transferability

Erste Group Bank AG, Vienna, Austria,
(the "Issuer") hereby grants the holder

(the "Security Holder") of [Index]
[Participation] Certificates (the
"Certificates” or the "Securities"),

relating to the Underlying (Section 9 (1) of
the Issue Specific Conditions), the right
(the "Security Right"), to demand
payment of the Cash  Amount
(Section2 (1) of the Issue Specific
Conditions) in accordance with these
Conditions.

The Certificates shall be transferable in a
number equal to the Minimum Trading
Number as specified in Table 1 in the
Annex to the Issue Specific Conditions
(the "Minimum Trading Number") or an
integral multiple thereof.

Section 2
Cash Amount

The "Cash Amount" per Security
corresponds to the Reference Price
(paragraph (2)) multiplied by the Multiplier
(paragraph (4)) [and the Management
Factor (paragraph (7)) The Cash
Amount is [if Currency Conversion is not
applicable, insert: denominated in the
Settlement Currency (paragraph (5))] [if
Currency Conversion is applicable, insert:
converted from the Reference Currency
(paragraph (5)) into the Settlement
Currency (paragraph (5)) pursuant to
paragraph (6) (the "Currency
Conversion")]. The Cash Amount will be
commercially rounded to [two][e] decimal
places, as the case may be.

The "Reference Price" corresponds to
the Underlying Price (Section 9 (2) of the
Issue Specific Conditions) on the Final
Valuation Date (Section 4 (2) of the Issue
Specific Conditions).

The "Initial Reference Price"
corresponds to the Initial Reference Price
of the Underlying on the Initial Reference

[im Fall von Produkt Nr. 5 einfligen:

Produkt Nr. 5: [Partizipations-] [Index-]
Zertifikate

1)

)

@)

@)

®)

§1
Wertpapierrecht; Ubertragbarkeit

Erste Group Bank AG, Wien, Osterreich,
(die "Emittentin") gewahrt hiermit dem
Inhaber (der "Wertpapierinhaber") von
[Index-][Partizipations-]Zertifikaten (die
"Zertifikate" oder die "Wertpapiere"),
bezogen auf den Basiswert (8 9 (1) der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen), das
Recht (das "Wertpapierrecht"), nach
Maf3gabe dieser Bedingungen die Zahlung
des Auszahlungsbetrags (82 (1) der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen) zu
verlangen.

Die Zertifikate sind in einer Anzahl, die
dem in Tabellel im Annex der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
festgelegten Mindesthandelsvolumen
entspricht (das
"Mindesthandelsvolumen"), oder einem
ganzzahligen Vielfachen davon
Ubertragbar.

82
Auszahlungsbetrag

Der "Auszahlungsbetrag" je Wertpapier
entspricht dem mit dem Bezugsverhaltnis
(Absatz (4)) [und dem Managementfaktor
(Absatz (7))] multiplizierten Referenzpreis
Absatz (2)). Der Auszahlungsbetrag wird
[sofern Wahrungsumrechnung nicht
anwendbar ist, einfugen: in  der
Auszahlungswahrung ausgedruckt
(Absatz (5))] [sofern
Wahrungsumrechnung anwendbar ist,
einfiUgen: gemdal Absatz (6) von der

Referenzwéhrung (Absatz (5)) in die
Auszahlungswahrung (Absatz (5))
umgerechnet (die
"Wahrungsumrechnung")]. Der

Auszahlungsbetrag wird gegebenenfalls
auf [zwei][e] Nachkommastellen
kaufmannisch gerundet.

Der "Referenzpreis" entspricht der
Kursreferenz des Basiswerts (8 9 (2) der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen) am
Finalen Bewertungstag (84 (2) der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen).

Der "Anfangliche Referenzpreis"
entspricht dem in der Tabelle 1 im Annex
der Emissionshezogenen Bedingungen
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(4)

®)

[if

Currency Conversion

Date (Section 4 (1) of the Issue Specific
Conditions), as specified in Table 1 in the
Annex to the Issue Specific Conditions,
on the basis of which the "Initial Issue
Price", as specified in Table1 in the
Annex to the Issue Specific Conditions,
has been determined.

[The "Multiplier" corresponds to the
Multiplier as specified in Table 1 in the
Annex to the Issue Specific
Conditions.][Initially ~ the  "Multiplier"
corresponds to the Multiplier as specified
in Table1l in the Annex to the Issue
Specific Conditions. The Multiplier is
adjusted on each Rollover Date (8 9 (5) of
the Issue Specific Conditions) in
accordance with Section 9 (6) of the
Issue Specific Conditions.]

The "Settlement Currency" corresponds
to the Settlement Currency as specified in
Table 1 in the Annex to the Issue Specific
Conditions. The "Reference Currency”
corresponds to the Reference Currency
as specified in Table 1 in the Annex to the
Issue Specific Conditions.

is applicable, the

following paragraph shall apply:

(6)

[if Quanto is applicable, insert: The
Reference Currency is converted into the
Settlement Currency by the Calculation
Agent at an exchange rate of one unit of
the Reference Currency to one unit of the
Settlement Currency ("Quanto”).] [if
Quanto is not applicable, insert: The
Reference Currency is converted into the
Settlement Currency by the Calculation
Agent based on the exchange rate
expressed in the Reference Currency for
one unit of the Settlement Currency,
which is shown on the Final Valuation
Date (Section 4 (2) of the Issue Specific
Conditions) [at or around [insert relevant
time: e]] [at the time when the Calculation
Agent determines the Reference Price]
on the Exchange Rate Screen Page as
specified in Table 2 in the Annex to the
Issue Specific Conditions (the "Exchange
Rate Screen Page") or any page
replacing it. If the conversion occurs at a
time when the Exchange Rate Screen
Page should not be available on the
stated date or if the exchange rate is not
shown, the exchange rate shall
correspond to the exchange rate shown
on the corresponding page of another

(4)

®)

angegebenen Anfanglichen Referenzpreis
des Basiswerts am  Anfanglichen
Referenztag (84 (1) der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen), auf
dessen Basis der in Tabelle 1 im Annex
der Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
angegebene "Anfangliche
Ausgabepreis" ermittelt wurde.

[Das "Bezugsverhéltnis" entspricht dem

in der Tabelle 1 im Annex der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
angegebenen Bezugsverhaltnis.][Das

"Bezugsverhaltnis" entspricht anfanglich
dem in der Tabelle 1 im Annex der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen

angegebenen  Bezugsverhdltnis. Das
Bezugsverhéltnis wird an  jedem
Rollovertag (89 (5) der

Emissionsspezifischen Bedingungen)
gemal 8§89 (6) der Emissionsbezogenen
Bedingungen angepasst.]

Die "Auszahlungswéahrung" entspricht
der in Tabellel im Annex der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
angegebenen Auszahlungswéhrung. Die
"Referenzwahrung” entspricht der in
Tabelle 1 im Annex der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
angegebenen Referenzwahrung.

[sofern Wahrungsumrechnung anwendbar ist, gilt
der folgende Absatz:

(6)

[sofern Quanto anwendbar ist, einfligen:
Die Referenzwahrung wird von der
Berechnungsstelle in die
Auszahlungswahrung umgerechnet, wobei
eine Einheit der Referenzwéhrung einer
Einheit der Auszahlungswahrung
entspricht ("Quanto").] [sofern Quanto
nicht anwendbar ist, einfigen: Die
Referenzwéahrung wird von der
Berechnungsstelle basierend auf dem
Wechselkurs der Referenzwahrung fur
eine Einheit der Auszahlungswahrung, wie
am Finalen Bewertungstag (8 4 (2) der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen) [um
oder gegen [maBgebliche Uhrzeit
einfigen: e]] [zum Zeitpunkt, zu dem die
Berechnungsstelle den Referenzpreis
feststellt,] auf der in Tabelle 2 im Annex
der Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
angegebenen Wechselkurs-
Bildschirmseite (die "Wechselkurs-
Bildschirmseite"), oder einer diese
ersetzende Seite, angezeigt, in die
Auszahlungswahrung umgerechnet. Sollte
die Umrechnung zu einem Zeitpunkt
erfolgen, zu dem die Wechselkurs-
Bildschirmseite an dem angegebenen Tag
nicht zur Verfigung steht oder der
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[(7)

financial information service. If the
exchange rate should not or no longer be
shown in any of the above ways, the
Calculation Agent has the right to
determine in its reasonable discretion an
exchange rate determined based on the
then applicable market conditions, taking
into account the then existing market
situation, as the exchange rate.]]

The "Management Factor” or "MF"
corresponds to the conversion of the
Management Fee in line with the maturity
and according to the following formula:

MF = 1 — Management Fee * (t / 365)

Whereby t means the number of calendar
days since the Issue Date.

The Management Factor will be
commercially rounded to [four][e] decimal
places. The "Management Fee"
corresponds to the Management Fee
specified in Table 1 in the Annex to the
Issue Specific Conditions.]

Section 3
(intentionally left blank)

Section 4

Initial Reference Date; Final Valuation Date;

[(7)

Wechselkurs  nicht angezeigt  wird,
entspricht  der  Wechselkurs  dem
Wechselkurs, wie er auf der
entsprechenden Seite eines anderen
Wirtschaftsinformationsdienstes angezeigt
wird. Sollte der Wechselkurs nicht oder
nicht mehr in einer der vorgenannten
Arten angezeigt werden, ist die
Berechnungsstelle berechtigt, als
Wechselkurs einen auf der Basis der dann
geltenden  Marktusancen und unter
Berlicksichtigung der dann herrschenden
Marktgegebenheiten nach billigem
Ermessen ermittelten Wechselkurs
festzulegen.]]

Der "Managementfaktor® oder "MF"
entspricht der laufzeitabhangigen
Umrechnung der Managementgebihr und
wird nach folgender Formel berechnet:

MF = 1 — Managementgebuhr * (t / 365)

wobei "t" die Anzahl der Kalendertage seit
dem Emissionstag bezeichnet.

Der Managementfaktor wird auf [vier][e]
Nachkommastellen kaufmannisch
gerundet. Die "Managementgebihr”
entspricht der in der Tabelle 1 im Annex
zZu den Emissionsbezogenen
Bedingungen angegebenen
Managementgebuihr.]

§3
(entfallt)

§4

Anfanglicher Referenztaqg; Finaler Bewertungstaq;

@)

)

®3)

Term; Business Day

The "Initial Reference Date"
corresponds to the Initial Reference Date
specified in Table 1 in the Annex to the
Issue Specific Conditions.

The "Final Valuation Date" is, subject to
Section 10 of the Issue Specific
Conditions, the Final Valuation Date
specified in Table 1 in the Annex to the
Issue Specific Conditions. If the Final
Valuation Date is not a Calculation Date
(Section 9(2) of the Issue Specific
Conditions), the Final Valuation Date is
the next following day which is a
Calculation Date.

The "Term of the Securities" begins on
the First Settlement Date as specified in
Table 1 in the Annex to the Issue Specific

@)

)

®)

Laufzeit; Bankgeschéftstag

Der "Anfangliche Referenztag" entspricht
dem in der Tabelle 1 im Annex der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
angegebenen Anfanglichen Referenztag.

Der "Finale Bewertungstag" entspricht,
vorbehaltlich §10 der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen, dem
in der Tabellel im Annex der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
angegebenen Finalen Bewertungstag.
Sollte der Finale Bewertungstag kein
Berechnungstag (89(2 der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen) sein,
so ist der nachstfolgende Tag, der ein
Berechnungstag ist, der Finale
Bewertungstag.

Die "Laufzeit der Wertpapiere" beginnt
am in der Tabelle 1 im Annex der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
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(4)

@)

Conditions (the "First Settlement Date")
and ends, subject to an extraordinary
termination in accordance with
Section 10 (1) of the Issue Specific
Conditions or Section 5 of the General
Conditions, on the Final Valuation Date
(paragraph (2)).

"Business Day" is, subject to the
following rules and unless set forth
otherwise in these Terms and Conditions,
each day on which banks in [Vienna][,

Jland ][Frankfurt am Main][, ][and
JlLondon][, ][and ][e] are open for
business. In connection with payment

transactions in accordance with Section 6
and Section 10 of the Issue Specific
Conditions, "Business Day" is each day
(except for Saturday and Sunday) on
which [if EUR is specified as Settlement
Currency, insert: the TARGET2-System is
open and] the Clearing System
(Section 2 (1) of the General Conditions)
processes payments [and on which banks
in [Vienna][, J[and ][Frankfurt am Main][,
J[and ][London][, J[and ][e] are open for
business]. [If EUR is specified as
Settlement Currency, insert: "TARGET2-
System" means the Trans-European
Automated Real-time Gross Settlement
Express Transfer (TARGET2) payment
system or any system succeeding it.]

Section 5
(intentionally left blank)

Section 6
Payments; Repayment Date

The Issuer will cause the transfer of any
Cash Amount by the [fifth][e]
[(5th)][e] Business Day after the Final
Valuation Date (Section 4 (2) of the Issue
Specific Conditions) (the "Repayment
Date") to the Clearing System for credit to
the accounts of the depositors of the
Securities with the Clearing System. If the
Final Valuation Date is postponed
pursuant to Section 4 (2) of the lIssue
Specific Conditions, the Security Holder is
not entitled to demand interest or other
payments on the basis of the
postponement.

(4)

@)

genannten Ersten Valutatag (der "Erste
Valutatag") und endet, vorbehaltlich einer
aul3erordentlichen  Kindigung gemaf
8§10 (1) der Emissionsbezogenen
Bedingungen bzw. 8§ 5 der Allgemeinen
Bedingungen, am Finalen Bewertungstag
(Absatz (2)).

"Bankgeschaéftstag"” ist, vorbehaltlich der

nachfolgenden Regelung und sofern
nichts Abweichendes in diesen
Zertifikatsbedingungen geregelt ist, jeder
Tag, an dem die Banken in [Wien],
J[und][Frankfurt am Main][, Jlund
J[London][, J[und][ o] far den
Geschéftsverkehr  gedffnet  sind. Im

Zusammenhang mit Zahlungsvorgangen
geman §6 und §10 der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen st
"Bankgeschéftstag" jeder Tag (aulRer
Samstag und Sonntag), an dem [sofern
EUR als Auszahlungswahrung festgelegt
ist, einfigen: das TARGET2-System
gedffnet ist und] das Clearing-System
(82 (1) der Allgemeinen Bedingungen)
Zahlungen abwickeltf und an dem die
Banken in [Wien][, Jlund ][Frankfurt am
Main][, Jlund ][London][, Jund][ e] fiir den
Geschaftsverkehr geoffnet sind]. [Sofern
EUR als Auszahlungswahrung festgelegt
ist, einfigen: "TARGET2-System"
bezeichnet das Trans-European
Automated Real-time Gross Settlement
Express Transfer (TARGET?2)-
Zahlungssystem jedes
Nachfolgesystem dazu.]

oder

§5
(entfallt)

86
Zahlungen; Riickzahlungstag

Die Emittentin wird bis zu dem [flinften][e]
[(5.)][*]] Bankgeschéftstag nach dem
Finalen Bewertungstag (84 (2) der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen) (der
"Riickzahlungstag") die Uberweisung des
gegebenenfalls zu  beanspruchenden
Auszahlungsbetrags an das Clearing-
System zur Gutschrift auf die Konten der
Hinterleger der Wertpapiere bei dem
Clearing-System veranlassen. Sofern der
Finale Bewertungstag gemaR § 4 (2) der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
verschoben wird, ist der
Wertpapierinhaber nicht berechtigt, Zinsen
oder sonstige Zahlungen aufgrund der
Verschiebung zu verlangen.
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@)

®)

A declaration that neither the Security
Holder nor the beneficial owner of the
Securities is a U.S. person is deemed to
be issued automatically. The terms used
in this paragraph have the meaning
ascribed to them in Regulation S
promulgated under the United States
Securities Act of 1933, as amended from
time to time.

All taxes, fees or other charges arising in
connection with the exercise of the
Security Rights or with the payment of the
Cash Amount shall be borne and paid by
the Security Holder. The Issuer or the
Paying Agent has the right to withhold
any taxes, fees or other charges payable
by the Security Holder, as aforesaid.

Section 7
(intentionally left blank)]

@)

®)

Eine Erklarung, dass weder der
Wertpapierinhaber noch der
wirtschaftliche  Eigentimer  (beneficial

owner) der Wertpapiere eine US-Person
ist, gilt als automatisch abgegeben. Die in
diesem Absatz verwendeten
Bezeichnungen haben die Bedeutung, die
ihnen in Regulation S gemal dem United
States Securities Act von 1933 in seiner
jeweils gltigen Fassung zugewiesen ist.

Alle im Zusammenhang mit der Auslibung
der Wertpapierrechte bzw. mit der
Zahlung des Auszahlungsbetrags
anfallenden Steuern, Gebihren oder
anderen Abgaben sind von dem
Wertpapierinhaber zu tragen und zu
zahlen. Die Emittentin bzw. die Zahlstelle
ist berechtigt, etwaige Steuern, Geblhren
oder Abgaben einzubehalten, die von dem
Wertpapierinhaber gemafl vorstehendem
Satz zu zahlen sind.

§7
(entfallt)]
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[in case of Product No 6, insert:

Product No 6: [Twin Win] [Capped Twin Win]
Certificates

@)

)

)

Section 1
Security Right; Transferability

Erste Group Bank AG, Vienna, Austria,
(the "Issuer") hereby grants the holder
(the "Security Holder") of Twin Win
Certificates [with Cap] (the "Certificates”

or the "Securities"), relating to the
Underlying (Section 9 (1) of the Issue
Specific Conditions), the right (the

"Security Right"), to demand payment of
the Cash Amount (Section 2 (1) of the
Issue Specific Conditions) in accordance
with these Conditions.

The Certificates shall be transferable in a
number equal to the Minimum Trading
Number as specified in Table 1 in the
Annex to the Issue Specific Conditions
(the "Minimum Trading Number") or an
integral multiple thereof.

Section 2
Cash Amount

The "Cash Amount" per Security
corresponds [subject to the payment of a
Maximum Amount (paragraph (2))],

(a) if the Observation Price (Section 9 (2)
of the Issue Specific Conditions) does
not reach or fall below the Barrier
(Section 3 (1) of the Issue Specific
Conditions) at any time during the
Observation Period (Section 3 (2) of
the Issue Specific Conditions) and the
Reference Price  (paragraph (5))
equals or exceeds the Strike
(paragraph (3)), the product of (A) the
Multiplier (paragraph (7)) and (B) the
sum of (i) the Strike and (i) the
product of (x) the difference between
Reference Price and Strike and (y) the
Participation Factor[ 1]
(paragraph (6)); expressed by the
following formula:

Cash Amount = Multiplier x (Strike +
(Reference Price — Strike) x
Participation Factor[ 1])

[im Fall von Produkt Nr. 6 einfligen:

Produkt Nr. 6: [Twin Win] [Capped Twin Win]
Zertifikate

@)

)

@

§1
Wertpapierrecht; Ubertragbarkeit

Erste Group Bank AG, Wien, Osterreich,
(die "Emittentin") gewahrt hiermit dem
Inhaber (der "Wertpapierinhaber") von
Twin Win  Zertifikaten [mit Cap] (die
"Zertifikate" oder die "Wertpapiere"),
bezogen auf den Basiswert (8 9 (1) der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen), das
Recht (das "Wertpapierrecht”), nach
Maf3gabe dieser Bedingungen die Zahlung
des Auszahlungsbetrags (82 (1) der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen) zu
verlangen.

Die Zertifikate sind in einer Anzahl, die
dem in Tabellel im Annex der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
festgelegten Mindesthandelsvolumen
entspricht (das
"Mindesthandelsvolumen"), oder einem
ganzzahligen Vielfachen davon
Ubertragbar.

82
Auszahlungsbetrag

Der "Auszahlungsbetrag" je Wertpapier
entspricht[, vorbehaltlich der Zahlung
eines Hochstbetrags (Absatz (2))],

(a) sofern der Beobachtungskurs (8§ 9 (2)
der Emissionsbezogenen
Bedingungen) zu keinem Zeitpunkt
wahrend des Beobachtungszeitraums
(83(2) der Emissionsbezogenen
Bedingungen) die Barriere (8 3 (1) der
Emissionsbezogenen  Bedingungen)
beruhrt oder unterschreitet und der
Referenzpreis (Absatz (5)) dem
Basispreis (Absatz (3)) entspricht oder
diesen Uberschreitet, dem Produkt aus
(A) dem Bezugsverhaltnis (Absatz (7))
und (B) der Summe aus (i) dem
Basispreis und (ii) dem Produkt aus
(x) der Differenz zwischen dem
Referenzpreis und dem Basispreis
und (y) dem Partizipationsfaktor[ 1]
(Absatz (6)); als Formel ausgedriickt
wie folgt:

Auszahlungsbetrag = Bezugsverhéaltnis
X (Basispreis + (Referenzpreis —

Page 127



@)

(b) if the Observation Price (Section 9 (2)
of the Issue Specific Conditions) does
not reach or fall below the Barrier
(Section 3 (1) of the Issue Specific
Conditions) at any time during the
Observation Period (Section 3 (2) of
the Issue Specific Conditions) but the
Reference Price (paragraph (5)) falls
below the Strike (paragraph (3)), the
Cash Amount per Security
corresponds to, the product of (A) the
Multiplier (paragraph (7)) and (B) the
sum of (i) the Strike and (i) the
product of (x) the difference between
Strike and Reference Price and (y) the
Participation Factor[ 2]
(paragraph (6)); expressed by the
following formula:

Cash Amount = Multiplier x (Strike +
(Strike - Reference Price) x
Participation Factor[ 2])

(c) if the Observation Price (Section 9 (2)
of the Issue Specific Conditions)
reaches or falls below the Barrier
(Section 3 (1) of the Issue Specific
Conditions) at any time during the
Observation Period (Section 3 (2) of
the Issue Specific Conditions), the
Cash Amount per Security
corresponds to, the product of (i) the
Reference Price (paragraph (5)) and
(i) the Multiplier (paragraph (7)). In
this case the calculation of the Cash
Amount is expressed by the following

formula:
Cash Amount = Reference Price x
Multiplier
The Cash Amount is [if Currency
Conversion is not applicable, insert:

denominated in the Settlement Currency
(paragraph (8))] [if Currency Conversion is
applicable, insert: converted from the
Reference Currency (paragraph (8)) into
the Settlement Currency (paragraph (8))
pursuant to paragraph (9) (the "Currency
Conversion")]. The Cash Amount will be
commercially rounded to [two][e] decimal
places, as the case may be.]

[(intentionally left blank)] [insert in the
case of Capped Twin Win Certificates:

The Cash Amount per Security

@)

Basispreis) x Partizipationsfaktor[ 1])

(b) sofern der Beobachtungskurs (8 9 (2)
der Emissionsbezogenen
Bedingungen) zu keinem Zeitpunkt
wahrend des Beobachtungszeitraums
(83 (2) der Emissionsbezogenen
Bedingungen) die Barriere (8 3 (1) der
Emissionsbhezogenen  Bedingungen)
berthrt oder unterschreitet, aber der
Referenzpreis (Absatz (5)) den
Basispreis (Absatz (3)) unterschreitet,
entspricht der Auszahlungsbetrag je
Wertpapier dem Produkt aus (A) dem
Bezugsverhéltnis (Absatz (7)) und (B)
der Summe aus (i) dem Basispreis
und (i) dem Produkt aus (x) der
Differenz zwischen dem Basispreis
und dem Referenzpreis und (y) dem
Partizipationsfaktor[ 2] (Absatz (6));
als Formel ausgedrickt wie folgt:

Auszahlungsbetrag = Bezugsverhaltnis
X (Basispreis + (Basispreis -
Referenzpreis) x
Partizipationsfaktor[ 2])

(c) sofern der Beobachtungskurs (8 9 (2)
der Emissionsbezogenen
Bedingungen) zu irgendeiner Zeit
wahrend des Beobachtungszeitraums
(83(2) der Emissionsbezogenen
Bedingungen) die Barriere (8 3 (1) der
Emissionsbezogenen  Bedingungen)
bertihrt oder unterschreitet, entspricht
der Auszahlungsbetrag je Wertpapier
dem Produkt aus 0] dem
Referenzpreis (Absatz (5)) und (ii)
dem Bezugsverhdltnis (Absatz (7)).
Die Berechnung des
Auszahlungsbetrags wird in diesem
Fall als Formel wie folgt ausgedruckt:

Auszahlungsbetrag=Referenzpreis x
Bezugsverhaltnis

Der Auszahlungsbetrag wird [sofern
Wahrungsumrechnung nicht anwendbar
ist, einfugen: in der Auszahlungswéahrung

ausgedriickt (Absatz (8))] [sofern
Wahrungsumrechnung anwendbar ist,
einfiugen: gemdal Absatz (9) von der

Referenzwéhrung (Absatz (8)) in die
Auszahlungswahrung (Absatz (8))
umgerechnet (die
"Wahrungsumrechnung")]. Der

Auszahlungsbetrag wird gegebenenfalls
auf [zwei][e] Nachkommastellen
kaufméannisch gerundet.

[(entfallt)][im Fall von Twin Win Zertifikaten
mit Cap einfligen:
Der Auszahlungsbetrag je Wertpapier
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®)

(4)

corresponds at the most to the
[respective] Maximum Amount. The
"Maximum Amount[ 1]" corresponds to,
if [(a)] the Observation Price does not
reach or fall below the Barrier at any time
during the Observation Period and the
Reference Price equals or exceeds the
Strike,[ or if (b) the Observation Price
reaches or falls below the Barrier at any
time during the Observation Period,]] the
Multiplier multiplied with the Cap[ 1]. The
"Cap[ 1]" corresponds to the Cap[ 1]
specified in Table 1 in the Annex to the
Issue Specific Conditions. [The
"Maximum Amount 2" corresponds to, if
[(a)] the Observation Price does not reach
or fall below the Barrier at any time during
the Observation Period but the Reference
Price falls below the Strike,[ or if (b) the
Observation Price reaches or falls below
the Barrier at any time during the
Observation Period,] the Multiplier
multiplied with the Cap 2. The "Cap 2"
corresponds to the Cap 2 specified in
Table 1 in the Annex to the Issue Specific
Conditions.] The [respective] Maximum
Amount is [if Currency Conversion is not
applicable, insert: denominated in the
Settlement Currency (paragraph (7))] [if
Currency Conversion is applicable, insert:
converted from the Reference Currency
(paragraph (8)) into the Settlement
Currency (paragraph (8)) pursuant to
paragraph (9) (the "Currency
Conversion")]. The Maximum Amount
will be commercially rounded to [two][e]
decimal places, as the case may be.]

The "Strike" corresponds to the Strike of
the Underlying, as specified in Table 1 in

the Annex to the Issue Specific
Conditions.
The "Initial Reference Price"

corresponds to the Initial Reference Price
of the Underlying on the Initial Reference
Date (Section 4 (1) of the Issue Specific
Conditions), as specified in Table 1 in the
Annex to the Issue Specific Conditions,
on the basis of which the "Initial Issue
Price", as specified in Table 1 in the
Annex to the Issue Specific Conditions
has been determined.

®)

(4)

entspricht héchstens dem [jeweiligen]
Hochstbetrag. Der "Héchstbetrag[ 1]"
entspricht], sofern [(®)] der
Beobachtungskurs zu keinem Zeitpunkt
wahrend des Beobachtungszeitraums die
Barriere berthrt oder unterschreitet und
der Referenzpreis dem  Basispreis
entspricht oder diesen Uberschreitet,[ oder
sofern (b) der Beobachtungskurs zu
irgendeiner Zeit wahrend des
Beobachtungszeitraums  die  Barriere
berthrt oder unterschreitet,]] dem mit dem
Bezugsverhéltnis multiplizierten Capl[ 1].

Der "Cap[ 1]" entspricht dem in der
Tabelle 1 im Annex der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
angegebenen Capl[ 1]. [Der

"Hochstbetrag 2" entspricht, sofern [(a)]
der Beobachtungskurs zu  keinem
Zeitpunkt wahrend des
Beobachtungszeitraums  die  Barriere
beruhrt oder unterschreitet aber der
Referenzpreis den Basispreis
unterschreitet,] oder sofern (b) der
Beobachtungskurs zu irgendeiner Zeit
wahrend des Beobachtungszeitraums die
Barriere berlhrt oder unterschreitet,] dem
mit dem Bezugsverhaltnis multiplizierten
Cap 2. Der "Cap 2" entspricht dem in der

Tabelle 1 im Annex der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
angegebenen Cap2.] Der [jeweilige]
Hochstbetrag wird [sofern

Wahrungsumrechnung nicht anwendbar
ist, einfugen: in der Auszahlungswéahrung

ausgedruckt (Absatz (8))] [sofern
Wahrungsumrechnung anwendbar ist,
einfiugen: gemanR Absatz (9) von der

Referenzwéhrung (Absatz (8)) in die
Auszahlungswahrung (Absatz (8))
umgerechnet (die
"Wahrungsumrechnung")]. Der

Hochstbetrag wird gegebenenfalls auf
[zwei][e] Nachkommastellen kaufmannisch
gerundet.]

Der "Basispreis" entspricht dem in der
Tabelle 1 im Anhang zZu den
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
angegebenen Basispreis des Basiswerts.

Der "Anfangliche Referenzpreis"
entspricht dem in der Tabelle 1 im Annex
der Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
angegebenen Anféanglichen Referenzpreis
des Basiswerts am  Anfénglichen
Referenztag (84 (1) der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen), auf
dessen Basis der in Tabelle 1 im Annex
der Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
angegebene "Anfangliche
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(®)

(6)

()

(8)

[if

Currency Conversion

The "Reference Price" corresponds to
the Underlying Price (Section 9 (2) of the
Issue Specific Conditions) on the Final
Valuation Date (Section 4 (2) of the Issue
Specific Conditions).

The "Participation Factor[ 1]"
corresponds  to  the Participation
Factor[ 1], as specified in Table 1 in the
Annex to the Issue Specific Conditions.
[The "Participation Factor[ 2]"
corresponds  to  the Participation
Factor[ 2], as specified in Table 1 in the
Annex to the Issue Specific Conditions.]

The "Multiplier" corresponds to the
Multiplier as specified in Table 1 in the
Annex to the Issue Specific Conditions.

The "Settlement Currency" corresponds
to the Settlement Currency as specified in
Table 1 in the Annex to the Issue Specific
Conditions. The "Reference Currency"
corresponds to the Reference Currency
as specified in Table 1 in the Annex to the
Issue Specific Conditions.

is applicable, the

following paragraph shall apply:

C)

[if Quanto is applicable, insert: The
Reference Currency is converted into the
Settlement Currency by the Calculation
Agent at an exchange rate of one unit of
the Reference Currency to one unit of the
Settlement Currency ("Quanto").] [if
Quanto is not applicable, insert: The
Reference Currency is converted into the
Settlement Currency by the Calculation
Agent based on the exchange rate
expressed in the Reference Currency for
one unit of the Settlement Currency,
which is shown on the Final Valuation
Date (Section 4 (2) of the Issue Specific
Conditions) [at or around [insert relevant
time: e]] [at the time when the Calculation
Agent determines the Reference Price]
on the Exchange Rate Screen Page as
specified in Table 2 in the Annex to the
Issue Specific Conditions (the "Exchange
Rate Screen Page") or any page
replacing it. If the conversion occurs at a
time when the Exchange Rate Screen
Page should not be available on the
stated date or if the exchange rate is not
shown, the exchange rate shall
correspond to the exchange rate shown
on the corresponding page of another
financial information service. If the
exchange rate should not or no longer be

©)

(6)

(M

®)

Ausgabepreis" ermittelt wurde.

Der "Referenzpreis" entspricht der
Kursreferenz des Basiswerts (8 9 (2) der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen) am
Finalen Bewertungstag (84 (2) der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen).

Der "Partizipationsfaktor[ 1]" entspricht
dem in der Tabelle 1 im Annex der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
angegebenen Partizipationsfaktor[ 1]. [Der
"Partizipationsfaktor[ 2]" entspricht dem
in der Tabelle 1 im Annex der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
angegebenen Partizipationsfaktor| 2].]

Das "Bezugsverhaltnis" entspricht dem in
der Tabelle 1 im Annex der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
angegebenen Bezugsverhaltnis.

Die "Auszahlungswéahrung" entspricht
der in Tabellel im Annex der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
angegebenen Auszahlungswahrung. Die
"Referenzwahrung" entspricht der in
Tabelle 1 im Annex der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
angegebenen Referenzwahrung.

[sofern Wahrungsumrechnung anwendbar ist, gilt
der folgende Absatz:

©)

[sofern Quanto anwendbar ist, einfligen:
Die Referenzwdhrung wird von der
Berechnungsstelle in die
Auszahlungswéahrung umgerechnet, wobei
eine Einheit der Referenzwéhrung einer
Einheit der Auszahlungswahrung
entspricht ("Quanto").] [sofern Quanto
nicht anwendbar ist, einfigen: Die
Referenzwéhrung wird von der
Berechnungsstelle basierend auf dem
Wechselkurs der Referenzwéhrung fir
eine Einheit der Auszahlungswahrung, wie
am Finalen Bewertungstag (84 (2) der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen) [um
oder gegen [maBgebliche Uhrzeit
einflgen: e]] [zum Zeitpunkt, zu dem die
Berechnungsstelle den Referenzpreis
feststellt,] auf der in Tabelle 2 im Annex
der Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
angegebenen Wechselkurs-
Bildschirmseite (die "Wechselkurs-
Bildschirmseite"), oder einer diese
ersetzende Seite, angezeigt, in die
Auszahlungswahrung umgerechnet. Sollte
die Umrechnung zu einem Zeitpunkt
erfolgen, zu dem die Wechselkurs-
Bildschirmseite an dem angegebenen Tag
nicht zur Verfugung steht oder der
Wechselkurs  nicht angezeigt  wird,
entspricht  der  Wechselkurs dem

Page 130



shown in any of the above ways, the
Calculation Agent has the right to
determine in its reasonable discretion an
exchange rate determined based on the
then applicable market conditions, taking
into account the then existing market
situation, as the exchange rate.]]

Section 3
Barrier; Observation Period

(1) The "Barrier" corresponds to the Barrier
specified in Table 1 in the Annex to the
Issue Specific Conditions.

(2) The "Observation Period" corresponds
to the Observation Period specified in
Table 1 in the Annex to the Issue Specific
Conditions.

Section 4
Initial Reference Date; Final Valuation Date;

Wechselkurs, wie er auf der
entsprechenden Seite eines anderen
Wirtschaftsinformationsdienstes angezeigt
wird. Sollte der Wechselkurs nicht oder
nicht mehr in einer der vorgenannten
Arten  angezeigt werden, ist die
Berechnungsstelle berechtigt, als
Wechselkurs einen auf der Basis der dann
geltenden  Marktusancen und unter
Berlicksichtigung der dann herrschenden
Marktgegebenheiten nach billigem
Ermessen ermittelten Wechselkurs
festzulegen.]]

83
Barriere; Beobachtungszeitraum

1) Die "Barriere" entspricht der in der
Tabelle 1 im Annex der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
angegebenen Barriere.

2) Der "Beobachtungszeitraum” entspricht
dem in der Tabellel im Annex der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
angegebenen Beobachtungszeitraum.

84
Anfanglicher Referenztag; Finaler Bewertungstaq;

Term; Business Day

D The "Initial Reference Date”
corresponds to the Initial Reference Date
specified in Table 1 in the Annex to the
Issue Specific Conditions.

(2) The "Final Valuation Date" is, subject to
Section 10 of the Issue Specific
Conditions, the Final Valuation Date
specified in Table 1 in the Annex to the
Issue Specific Conditions. If the Final
Valuation Date is not a Calculation Date
(Section 9 (2) of the Issue Specific
Conditions), the Final Valuation Date is
the next following day which is a
Calculation Date.

3) The "Term of the Securities" begins on
the First Settlement Date as specified in
Table 1 in the Annex to the Issue Specific
Conditions (the "First Settlement Date")
and ends, subject to an extraordinary
termination in accordance with
Section 10 (1) of the Issue Specific
Conditions or Section 5 of the General
Conditions, on the Final Valuation Date

(paragraph (2)).

Laufzeit; Bankgeschéftstag

D Der "Anfangliche Referenztag" entspricht
dem in der Tabellel im Annex der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
angegebenen Anfanglichen Referenztag.

(2) Der "Finale Bewertungstag" entspricht,
vorbehaltlich §10 der
Emissionsbhezogenen Bedingungen, dem
in der Tabellel im Annex der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
angegebenen Finalen Bewertungstag.
Sollte der Finale Bewertungstag Kkein
Berechnungstag (89 (2 der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen) sein,
so ist der néchstfolgende Tag, der ein
Berechnungstag ist, der Finale
Bewertungstag.

3) Die "Laufzeit der Wertpapiere" beginnt
am in der Tabellel im Annex der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
genannten Ersten Valutatag (der "Erste
Valutatag") und endet, vorbehaltlich einer
auB3erordentlichen  Kindigung geman
§10 (1) der Emissionsbezogenen
Bedingungen bzw. § 5 der Allgemeinen
Bedingungen, am Finalen Bewertungstag
(Absatz (2)).
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(4)

)

)

"Business Day" is, subject to the
following rules and unless set forth
otherwise in these Terms and Conditions,
each day on which banks in [Vienna][,
Jland ][Frankfurt am Main][, ][and
JlLondon][, ][and ][e] are open for
business. In connection with payment
transactions in accordance with Section 6
and Section 10 of the Issue Specific
Conditions, "Business Day" is each day
(except for Saturday and Sunday) on
which [if EUR is specified as Settlement
Currency, insert: the TARGET2-System is
open and] the Clearing System
(Section 2 (1) of the General Conditions)
processes payments [and on which banks
in [Vienna][, J[and ][Frankfurt am Main][,
J[and ][London][, J[and ][e] are open for
business]. [If EUR is specified as
Settlement Currency, insert: "TARGET2-
System" means the Trans-European
Automated Real-time Gross Settlement
Express Transfer (TARGET2) payment
system or any system succeeding it.]

Section 5
(intentionally left blank)

Section 6
Payments; Repayment Date

The Issuer will cause the transfer of any
Cash Amount by the [fifth][e] [5th]
[e] Business Day after the Final Valuation
Date (Section 4 (2) of the Issue Specific
Conditions) (the "Repayment Date") to
the Clearing System for credit to the
accounts of the depositors of the
Securities with the Clearing System. If the
Final Valuation Date is postponed
pursuant to Section 4 (2) of the Issue
Specific Conditions, the Security Holder is
not entitled to demand interest or other
payments on the basis of the
postponement.

A declaration that neither the Security
Holder nor the beneficial owner of the
Securities is a U.S. person is deemed to
be issued automatically. The terms used
in this paragraph have the meaning
ascribed to them in Regulation S
promulgated under the United States
Securities Act of 1933, as amended from

(4)

@

@)

"Bankgeschaftstag"” ist, vorbehaltlich der
nachfolgenden Regelung und sofern
nichts Abweichendes in diesen
Zertifikatsbedingungen geregelt ist, jeder
Tag, an dem die Banken in [Wien][, J[lund
J[Frankfurt am Main][, Jlund ][London]],
Jlund][e] fir den Geschaftsverkehr
gedffnet sind. Im Zusammenhang mit
Zahlungsvorgéangen gemaR 8 6 und § 10
der Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
ist "Bankgeschéaftstag" jeder Tag (aul3er
Samstag und Sonntag), an dem [sofern
EUR als Auszahlungswéhrung festgelegt
ist, einfugen: das TARGET2-System
geoffnet ist und] das Clearing-System
(82 (1) der Allgemeinen Bedingungen)
Zahlungen abwickelt] und an dem die
Banken in [Wien][, Jlund ][Frankfurt am
Main][, JJund ]J[London][, J[und][ e] fir den
Geschéftsverkehr geoffnet sind]. [Sofern
EUR als Auszahlungswéahrung festgelegt
ist, einflgen: "TARGET2-System"
bezeichnet das Trans-European
Automated Real-time Gross Settlement
Express Transfer (TARGET?2)-
Zahlungssystem oder jedes
Nachfolgesystem dazu.]

§5
(entfallt)

86
Zahlungen; Riickzahlungstag

Die Emittentin wird bis zu dem [flinften][e]
[(5.)][*]] Bankgeschéftstag nach dem
Finalen Bewertungstag (84 (2) der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen) (der
"Riickzahlungstag”) die Uberweisung
des gegebenenfalls zu beanspruchenden
Auszahlungsbetrags an das Clearing-
System zur Gutschrift auf die Konten der
Hinterleger der Wertpapiere bei dem
Clearing-System veranlassen. Sofern der
Finale Bewertungstag gemafi § 4 (2) der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
verschoben wird, ist der
Wertpapierinhaber  nicht  berechtigt,
Zinsen oder sonstige Zahlungen aufgrund
der Verschiebung zu verlangen.

Eine Erklarung, dass weder der
Wertpapierinhaber noch der
wirtschaftliche Eigentimer (beneficial

owner) der Wertpapiere eine US-Person
ist, gilt als automatisch abgegeben. Die in
diesem Absatz verwendeten
Bezeichnungen haben die Bedeutung, die
ihnen in Regulation S gemafl dem United
States Securities Act von 1933 in seiner
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time to time.

All taxes, fees or other charges arising in
connection with the exercise of the
Security Rights or with the payment of the
Cash Amount shall be borne and paid by
the Security Holder. The Issuer or the
Paying Agent has the right to withhold
any taxes, fees or other charges payable
by the Security Holder, as aforesaid.

Section 7
(intentionally left blank)]

®3)

jeweils gltigen Fassung zugewiesen ist.

Alle im Zusammenhang mit der
Ausiibung der Wertpapierrechte bzw. mit
der Zahlung des Auszahlungsbetrags
anfallenden Steuern, Geblhren oder
anderen Abgaben sind von dem
Wertpapierinhaber zu tragen und zu
zahlen. Die Emittentin bzw. die Zahlstelle
ist berechtigt, etwaige Steuern, Gebuhren
oder Abgaben einzubehalten, die von
dem Wertpapierinhaber gemar
vorstehendem Satz zu zahlen sind.

§7
(entfallt)]
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[in case of Product No 7, insert:

Product No 7: Factor Long Certificates or
Factor Short Certificates

@)

)

1)

Section 1
Security Right; Transferability

Erste Group Bank AG, Vienna, Austria,
(the "Issuer™) hereby grants the holder
(the "Security Holder") of Factor
Certificates (the "Certificates” or the
"Securities"), relating to the Underlying
(Section9 (1) of the Issue Specific
Conditions), the right (the "Security
Right"), to demand payment of the Cash
Amount (Section 2 (1) of the Issue
Specific Conditions) in accordance with
these Conditions.

The Certificates shall be transferable in a
number equal to the Minimum Trading
Number as specified in Table 1 in the
Annex to the Issue Specific Conditions
(the "Minimum Trading Number") or an
integral multiple thereof.

Section 2
Cash Amount

The "Cash Amount" per Security on a
Calculation Date (Section 9 (2) of the
Issue Specific Conditions) after the First
Settlement Date (Section 5 (4) of the
Issue Specific Conditions) corresponds to
the difference between (i) the product of
the Cash Amount on the previous
Calculation Date (the "Previous Cash
Amount”) and the Daily Leveraged
Performance (paragraph (3)) and (ii) the
Financing Costs (paragraph (7)) (if the
type of Security is specified in Table 1 in
the Annex to the Issue Specific
Conditions as Factor Long Certificates,
the "Factor Long Certificates") or the
sum of (i) the product of the Previous
Cash Amount and the Daily Leveraged
Performance and (ii) the Financing Costs
(if the type of Security is specified in
Table 1 in the Annex to the Issue Specific
Conditions as Factor Short Certificates,
the "Factor Short Certificates"), each
commercially rounded to [four][e] decimal

[im Fall von Produkt Nr. 7 einfligen:

Produkt Nr.7: Faktor Long Zertifikate oder
Faktor Short Zertifikate

@)

)

1)

81
Wertpapierrecht; Ubertragbarkeit

Erste Group Bank AG, Wien, Osterreich
(die "Emittentin™) gewéhrt hiermit dem
Inhaber (der "Wertpapierinhaber") von
Faktor Zertifikaten (die "Zertifikate" oder
die "Wertpapiere"), bezogen auf den
Basiswert (89 (1) der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen) das
Recht (das "Wertpapierrecht"”), nach
MalRgabe dieser Bedingungen, die
Zahlung des Auszahlungsbetrags (8 2 (1)
der Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen)
zu verlangen.

Die Zertifikate sind in einer Anzahl, die
dem in Tabellel im Annex der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
festgelegten Mindesthandelsvolumen
entspricht (das
"Mindesthandelsvolumen"), oder einem
ganzzahligen Vielfachen davon
Ubertragbar.

82
Auszahlungsbetrag

Der "Auszahlungsbetrag" je Wertpapier
an einem Berechnungstag (89 (2) der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen) nach
dem Ersten Valutatag (8 5 (4) der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen)
entspricht der Differenz aus (i) dem
Produkt aus dem Auszahlungsbetrag am
vorangegangenen Berechnungstag (der
"Vorherige Auszahlungsbetrag") und
der Taglichen Gehebelten
Wertentwicklung (Absatz (3)) und (ii) den
Finanzierungskosten (Absatz (7)) (sofern
der Wertpapiertyp in Tabelle 1 im Annex
der Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
als Faktor Long Zertifikate festgelegt ist,
die "Faktor Long Zertifikate") bzw. der
Summe aus (i) dem Produkt aus dem
Vorherigen Auszahlungsbetrag und der
Taglichen Gehebelten Wertentwicklung
und (ii) den Finanzierungskosten (sofern
der Wertpapiertyp in Tabelle 1 im Annex
der Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
als Faktor Short Zertifikate festgelegt ist,
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3

4

(®)

(6)

places, as the case may be. The Cash
Amount is at least zero (0). The Cash
Amount is [if Currency Conversion is not
applicable, insert: denominated in the
Settlement Currency (paragraph (2))] [if
Currency Conversion is applicable, insert:
converted from the Reference Currency

(paragraph (2)) into the Settlement
Currency (paragraph (2)) pursuant to
paragraph (8) (the "Currency

Conversion")]. On the First Settlement
Date, the calculation of the Cash Amount
is based on the "Initial Cash Amount" as
specified in Table 1 in the Annex to the
Issue Specific Conditions.

The "Settlement Currency" corresponds
to the Settlement Currency as specified in
Table 1 in the Annex to the Issue Specific
Conditions. The "Reference Currency”
corresponds to the Reference Currency
as specified in Table 1 in the Annex to the
Issue Specific Conditions.

The "Daily Leveraged Performance"
corresponds to the sum of (i) one (1) and
(i) the product of the Performance in
Percent of the Underlying (paragraph (4))
and the Factor (paragraph (5)).

The "Performance in Percent of the
Underlying” on a Calculation Date
corresponds to the difference between (i)
the quotient of the Reference Price
(paragraph (6)) and the  Previous
Reference Price (paragraph (6)) and (ii)
one (1) (Factor Long Certificates) or the
difference between (i) one (1) and (ii) the
guotient of the Reference Price and the
Previous Reference Price (Factor Short
Certificates), calculated in accordance
with the following formula:

Factor Long Certificates:
( Reference Price ]

Previous Reference Price

Factor Short Certificates:
( Reference Price J

Previous Reference Price

The "Factor" corresponds to the Factor
specified in Table 1 in the Annex to the
Issue Specific Conditions.

The "Reference Price" corresponds on
each Calculation Date (Section9 (2) of

)

3

4

®)

(6)

die "Faktor Short Zertifikate"), jeweils
auf [vier][e] Nachkommastellen
kaufmannisch gerundet. Der
Auszahlungsbetrag betrdgt mindestens
null (0). Der Auszahlungsbetrag wird
[sofern ~ Wahrungsumrechnung  nicht
anwendbar ist, einflgen: in der
Auszahlungswahrung ausgedruckt
(Absatz (2))] [sofern
Wahrungsumrechnung anwendbar ist,
einfugen: gemaR Absatz (8) von der
Referenzwahrung (Absatz (2)) in die
Auszahlungswéhrung (Absatz (2))
umgerechnet (die
"Wahrungsumrechnung”)]. Am Ersten
Valutatag wird fur die Berechnung des
Auszahlungsbetrags der "Anféangliche
Auszahlungsbetrag” zugrunde gelegt,

wie in Tabellel im Annex der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
festgelegt.

Die "Auszahlungswahrung" entspricht
der in Tabellel im Annex der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
angegebenen Auszahlungswéhrung. Die
"Referenzwéahrung” entspricht der in
Tabelle 1 im Annex der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
angegebenen Referenzwahrung.

Die "Tagliche Gehebelte
Wertentwicklung" entspricht der Summe
aus (i) eins (1) und (ii) dem Produkt aus
der Prozentualen Wertentwicklung des
Basiswerts (Absatz (4)) und dem Faktor
(Absatz (5)).

Die "Prozentuale Wertentwicklung des
Basiswerts" an einem Berechnungstag
entspricht der Differenz aus (i) dem
Quotienten aus dem Referenzpreis
(Absatz (6)) und dem  Vorherigen
Referenzpreis (Absatz (6)) und (ii) eins (1)
(bei Faktor Long Zertifikaten) bzw. der
Differenz aus (i) eins (1) und (ii) dem
Quotienten aus dem Referenzpreis und
dem Vorherigen Referenzpreis (bei Faktor
Short Zertifikaten), berechnet gemaR der
nachfolgenden Formel:

Bei Faktor Long Zertifikaten:
( Referenzpreis 1)
Vorheriger Ref erenzpreis B
Bei Faktor Short Zertifikaten:
( Referenzpreis )
B Vorheriger Referenzpreis

Der "Faktor" entspricht dem in Tabelle 1
im Annex der Emissionshezogenen
Bedingungen angegebenen Faktor.

Der "Referenzpreis"” entspricht an jedem
Berechnungstag (89(2 der
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the Issue Specific Conditions), subject to
Section 8 of the Issue Specific Conditions
[and the following sentences], to the
Underlying Price (Section 9 (2) of the
Issue Specific Conditions).

The "Previous Reference Price"
corresponds on each Calculation Date
(Section 9 (2) of the Issue Specific
Conditions) to the Reference Price on the
previous Calculation Date or, if a Stop-
Loss Event (Section 3 (3) of the Issue
Specific  Conditions) has  occurred
between the time of determination of the
Reference Price on the previous
Calculation Date and the determination of
the Reference Price on the Calculation
Date, to the Stop-Loss Reference Price
(Section3 (4) of the Issue Specific
Conditions). If a Market Disruption Event
within the meaning of Section 8 (2) of the
Issue Specific Conditions has occurred on
the previous Calculation Date, the
relevant Reference Price corresponds to
the Reference Price on the immediately
previous Calculation Date on which no
Market Disruption Event has occurred.

[in case of shares and price indices as
Underlying insert: In the case of Shares
and Price Indices as Underlying the
Previous Reference Price on Calculation
Dates, that are at the same time Dividend
Record Dates, corresponds to the
Reference Price on this Calculation Date
minus [the gross-dividend amount per
Share or per share represented in the
Price Index taking into account the
weighting of the relevant shares in the
Price Index.][the Dividend Effect. The
"Dividend Effect" corresponds to an
amount, which is calculated by the
Calculation Agent in its reasonable
discretion based on the dividends or cash
distributions  equivalent to dividends
distributed on a Dividend Record Date on
the relevant Share or on one or several
shares represented in the index. In the
case of Factor Long Certificates the
Dividend Effect is also multiplied by the
Dividend Factor. The "Dividend Factor"
on any given day corresponds in the case
of Shares and price indices to a value
between 0 and 1, which is calculated by
the Calculation Agent in its reasonable
discretion based on the taxes or charges
payable by the Calculation Agent on the
dividends or cash distributions equivalent

Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen),
vorbehaltlich §8 der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen [und
der folgenden Séatze], der Kursreferenz
(89 (2 der Emissionsbezogenen
Bedingungen).

Der "Vorherige Referenzpreis”
entspricht an jedem Berechnungstag
(89 (2 der Emissionsbezogenen
Bedingungen) dem Referenzpreis am
vorangegangenen Berechnungstag oder,
sofern zwischen dem Zeitpunkt der
Feststellung des Referenzpreises am
vorangegangenen Berechnungstag und
der Feststellung des Referenzpreises am
Berechnungstag ein Stop-Loss Ereignis
(83 (3) der Emissionsbezogenen
Bedingungen) eingetreten ist, dem Stop-
Loss Referenzpreis (83 (4) der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen).
Sofern am vorangegangenen
Berechnungstag ein
Marktstérungsereignis im Sinne von § 8
(2) der Emissionsbezogenen
Bedingungen vorgelegen hat, entspricht
der maRgebliche Referenzpreis dem
Referenzpreis am unmittelbar
vorangegangenen Berechnungstag, an
dem kein Marktstérungsereignis
vorgelegen hat.

[im Fall von Aktien und Kursindizes als
Basiswert einfugen: Bei Aktien und
Kursindizes als Basiswert entspricht der
Vorherige Referenzpreis an
Berechnungstagen, die gleichzeitig
Dividendentage sind, dem Referenzpreis
an diesem Berechnungstag abzuglich
[den Brutto-Dividendenbetragen je Aktie
bzw. im Kursindex enthaltene Aktien unter
Beriicksichtigung der Gewichtung der
relevanten Aktien im Kursindex.][des
Dividendeneinflusses. Der
"Dividendeneinfluss" entspricht einem
Betrag, der von der Berechnungsstelle
nach billigem Ermessen auf Grundlage
der an einem Dividendentag auf die
jeweilige Aktie bzw. auf eine oder
mehrere der im Index vertretenen Aktien
ausgeschiitteten Dividenden bzw.
Dividenden gleichstehenden
Barausschittungen berechnet wird. Bei
Faktor Long Zertifikaten wird der
Dividendeneinfluss zusatzlich mit dem
Dividendenfaktor multipliziert. Der
"Dividendenfaktor" an einem
angegebenen Tag entspricht bei Aktien
und Kursindizes einem Wert zwischen 0
und 1, der auf Grundlage der an diesem
Tag auf die entsprechende Aktie bzw. auf
eine oder mehrere der im Index
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to dividends distributed on that day on the
relevant Share or one or several of the
shares represented in the index.] A
"Dividend Record Date" is a day on
which Shares of the relevant company for
which dividends or cash amounts
equivalent to dividends are to be
distributed are traded "ex dividend" on
their relevant primary exchange.]

[In case of futures contracts as Underlying
and as far as Rollover is applicable,
insert: If the Calculation Date is a Rollover
Date (Section 9 (5) of the Issue Specific
Conditions) the Previous Reference Price
will be calculated on the basis of the new
futures contract.]

The Financing Costs ("FC") correspond to
the product of (i) the Previous Cash
Amount, (i) the difference between the
Factor and one (1) and (iii) the quotient of
(x) the sum of the Financing Rate and the
Margin  and (y) 360 (Factor Long
Certificates) or the product of (i) the
Previous Cash Amount, (ii) the difference
between the Factor and one (1), (iii) the
quotient of (x) the difference between the
Financing Rate and the Margin and
(y) 360 (Factor Short Certificates) and (iv)
the number of calendar days, calculated
in accordance with the following formula:

Factor Long Certificates:
FC=PA =(F-1 (R +M]
=P =P D5a

Factor Short Certificates:

R-M
FC = PA x{F—l]x( 260 ]x.:z

The following definitions apply:

"PA" is the Previous Cash Amount in
accordance with paragraph D).

"Factor" or "F" is the Factor in
accordance with paragraph (5).

The "Financing Rate" or "R" is the
Financing Rate specified in Table 1 in the
Annex to the Issue Specific Conditions.

The "Margin" oder "M" is the additional
interest specified in Table 1 in the Annex

@)

vertretenen  Aktien  ausgeschiitteten
Dividenden bzw. Dividenden
gleichstehenden Barausschittungen von

der Berechnungsstelle zu zahlenden
Steuern oder Abgaben von der
Berechnungsstelle nach billigem
Ermessen berechnet wird.] Ein

"Dividendentag" ist ein Tag, an dem
Aktien des betreffenden Unternehmens,
auf die Dividenden bzw. Dividenden
gleichstehende Barbetrage ausgeschittet
werden sollen, an ihrer entsprechenden
Heimatbtrse "ex Dividende" gehandelt
werden.]

[im Fall von Futures Kontrakten als
Basiswert und soweit Rollover anwendbar
ist, einfligen: Falls der Berechnungstag
ein Rollovertag (89 (5) der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen) ist,
wird der Vorherige Referenzpreis auf
Basis des neuen Futures Kontrakts
berechnet.]

Die Finanzierungskosten ("FK™)
entsprechen dem Produkt aus (i) dem
Vorherigen Auszahlungsbetrag, (ii) der
Differenz aus dem Faktor und eins (1)
und (iii) dem Quotienten aus (x) der
Summe aus der Finanzierungsrate und
der Marge und (y) 360 (bei Faktor Long
Zertifikaten) bzw. dem Produkt aus (i)
dem Vorherigen Auszahlungsbetrag, (ii)
der Differenz aus dem Faktor und
eins (1), (iii) dem Quotienten aus (x) der
Differenz aus der Finanzierungsrate und
der Marge und (y) 360 (bei Faktor Short
Zertifikaten) und (iv) der Anzahl der
Kalendertage, berechnet gemaR der
nachfolgenden Formel:

Bei Faktor Long Zertifikaten:
FE=VA «(F-1 (HJFM] d

- S A Ty
Bei Faktor Short Zertifikaten:

R—M
FE =VA4 x{F—l]x( o0 ]xd

Dabei gelten die folgenden Definitionen:

"VA" ist der Vorherige Auszahlungsbetrag
geman Absatz (1).

"Faktor" oder "F" ist der Faktor geman
Absatz (5).

Die "Finanzierungrate" oder "R" ist die in
Tabelle 1 im Annex der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
angegebenen Finanzierungsrate.

Die "Marge" oder "M" ist der in Tabelle 1
im Annex der Emissionsbezogenen
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(8)

Currency Conversion

to the Issue Specific Conditions (Factor
Long Certificates) or interest deduction
(Factor Short Certificates).

"d" is the number of calendar days
between the last previous Calculation
Date and the current Calculation Date.

is applicable, the
following Paragraph shall apply:

[if Quanto is applicable, insert: The
Reference Currency is converted into the
Settlement Currency by the Calculation
Agent at an exchange rate of one unit of
the Reference Currency to one unit of the
Settlement Currency ("Quanto”).] [if
Quanto is not applicable, insert: The
Reference Currency is converted into the
Settlement Currency by the Calculation
Agent based on the exchange rate
expressed in the Reference Currency for
one unit of the Settlement Currency,
which is shown on the Final Valuation
Date (Section 5 (2) of the Issue Specific
Conditions) [at or around [insert relevant
time: o]] [at the time when the Calculation
Agent determines the Reference Price] on
the Exchange Rate Screen Page as
specified in Table 2 in the Annex to the
Issue Specific Conditions (the "Exchange
Rate Screen Page") or any page
replacing it. If the conversion occurs at a
time when the Exchange Rate Screen
Page should not be available on the
stated date or if the exchange rate is not
shown, the exchange rate shall
correspond to the exchange rate shown
on the corresponding page of another
financial information service. If the
exchange rate should not or no longer be
shown in any of the above ways, the
Calculation Agent has the right to
determine in its reasonable discretion an
exchange rate determined based on the
then applicable market conditions, taking
into account the then existing market
situation, as the exchange rate.]]

Bedingungen angegebene Zinsaufschlag

(bei Faktor Long Zertifikaten) bzw.
Zinsabschlag (bei Faktor Short
Zertifikaten).

"d" ist die Anzahl der Kalendertage

zwischen dem letzten vorangegangenen
Berechnungstag und dem aktuellen
Berechnungstag.

[sofern Wé&hrungsumrechnung anwendbar ist, gilt

®)

der folgende Absatz:

[sofern Quanto anwendbar ist, einfiigen:
Die Referenzwéhrung wird von der
Berechnungsstelle in die
Auszahlungswéhrung umgerechnet,
wobei eine Einheit der Referenzwéhrung
einer Einheit der Auszahlungswéhrung
entspricht ("Quanto").] [sofern Quanto
nicht anwendbar ist, einfligen: Die
Referenzwéahrung wird von der
Berechnungsstelle basierend auf dem
Wechselkurs der Referenzwahrung fir
eine Einheit der Auszahlungswahrung,
wie am Finalen Bewertungstag (85 (2)
der Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen)
[um oder gegen [malgebliche Uhrzeit
einfigen: e]] [zum Zeitpunkt, zu dem die
Berechnungsstelle den Referenzpreis
feststellt,] auf der in Tabelle 2 im Annex
der Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
angegebenen Wechselkurs-
Bildschirmseite  (die  "Wechselkurs-
Bildschirmseite"), oder einer diese
ersetzende Seite, angezeigt, in die
Auszahlungswéhrung umgerechnet.
Sollte die Umrechnung zu einem
Zeitpunkt  erfolgen, zu dem die
Wechselkurs-Bildschirmseite an  dem
angegebenen Tag nicht zur Verfligung
steht oder der Wechselkurs nicht
angezeigt wird, entspricht der
Wechselkurs dem Wechselkurs, wie er
auf der entsprechenden Seite eines
anderen Wirtschaftsinformationsdienstes
angezeigt wird. Sollte der Wechselkurs
nicht oder nicht mehr in einer der
vorgenannten Arten angezeigt werden, ist
die Berechnungsstelle berechtigt, als
Wechselkurs einen auf der Basis der
dann geltenden Marktusancen und unter
Berlcksichtigung der dann herrschenden
Marktgegebenheiten nach billigem
Ermessen ermittelten Wechselkurs
festzulegen.]]
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Section 3
Stop-Loss Mechanism

The "Stop-Loss Barrier" corresponds on
each Calculation Date (Section9 (2) of
the Issue Specific Conditions) after the
First Settlement Date (Section 5 (4) of the
Issue Specific Conditions) to the Previous
Reference Price (Section2 (6) of the
Issue Specific Conditions) multiplied by
the Stop-Loss Factor (paragraph (2)). The
respective result will be commercially
rounded to [four][e] decimal places. On
the First Settlement Date the Stop-Loss
Barrier (the "Initial Stop-Loss Barrier")
corresponds to the [Initial Stop-Loss
Barrier specified in Table 1 in the Annex

to the Issue Specific Conditions.]
[Reference Price on the Calculation Date
prior to the First Settlement Date

multiplied by the Stop-Loss Factor. The
result will be commercially rounded to
[four][e] decimal places. If a Market
Disruption Event within the meaning of
Section 8 (2) of the Issue Specific
Conditions has occurred on the previous
Calculation Date, the relevant Reference
Price on the basis of which the Initial
Stop-Loss Barrier will be determined
corresponds to the Reference Price on
the immediately preceding Calculation
Date on which no Market Disruption Event
has occurred.]

The "Stop-Loss Factor" corresponds to
the result of the following calculation:

Factor Long Certificates

1 — Stop-Loss Buffer
Factor Short Certificates

1+ Stop-Loss Buffer
Whereby

"Stop-Loss Buffer" corresponds to the
Stop-Loss Buffer specified in Table 1 in

the Annex to the Issue Specific
Conditions.
A "Stop-Loss Event" occurs, if the

Observation Price (Section9 (2) of the
Issue Specific Conditions) during the
Calculation Hours (Section 9 (2) of the
Issue Specific Conditions) on a
Calculation Date reaches or falls below
the Stop-Loss Barrier on this Calculation
Date (Factor Long Certificates) or reaches
or exceeds the Stop-Loss Barrier (Factor
Short Certificates).

@)

)

®3)

83
Stop-Loss Mechanismus

Die "Stop-Loss Barriere" entspricht an
jedem Berechnungstag (89 (2) der
Emissionsbhezogenen Bedingungen) nach
dem Ersten Valutatag (8 5 (4) der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen) dem
Vorherigen Referenzpreis (82 (6) der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen)
multipliziert mit dem Stop-Loss Faktor
(Absatz (2)). Das jeweilige Ergebnis wird
auf [vier][e] Nachkommastellen
kaufmannisch gerundet. Am Ersten
Valutatag entspricht die Stopp-Loss
Barriere (die "Anféngliche Stop-Loss
Barriere") [der in der Tabelle 1 im Annex
der Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
angegebenen Anfanglichen Stop-Loss
Barriere.] [dem Referenzpreis an dem
dem Ersten Valutatag vorangegangenen
Berechnungstag multipliziert mit dem
Stop-Loss Faktor. Das Ergebnis wird auf
[vier][e] Nachkommastellen kaufmannisch
gerundet. Sofern am vorangegangenen
Berechnungstag ein
Marktstérungsereignis im Sinne von
§8(2) der Emissionsbezogenen
Bedingungen vorgelegen hat, entspricht
der malRgebliche Referenzpreis, auf
dessen Basis die Anfangliche Stop-Loss
Barriere festgelegt wird, dem
Referenzpreis am unmittelbar
vorangegangenen Berechnungstag, an
dem kein Marktstdrungsereignis
vorgelegen hat.]

Der "Stop-Loss Faktor" entspricht dem
Ergebnis folgender Berechnung:

bei Faktor Long Zertifikaten
1 — Stop-Loss Puf fer
bei Faktor Short Zertifikaten
1+ Stop-Loss Puf fer
wobei gilt:

"Stop-Loss Puffer" entspricht dem in der
Tabelle 1 im Annex der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
angegebenen Stop-Loss Puffer.

Ein "Stop-Loss Ereignis” liegt vor, wenn

der Beobachtungskurs (89 (2) der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen)
wahrend der Berechnungsstunden

(89 (2 der Emissionsbezogenen
Bedingungen) an einem Berechnungstag

die Stop-Loss Barriere an diesem
Berechnungstag erreicht oder
unterschreitet (bei Faktor Long
Zertifikaten) bzw. erreicht oder
Uberschreitet (bei Faktor Short
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@)

)

The "Stop-Loss Reference Price" on a
Calculation Date corresponds to the Stop-
Loss Barrier on this Calculation Date.

Section 4
Exercise of the Securities

The Securities may be exercised by the
Security Holders according to the
following provisions (the "Exercise
Right"). The Exercise Right may be
exercised by the Security Holder, subject
to an extraordinary termination or an
ordinary termination of the Securities in
accordance with Section 10 or Section 7
of the Issue Specific Conditions or
Section 5 of the General Conditions, until
[11 am.][e] (local time Vienna) (the
"Exercise Time") starting at the Start of
the Exercise Period specified in Table 1 in
the Annex to the Issue Specific
Conditions (the "Start of the Exercise
Period") on each Business Day in
[Vienna][e] (each the "Exercise Period").
In case of an extraordinary or ordinary
termination in accordance with Section 10
or Section7 of the Issue Specific
Conditions or Section 5 of the General
Conditions the Exercise Right may only
be exercised no later than [11 a.m.][e]
(local time Vienna) on the day on which
the termination becomes effective. In
case of an extraordinary or ordinary
termination of the Securities by the Issuer
in accordance with Section 10 or
Section 7 of the Issue Specific Conditions
or Section 5 of the General Conditions
before the end of the Exercise Period, the
Exercise Period ends [at the Exercise
Time] on [the last Business Day prior to]
the Termination Date.

Exercise Rights may only be exercised in
each case for the minimum exercise
number as specified in Table1 in the
Annex to the Issue Specific Conditions
(the "Minimum Exercise Number"). [if a
Maximum Exercise Number is specified,
insert: The total number of Securities
exercised must not exceed the maximum
exercise number as specified in Table 1 in
the Annex to the Issue Specific
Conditions (the "Maximum Exercise
Number").] With the exercise of the
Securities on the relevant Exercise Date

(4)

@)

)

Zertifikaten).

Der "Stop-Loss Referenzpreis" an
einem Berechnungstag entspricht der

Stop-Loss Barriere an diesem
Berechnungstag.
§4
Ausiubung der Wertpapiere
Die Wertpapiere konnen durch die
Wertpapierinhaber gemal den

nachfolgenden Bestimmungen ausgelibt
werden (das "AuslUbungsrecht"). Das
AuslUbungsrecht kann, vorbehaltlich einer
aul3erordentlichen  bzw.  ordentlichen
Kindigung der Wertpapiere gemaf 8§ 10
bzw. 87 der Emissionsbezogenen
Bedingungen bzw. 85 der Allgemeinen

Bedingungen durch die
Wertpapierinhaber, jeweils bis [11:00][e]
Uhr (Ortszeit Wien) (die
"Auslbungszeit) ab dem in der
Tabelle 1 im Annex der

Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
genannten Beginn der Ausitbungsfrist
(der "Beginn der Ausubungsfrist”) an
jedem Bankgeschéaftstag in [Wien][e]
ausgelbt werden (jeweils die
"Austbungsfrist™). Im  Fall  einer
aulerordentlichen  oder ordentlichen
Kundigung gemalR §10 bzw. 87 der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen bzw.
8§ 5 der Allgemeinen Bedingungen kann
das Ausubungsrecht nur bis spétestens
[11:00][e] Uhr (Ortszeit Wien) an dem Tag
des Wirksamwerdens der Kindigung
ausgeubt werden. Im Falle einer
aul3erordentlichen  oder  ordentlichen
Kindigung der Wertpapiere durch die
Emittentin gemal § 10 bzw. §7 der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen bzw.
85 der Allgemeinen Bedingungen vor
Ablauf der Auslbungsfrist endet die
AusiUbungsfrist [zur Ausubungszeit] am
[letzten Bankgeschéftstag vor dem]
Kindigungstermin.

Ausubungsrechte kdnnen jeweils nur fur
die Mindestausibungsmenge, wie in
Tabelle 1 im Annex der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
festgelegt, (die
"Mindestaustiibungsmenge") ausgelbt
werden. [sofern eine
Hochstausiibungsmenge festgelegt ist,
einflgen: Die Gesamtzahl der
ausgelibten Wertpapiere darf die in
Tabelle 1 im Annex der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
festgelegte Hochstaustibungsmenge (die
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all the rights of the realised Securities
expire.

In order to exercise the Security Rights
effectively, the following conditions must
also be fulfilled on a Business Day within
the Exercise Period:

€) a declaration signed with legally-
binding effect must have been
submitted to the Paying Agent
(Section 3 (1) of the General
Conditions), including the
following information: (i) the name
of the Security Holder, (ii) the
designation and the number of
the Securities, the Security Rights
of which are exercised, (i) a
suitable bank account, to which
any Cash Amount denominated in
the Settlement Currency is to be
credited, and (iv) a declaration,
that neither the Security Holder
nor the beneficial owner of the
Securities is a U.S. person (the
"Exercise Notice", a template is
available at
https://produkte.erstegroup.com/R
etail/). The Exercise Notice is,
subject to Section 8 of the Issue
Specific Conditions, irrevocable
and binding. The terms used in
this paragraph have the meaning
ascribed to them in Regulation S
promulgated under the United
States Securities Act of 1933, as
amended from time to time;

(b) the Securities must have been
received by the Paying Agent
through credit of the Securities to
the account of the Paying Agent

at the Clearing System
(Section 2 (1) of the General
Conditions).

Section 5

Exercise Date; Final Valuation Date;

Business Day; Term of the Securities

®3)

"Héchstausiibungsmenge") nicht
Uberschreiten.] Mit der Ausubung der
Wertpapiere am jeweiligen Ausiibungstag
erloschen alle Rechte aus den
eingelosten Wertpapieren.

Zur wirksamen Auslibung der

Wertpapierrechte missen an einem
Bankgeschéftstag innerhalb der
Ausibungsfrist ferner die folgenden

Bedingungen erfillt sein:

(@) bei der Zahlstelle (§3 (1) der
Allgemeinen Bedingungen) muss
eine rechtsverbindlich
unterzeichnete Erklarung
eingereicht  sein, die die
folgenden Angaben enthdlt: (i)
den Namen des
Wertpapierinhabers, (ii) die
Bezeichnung und die Anzahl der

Wertpapiere, deren
Wertpapierrechte ausgeibt
werden, (i) ein geeignetes

Bankkonto, dem gegebenenfalls
der Auszahlungsbetrag in der
Auszahlungswéhrung

gutgeschrieben werden soll, und
(iv) eine Erklarung, dass weder
der Wertpapierinhaber noch der

wirtschaftliche Eigentimer
(beneficial owner) der
Wertpapiere eine US-Person ist
(die "Ausubungserklarung”,
eine Vorlage ist unter
https://produkte.erstegroup.com/R
etail/ verfugbar). Die
Ausubungserklarung ist,
vorbehaltlich §8 der

Emissionsbezogenen

Bedingungen, unwiderruflich und
bindend. Die in diesem Absatz
verwendeten Bezeichnungen
haben die Bedeutung, die ihnen
in Regulation S gemaR dem
United States Securities Act von
1933 in seiner jeweils gultigen
Fassung beigelegt ist;

(b) die Wertpapiere muissen bei der
Zahlstelle durch Gutschrift der
Wertpapiere auf das Konto der
Zahlstelle bei dem Clearing-
System (8 2 (1) der Allgemeinen
Bedingungen) eingegangen sein.

85

Auslbungstag; Finaler Bewertungstag;

Bankgeschaftstag; Laufzeit der Wertpapiere
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"Exercise Date" is, subject to the
following provisions, the Business Day on
which all conditions set forth in
Section 4 (2) and (3) of the Issue Specific
Conditions are fulfilled no later than by the
Exercise Time (Section 4 (1) of the Issue
Specific Conditions). If these conditions
are fulfiled on a date, which is not a
Business Day, or after the Exercise Time
on a Business Day, the next following
Business Day shall be deemed to be the
Exercise Date, provided that this day falls
into the Exercise Period.

"Final Valuation Date" is, subject to
Section 8 of the Issue Specific Conditions,
if the Underlying Price (Section 9 (2) of
the Issue Specific Conditions) of the
Underlying is determined usually on a
Calculation Date after the Exercise Time,
the Exercise Date or if the Exercise Date
is not a Calculation Date (Section 9 (2) of
the Issue Specific Conditions), the
following Calculation Date or if the
Underlying Price is determined usually on
a Calculation Date prior to the Exercise
Time, the Calculation Date (Section 9 (2)
of the Issue Specific Conditions)
immediately following the Exercise Date.

"Business Day" is, subject to the
following rules and unless set forth
otherwise in these Terms and Conditions,
each day on which banks in [Vienna][,

Jland  ]J[Frankfurt am Main][, ][and
JlLondon][, ] [and][e] are open for
business. In connection with payment

transactions in accordance with Section 6
and Section 10 of the Issue Specific
Conditions, "Business Day" is each day
(except for Saturday and Sunday) on
which [if EUR is specified as Settlement
Currency, insert: the TARGET2-System is
open and] the Clearing System (Section 2
(1) of the General Conditions) processes
payments and on which banks in
[Vienna][, ]J[and ][Frankfurt am Main][,
Jland ][London][, J[and ][e] are open for
business]. [If EUR is specified as
Settlement Currency, insert: "TARGET2-
System" means the Trans-European
Automated Real-time Gross Settlement
Express Transfer (TARGET2) payment
system or any system succeeding it.]

@)

2

®)

"AusUbungstag" ist, vorbehaltlich der
nachfolgenden Bestimmungen, der
Bankgeschéftstag, an dem bis spatestens
zur Ausilibungszeit (84 (1) der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen)
samtliche in 84(2) und (3) der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
genannten Bedingungen erfillt sind. Falls
diese Bedingungen an einem Tag, der
kein Bankgeschéftstag ist, oder nach der
Ausiibungszeit an einem
Bankgeschéftstag erfillt sind, gilt der
nachstfolgende Bankgeschéftstag als der
Ausibungstag, vorausgesetzt, dass
dieser Tag in die Auslibungsfrist fallt.

"Finaler Bewertungstag" ist,
vorbehaltlich §8 der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen,
sofern die Kursreferenz (89 (2) der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen) des
Basiswerts  Ublicherweise an einem
Berechnungstag nach der Ausibungszeit
festgestellt wird, der Ausiibungstag bzw.,
falls der Auslbungstag kein
Berechnungstag (89(2) der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen) ist,
der nachstfolgende Berechnungstag bzw.,
sofern die Kursreferenz des Basiswerts
Ublicherweise an einem Berechnungstag
vor der Ausiibungszeit festgestellt wird,
der Berechnungstag (§89(2) der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen), der
unmittelbar auf den Ausiibungstag folgt.

"Bankgeschaftstag"” ist, vorbehaltlich der
nachfolgenden Regelung und sofern
nichts Abweichendes in diesen
Zertifikatsbedingungen geregelt ist, jeder
Tag, an dem die Banken in [Wien][, Jlund
J[Frankfurt am Main][, J[und ][London][,
Jlund][ e] flir den Geschéaftsverkehr
geodffnet sind. Im Zusammenhang mit
Zahlungsvorgéangen gemalR 8 6 und § 10
der Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen ist
"Bankgeschaftstag" jeder Tag (aul3er
Samstag und Sonntag), an dem [sofern
EUR als Auszahlungswahrung festgelegt
ist, einfigen: das TARGET2-System
geoffnet ist und] das Clearing-System (8§ 2
(1) der Allgemeinen Bedingungen)
Zahlungen abwickelt und an dem die
Banken in [Wien][, Jlund ][Frankfurt am
Main][, Jlund ][London][, J[und][ e] fir den
Geschaftsverkehr gedffnet sind]. [sofern
EUR als Auszahlungswahrung festgelegt
ist, einfugen: "TARGET2-System"
bezeichnet das Trans-European
Automated Real-time Gross Settlement
Express Transfer (TARGET?2)-

Zahlungssystem oder jedes
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The "Term of the Securities" begins on
the First Settlement Date as specified in
Table 1 in the Annex to the Issue Specific
Conditions (the "First Settlement Date").
The end of the term is currently not
certain and corresponds to, in respect to
Securities that have not been exercised
yet, the Termination Date in accordance
with Section 7 of the Issue Specific
Conditions or Section 10 (1) of the Issue
Specific Conditions or Section 5 of the
General Conditions.

Section 6

Determination and Payment of the Cash Amount

(4)

Nachfolgesystem dazu.]

Die "Laufzeit der Wertpapiere" beginnt
am in der Tabellel im Annex der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
genannten Ersten Valutatag (der "Erste

Valutatag"). Das Laufzeitende steht
gegenwartig noch nicht fest und
entspricht  hinsichtlich  noch  nicht
ausgelbter Wertpapiere, dem

Kindigungstermin  gemall 87 der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen bzw.
§10 (1) der Emissionsbezogenen
Bedingungen bzw. 85 der Allgemeinen
Bedingungen.

§6

Ermittlung und Zahlung des Auszahlungsbetrags

)

)

Following the exercise of the Securities in
accordance with Section 4 (3) of the Issue
Specific Conditions as well as the
determination of the Reference Price on
the Calculation Date that corresponds to

the relevant Final Valuation Date
(Section5(2) of the Issue Specific
Conditions), the Calculation Agent

calculates any Cash Amount to be paid
either based on the number of Securities
actually delivered or based on the number
of Securities specified in the Exercise
Notice, depending on which number is
lower. Section 4 (2) of the Issue Specific
Conditions remains unaffected. The Cash
Amount will where appropriate be
commercially rounded to [two][e] decimal
places. Any remaining surplus of
delivered Securities is returned to the
holder of the Security Rights of the
Securities to be exercised at its cost and
risk.

Following (a) the exercise of the
Securities in accordance with
Section 4 (2) and (3) of the Issue Specific
Conditions or (b) an early termination of
the Securities by the Issuer in accordance
with Section 7 of the Issue Specific
Conditions or Section 10 of the Issue
Specific Conditions or Section 5 of the
General Conditions, the Issuer will cause
the transfer of any Cash Amount or of the
respective Termination Amount, as the
case may be, to be claimed to the
account of the holder of the exercised
Securities specified in the Exercise Notice
by the [fifth][e] Business Day after the
Final Valuation Date (Section 5 (2) of the

@

)

Nach Ausiibung der Wertpapiere gemaf
8§84 (3) der Emissionsbezogenen
Bedingungen sowie der Feststellung des
Referenzpreises am Berechnungstag, der

dem mafgeblichen Finalen
Bewertungstag (85(2) der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen)
entspricht, berechnet die

Berechnungsstelle den gegebenenfalls zu
zahlenden Auszahlungsbetrag entweder
nach der Anzahl der tatsachlich
gelieferten Wertpapiere oder nach der in
der  Ausubungserklarung  genannten
Anzahl von Wertpapieren, je nachdem,
welche Zahl niedriger ist. §4 (2) der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen bleibt
unberihrt. Der zZu zahlende
Auszahlungsbetrag wird gegebenenfalls
auf [zwei][e] Nachkommastellen
kaufménnisch  gerundet. Ein etwa
verbleibender Uberschuss beziiglich der
gelieferten Wertpapiere wird an den
Inhaber der auszuubenden
Wertpapierrechte auf dessen Kosten und
Gefahr zurtickgewéhrt.

Nach (a) der Austibung der Wertpapiere
geman 84 (2) und 3 der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen oder
(b) einer vorzeitigen Kindigung der
Wertpapiere durch die Emittentin gemar
87 der Emissionsbezogenen
Bedingungen oder §10 der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen oder
8§ 5 der Allgemeinen Bedingungen, wird

die Emittentin bis zum
[finften][e] Bankgeschéaftstag nach dem
Finalen Bewertungstag (85(2) der

Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen) bzw.
nach dem jeweiligen Kindigungstermin
(fur sich jeweils der "Ruckzahlungstag")
die Uberweisung des gegebenenfalls zu
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Issue Specific Conditions) or after the
respective Termination Date (in each
case the "Repayment Date"). In the case
of an early termination of the Securities by
the Issuer, the Issuer will cause the
transfer of the Termination Amount to be
claimed to the Clearing System
(Section 2 (1) of the General Conditions)
for credit to the accounts of the depositors
of the Securities with the Clearing
System, without requiring the fulfilment of
the conditions set forth in Section 4 (2)
and (3) of the Issue Specific Conditions.
In the case of an extraordinary
termination by the Issuer, the declaration
referred to in Section 4 (3)(a)(iv) of the
Issue Specific Conditions is deemed to be
issued automatically.

3) All taxes, fees or other charges arising in
connection with the exercise of Security
Rights or with the payment of the Cash
Amount or of the Termination Amount
shall be borne and paid by the Security
Holder. The Issuer or the Paying Agent
has the right to withhold any taxes, fees
or other charges payable by the Security
Holder, as aforesaid.

Section 7
Ordinary termination by the Issuer

The Issuer has the right to terminate the
Securities at all times in their entirety, but not
partially, during their term through an
announcement in accordance with Section 6
(Notices) of the General Conditions, stating the
calendar day on which the termination becomes
effective (the "Termination Date") and subject to
a termination notice period of at least [three (3)][e]
month[s] (the "Termination Notice Period") prior
to the respective Termination Date. The
termination amount (the "Termination Amount")
is calculated in the same manner as the Cash
Amount (Section2 of the Issue Specific
Conditions). For purposes of calculating the Cash
Amount in accordance with Section 2 of the Issue
Specific Conditions, the Termination Date is
deemed to be the Final Valuation Date in the
sense of these Terms and Conditions. If this date
should not be a Calculation Date, the next
following Calculation Date is deemed to be the
Final Valuation Date. The termination is

beanspruchenden  Auszahlungsbetrags
bzw. des Kindigungsbetrags auf das in
der Auslbungserklarung angegebene
Konto des Inhabers der ausgetbten
Wertpapiere veranlassen. Im Fall einer
vorzeitigen  Kindigung  durch  die
Emittentin, wird die Emittentin die
Uberweisung des gegebenenfalls zu
beanspruchenden Kindigungsbetrags an
das Clearing-System (82 (1) der
Allgemeinen Bedingungen) zur Gutschrift
auf die Konten der Hinterleger der
Wertpapiere bei dem Clearing-System
veranlassen, ohne dass es der Erfillung
der in 84 (2) und 3) der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
genannten Bedingungen bedarf. Im Fall
einer auBerordentlichen Kiindigung durch
die Emittentin gilt die Erklarung nach

84 (3)(a)(iv) der Emissionsbezogenen
Bedingungen automatisch als
abgegeben.

) Alle im Zusammenhang mit der Auslibung
von Wertpapierrechten bzw. mit der
Zahlung des Auszahlungsbetrags bzw.
des Kindigungsbetrags anfallenden
Steuern, GebUhren oder anderen
Abgaben sind von dem
Wertpapierinhaber zu tragen und zu
zahlen. Die Emittentin bzw. die Zahlstelle
ist berechtigt, etwaige Steuern, Gebihren
oder Abgaben einzubehalten, die von
dem Wertpapierinhaber gemal
vorstehendem Satz zu zahlen sind.

87
Ordentliche Kiindigung durch die Emittentin

Die Emittentin ist jederzeit berechtigt, die
Wertpapiere insgesamt, jedoch nicht teilweise,
wahrend ihrer Laufzeit durch Bekanntmachung
gemal § 6 (Bekanntmachungen) der Allgemeinen
Bedingungen unter Angabe des Kalendertags, zu
dem die Kuindigung wirksam wird (der
"Kundigungstermin"), und unter Wahrung einer
Kindigungsfrist von mindestens [drei (3)][e]
Monat[en] vor dem jeweiligen Kindigungstermin
(die "Kindigungsfrist") zu kindigen. Der
Kindigungsbetrag (der "Kindigungsbetrag")
wird auf dieselbe Weise berechnet wie der
Auszahlungsbetrag (8 2 der Emissionsbezogenen
Bedingungen). Fur die Zwecke der Berechnung
des Auszahlungsbetrags gemall §2 der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen gilt der
Kindigungstermin als Finaler Bewertungstag im
Sinne dieser Zertifikatsbedingungen. Sollte dieser
Tag kein Berechnungstag sein, so gilt der
nachstfolgende Berechnungstag als Finaler
Bewertungstag. Die Kiundigung ist unwiderruflich
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irrevocable and must state the Termination Date.] und muss den Kiindigungstermin benennen.]
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Part B. Underlying Specific Conditions

[in the case of an index as underlying, insert:

1)

)

Section 8
Market Disruptions
If a Market Disruption Event
(paragraph (2)) exists on the Final

Valuation Date, then the Final Valuation
Date will be postponed to the next
following Calculation Date on which a
Market Disruption Event no longer exists.
If the Final Valuation Date has been
postponed by [five (5)][e] consecutive
Calculation Dates in accordance with the
provisions of this paragraph and if a
Market Disruption Event still exists on that
[fifth][e] date, such date shall be deemed
to be the Final Valuation Date and the
Calculation Agent shall determine the
Underlying Price in its reasonable
discretion taking into account the market
situation existing on the Final Valuation
Date and announce it in accordance with
Section 6 (Notices) of the General
Conditions.

"Market Disruption Event" means

€) the suspension or restriction of
trading on the exchanges or the
markets where the Underlying
components are listed or traded,
in general; or

(b) the suspension or restriction of
trading (including the lending
market) of individual Underlying
components on the exchanges or
the  markets where these
components are listed or traded,
or in a futures or option contract
in respect of the Underlying on a
related exchange, where futures
or option contracts in respect of
the Underlying are traded (the
"Related Exchange"); or

(c) the suspension or non-calculation
of the Underlying because of a
decision of the Index Sponsor, if
such suspension, restriction, or
non-calculation occurs or exists
[during the last half hour prior to
the usually occurring calculation

[im Fall eines Index als Basiswert einfligen:

1)

)

88
Marktstérungen

Wenn an dem Finalen Bewertungstag ein
Marktstdrungsereignis (Absatz (2))

vorliegt, dann wird der Finale
Bewertungstag auf den nachstfolgenden
Berechnungstag, an dem kein
Marktstorungsereignis ~ mehr  vorliegt,
verschoben. Wenn der Finale
Bewertungstag aufgrund der

Bestimmungen dieses Absatzes um [funf
(5)][e] hintereinanderliegende
Berechnungstage verschoben worden ist
und auch an diesem [fiinften][e] Tag das

Marktstérungsereignis fortbesteht, dann
gilt dieser Tag als der Finale
Bewertungstag, wobei die

Berechnungsstelle die Kursreferenz nach
billigem Ermessen unter Beriicksichtigung
der an dem Finalen Bewertungstag
herrschenden Marktgegebenheiten
bestimmen und geman §6
(Bekanntmachungen) der Allgemeinen
Bedingungen bekanntmachen wird.

"Marktstdérungsereignis" bedeutet

(@) die Suspendierung oder
Einschrankung des Handels an
den Borsen bzw. den Markten, an

denen die dem Basiswert
zugrunde liegenden Werte notiert
bzw. gehandelt werden,
allgemein; oder

(b) die Suspendierung oder
Einschrankung  des  Handels

(einschliel3lich des Leihemarkts)
einzelner dem Basiswert zugrunde
liegender Werte an den Bdrsen
bzw. den Mérkten, an denen diese
Werte notiert bzw. gehandelt
werden, oder in einem Termin-
oder Optionskontrakt in Bezug auf
den Basiswert an einer
Terminborse, an der Termin- oder
Optionskontrakte in Bezug auf den
Basiswert gehandelt werden (die

"Mafl3gebliche Terminboérse");
oder
(c) die Suspendierung oder

Nichtberechnung des Basiswerts
aufgrund einer Entscheidung des
Index-Sponsors, sofern  diese
Suspendierung, Einschrankung
oder Nichtberechnung [in der
letzten halben Stunde vor der
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1)

)

®3)

of the closing price of the
Underlying or of the Underlying

components] and if such
suspension, restriction or non-
calculation is material for the

satisfaction of the obligations
under the Securities in the
reasonable discretion of the
Calculation Agent. A restriction
on the hours or number of days
on which trading occurs is not
considered a Market Disruption
Event, if the restriction is due to a
prior announcement relating to
the change of the respective
exchange.

Section 9

Underlying; Underlying Price; Successor

Underlying; Adjustments

The "Underlying" corresponds to the
Index specified as the Underlying in
Table 2 in the Annex to the Issue Specific
Conditions.

The "Underlying Price" corresponds to
[the Official Closing Price][insert other
relevant Underlying Price: o] of the
Underlying expressed in the Reference
Currency, as calculated and published on
Calculation Dates by the Index Sponsor
specified in Table 2 in the Annex to the
Issue Specific Conditions (the "Index
Sponsor"). [The "Observation Price" of
the Underlying corresponds to [the prices
continuously calculated and published for
the Underlying by the Index Sponsor on
Calculation Dates [during the Calculation
Hours]][insert other relevant Observation
Price: o] expressed in the Reference
Currency.] The "Reference Currency"
corresponds to the Reference Currency
specified in Table 2 in the Annex to the
Issue Specific Conditions. "Calculation
Dates" are dates on which the Underlying
is calculated and published by the Index
Sponsor. ['Calculation Hours" is the
period during a Calculation Date,[ during
which the Underlying is calculated and
published by the Index Sponsor][during
which the Index Sponsor usually
determines prices for the Underlying].]

If the Underlying is no longer calculated
and announced by the Index Sponsor, but
by a different person, company, or
institution, which the Calculation Agent in

Ublicherweise  zu  erfolgenden
Berechnung des Schlusskurses
des Basiswerts bzw. der dem
Basiswert zugrunde liegenden
Werte] eintritt bzw. besteht und
nach billigem Ermessen der
Berechnungsstelle far die
Erfullung der Verpflichtungen aus
den Wertpapieren wesentlich ist.
Eine Beschrankung der Stunden
oder Anzahl der Tage, an denen
ein Handel stattfindet, gilt nicht als
Marktstorungsereignis, sofern die
Einschréankung auf einer vorher
angekiindigten  Anderung  der
betreffenden Borse beruht.

§9

Basiswert; Kursreferenz; Nachfolgebasiswert;

@)

&)

®)

Anpassungen

Der "Basiswert" entspricht dem in der
Tabelle 2 im Annex der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen als
Basiswert angegebenen Index.

Die "Kursreferenz" entspricht [dem
offiziellen Schlusskurs][andere
Kursreferenz einfligen: o] des Basiswerts,
ausgedrickt in der Referenzwahrung, wie
er an Berechnungstagen von dem in der
Tabelle 2 im Annex der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
angegebenen Index-Sponsor (der "Index-
Sponsor") berechnet und verdffentlicht
wird. [Der "Beobachtungskurs" des
Basiswerts entspricht [den vom Index-
Sponsor an Berechnungstagen [wéahrend
den Berechnungsstunden] fir den
Basiswert fortlaufend berechneten und
veroffentlichten Kursen][anderen
Beobachtungskurs einflgen: o],
ausgedrickt in der Referenzwahrung.] Die
"Referenzwahrung"” entspricht der in der

Tabelle 2 im Annex der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
angegebenen Referenzwéhrung.

"Berechnungstage" sind Tage, an denen
der Basiswert vom Index-Sponsor
berechnet und  verdffentlicht  wird.
['Berechnungsstunden” ist der Zeitraum
innerhalb eines Berechnungstages,[ an
denen der Basiswert vom Index-Sponsor
berechnet und verdffentlicht wird] [in
denen der Index-Sponsor Ublicherweise
Kurse fur den Basiswert feststellt].]

Wird der Basiswert nicht mehr von dem
Index-Sponsor, sondern von  einer
anderen Person, Gesellschaft oder
Institution, die die Berechnungsstelle nach
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®)

its reasonable discretion considers
acceptable (the "Successor Index
Sponsor"), the Cash Amount will be
calculated based on the Underlying Price
calculated and published by the
Successor Index Sponsor. Furthermore,
each reference to the Index Sponsor in
these Conditions is deemed, if the context
so permits, to be a reference to the
Successor Index Sponsor.

Modifications in the calculation of the
Underlying (including adjustments) or to
the composition or weighting of the prices
or Securities, based on which the
Underlying is calculated, shall not result
in an Adjustment of the Securities Right,
unless, as a result of any such
modification, the relevant modified
concept and the calculation of the
Underlying, as the case may be, are no
longer comparable to the previously
relevant concept or the relevant
calculation of the Underlying in the
reasonable discretion of the Calculation
Agent. This applies in particular if, due to
any such modification and
notwithstanding constant prices of the
individual components comprised in the
Underlying and their weighting, a material
change occurs to the index value. An
Adjustment of the Securities Right may
also occur in the case of a cancellation of
the Underlying and/or its replacement
with another index. The Calculation Agent
shall in such circumstances adjust the
Securities  Right in its reasonable
discretion, taking into account the
remaining term of the Securities and the
last determined price of the Underlying,
with the goal of preserving the economic
value of the Securities, and determine the
date, taking into account the time of such
replacement, on which the adjusted
Securities Right is to be effective. The
adjusted Securities Right as well as the
time of its first application will be
published in accordance with Section 6
(Notices) of the General Conditions.

If (i) the Underlying is cancelled and/or
replaced with another index at any time or
if (ii) the Underlying may no longer be
used as a consequence of new regulatory
provisions or if (iii) the methodology of
determining or calculating the Underlying
Price or other prices relevant pursuant to

(4)

®)

biligem Ermessen fiir geeignet halt (der
"Nachfolge-Index Sponsor") berechnet
und veroffentlicht, so  wird der
Auszahlungsbetrag auf der Grundlage der
von dem Nachfolge-Index Sponsor
berechneten und veroffentlichten
Kursreferenz berechnet. Ferner gilt dann
jede in diesen Zertifikatsbedingungen
enthaltene Bezugnahme auf den Index-
Sponsor, sofern es der Zusammenhang
erlaubt, als Bezugnahme auf den
Nachfolge-Index Sponsor.

Verénderungen in der Berechnung des
Basiswerts (einschlieRlich Bereinigungen)
oder der Zusammensetzung  oder
Gewichtung der Kurse oder Wertpapiere,
auf deren Grundlage der Basiswert
berechnet wird, flhren nicht zu einer
Anpassung des Wertpapierrechts, es sei

denn, dass das neue maRgebende
Konzept und die Berechnung des
Basiswerts infolge einer Verédnderung

(einschlie3lich einer Bereinigung) nach
billigem Ermessen der Berechnungsstelle
nicht mehr vergleichbar ist mit dem bisher
mafRgebenden  Konzept oder  der
mafgebenden Berechnung des
Basiswerts. Dies gilt insbesondere, wenn
sich aufgrund irgendeiner Anderung trotz
gleichbleibender Kurse der in dem
Basiswert enthaltenen Einzelwerte und
ihrer  Gewichtung eine  wesentliche
Anderung des Indexwerts ergibt. Eine
Anpassung des Wertpapierrechts kann
auch bei Aufhebung des Basiswerts
und/oder seiner Ersetzung durch einen
anderen Index erfolgen. Die
Berechnungsstelle passt das
Wertpapierrecht nach biligem Ermessen
unter Berlcksichtigung der Restlaufzeit
der Wertpapiere und des zuletzt
ermittelten Kurses mit dem Ziel an, den
wirtschaftlichen Wert der Wertpapiere zu
erhalten, und bestimmt unter
Berlicksichtigung des Zeitpunkts der
Veranderung den Tag, zu dem das

angepasste  Wertpapierrecht  erstmals
zugrunde zu legen ist. Das angepasste
Wertpapierrecht sowie der Zeitpunkt

seiner erstmaligen Anwendung werden
gemal 86 (Bekanntmachungen) der
Allgemeinen Bedingungen bekannt
gemacht.

Wird (i) der Basiswert zu irgendeiner Zeit
aufgehoben  und/oder durch einen
anderen Index ersetzt oder (ii) darf der
Index aufgrund neuer gesetzlicher
Vorgaben nicht mehr verwendet werden
oder (iii) falls sich die Methodik zur
Ermittlung oder Berechnung der
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these Terms and Conditions for the
Underlying has materially changed and
such change results in the Underlying
Price, as calculated in accordance with
the new methodology, no longer
adequately representing the (original)
Underlying Price (as defined in Section 9
(2) of the Issue Specific Conditions), the
Calculation Agent shall determine in its
reasonable discretion, if necessary by
adjusting the Securities Right pursuant to
paragraph (4) accordingly, which index
shall be used as the basis for the
Securities Right in the future (the
"Successor Underlying"). The
Successor Underlying, as well as the time
of its first application, will be published in
accordance with Section 6 (Notices) of
the General Conditions. Each reference
contained in these Conditions to the
Underlying will, from the date and time of
any such adjustment, be deemed to be a
reference to the Successor Underlying, if
the context permits.

In the case of modifications to the way in
which the Reference Price or other rates
or prices relevant for the Underlying are
calculated pursuant to these Terms and
Conditions, including a modification of the
Calculation Dates and Calculation Hours
relevant for the Underlying and including
a subsequent correction of the Underlying
by the Index Sponsor, the Calculation
Agent is entitled, in such cases, to adjust
the Securities Right accordingly in its
reasonable discretion. The Calculation
Agent determines the date, taking into
account the time of any such
modification, when  the  adjusted
Securities Right is to become effective.
The adjusted Securities Right, as well as
the time of its first application, will be
published in accordance with Section 6
(Notices) of the General Conditions.

If, in the reasonable discretion of the
Calculation Agent, an Adjustment of the
Securities Right or the determination of a
Successor Underlying, is not possible for
any reasons whatsoever, the Calculation
Agent or the Issuer, or an expert
appointed by the Calculation Agent or the
Issuer, must, subject to a termination of
the Securities in accordance with
Section 10 of the Issue Specific
Conditions, ensure that the calculation

(6)

(@)

Kurzreferenz oder anderer nach diesen
Zertifikatsbedingungen fur den Basiswert
mafigeblichen Kurse wesentlich andert
und dies dazu fihrt, dass die gemald der
neuen Methodik berechnete Kursreferenz
die (urspringliche) Kursreferenz (wie in
89 (2) der Emissionsbezogenen
Bedingungen  definiert) nicht mehr
angemessen reprasentiert, legt die
Berechnungsstelle nach billigem
Ermessen, gegebenenfalls unter
entsprechender Anpassung des
Wertpapierrechts gemaR Absatz (4), fest,
welcher Index kunftig far das
Wertpapierrecht zugrunde zu legen ist
(der "Nachfolgebasiswert"). Der
Nachfolgebasiswert sowie der Zeitpunkt
seiner erstmaligen Anwendung werden
gemall 8§86 (Bekanntmachungen) der

Allgemeinen Bedingungen bekannt
gemacht. Jede in diesen
Zertifikatsbedingungen enthaltene

Bezugnahme auf den Basiswert gilt dann,
sofern es der Zusammenhang erlaubt, als
Bezugnahme auf den Nachfolgebasiswert.

Verénderungen in der Art und Weise der
Berechnung des Referenzpreises bzw.
anderer gemaf diesen
Zertifikatsbedingungen maf3geblicher
Kurse oder Preise fur den Basiswert,
einschlieRlich der Veranderung der fir den
Basiswert malRgeblichen
Berechnungstage und
Berechnungsstunden sowie einschliel3lich
einer nachtraglichen  Korrektur des
Basiswerts durch den Index-Sponsor
berechtigen die Berechnungsstelle, das
Wertpapierrecht nach biligem Ermessen
entsprechend anzupassen. Die
Berechnungsstelle bestimmt unter
Berlicksichtigung des Zeitpunktes der
Veranderung den Tag, zu dem das

angepasste  Wertpapierrecht  erstmals
zugrunde zu legen ist. Das angepasste
Wertpapierrecht sowie der Zeitpunkt

seiner erstmaligen Anwendung werden
gemal 86 (Bekanntmachungen) der

Allgemeinen Bedingungen bekannt
gemacht.
Ist nach biligem Ermessen der

Berechnungsstelle eine Anpassung des
Wertpapierrechts oder die Festlegung
eines Nachfolgebasiswerts, aus welchen
Grinden auch immer, nicht mdglich, wird
die Berechnungsstelle bzw. die Emittentin
oder ein von der Berechnungsstelle oder
der Emittentin bestellter Sachverstandiger,
vorbehaltlich  einer  Kundigung der
Wertpapiere nach §10 der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen, fir
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and publication of the Underlying is
continued based on the previous index
concept and on the last determined index
value. Any such continuation will be
announced in accordance with Section 6
(Notices) of the General Conditions.

An "Adjustment of the Securities
Right" as described in the foregoing
includes in particular an adjustment [of
the Strike] [or] [of the Multiplier] [or] [of
the Barrier] [or] [the Stop-Loss Barrier]
[or] [of the Cap] [or] [of the Reverse
Level] [or] [of the Bonus Level].

Section 10
Extraordinary Termination

If, in the reasonable discretion of the
Calculation Agent, an adjustment of the
Securities Right or the determination of a
Successor Underlying or of a Successor
Index Sponsor is not possible for any
reasons whatsoever, or if an Additional
Disruption Event (paragraph (4)) has
occurred, the Issuer has the right to
terminate the Securities extraordinarily by
means of an announcement in
accordance with Section 6 (Notices) of
the General Conditions. Any such
announcement shall set out the
Termination Amount (as defined below).
Any such termination as aforesaid
becomes effective on the day of the
publication of the relevant announcement
in accordance with Section 6 (Notices) of
the General Conditions or on the date
specified in  the announcement in
accordance with Section 6 (Notices) of
the General Conditions (the "Termination
Date"). Such termination must occur
within one month from the date on which
the event that caused the Securities Right
to have to be adjusted or a Successor
Underlying or a Successor Index Sponsor
to have to be determined in accordance
with these Terms and Conditions. In the
case of a termination, the Issuer pays to
each Security Holder an amount in
respect to each Security held by it (the
"Termination  Amount"), which is
determined by the Calculation Agent in its
reasonable discretion as the fair market
price of a Security immediately prior to
the occurrence of the event which causes
the Securities Right to have to be
adjusted or a Successor Underlying or a
Successor Index Sponsor having to be
determined in accordance with these

®)

@

die Weiterrechnung und Veréffentlichung
des Basiswerts auf der Grundlage des
bisherigen Indexkonzepts und des letzten
festgestellten Indexwerts Sorge tragen.
Eine derartige Fortfithrung wird geman § 6
(Bekanntmachungen) der Allgemeinen
Bedingungen bekannt gemacht.

Eine "Anpassung des Wertpapierrechts"
im Sinne der vorgenannten Absatze
umfasst insbesondere eine Anpassung
[des Basispreises] [bzw.] [des
Bezugsverhaltnisses] [bzw.] [der Barriere]
[bzw.] [der Stop-Loss Barriere] [bzw.] [dem
Cap] [bzw.] [dem Reverselevel] [bzw.]
[dem Bonuslevel].

8§10
AuRerordentliche Kiindigung

Ist nach Dbiligem Ermessen der
Berechnungsstelle eine Anpassung des
Wertpapierrechts oder die Festlegung
eines Nachfolgewerts bzw. eines
Nachfolge-Index Sponsors, aus welchen
Grunden auch immer, nicht mdglich oder

liegt ein Weiteres Stérungsereignis
(Absatz (4)) vor, so ist die Emittentin
berechtigt, die Wertpapiere

aulerordentlich durch Bekanntmachung
gemall 86 (Bekanntmachungen) der
Allgemeinen Bedingungen unter Angabe

des nachstehend definierten
Kindigungsbetrags zu kindigen. Die
Kindigung wird an dem Tag der
Bekanntmachung geman 86
(Bekanntmachungen) der Allgemeinen
Bedingungen bzw. zu dem in der
Bekanntmachung geman §6
(Bekanntmachungen) der Allgemeinen

Bedingungen bestimmten Tag wirksam
(der "Kindigungstermin®). Die
Kundigung hat innerhalb von einem Monat
nach Eintritt des Ereignisses, das dazu
fuhrt, dass nach MaRgabe dieser
Bestimmungen das  Wertpapierrecht
angepasst oder ein Nachfolgewert bzw.
ein Nachfolge-Index Sponsor festgelegt
werden muss, zu erfolgen. Im Fall einer
Kundigung zahlt die Emittentin an jeden
Wertpapierinhaber bezuglich jedes von
ihm gehaltenen Wertpapiers einen Betrag
(der "Kiundigungsbetrag"), der von der
Berechnungsstelle nach billigem
Ermessen als angemessener Marktpreis
eines Wertpapiers unmittelbar vor Eintritt
des Ereignisses, das dazu fuhrt, dass
nach Mallgabe dieser Bestimmungen das
Wertpapierrecht angepasst oder ein
Nachfolgewert bzw. ein Nachfolge-Index
Sponsor festgelegt werden muss, [unter
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4

Terms and Conditions[, taking into
account the remaining time value]. When
determining the Termination Amount, the
Calculation Agent may, inter alia, also
take the probability of default of the Issuer
based on the credit spreads quoted on
the market or on the yields of Bonds of
the Issuer that are traded with sufficient
liquidity at the time of determining the
Termination Amount into account.

The Issuer will cause the transfer of the
Termination Amount to the Clearing
System (Section 2 (1) of the General
Conditions) for credit to the accounts of
the depositors of the Securities with the
Clearing System by the [fifth][e] Business
Day after the Termination Date. In the
case of an extraordinary termination
pursuant to paragraph (1), the declaration
set out in [Section 6 (2)]
[Section 4 (3)(a)(iv)] of the Issue Specific
Conditions is deemed to be issued
automatically.

All taxes, fees, or other charges arising in
connection with the payment of the
Termination Amount shall be borne and
paid by the Security Holder. The Issuer or
the Paying Agent has the right to withhold
from the Termination Amount any taxes,
fees or other charges, which are payable
by the Security Holder, as aforesaid.

An "Additional Disruption Event" exists

if

€) the Calculation Agent determines
that (i) due to the adoption or
amendment of applicable laws or
directives (including tax laws)
after the Issue Date, or (ii) due to
the promulgation or change of the
interpretation of applicable laws
or directives after the Issue Date
by the competent courts,
arbitration panels, or regulatory
agencies (including measures by
tax authorities), (x) it has become
or will become llegal or
impracticable for it to hold,
acquire, or dispose of the
components of the Underlying, or
(y) it has incurred or will incur
significantly  higher direct or
indirect costs during the fulfilment
of its obligations under the
Securities or related hedging

@)

®)

4

Berlicksichtigung des  verbleibenden
Zeitwerts] festgelegt wird. Bei der
Bestimmung des Kundigungsbetrags kann
die Berechnungsstelle unter anderem
auch die Ausfallwahrscheinlichkeit der
Emittentin  anhand der am  Markt
quotierten Credit Spreads oder der
Renditen hinreichend liquide gehandelter
Anleihen der Emittentin zum Zeitpunkt der
Bestimmung des  Kindigungsbetrags
berlcksichtigen.

Die Emittentin wird bis zu dem
[finften][e] Bankgeschéftstag nach dem
Kundigungstermin die Uberweisung des
Kindigungsbetrags an das Clearing-
System (82 (1) der Allgemeinen
Bedingungen) zur Gutschrift auf die
Konten der Hinterleger der Wertpapiere
bei dem Clearing-System veranlassen. Im
Fall einer auf3erordentlichen Kindigung

geman Absatz (1) gilt die in
[§ 6 (2)][& 4 (3)(a)(iv)] der
Emissionsbezogenen Bedingungen
erwahnte Erklarung als automatisch
abgegeben.

Alle im Zusammenhang mit der Zahlung
des  Kuindigungsbetrags  anfallenden
Steuern, Gebihren oder anderen
Abgaben sind von dem Wertpapierinhaber
zu tragen und zu zahlen. Die Emittentin
bzw. die Zahlstelle ist berechtigt, von dem

Kindigungsbetrag etwaige Steuern,
Gebihren  oder sonstige Abgaben
einzubehalten, die von dem

Wertpapierinhaber gemald vorstehendem
Satz zu zahlen sind.

Ein "Weiteres Stdrungsereignis” liegt
vor, wenn

@) die Berechnungsstelle feststellt,
dass (i) aufgrund der am oder
nach dem Emissionstag erfolgten
Verabschiedung oder Anderung
von anwendbaren Gesetzen oder
Verordnungen (einschlie3lich von
Steuergesetzen), oder (ii)
aufgrund der am oder nach dem
Emissionstag erfolgten
Verkiindung oder der Anderung
der Auslegung von anwendbaren
Gesetzen oder Verordnungen
durch die zustandigen Gerichte,
Schiedsstellen oder
Aufsichtsbehérden (einschliel3lich
Malnahmen von
Steuerbehdrden), (x) es fur sie
rechtswidrig oder undurchfiihrbar
geworden ist oder werden wird,
die Bestandteile des Basiswerts
zu halten, zu erwerben oder zu
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(©)

measures (for example, due to an
increased tax liability, lower tax
benefits, or other negative effects
on the tax situation of the Issuer);
or

the Calculation Agent determines
that it is unable, even after
making economically reasonable
efforts, (i) to enter into, maintain,
or close down transactions, which
it considers necessary in order to
hedge its risk from the
assumption and fulfilment of its
obligations under the Securities,
or (ii) to realize or forward the
proceeds of these transactions;
or

the Calculation Agent determines
that it has incurred or will incur
significantly higher taxes, dues,
expenses, or fees (however, no
brokerage fees), in order to (i) to
enter into, maintain, or close
down transactions, which it
considers necessary in order to
hedge its risk from the
assumption and fulfilment of its
obligations under the Securities,
or (i) to realize or forward the
proceeds of these transactions,
and such expenses may also
include increased borrowing
costs resulting from the illiquidity
of an Underlying, which had
previously been sold short.]

(b)

(©

verauf3ern oder (y) ihr wesentlich
hohere direkte oder indirekte
Kosten bei der Erfullung ihrer
Verpflichtungen aus den
Wertpapieren bzw. verbundener
Absicherungsmaflinahmen
(beispielsweise aufgrund einer
erhoéhten Steuerpflicht, geringerer
Steuervorteile oder anderer
negativer Auswirkungen auf die
Steuersituation der Emittentin)
entstanden sind oder entstehen
werden; oder

die Berechnungsstelle feststellt,
dass sie auch nach Aufwendung
zumutbarer wirtschaftlicher
Bemuihungen nicht in der Lage ist,
(i) Geschéafte abzuschlieRen,
beizubehalten oder aufzul6sen,
die sie als notwendig erachtet, um
ihr Risiko aus der Ubernahme und
Erfallung ihrer Verpflichtungen aus
den Wertpapieren abzusichern,
oder (i) die Erlose dieser
Geschafte zu realisieren oder
weiterzuleiten; oder

die Berechnungsstelle feststellt,
dass ihr wesentlich hdhere
Steuern, Abgaben, Aufwendungen
oder Gebihren (jedoch keine
Vermittlungsgebihren) entstanden
sind oder entstehen werden, um
(i) Geschafte abzuschliel3en,
beizubehalten oder aufzulésen,
die die Emittentin fir notwendig
erachtet, um ihr Risiko der
Ubernahme und Erfillung ihrer
Verpflichtungen aus den
Wertpapieren abzusichern oder (ii)
die Erlose dieser Geschéafte zu
realisieren oder weiterzuleiten,
wobei solche Aufwendungen auch
erhohte Leihgebuhren sein
kbnnen, die sich aus der
Angebotsknappheit eines
Basiswerts, der zuvor leer verkauft
worden ist, ergeben.]
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[in the case of an Exchange Traded Fund (ETF)
as underlying, insert:

1)

)

Section 8
Market Disruptions
If a Market Disruption Event
(paragraph (2)) exists on the Final

Valuation Date, then the Final Valuation
Date will be postponed to the next
following Calculation Date on which a
Market Disruption Event no longer
exists. If the Final Valuation Date has
been postponed by [five (5)][eight (8)][e]
consecutive  Calculation Dates in
accordance with the provisions of this
paragraph and if a Market Disruption
Event still exists on that [fifth][eighth][e]
date, such date shall be deemed to be
the Final Valuation Date and the
Calculation Agent shall determine the
Underlying Price in its reasonable
discretion taking into account the
market situation existing on the Final
Valuation Date and announce it in
accordance with Section 6 (Notices) of
the General Conditions.

"Market Disruption Event" means

€) the occurrence or existence at
any time during the one hour
period that ends at the relevant
Valuation Time:

(A) of any suspension of or
limitation imposed on trading by
the relevant Reference Market
or Related Exchange or
otherwise and whether by
reason of movements in price
exceeding limits permitted by
the relevant Reference Market
or Related Exchange or
otherwise:

(i) relating to the relevant ETF
Share on such Reference
Market; or

(i) in futures or options
contracts relating to such
ETF Shares or the relevant
Underlying Index on any
relevant Related
Exchange, or

[im Fall eines Exchange Traded Fund (ETF) als
Basiswert einfligen:

)

2

8§88
Marktstérungen

Wenn an dem Finalen Bewertungstag ein
Marktstérungsereignis (Absatz (2)) vorliegt,
dann wird der Finale Bewertungstag auf den
nachstfolgenden Berechnungstag, an dem
kein Marktstérungsereignis mehr vorliegt,
verschoben. Wenn der Finale
Bewertungstag aufgrund der Bestimmungen
dieses Absatzes um [fUnf (5)][acht (8)][e]
hintereinanderliegende  Berechnungstage
verschoben worden ist und auch an diesem
[finften][achten][e] Tag das
Marktstérungsereignis fortbesteht, dann gilt
dieser Tag als der Finale Bewertungstag,
wobei die Berechnungsstelle die
Kursreferenz nach billigem Ermessen unter
Bertcksichtigung der an dem Finalen
Bewertungstag herrschenden
Marktgegebenheiten bestimmen und gemaf
§ 6 (Bekanntmachungen) der Allgemeinen
Bedingungen bekanntmachen wird.

"Marktstdrungsereignis" bedeutet

(@) den Eintritt oder das Bestehen zu
irgendeinem Zeitpunkt wahrend des
einstindigen Zeitraums, der zu dem
mafgeblichen Bewertungszeitpunkt
endet:

(A) einer durch den malfigeblichen
Referenzmarkt oder die
maRgebliche Verbundene Borse
oder anderweitig bestimmten
Aussetzung oder Einschrankung
des Handels, sei es aufgrund von
Preisschwankungen uber die von
dem jeweiligen Referenzmarkt oder
der jeweiligen Verbundenen Bérse
zugelassenen Grenzen hinaus oder
aus sonstigen Griinden:

(i) in Bezug auf den betreffenden

ETF-Anteil an diesem
Referenzmarkt; oder

@iy mit Termin- oder
Optionskontrakten hinsichtlich
dieser ETF-Anteile oder des
betreffenden
Zugrundeliegenden Index an
einer mafigeblichen

Verbundenen Borse, oder
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()

(B) of any event (other than an
event described in (b) below)
that disrupts or impairs (as
determined by the Calculation
Agent) the ability of market
participants in general to
(i) effect transactions in, or
obtain market values for, the
ETF Shares on the Reference
Market, (ii) effect transactions
in, or obtain market values for
securities that comprise 20 per
cent. or more of the level of the
relevant Underlying Index, or
(iii) effect transactions in, or
obtain market values for, futures
or options contracts relating to
such ETF Shares or the
relevant Underlying Index on
any relevant Related Exchange;
or

the closure on any Calculation
Date of any relevant Reference
Market(s) or any Related
Exchange(s) prior to its
scheduled weekday closing
time unless such earlier closing
time is announced by such
Reference Market(s) or such
Related Exchange(s), as the
case may be, at least one hour
prior to (A) the actual closing
time for the regular trading
session on such Reference
Market(s) or such Related
Exchange on such Calculation
Date or, if earlier, (B) the
submission deadline for orders
to be entered into such
Reference Market or Related
Exchange system for execution
at the scheduled weekday
closing time on such Calculation
Date; or

the failure to publish or
suspension of publication of the
net asset value of each ETF
Share by the management
company of the ETF, or any
other entity who has been
delegated the responsibility to

(b)

(€

(B) eines Ereignisses (aufl3er einem
in (b) nachfolgend beschriebenen
Ereignis), das (nach Feststellung
durch die Berechnungsstelle) die
Fahigkeit der  Marktteilnehmer
grundsatzlich dahingehend stort
oder beeintréachtigt, (i) in Bezug auf
die ETF-Anteile an dem
Referenzmarkt Transaktionen
vorzunehmen  bzw. Marktkurse
einzuholen oder (i) an einer
mafgeblichen Verbundenen Borse
Transaktionen vorzunehmen bzw.
Marktkurse far Wertpapiere
einzuholen, die 20 oder mehr
Prozent des Stands des
betreffenden Zugrundeliegenden
Index ausmachen oder (iii) an einer
mal3geblichen Verbundenen Borse
Transaktionen vorzunehmen bzw.
Marktkurse einzuholen hinsichtlich
Termin- oder Optionskontrakten, die
sich auf diese ETF-Anteile oder den
betreffenden Zugrundeliegenden
Index beziehen; oder

die  SchlieBung einem  (von)
mafigeblichen
Referenzmarkt/Referenzmarkten
oder einer (von) malfigeblichen
Verbundenen Bérsen(n) an einem
Berechnungstag vor ihrem Ublichen,
werktaglichen Handelsschluss, es
sei denn, ein solcher friherer
Handelsschluss wird von diesem(n)
Referenzmarkt/Referenzmérkten
bzw. dieser(n) Verbundenen
Borse(n) spatestens eine Stunde
vor dem folgenden Zeitpunkt
angekindigt: (A) dem tatsachlichen
Handelsschluss fur die Ubliche
Handelszeit an  dem (den)
Referenzmarkt/Referenzmérkten
bzw. der (den) Verbundenen
Borse(n) am betreffenden
Berechnungstag oder, falls friher,
(B) dem letztmoglichen Zeitpunkt fur
die Abgabe von Orders im System
des Referenzmarkts oder der
Verbundenen Boérse, die zum
uUblichen, werktaglichen
Handelsschluss am betreffenden
Berechnungstag ausgefiihrt werden
sollen; oder

die  Nichtvertffentlichung  oder
Aussetzung der Veroffentlichung
des Nettovermdgenswertes jedes
ETF-Anteils durch die
Verwaltungsgesellschaft des ETFs
oder eine andere Stelle, an die die
Verantwortung far die
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